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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITRBES

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Huajun International
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Current Year”)
for the shareholders’ perusal.

HIGHLIGHTS

For the Current Year, revenue was approximately RMB3,699.6
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB1,050.1
million, or approximately 39.6%, compared to revenue of
approximately RMB2,649.5 million for the nine month period ended
31 December 2018 (the “Last Period”). The overall increase in
revenue was attributable to the increase in revenue generated from
sales of properties upon delivery of certain completed property
projects to customers during the Current Year.

In 2019, Huajun International Group implemented reorganisation
and reformation proactively. The Group focused on the
development of several major sectors such as industry, real estate
and finance under a strategic development strategy of down-to-
earth and precise management. Our team is closely united, sharing
the same ambition and adhering to the core enterprise value
of “Committed to stepping forward” to proactively promoting
sustainable development of the enterprise with innovative mindset.
At the same time, the Company provided more valuable services
and a better lifestyle to its customers through reinforcing its core
operating segments and improving its brand value.

PROSPECTS

2020 is a year of hard work and challenge for Huajun. Global
economic uncertainties continue to develop, and COVID-19 has
spread rapidly around the world since its outbreak in the first
quarter of 2020. During this year, the business prospects of the
Group are filled with great challenges. To keep strengthening
ourselves and stepping forward sustainably, it is more crucial for us
to be cautious, far-sighted and determined while adopting forward-
looking strategies and making adjustment from time to time, in view
of these new circumstances and with the ever-changing business
environment.

Huajun International Group will continue to be committed to
excellent corporate governance and serve all shareholders and
stakeholders as always. We are also committed to take on corporate
responsibilities and give back to the society, care for our employees
and help others through different way.

Meng Guang Bao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The financial year end date of the Company has been changed
from 31 March to 31 December since the financial year ended 31
December 2018 in order to align with the Company’s financial
year end date with that of its principal subsidiaries incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), which are statutorily
required to have a financial year end date at 31 December.
Accordingly, the current financial period covers a period of twelve
months from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “Current
Year”) which may not be entirely comparable with last period'’s
results which cover a period of nine months from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018 (the “Last Period”).

Our Group has engaged in five core businesses, namely (i)
Printing; (ii) Trading and Logistics; (iii) Property Development and
Investments; (iv) Solar Photovoltaic; and (v) Financial Services.

Our strategy is to strengthen our foundation, better diversify our
business portfolio, and continue to grow, both organically and
through strategic acquisitions. We believe that this strategy will
increase our shareholders value by creating an even stronger
Huajun.

For the Current Year, revenue was approximately RMB3,699.6
million, representing a increase of approximately RMB1,050.1
million, or 39.6%, compared to revenue of approximately
RMB2,649.5 million for the Last Period. The overall increase in
revenue was attributable to the increase in revenue generated from
sales of properties upon delivery of certain completed property
projects to customers during the Current Year. Trading and
Logistics segment and Printing segment continued to register a
stable growth.

For the Current Year, our Group generated most of its revenue from
Trading and Logistics segment which accounted for approximately
59.6% (Last Period: approximately 72.1%) of the total revenue
followed by property development and investments segment which
accounted for approximately 18.3% (Last Period: approximately
4.0%) of the total revenue. For the Current Year, local PRC sales
continued to be our major source of revenue, representing
approximately 86.9% (Last Period: 84.8%) of the total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) EBERE(E)
The table below sets forth our Group's revenue by business TREINAREBRARNEE M EFRPIZESKH T
segment for the Current Year and the Last Period: el &l
For the year ended For the nine months ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
BE-Z-hF (EZF—)\F
TZB=+—HLFE TZA=+—RBIEAEA
RMB Million % RMB Million %
ARBEETR % ARBAET %
Printing ENfl 670.2 18.1% 551.5 20.8%
Trading and logistics B 5 KR 2,203.7 59.6% 1,910.5 72.1%
Property development ¥ #F3 RIEE
and investments 677.0 18.3% 104.9 4.0%
Solar photovoltaic NI AN 92.7 2.5% 69.9 2.6%
Financial services & @ AR 7% 7.6 0.2% 12.7 0.5%
Other Hith 48.4 1.3% = =
3,699.6 100.0% 2,649.5 100%

The table below sets forth our Group's revenue by geographical  T&REF|IAEBERAEE REERPRMEEH
locations based on the location by customers for the Current Year  (RIBEZ MR ) 2 U2k -
and the Last Period:

For the year ended For the nine months ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
BE-F-AF BE-T-N\F
+TZRA=+—HBLEE +ZA=+—HIEAEA
RMB Million % RMB Million %
ARBBEETR % AREFHET %
The PRC A 3,213.7 86.9% 2,246.2 84.8%
The United States ES3E 277.8 7.5% 225.3 8.5%
Hong Kong BB 58.0 1.6% 50.8 1.9%
European countries BOM B R 79.7 2.2% 73.2 2.8%
Other countries HMEHER 70.4 1.8% 54.0 2.0%
3,699.6 100% 2,649.5 100%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Set out below are details of the financial and trading prospects of
the core business segments of the Group:

Printing

New Island Printing Company Limited (“New Island”) is one of the
leading and reputable printing and packaging companies in Hong
Kong and China. New Island produces high quality packaging and
paper products with the capability to serve our international clients
in the areas of beauty and cosmetics, pharmaceutical, food and
beverage globally.

Printing will continue to be the major business segment of the
Group and contribute stable revenue and profit to the Group.
During the Current Year, we have acquired certain lands and
production facilities to set up a high-end printing and packaging
production base in Liuhe Economic Development Zone, Nanjing
City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The production base is expected to
put into production in the second half of 2020.

Trading and logistics

This segment is principally engaged in the distribution and sales
of petrochemical products and provision of logistics services. This
segment trades a large spectrum of petrochemical products. The
Group expects vast demand of petrochemical products in Hong
Kong and the PRC and with our strength of strong network of
suppliers ensure stable supply of products managed by our team,
the Group will continue to support the growth of distribution
and sales of petrochemical products, in particular of exploring
new types of petrochemical products for distribution. Due to the
recent volatility of crude oil market in March 2020, we will take a
more prudent approach to carry out our business to minimise our
inventory risk.

Property development and investments

This segment consists of land consolidation and development, real
estate development and sales, property leasing and management,
and various real estate business. Leveraging on the rich resources
in the PRC, the Group seeks to invest on development projects
with asset appreciation potential for investment and enjoys asset
appreciation while generating stable revenue. There are several
core projects held by the Group and under development during the
Current Year as follows:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property development and investments (Continued)
Shanghai Bao Hua International Plaza

Bao Hua Property Development (Shanghai) Company Limited* (f&
EEMERZE(EE)BRAF]) (formerly known as Shanghai Baohua
Wanlong Real Estates Company Limited* (L8 REEEBEXE
fR 2 7])), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
successfully bid for the land use rights of the land in Minhang
District, Shanghai, the PRC through the auction held by Shanghai
Minhang District Planning and Land Administration Bureau* (/&
MRTRBEZEAN T HEE) offered for sale by way of tender at a
bidding price of RMB2,305 million. The land is under development
and will offer commercial and office complex named Shanghai Bao
Hua International Plaza* (/8 {RZE B E15) with total gross floor
area ("GFA") of approximately 125,000 square metres. We have
obtained the pre-sale certificate in January 2020, 40% of the office
properties would be sold and the remaining office and commercial
properties will be held for long term investment purpose to
generate rental income.

Dalian Projects

On 30 March 2017, we acquired two property projects, namely Bao
Hua Financial Centre* ({(RE & BLH ) and Bao Hua Wang Yuan* ({]
M 4B), from a company controlled by Mr. Meng, the chairman, an
executive Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company
at a total Consideration of RMB1,920 million. Both Bao Hua
Financial Centre and Bao Hua Wang Yuan are located in Dalian
City, Liaoning Province, the PRC. In particular, Bao Hua Financial
Centre comprises a parcel of land with a site area of approximately
10,857.10 sg.m. situated at Xinghai Bay business area, Dalian City,
the PRC. It is under development into a commercial and Grade
A office development complex with total GFA of approximately
146,000 square meters to be erected thereon. The development will
be developed into a 51-storey commercial and office complex with
a 2-storey basement for car parking and ancillary uses.

Property for sale — Gaoyou

A commercial and residential project named Gaoyou Bao Hua - Jun
Ting (B EIRE o B L) with two phases and has a total sellable GFA
of approximately 365,000 square meters located in Gaoyou City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The first phase has offered for pre-sale
since February 2018. At 31 December 2019, a total of approximately
68,260 square meters were sold for proceeds of approximately
RMB607.8 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property development and investments (Continued)
Property for sale - Wuxi Project

In 6 July 2018, the Group completed the acquisitions of (i) the
entire equity interests in Huajun Real Estate (Wuxi) Co, Ltd.* (&
#oE (#885) AR A F)) (formerly known as Baohua Real Estate (Wuxi)
Co., Ltd.* (IREME (15 ) BRAF]) and Wuxi Huiling Real Estate
Co., Ltd.* (E$HBEE B X BMR A A); (i) the entire equity interests
in Wuxi Huiyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (Bif T BEREZABR A F);
and (iii) 55% equity interests in Wuxi Huize Real Estate Co., Ltd.*
(EIHEEBEABMRAF]) (“"Wuxi Huize”) for a total consideration of
RMB1,311.29 million, RMB291.95 million and RMB280.50 million
respectively (collectively “Wuxi Project”). The Group further
acquired 15% equity interests in Wuxi Huize in November 2018
at consideration of RMB76.5 million. The Group is in progress in
acquiring the remaining 30% equity interests in and debt of Wuxi
Huize at aggregate consideration of approximately RMB154.2
million. For details of acquisition, please refer to the Circular of the
Company dated 26 March 2020. Wuxi Project comprises:

()  acompleted building known as Wuai Renjia (A& AR) located
at Liangxi District, Wuxi City in the PRC with a 13-storey
complex building for residential, office and retail purposes
with total saleable/lettable area of approximately 20,000
square meters.

(i) A residential development named as Zangpin Yuyuan (& i
¥ %8) located at Jiangyin District, Wuxi City in the PRC with
parcel of land with a site area of approximately 109,000 square
metres, and a total of 4 phases of various residential and
ancillary facilities which have been developed.

(iii) A parcel of land located at Binhu District, Wuxi City in the
PRC with site area of approximately 163,000 square meters for
residential development with project named Huajun Lake Bay
Garden (EZMETEE).

We have sold/pre-sale certain properties of Wuxi Project and have

recognised revenue of approximately RMB427.8 million from the
Wuxi Project during the Current Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Solar photovoltaic

The PRC government indicated the tightening of the photovoltaic
("PV") policy which is evidenced by the release of the notification
jointly issued by the National Development and Reform
Commission, the Ministry of Finance and the Energy Bureau on 31
May 2018 in relation to new regulations for the PV industry in China,
which is usually referred to as the 531 New Policy (the “531 New
Policy”). The uncertainties brought by the 531 New Policy and future
policies has caused the demand in the domestic market to fall. To
cope with the challenges faced by the Group under the 531 New
Policy, the Group centralises the production of solar products in
Jiangsu Province in the PRC to the production plant at Jurong which
has more advanced technology and automation.

Finance services
(i) Finance Lease

This segment consists of the leasing of land, property, plant and
equipment, and other tangible assets. The operations of this
segment is mainly located in the PRC where the Group seeks stable
revenue with controllable risk.

(i) Provision of Finance

The Group provides finance to prospective customers who
would provide securities for the performance of their respective
obligations to repay the Group. The Group will take a prudence
approach to develop this business segment, diversify the customer
portfolio and seek opportunity to cooperate with its business
partners.

(iii)  Securities Investments

The Group invests in Hong Kong and overseas securities. We mainly
utilise the extensive investment experience of the management to
make medium and short-term investments by searching for stable
revenue with controllable risk, diversifying the corporate operating
risk and improving asset liquidity of the Group.

(iv) Securities brokerage and assets management

The Group has a licensed corporation which is licensed to carry out
Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571) of the laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO").
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our Group's revenue for the Current Year was approximately
RMB3,699.6 million, representing a increase of approximately
RMB1,050.1 million, or 39.6%, compared to revenue of
approximately RMB2,649.5 million for the Last Period. For the
Current Year, our Group's major business segments, namely (1)
Printing reported a revenue of approximately RMB670.2 million (Last
Period: approximately RMB551.5 million); (2) Trading and logistics
reported a revenue of approximately RMB2,203.7 million (Last
Period: approximately RMB1,910.5 million); (3) Solar Photovoltaic
recorded a revenue of approximately RMB92.7 million (Last Period:
approximately RMB69.9 million); (4) Property Development and
investments reported a revenue of approximately RMB677.0 million
(Last Period: approximately RMB104.9 million); and (5) Financial
services recorded a revenue of approximately RMB7.6 million (Last
Period: approximately RMB12.7 million).

The overall increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the
increase in revenue generated from sales of properties upon
delivery of certain completed property projects such as Wuai
Renjia (A% AXK), Zangpin Yuyuan (#m#48) and Yingkou Lake Bay
Garden (& H#/ETEE) to customers during the Current Year.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit was approximately RMB304.2 million for the Current
Year (Last Period: approximately RMB83.9 million), with gross profit
margin of approximately 8.2% (Last Period: approximately 3.2%).
The mix of business segments that the Group operates affects its
results of operations such as its gross profit margins since different
segments have different profitability. While our printing business
maintained a stable gross margin, the increase in gross profit was
mainly due to the change of revenue mix with revenue from sales
of property which earning a higher gross profit margin compared
to largest contribution of trading revenue earning a lower profit
margin.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the Current Year, selling and distribution expenses increased
by approximately RMB58.8 million or 63.1% to approximately
RMB152.0 million, or 4.1% of revenue for the Current Year, from
approximately RMB93.2 million, or 3.5% of revenue for the Last
Period. The increase was primarily due to the increase in staff costs
and commission expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Administrative expenses

For the Current Year, administrative expenses increased by
approximately RMB46.6 million or 14.0% to approximately
RMB380.2 million or 10.3% of revenue of the Current Year, from
approximately RMB333.6 million, or 12.6% of revenue for the Last
Period, was due to an increase in amortisation of right-of-use assets
and staff costs in property development and investment segment.

Finance costs

Finance costs for the Current Year was approximately RMB572.3
million (Last Period: approximately RMB444.3 million). The increase
was primarily due to increase in interest expense on bank and other
borrowings, non-cash interest on significant financing component
arising from pre-sales of properties, and non-cash imputed interest
arising on interest-free borrowings from immediately holding
company compared to the Last Period.

Change in fair value of investment properties

During the Current Year, the Group recorded gains on changes in
fair value of investment properties of RMB237.9 million compared
to a gain of RMB192.0 million in the Last Period as a result of the
increase in fair value of investment properties held by the Group as
at 31 December 2019.

Reversal of financial guarantee contracts provision

No reversal of provision for financial guarantee contracts recorded
during the Current Year.

The Group recorded a provision for financial guarantee contracts of
approximately RMB261.7 million for the Last Period. The provision
was made in respect of two financial guarantee contracts. Details of
the reversal of provision for financial guarantee contracts are set out
in note 37 of this annual report.

Loss for the year/period

As a combined effect of the above, during the Current Year, our
Group recorded a loss attributable to shareholders of the Company
of approximately RMB644.7 million, as compared to a loss of
approximately RMB388.9 million for the Last Period.

gl

B F R ()
THEA

RAFE  TREABEFRBHARE333.6
BET(HWEZ12.6%) BMOARKLI66BE
TTHIL0BERFELHARE380.28 T (HMK
#§210.3%) - TR EMAE RIE D BPHE
FAMEE B 2 #h3H o B TRCAIE N »

MEER

AEEZMBEBBMARESI2IHEL(EF
R HARBL43BET) - BAENTIEE
RRRITREMERNFEHRY - REBEME
ZEAREMKIDD ZEREFERIREERE
BARzRSERZIRE[HENBREFRL
$&hn o

BREYEZ DA EESH

RAEE  NEBERGIREDELNFEZE 2 W
HARE279BETT - MEFRPHBWFA
RE1920887T "ERASER=-_FT—NF
TZA=+—BEFENREMELTFEEN -
MEEREHNBERD

RAFEE - BESSHEERA HBERD -
AEBNREFRHSEUBERANBEHIAR
¥261. 7B 8T - BERE IR EREBE T BER
AHTMEL - BEIPFBERAOBENFBIR
ANERHFEIT ©

£/ HREE

AR ERATE  RAFE  AEBEEAR

AIRERELHEROARBMATEE T  MEF
FIHARISRSEIENARKE3889HE T -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure
Shareholders’ funds

Total shareholders’ funds amounted to approximately RMB2,721.2
million as at 31 December 2019, as compared to approximately
RMB2,630.7 million as at 31 December 2018, representing
an increase of 3.4%. The increase was mainly attributable to
recognition of equity conversion reserve of approximately
RBM541.6 million in respect of the issue of convertible bonds during
the Current Year.

Financial position

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had current assets
of approximately RMB9,292.8 million (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB8,057.7 million) comprising cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB270.8 million (31 December
2018: approximately RMB701.9 million), and current liabilities
of approximately RMB7,798.2 million (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB9,715.2 million). The Group’s current ratio
(defined as current assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.2 (31
December 2018: 0.8).

Our gearing ratio, expressed as a percentage of interest-bearing
liabilities to total assets, was at 62.5% as at 31 December 2019 as
compared to 33.8% as at 31 December 2018.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2019, our Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB270.8 million (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB701.9 million), most of which were denominated
in Renminbi.

Borrowings

Our Group had interest-bearing bank borrowings and other
borrowings of approximately RMB10,172.4 million (31 December
2018: approximately RMB4,797.3 million). Of these borrowings,
approximately RMB9,727.0 million (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB3,818.7 million) were secured by the Group's
assets. Most of the borrowings were denominated in Renminbi.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Capital expenditure

For the Current Year, the Group's capital expenditure mainly
represents additions to investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets totaling of approximately
RMB1,475.5 million (Last Period: approximately RMB647.4 million).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, property held for sale, investment
properties, inventories, pledged bank deposits and restricted bank
balances with carrying amounts of approximately RMB707.9 million,
RMB254.5 million, RMB5,507.0 million, RMB4,783.5 million, RMB10.0
million, RMB313.3 million and RMB69.1 million, respectively, were
pledged to secure certain banking and credit facilities of the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on bank balances
and cash, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables
and borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The
Directors ensure that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates and
entering into plain vanilla foreign exchange forward contracts where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except as disclosed in note 57, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises environmental protection is of vital important
to the long-term development of the Group. In order to minimise
the environmental impact, the Group will continue to review and
improve the effectiveness of its management practices from time to
time.

A separate report “Environmental, Social, and Governance Report”
will be published by the end of July 2020. For details, please refer to
the Company’s website.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Meng Guang Bao (ZE & 5£%), aged 47, joined our Company
and has been appointed as an Executive Director and the Chairman
of the Board of the Company in September 2014. He holds a
bachelor's degree in law from W E/E T KE (Harbin Institute
of Technology) in the PRC. Mr. Meng has been a senior partner
of BEEFRMEMF (Liaoning Huajun Law Firm) since 1998.
Mr. Meng had been honoured by %% &)/AF2 (Liaoning Provincial
Department of Justice) as 3CAA72AD (Civilised Lawyer) in 2003.

Ms. Zhang Ye ({REEZ £ ), aged 44, has been appointed as an Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 20 December
2017. She holds a master’s degree of finance from Peking University
and an MBA degree from the Wharton School at the University of
Pennsylvania. Ms. Zhang has extensive financial and investment
experience and has been working in both financial and investment fields
for over a decade. Ms. Zhang has worked at Matlin Patterson Global
Opportunities Fund, Bank of China Group Investment Limited and China
Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited. She is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Huang Xiumei (E&# % 1), aged 42, has been appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on 27 February 2020, she
is a practicing lawyer in the PRC. Ms. Huang has around 20 years
of experience in legal industry and over 10 years of experience in
corporate administration, investment and risk management. She
is practicing and being a partner in Liaoning Huajun Law Firm &
BEEEREHFT. She joined the Company as the Vice President
of Legal & Compliance department in June 2016 and is the legal
representative of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Bao Limin, aged 42, has been appointed as an Executive
Director and Chief Risk Officer of the Company on 14 April 2020.
She holds a bachelor's degree in economic law from FAEIBUEKZE
(Southwest University of Political Science and Law) and a master's
degree in law from #EZ K2 (Liaoning University). She is a practicing
lawyer in the PRC. She has worked in Liaoning Huajun Law Firm i

BEF R BT since 2006 and is practicing as a partner currently.
She joined our company in June 2016.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Bailin (BB##t5£ %), aged 74, joined our Company in
September 2014 and has been appointed as our Independent
Non-executive Director. Mr. Zheng is also the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a
bachelor’'s degree in Spanish. Mr. Zheng was employed by Citicorp
International Limited from 2007 to 2008, with his last position as a
senior adviser of Greater China of China marketing department. Mr.
Zheng worked in Bank of China and was the head of its Shanghai
branch, general manager of Hong Kong Kwangtung Provincial Bank,
managing director of Bank of China, London Branch and general
manager of Bank of China, New York Branch. Mr. Zheng has been
honoured by the Department of State, State of New York, as one
of the recipients of the “Outstanding 50 Chinese Americans in
Business Award"” in 2001.

Mr. Shen Ruolei ((LE &%), aged 74, joined our Company in
September 2014 and has been appointed as our Independent Non-
executive Director. Mr. Shen is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He holds a bachelor’s degree from R B A& K EE (Central
University of Finance and Economics (formerly known as H R EF K
S BEPT (Central Finance and Economics College)). Mr. Shen was
an independent non-executive director of China Trustful Group
Limited (stock code: 8265) from February 2016 to January 2020. Mr.
Shen currently serves as a chief executive officer of an enterprise
established in the PRC which involves in managing investments.
Mr. Shen has extensive experience in the banking industry. He was
the head of Shanghai branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China from June 1992 to June 1997. He was a director of Shanghai
Commercial Bank and Bank of Shanghai from March 1999 to May
2012 and from April 2005 to April 2013 respectively. Mr. Shen was
also the general manager and chairman of the board of directors of
Shanghai United International Investment Ltd. from September 1998
to February 2012.
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Mr. Pun Chi Ping (&&-F5%%), aged 53, joined our Company
in October 2010 and has been appointed as our Independent
Non-executive Director. Mr. Pun is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Pun is also an
independent non-executive director of Birmingham Sports Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2309) and EPI (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
689) respectively. He holds a Master’s degree of Science in Finance
and a Bachelor degree of Arts in Accountancy, both from the
City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Pun is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Pun has extensive experience in corporate finance, accounting
and auditing. Mr. Pun currently acts as the financial controller of
Poly Property Group Co., Limited (stock code: 119).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tam Ka Lung (FEXBFE£4), aged 41, is the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Company. He graduated
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a
Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) Accounting degree. Mr.
Tam is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Tam has extensive experience in auditing,
financial management, corporate finance and IPO. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Tam has worked in KPMG Hong Kong for more
than 10 years and his last position before leaving was audit senior
manager. He joined the Company in November 2014.He is also a
director of several subsidiaries of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board believes that good corporate governance practices
are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting the
confidence of the Shareholders. The Company is committed to
ensuring a high standard of corporate governance. The Board will
review the corporate governance practices of the Group from time
to time to ensure that they reflect the latest development and meet
the expectations of the Shareholders.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) for the
Current Year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors, except
Mr. Meng Guang Bao, have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the Current Year. On 16
August 2019, the Company entered into a conditional subscription
agreement with China Huajun Group Limited, which is a company
indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Meng Guang Bao, in relation
to the issue of convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$1,000,000,000. Afterwards Mr. Meng Guang Bao noticed that
the entering into of the conditional subscription of convertible
bonds within the blackout period also constitutes a breach of A.3(a)
(i) and B.8 of the Model Code by dealing in shares within blackout
period, the subscription agreement eventually lapsed. Save as
disclosed, Mr. Meng has complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the Current Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for establishing strategic directions,
setting objectives and business plans and monitoring business
performance. The management is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of their respective individual business
units.

The Board has established a schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decisions and those reserved for the
management. The Board reviews this schedule from time to time to
ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the Group.

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Meng Guang Bao (Chairman), Ms. Zhang Ye (Chief Executive
Officer), Ms. Huang Xiumei and Ms. Bao Limin and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zheng Bailin,
Mr. Shen Ruolei and Mr. Pun Chi Ping. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out under the section headed “Biography of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 17 of this annual
report.

The roles of the chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer of the Company are separate and exercised by
different individual, namely, Mr. Meng Guang Bao and Ms.
Zhang Ye. The list of Directors and their respective role and
function are currently available on the Group’'s website at
http://www.huajunintilgroup.com and on HKEx's website at
http://www.hkex.com.hk.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company pursuant to which each
of Mr. Zheng Bailin and Mr. Shen Ruolei is appointed for a specific
term of two years and Mr. Pun Chi Ping is appointed for a specific
term of one year. The appointment is subject to re-election and shall
be automatically renewed for successive terms of one year or two
years respectively unless terminated by either party in writing prior
to the expiry of the term.

The broad spectrum of background of the independent
non-executive Directors is valuable on the diversified perspectives
in the Board. They come from diverse business and professional
backgrounds. They have experiences in general management to
professional knowledge, from PRC business to global enterprise. All
of them have proven experiences in forming corporate strategies,
risk management and corporate governance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence and is satisfied that each of them continues to be
independent in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

By virtue of A.4.3 of the CG Code, further appointment of Mr. Pun
Chi Ping, who has served the Board for more than 9 years, will be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
The reasons that the board believes he is still independent and
should be re-elected has been disclosed in the “Report of the
Directors” and will be enclosed in the circular containing the details
of annual general meeting to be despatched to shareholders.

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction to each newly appointed Director on his/her first
appointment in order to enable him/her to have appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. The Company
has provided timely technical updates, including the briefing on the
amendments on the Listing Rules and the news release published
by the Stock Exchange to the Directors. Continuing briefing
and professional development for Directors are arranged where
necessary.

During the Current Year, all Directors, namely, Mr. Meng Guang
Bao, Ms. Zhang Ye, Mr. Guo Song, Mr. Zeng Hongbo, Mr.
Zheng Bailin, Mr. Shen Ruolei, and Mr. Pun Chi Ping proactively
participated in continuous professional training including the
professional training provided by the Company and developed and
updated their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remained comprehensively informed and relevant.
The Company has received confirmation from all Directors of their
respective training records for the Current Year.

The Board meets no less than four times a year to review, inter alia,
the financial and operational performance of the Group. Additional
Board meetings are held when necessary. Due notice and Board
papers are given to all Directors prior to the meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The Board has established
a procedure to enable Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expenses. Appropriate insurance policy and cover
for Directors have been arranged as well.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) ESEA—E )

There were fourteen Board meetings, four special general WAEEHBITTHUAEZESSH - MAKE
meetings and one annual general meeting held in the Current #J5IAX&RE—XBREREXRE - HUA ST
Year. All business transacted at the above meetings has been duly 2 —4{1%£I1E - DRBEREEMERL AEFE -
documented and is maintained in accordance with applicable laws

and regulations.

The attendance of each director of Board meetings and general JEERAFERETEMMERSZHE

meetings during the Current Year is set out below: REEF|WT
Attendance of Attendance of
Directors Board meetings general meetings
HEESS HERRKS
=3 BRRH R

Executive Directors:

HITEF -

Mr. Meng Guang Bao (Chairman) 9/12 1/5
RHEERE(ER)

Ms. Zhang Ye 14/14 5/5
ofk B 22+

Mr. He Shufen (Note 1) 5/6 2/3
Al 3 e A (fTaET)

Mr. Guo Song 13/14 3/5
FES A

Mr. Zeng Hongbo 14/14 1/5
LA 5

Independent Non-executive Directors:

BUIMTEF -

Mr. Zheng Bailin 11/14 3/5

BRI &
Mr. Shen Ruolei 11/14 1/5

MEERE

Mr. Pun Chi Ping 11/14 3/5
R EE

Note: Ftat -

1. retired on 28 June 2019. 1. RZT-NFRAZ+NBRE -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in 2005 pursuant to the
recommendations of the CG Code. The primary duty of the
Remuneration Committee includes assisting the Board to oversee
the establishment and operation of formal and transparent
procedures for developing the remuneration packages of directors
and senior management of the Company and recommend to the
Board the remuneration packages of Directors, including individual
executive Directors, and senior management of the Company.
The Remuneration Committee’s authority and duties are set out
in written terms of reference, which have been revised by the
Board on 21 December 2018 that are available on the websites of
the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
("HKEX").

During the Current Year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Remuneration Committee consists of 4 members, namely Mr.
Zheng Bailin, who is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
Mr. Shen Ruolei, Ms. Zhang Ye and Mr. Pun Chi Ping. The majority
of the members of the Remuneration Committee are independent
non-executive Directors.

The Company aims to design a remuneration policy that attracts
and retains executives needed to run the Group successfully and
to motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies
of the Group while at the same time taking into account the
performance of the individuals. The remuneration should reflect,
inter alia, the performance and responsibilities of the individuals;
and the remuneration packages are structured to include salary,
bonus and other benefits to provide incentives to directors and
senior management of the Group and to improve their individual
performance.

yMEES
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YARRFMNEES([FNEES]) - HEE
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

For the Current Year, the remuneration of individual Directors
is disclosed by name in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, while the remuneration of senior management is
disclosed by bands as follows:

FMEEE(E)

RAFE  BAREEz e B KEBREA M
WARMEE13FIE - MERERE WS KEE

BB -

Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE HE
—E-hF —E-)N\F
+=—A=+—H +=—H=+—H
L“EE IEN@EA
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE Nt
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ 7T 2 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 752,000,000/ 7T 1 -
1 1
The Remuneration Committee met once during the Current Year HHESE@RNAFEERITT—ALH  THES

and the work carried out by the Remuneration Committee included
the following:

- reviewed the remuneration policy of the Group; and

- reviewed the specific remuneration packages of the Directors’
including executive Directors and senior management of the
Group for the Current Year.

All business transacted at the above meetings has been duly

documented and is maintained in accordance with applicable laws
and regulations.

—B-NER
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee
at the Remuneration Committee meeting during the Current Year is
set out below:

Remuneration Committee Members

FHESENE

HFWEES(H)
FMEEERRERSFEZHFMEREE
B2 HEREEIIWT

Attendance

H R

Mr. Zheng Bailin (Chairman)
BRI A ()

Ms. Zhang Ye

ok B 22+

Mr. Shen Ruolei

S A

Mr. Pun Chi Ping
BT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established in 2012, pursuant to the
recommendations of the CG Code. The primary duty of the
Nomination Committee includes making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of directors,
structure, size and composition of the Board and to maintain a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives on the
Board which are appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business.

During the Current Year and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee consists of 4 members, namely Mr. Shen
Ruolei, who is the chairman of the Nomination Committee, Ms.
Zhang Ye, Mr. Pun Chi Ping and Mr. Zheng Bailin. The majority
of the members of the Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with the primary objective of enhancing the effectiveness
of the Board and its corporate governance standard. The
Company recognizes the importance of having a diverse team
of Board members, which is an essential element in maintaining
a competitive advantage. The Nomination Committee has been
delegated the authority to review and assess the diversity of the
Board and its skills and experience by considering a number
of factors including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, and professional experience.
When identifying and selecting suitably qualified candidates for
recommendation to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
give consideration to the Board Diversity Policy whereby selection
of candidates will be based on merit against objective criteria
and with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee reviews and monitors the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy and makes recommendation to the
Board as appropriate.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee met once during the Current Year.
At the meeting, all members of the Nomination Committee were

present and performed the work including the following:

- reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;

- identifying individuals qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the

selection of individuals nominated for Directorships;

- assessing the independence of independent non-executive

Directors;

- recognising the importance of having a broad complement of
skills, experience and professional knowledge on the Board;

and

- reviewing Board Diversity Policy and the measurable
objectives for nomination policy and the Board Diversity

Policy.

The Nomination Committee formed the view that the Board has
maintained an appropriate mix and balance of skills, knowledge,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the business requirements of the Company during the Current Year.

All business transacted at the above meeting has been duly
documented and is maintained in accordance with applicable laws

and regulations.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee

Meeting during the Current Year is set out below:
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Nomination Committee Members Attendance
REZEEHE HERE
Mr. Shen Ruolei (Chairman) 171
EEELEE(EE)

Ms. Zhang Ye 1/1
oREEZZ

l\/lr Pun Chi Ping 11
/ /I:l IF;EEE

Mr. Zheng Bailin 1/1
B SEE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established in 2004 pursuant to the recommendations of the CG
Code. The primary duty of the Audit Committee includes assisting
the Board to monitor integrity of financial statements, oversee the
relationship between the Company and its external auditors, ensure
effective risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are in place and good corporate governance standards and
practices are maintained within the Group. The Audit Committee’s
authority and duties are set out in written terms of reference, which
have been revised by the Board on 21 December 2018 and are
available on the websites of the Company and HKEX.

During the Current Year and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises 3 independent non-executive Directors and
reports directly to the Board. The Audit Committee meets regularly
with the Group’s senior management and the Company’'s external
auditor to review the financial reporting and internal control systems
of the Group as well as the financial statements of the Company.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Current Year
and the work carried out by the Audit Committee included the
following:

- reviewing the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group;

- reviewing the unaudited interim financial report of the Group;

- reviewing and discussing with the Company’s external auditor
in respect of the audit plan for the consolidated financial
statements of the Group;

- reviewing and discussing with the senior management of
the Group and the external auditor of the Company major
accounting, audit, risk management and internal control
issues;

- reviewing and discussing with the senior management of the
Group the corporate governance practices and compliance
issues of the Group;

- reviewing the independence and objectivity of the external
auditor of the Company;

- monitoring the non-audit services undertaken by the
Company's external auditor or their affiliates;

- reviewing and approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor of the Company; and

- performing corporate governance duty delegated by the
Board.

All business transacted at the above meetings has been duly

documented and is maintained in accordance with applicable laws
and regulations.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued) EREEE(H)

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at the BERZEEIKERAFEREREZESTEHY
Audit Committee meeting during the Current Year is set out below:  HEREEFIMT -

Audit Committee Members Attendance
ERZEERE H IR 8
Mr. Pun Chi Ping (Chairman) 4/4
EeTEE(EE)

Mr. Zheng Bailin 4/4
BRI &

Mr. Shen Ruolei 4/4
LA ERE

The Audit Committee meets with the chief financial officer, chief
executive officer and other senior management of the Group from
time to time for the purposes of reviewing the interim and annual
results, the interim and annual reports, internal control, corporate
governance and risk management matters of the Group. It considers
and discusses the reports and presentations with the management,
the Group's internal and external auditors, with a view to ensuring
that the Group's consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. It also
meets with the Company’s external auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited, to consider their report on the scope, strategy, progress
and outcome of audit of the consolidated financial statements.
In addition, the Audit Committee holds regular private meetings
with the external auditor, separately without the presence of the
management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has the overall responsibility for the corporate
governance of the Group and reviews its effectiveness, and adopts
all necessary and appropriate actions, to maintain sufficient and
effective corporate governance policy and functions from time to
time. The Audit Committee assists the Board in the review of the
corporate governance policy and functions to ensure the upholding
of good corporate governance which are of the best interests of the
Shareholders and the Group.

The Audit Committee has, during the Current Year, made
arrangements to review the Group's the policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board,
to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Group on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and to review
the compliance by the Group with the CG Code and the disclosure
requirements for the Corporate Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility for the reviewing risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and examining its
effectiveness, and to adopt all necessary and appropriate actions,
to maintain sufficient and effective risk management and internal
control systems from time to time. The Audit Committee assists
the Board in the review at least annually, which covers operational,
financial and compliance controls and risk management functions,
in order to maintain an adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Group.

The Directors have made arrangements to review the Group's risk
management and internal control systems as well as the adequacy
of resource, qualification and experience of the staff of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function for the Current Year.
The purpose of the review was to provide a reasonable assurance
on the effectiveness and efficiency of the Group's operations in
achieving the established corporate objectives, to safeguard the
Group's assets against unauthorised use or disposition, to ensure
the maintenance of proper accounting records of the Group for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use and for
publication, and to ensure the Group’s compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations.

The Board considered that the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are effective in material respect but
have areas for improvement to enhance the implementation of
internal control procedures.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the Current Year:

(a) the Company’s former auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
charged the Group RMB1.3 million for audit services and
RMBO0.2 million for non-audit service to provide training
sessions.

(b) the Company’s current auditor, SHINGWING (HK) CPA
Limited, charged the Group RMB3.1 million for audit services.

(c) Other auditors of the Company's subsidiaries charged RMBO0.46
million for audit services.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Ka Lung, the Company Secretary of the Company, is
employed on a full time basis and has taken no less than 15 hours
of the relevant professional training during the Current Year. Our
Company Secretary coordinates and supplies information to the
Directors. Our Company Secretary ensures that board procedures
and all applicable rules and regulations are complied with for all
board meetings.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company for the Current Year, which
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibility of the auditor of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report from pages 52 to 63 of this
Annual Report.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of communications with Shareholders is to ensure
that the Shareholders, both individual and institutional, and,
in appropriate circumstances, the investment community at
large, are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company
(including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, governance and risk profile), in order
to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company. In this
respect, a written shareholders communication policy has been
established and is currently available on the Group’s website at
http://www.huajunintlgroup.com.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure
Shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include general meetings, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. The Company’s website offers
a communication channel between the Company and the
Shareholders, and is frequently updated with key information of the
Group.

At the Company’s annual general meeting held on 28 June 2019,
separate resolutions were proposed by the Chairman in respect of
each separate issue, including the re-election of Directors.

The Company regularly informs the Shareholders of the procedure
for voting by poll and ensures compliance with the requirements
about voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the
constitutional documents of the Company. A consolidated
version of the Company’s Memorandum of Association and
Bye-laws is currently available on the Group’s website at
http://www.huajunintigroup.com and on HKEx's website at
http://www.hkex.com.hk. There is no significant change in the
Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws during the
Current Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Convening of Special General Meeting
("SGM") on requisition of Shareholders

M

The directors of the Company, notwithstanding anything in the
Company’s bye-laws shall, on the requisition of Shareholders
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to
convene a special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business at, 36th Floor, Champion Tower, 3 Garden
Road, Central, Hong Kong. Such requisition may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s Share
Registrars and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to include the resolutions in the agenda for the SGM. And such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

A meeting convened under this section by the requisitionists
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of
the enquirers and submitted to the Company Secretary at the
Company's principal place of business at 36th Floor, Champion
Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of Shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates or not less than
one hundred Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to:

(a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next
annual general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and

(b) circulate to Shareholders of the Company entitled to have
notice of any general meeting send to them any statement of
not more than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition must be deposited to the Company not less than six
weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution or not less than one week before the meeting in case of
any other requisitions.

CONCLUSION

The Board believes that the quality and standard of corporate
governance reflects the quality of the management and the
operations of the Group's business. Good corporate governance
can safeguard the proper use of the Group’s assets and effective
allocation of the Group's resources as well as protecting the
interests of the Shareholders. The management is committed to
advocating good practice in corporate governance and will strive to
maintain, strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the
corporate governance of the Group.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
Huajun International Group Limited (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively refer to as the “Group”) for the Current
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. During the
Current Year, the Group has engaged in five core business, namely
(i) Printing; (ii) Trading and Logistics; (iii) Property Development and
Investments; (iv) Solar Photovoltaic; and (v) Financial Services.

A review of the business of the Group during the Current Year, a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business are set out under the section headed "Management
discussion and analysis” in this annual report.

The analysis of the geographical segments of the operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries during the year is set out in note 7 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit/loss of the Group for the Current Year and the state of
the Group’s and the Company's affairs as at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 69 and 287
respectively.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Current Year (the Last Period: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, the objective of
which is to allow shareholders of the Company to participate in the
Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate reserves to sustain
the Group's future growth. The declaration, form, frequency and
amount of dividend paid by the Company must be in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations and subject to the bye-laws of the
Company. In deciding whether to declare any dividend, the Board
will take into account a number of factors, including the financial
results, the distributable reserves, the operations and liquidity
requirements, and the current and future development plans of the
Company. The Board will review the dividend policy of the Company
as appropriate from time to time.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Current Year
amounted to RMB173,000.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 are
set out in note 55 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 292 to 293.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the
Current Year is as follows:

AEERAFENEZBIAAREK173,0007T
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%
Sales $HE
Five largest customers in aggregate TREFHEM 12.3%
The largest customer BRAEF 4.1%
Purchases REE
Five largest suppliers in aggregate T RHER AR 22.5%
The largest supplier BAHER 8.6%

At no time during the Current Year have the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interests as defined in the Listing Rules in these major
customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Current
Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties during the Current Year are set
out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 70
and note 56 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 was Nil (31 December 2018: Nil).

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group at 31 December 2019 are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Current Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Meng Guang Bao (Chairman)

Ms. Zhang Ye

Ms. Huang Xiumei (appointed on 27 February 2020)
Ms. Bao Limin (appointed on 14 April 2020)

Mr. Zeng Hongbo (resigned on 14 April 2020)

Mr. Guo Song (resigned on 27 February 2020)

Mr. He Shufen (retired on 28 June 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zheng Bailin
Mr. Shen Ruolei
Mr. Pun Chi Ping

In accordance with the Bye-laws 86(2) of the Company, Ms. Huang
Xiumei, who was appointed on 27 February 2020, and Ms. Bao
Limin, who was appointed on 14 April 2020, will hold office until
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
herself for re-election at the annual general meeting. Ms. Zhang
Ye, Mr. Zheng Bailin and Mr. Pun Chi Ping will retire by rotation
from office in accordance with the Bye-laws 87 of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Mr. Pun Chi Ping has served the Board as independent non-
executive Director for more than 9 years. During the Current Year,
he has contributed the Board by providing independence view
points and advices to the Company. Based on the above and the
annual confirmation of the independence received, the Company
considers Mr. Pun Chi Ping is still independent and should be re-
elected in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

CHANGES IN INFOMATION OF DIRECTOR

Mr. Shen Ruolei resigned as independent non-executive director
of China Trustful Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8265), with effect from 17 January 2020.

Save as disclosed above and in this annual report, there are no other
changes to the Directors’ information as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ remuneration of the Company are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions between the Group and parties regarded as
"Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles are set out
in note 53 to the consolidated financial statements. Save for those
disclosed under the section in “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS”
below, no transaction disclosed thereto constitutes connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction of the Company
which is subject to, among other things, reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors and their respective
associates was interested in any business apart from the business of
the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Although certain associates of Mr. Meng are engaged in property
development and property management, which is one of the
principal businesses of the Group, the said associates of Mr. Meng
carries out their business in considerable distance, i.e. over 100
kilometers, from the location where the property developments
of the Group are situated at. Accordingly, there is no competition
rendered in between the business of the Group and the business
engaged by Mr. Meng's associates. Therefore, the Board is of the
view that Mr. Meng and his associates were not interested in any
business apart from the business of the Group, which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transaction of the Company during the
Current Year are set out below:

Huai’ An Project

On 21 September 2018, Baohua Properties (China) Limited ({& &
#E (B )BRAQE]), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as purchaser entered into the agreement with Nanjing
Huajun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (A R ZE A E X B R 2 A) (“Nanjing
Huajun”) as vendor, pursuant to which the Nanjing Huajun
conditionally agreed to sell, and the purchaser conditionally agreed
to purchase, the entire equity interest and the debt in Huaren Real
Estate (Huai'an) Limited (ECEX %) BR QA ("Huaren Real
Estate”) at the consideration of RMB180.0 million, comprising of
RMB20.0 million being the consideration for the equity interest and
RMB160.0 million being the consideration for the debt in Huaren
Real Estate.

The consideration shall be satisfied by issue of the convertible
bonds to the vendor or its nominee. The convertible bonds carry
the right to convert into the 5,400,000 ordinary shares at the
conversion price of HK$38.00 per share, which may be exercised by
the bondholder to convert in whole or in any part (in the multiple
of HK$1,000,000). Save as disclosed, the terms of convertible bond
is the same as the convertible bond of the First Issue of CB as
disclosed under “Issue of Convertible Bond to CHG" under this
section.
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Through the acquisition, the Group would acquire the interest
of the land held by Huaren Real Estate. The Board believed that
the acquisition would enrich the asset portfolio of the Group and
provide an investment opportunity for the Group to enjoy the asset
appreciation while generating stable revenue, which will potentially
bring a greater return for its Shareholders in a long run.

The acquisition has completed on 28 June 2019 and the convertible
bonds were issued to Nanjing Huajun accordingly. For further
details, please refer to the Company’s circular dated 25 January
2019 and the announcements dated 21 September 2018, 22
February 2019 and 28 June 2019 respectively.

Issue of Convertible Bonds to CHG

On 26 October 2018, the Company entered into a conditional
subscription agreement with China Huajun Group Limited ("CHG"),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and CHG agreed
to subscribe the convertible bond in the principal amount of
HK$1,000,000,000 at the issue price of 100% of the principal amount
of the convertible bond (the “First Issue of CB").

The Company looked for opportunities to repay certain borrowings
and finance its operation. After comparing with several alternatives,
the board of directors considered that the First Issue of CB is less
time-consuming and have less impacts on the financial performance
of the Group.

The convertible bond carries the right to convert into 26,315,789
ordinary share at the conversion price of HK$38.00 per share, which
may be exercised by the bondholder to convert in whole or in any
part (in the multiple of HK$1,000,000). In any event, the conversion
rights shall not be exercised to an extent that public float shall fall
below 25% or in breach of applicable laws and regulations.

The maturity date of the convertible bond falls on the fifth
anniversary from the date of issue of the convertible bond with
an interest rate of 1.5% per annum. At Maturity, all outstanding
principal amount of the convertible bond which have not been
redeemed or converted will be redeemed by the Company at
the principal amount of the convertible bond according to the
instrument of the convertible bond. The Company may opt to
exercise its right to redeem convertible bond in whole or any part (in
the multiple of HK$1,000,000) prior to the maturity date.

On 27 June 2019, all conditions of the First Issue of CB fulfilled and
the convertible bonds were issued to CHG accordingly. For further
details, please refer to the Company’s circular dated 31 January
2019 and the announcements dated 22 February 2019, 29 March
2019, 8 May 2019 and 27 June 2019.
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On 16 August 2019, the Company entered into a conditional
agreement with CHG, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
issue and CHG agreed to subscribe the convertible bond in the
principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000 at the issue price of 100% of
the principal amount of the convertible bond (the “Second Issue of
CB") in the view of repaying certain borrowings and further finance
its operation.

The terms of the convertible bond proposed to be issued in the
Second Issue of CB was similar to that in the First Issue of CB.

As certain conditions of the Second Issue of CB were not fulfilled on
or before the long stop date, the Second Issue of CB lapsed on 31
December 2019. For further details, please refer to the Company's
circular dated 11 November 2019 and the announcements dated 16
August 2019 and 31 December 2019.

As CHG is the substantial shareholder of the Company and is
ultimately wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Meng, who is a
director and controlling shareholder of the Company, CHG is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The First
Issue of CB therefore constituted a connected transaction of the
Company.

Dalian Hydraulic Project

On 6 December 2018, Huajun Industrial Park Management (China)
Limited* (EBEXRERE (P E) BRAF]), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the agreement with
Liaoning Huajun Equipment Manufacturing Co., Limited* (B Z 2
ERERIEFRAF]) and Mr. Cong Liming to purchase the entire
equity interest in Dalian Hydraulic Machinery Co., Limited* (KiER
T # B BR A 7)) at the consideration of RMB36,000,000, of which
RMB27,889,200 shall be settled by cash and RMB8,110,800 shall be

settled by issue of 873,875 consideration shares of the Company.

The Company looked for opportunities in expanding all its
business including the manufacturing and sales of industrial
equipment business. As Dalian Hydraulic Machinery Co., Limited
and its subsidiaries were carrying similar type of business as the
Company did, the Company believed that the acquisition would
provide synergy effect to the Company's existing solar photovoltaic
business and expand its customer base to northern part of China
due to the location of manufacturing plants.

The acquisition has completed on 30 September 2019 and 873,875
consideration shares were issued accordingly. For further details,
please refer to the Company’s circular dated 24 June 2019 and
announcements dated 6 December 2018, 7 December 2018, 8 March
2019, 11 July 2019 and 30 September 2019.
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As Liaoning Huajun Equipment Manufacturing Co., Limited was
indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Meng, who is a director and the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and his spouse as at the
date of the transaction, it was an associate of Mr. Meng and a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Wouxi Huize

On 23 May 2019, Baohua Properties (China) Limited (fREEHbZE (P
Bl)EPBR A 7)) as purchaser, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an Acquisition Agreement with the Wuxi
City Jinde Assets Management Limited (B MESEEEEEERA
A]) as vendor, pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to acquire,
and the vendor agreed to sell, 30% equity interests in Wuxi Huize at
the consideration of RMB154,191,453.05, comprising of RMB1 being
the consideration for the equity interest and RMB154,191,452.05
being the consideration for the debt in Wuxi Huize).

The Company was informed by the vendor that 30% of equity
interest and the debt of Wuxi Huize would be put on sale by way of
tender in an action host by Wuxi Equity Exchange Co., Limited (f&
HEER S TAR AT, Although the Company did not have any
intention to acquire the remaining 30% equity interests in Wuxi
Huize before, the Company did not want any unfriendly or stranger,
to be a minority shareholder of Wuxi Huize, who might hinder and/
or affect the development of Wuxi Huize.

Accordingly, the Company decided that it would be in its best
interests to acquire the equity interest and debt in Wuxi Huize to
secure full and complete control over Wuxi Huize. In view of the
location of the land and property held by Wuxi Huize, the Board
believes that the acquisition would provide the Group with a highly
flexibility for decision-making in Wuxi Huize with a view to generate
more return on investment to shareholders.

As at the date of this report, the acquisition has not yet completed.
For further details, please refer to the circular of the Company dated
26 March 2020 and the announcements of the Company dated 23
May 2019 and 25 June 2019.

As the vendor is a the registered owner of 30% of Wuxi Huize, hence
a substantial shareholder of Wuxi Huize which is a 70% indirectly
owned subsidiary of the Company, the vendor is a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level under the Listing
Rules. As such, the acquisition also constitutes as a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” above and the note 53 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contract of significance has been entered into
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of their subsidiaries, at any
time during the Current Year. No contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
by the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of their
subsidiaries.

INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF
THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

Interests of Directors and chief executive

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company in the shares
or underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions in which he was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

—B-NER

B EXTRIER S | — 8 MAR A M SRR M RE530

KEEI  RAFEEMER - AR R HEEM
MEBAREARRERERKEE ZERMMBA
BIER M EMERAH - BIERA R R
R RS 2 AT E & Rl M AR 2 &) sk B A Y
REMRHIRERI LEAERAL °

ESERFETRAR ZHEH

RZB-NAF+A=+—0B FTRAZEFR
TE2TBRABRARARARE(AREEE(EER
& R EEIRGI(TB 5 MGG ) EXVER) 2
SRR, REEED - BEREBES LB
BEGPIEXVERET M8 BPA & AN R A KBk 32
Fr( BIEAR IR 77 R B 1R 8 B IR ST E 13X
BIEE 2 B RRR ) RREE 5 R HAE &P
FEI2NFAB LR Z G 2 BREM - HRE
ETRAMS T EMBITAZERETERRS
ZIRESTRI(MEESTRI D R ERAE AR A Kbt
R EmFORRIAT

41



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERES

INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF Y
THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)

Interests of Directors and chief executive (Continued)

EERIBTRABZER(E)

Interests in the Shares R0z =
Approximate
percentage of
interests in the
issued share
Number of capital of
Director Nature of interests Shares the Company
NN
ERITRAER
=3 ERME R E ZBABE DL
Mr. Meng Guang Bao Interest in controlled corporation®ete 'and2 76,166,408 (L) 123.76%
BEERAE FIT ¥ 125 (B8] ) e s (107 22
Beneficial owner 799,560 (L) 1.30%
EmlEE A
Share OptionsMoted 387,351 (L) 0.63%
R G A (H53)
Ms. Zhang Ye Share optionsMete4 274,050 (L) 0.45%
o B 22+ 8 e e ()
Mr. Guo Song Beneficial owner 30,000 (L) 0.05%
ZME S E Em#EA A
Share optionsMete 274,050 (L) 0.45%
B G A (W)
Mr. Zeng Hongbo Beneficial owner 3,560 0.01%
BADR B4 EmfEBA
Share optionsMete4 274,050 0.45%
R {5 #E (M)
Mr. Zheng Bailin Share options™ete® 38,735 (L) 0.06%
BB A bR S 2 A P 20
Mr. Shen Ruolei Share optionsMete®) 38,735 (L) 0.06%
LB E A& A [ i (o)
Mr. Pun Chi Ping Share optionsMete ¢ 38,735 (L) 0.06%
EATRE B i g (ete)
The letter “L" denotes a long position in the Shares. [LIRERB IR -
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INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF
THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)

Interests of Directors and chief executive (Continued)

Interests in the Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. Long positions in 76,166,408 Shares are held by CHG. CHG was wholly
owned by Huajun Group Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, which was beneficially owned as to 100% by Mr. Meng.
Mr. Meng was deemed to be interested in all Shares held by CHG by virtue
of SFO. Amongst 76,166,408 shares, 31,715,789 shares involve convertible
bonds held by CHG.

2. 38,735,070 share options have been granted to Mr. Meng and were
subsequently consolidated into 387,351 share options. For further details
of the said share options granted, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 7 February 2017 and 5 December 2017, respectively.

3. 274,050 share options have been granted to each of Ms. Zhang Ye and
Mr. Zeng Hongbo prior to their appointment as a director of the Company.

4. 274,050 share options have been granted to Mr. Guo Song. For
further details of the said share options granted, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 16 February 2015, 30 June 2015,
7 February 2017 and 5 December 2017 respectively.

5. 3,873,500 share options have been granted to each of Mr. Zheng Bailin,
Mr. Shen Ruolei and Mr. Pun Chi Ping and were subsequently consolidated
into 38,735 share options. For further details of the said share options
granted, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 30 June
2015, 7 February 2017 and 5 December 2017 respectively.

—B-NER

EERTIBTRABZER (B)

Rtz ()
FiaE -

1. 76,166,408 RN EIF R BRPRHEEEBEIFE -
FREEEEHEEEEARAR(—MRESEM
RYMBRAR)ZERE MEEEEBRAFA
BB 100%E e o RIBEESH REEG -
AEERBEARTEEEEERAENMERTES
TS o 1A76,166,408 X A%+ 31,715,789 A% A% 15
BIENRRESFRPEEEZEERISS -

2. 38735070 BBREERTHEEREREHA
387 3510 - A LA REBEREZESH
% BL2HEAARBHESNAE-T—LF A LA
RZZB—+HF+-_ARAZRE -

3. 274,050 BIREE NRBEZ T R BADR AL RERE
RERTEFF DR FREL T RBAIREE o

4. 274,050 BERR R X T B LA - AR LB R
BREZEZHFHE  F2HAARBHSNAZT
—RAF-_A+A~B - ZFE—RHEFX~A=+RH - =%
—+tF-A+tAR=E—+tFETARBEZR% -

5. 3,873,500 EIREB DRI TFTEMMAE - hE
EREREARTRE  WHEE G A38,7350 AR
oAl EMBEREBREZELHE  F2HK
NEIBHAR AT —HFEAA=1H =—FT—+t
FZAtARZZE—+E+_ARAZAE -
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INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF
THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)

Interests in shares in associated corporations RAEEEBR G 2 ER
Amount of
registered Approximate
capital/ percentage
number of interest in the

shares held in

capital of the

the associated associated

Associated corporation Director corporation  Capacity corporation

RiEBEE R EE

2B aLE, IR A R 25

e ] E= FEROHE 56 ZBRBEDL

Huajun Group Limited Nete” Mr. Meng HK$3,000,000,000  Beneficial owner 100%
EREERR QT W) mRE 3,000,000,000 7T Em#ERA

7. CHG is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huajun Group Limited.

As 31 December 2019, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares (“Shares”), underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have such under provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section
352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

7. TREZRELAEERERRARZZEMNBAT -

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H KREXHEE
Sy BEARREERTIETBRAERARR
S E AR (&R B 5 RBAERAIEXV
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INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS BREEZSRBERANETFRERE
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO AND THE ERRESRBHKE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at the 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the Directors, WZZ—h&F+-—A=+—H0 REZFEHM
the following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of ZIS/}7%%&35%?{@(/\5\J«A?I\ZMT}\iEA$
the Company, had an interest or short position in the shares and R & Z M MBI FEARIEES KBS K
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed — BIEXVEIE2 /%35 35 2 X K EH33615KREA
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 and BARARFEBREZERIAR @ EEXBEEE
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, or were directly or indirectly, MARNERBEBITRAARTREAE LRE
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of  Z{EfAI4ERIALARE(E 2 10%8 bA L HYHERS

share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general

meetings of the Company:

Approximate
percentage
of interests

in the issued

share capital
of the
Company as at
31 December

Name of Shareholders Number of Shares Capacity 2019
=t WPy
+=HA=+—8
NN TR
B A=
BERARE BRAEE 54 ZHNE DL
Madam Bao Le 76,965,968 (L)  Interest held by spouse (Note (a)) 125.06%
Oy feiBi5H 2 e (fifit(a))
CHG 76,166,408 (L) Beneficial owner 123.76%
FEEREE EmlEE A
Huajun Group Limited 76,166,408 (L)  Interest of controlled corporation 123.76%
EEEEFRAA (Note (b))
Frizs) =B M s
(KtaEb))
Mr. Meng 76,166,408 (L)  Interest of controlled corporation 123.76%
mEE (Note (b))
B2 il 55 B M R 2
(KtaEb))
799,560 (L)  Beneficial owner 1.30%
Em#EEA
387,351 (L)  Share Options 0.63%
FEA i
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INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO AND THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Madam Bao, being a spouse of Mr. Meng, was deemed to be interested in
the interest held by Mr. Meng.

(b) Long positions in 76,166,408 Shares are held by CHG. CHG was wholly
owned by Huajun Group Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, which was beneficially owned as to 100% by Mr. Meng.
Mr. Meng was deemed to be interested in all Shares held by CHG by virtue
of SFO. Amongst 76,166,408 shares, 31,715,789 shares involve convertible
bonds held by CHG.

The letter “L" denotes a long position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company was aware of
any other person (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) or corporation which had an interest or short position in
the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 and section
336 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

Save as set out in note 53 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contract of significance to which
the Company or subsidiaries or controlling shareholder of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company or
an entity connected with a Director of the Company has or had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of
the Current Year or at any time during the Current Year.

BEBSRNEEAATHERE
BRRE R A (B)

et

(@ BEt(BEELZEB) WRAREALRAZE
e AN -

(b) 76,166,408 B FEIFEBPEEEELEEE -
FREEEEHEEEEARAR(—MRESEM
RYMBRAR)ZERE MEEZEEBRAFA
B EREA100%E o RIBEESH REEG -
BAEEWRANTEEEEERFOMERN T
BIRERS © 176,166,408 815+ 31,715,789 A% Ik
DRETRKRESFETFEEEZEESES -

[LIRKRBRD 247 R -

B EXFBEEN  R-F—AF+-A=+—
A AAREFREBTHABLTMEEAL
AT (RARNEEREETRABBI) AR
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28 September
2007. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to Executive
or Non-executive Directors including Independent Non-executive
Directors or any employees (whether full-time or part-time) of
each member of the Group (the “Participants”) and for such other
purpose as the Board may approve from time to time. Pursuant to
a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at
a special general meeting held on 25 October 2017, the new share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) has been adopted and approved.
The Scheme shall remain valid and effective until 24 October 2027.

The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

(i)  The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the date of adoption of the Scheme, unless approved
by Shareholders and which must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the total number of the relevant class of securities of
the Company in issue from time to time. The total number
of Shares available for issue under the Scheme is 6,066,920
Shares.

(i)  The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options (including both exercised and
outstanding options) granted pursuant to the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to each of the
Participants in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of the relevant class of securities of the Company
(or its subsidiaries) in issue.

(ili) The exercise price shall be solely determined by the Board,
and shall be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of offer of the share option to the Participants,
which must be a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on
which licenced banks are open for business in Hong Kong
and the Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in
securities (the "Business Day”); (b) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five Business Days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the share option to the
Participants; and (c) the nominal value of the Shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

A share option may be exercised at any time during a period
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and
notified by the Board to each grantee the period during which
an option may be exercised and in any event, such period shall
not be longer than 10 years from the date upon which any
particular option is granted in accordance with the Scheme.

There is no minimum period for which a share option must
be held before the share option can be exercised unless
otherwise determined by the Board.

According to the Scheme, the offer of a grant of share options
may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, HK$100
is payable by each of the Participants to the Company on
acceptance of the share options as consideration for the grant.
The share options to which the offer relates shall be deemed
to have been granted on the date of offer of such share
options.

As at 31 December 2019, the number of share options have been
granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme was 2,421,906
(31 December 2018: 2,703,132) representing approximately 3.94%
(31 December 2018: 4.46%) of the Company in issue at that date.

The movement of share options under the Scheme during the
Current Year is presented as follows:

BRETEI(E)

BRECESSRABHRNBEEERE
FEMBNSERBREALERZBR
RERITTE AR E p IR AT X AT
MFERT - AT SHEBIREZTE
PRERE A E R A i 2 B EEH10%F -

(iv)

(v BREFTSRTEEN  BEREBRER
TITERT B AR A BRE 2 REHR -

RigZatdl SR20REEREEREE
BEF 28RN M IE 2 X TR ERA
NBEIXH100 T - tERRTHNE - &
ZETHBANERERNGESERLAH
BREZNERCDERT -

—NF+ZA=+—H8  BREZFIE
BHERETE ZBRESE /52,421,906 (=
E—NF+-_A=+—H8 :2,703,13213) * {h&
REINE BB BHTERELNIMUR(ZFE—N\F
+=—A=1+—8 :4.46%)

MAEE » ZETEE N ZBREZESH 27T ¢

At At

1 January 31 December

2019 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2019

R=ZE-h#F

R=ZZ-NF T=A

—A—H 2R 21 2AX =+-H

Movement during the year HE-T-NE 2,703,132 NIL NIL 281,226 2,421,906
ended 31 December 2019 +-A=1+—8L = i

FEZE
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the Scheme as disclosed above, at no time during
the Current Year was the Company, any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, although there is no restriction against such rights under
Bermuda Law.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S SHARES

During the Current Year, the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the shares.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that each Director, Secretary
and other officers of the Company and shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in or about
the execution of the duties in their respective offices. The Company
has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance, which is
currently in force and was in force throughout the Current Year, to
cover potential legal actions against its Directors and senior officers
of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed above under the section "CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - Issue of Convertible Bonds to CHG"” and in
note 46 of the consolidated financial statements and the section
under “Share Option Scheme”, the Company did not enter into any
equity-linked agreements for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
no equity-linked agreements subsisted as at 31 December 2019.
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USE OF PROCEEDS IN FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES &£&EZHEHEHAR

Date of Net Proceeds

announcement Event (approximately)  Intended use of proceed Actual use of proceeds
FIERERE

NERH £ (#4) FeRERERE FeRARRAR

26 October 2018 Issue of convertible bonds  Approximately Repayment of borrowings - HK$502,140,000 Note 1

“2-\FTAZTRA  under specific mandate HK$999,400,000 502,140,000/ LA {EE & 5% i

REBRRKERTRRES  4999,400,0008 7T

Payment payable or to be payable for Used as intended
construction costs of existing property  1&¥tTE A& {E A
projects of the Group - HK$198,240,000

196240 000 BT KA R B A AR
L IR AR IENT 2 5008

The Group's investment in and acquisition of
assets in the property development and
investments and printing sectors that are
complementary to the Company's existing
principal activities - HK$299,020,000
(Notes 2 and 3)

299,020,000 TRIEASBRME R R LA
RORTE(BARARE T EEXKER
R REREEWE(E2R3)

Notes: Ffat -

1. HK$353.6 million had been used as intended for repayment of borrowings, 1. 33 6ABEILERRERGEAEEEER 208
HK$20 million had been reallocated to be used as working capital of the EBETCAARBBRERTRLEEEMARA
Company'’s head office from the original intended use for repayment EEBRZBEAERABEARRENFR2EE
of borrowings because there was a need for the working capital of the Be  RZZE-NFNAAEKE 208BBETEEHE
Company'’s Eead office and the HK$20 million has been fully utilised as A Fga 2128 5B 8B TE ARNERERRI MR
at the end of September 2019. The remaining HK$128.5 million had been ISHC
utilized for repayment of borrowings and interest payment.

2. As disclosed by the Company in its announcement dated 8 May 2019, 2. BOMARAR_ZE—NFRANBHBEZ DERRK
there was a change in the use of proceeds from this convertible bonds. B MRESHGTEAREAEREY - RAMR
The original use was for settlement of partial considerations for the X TREORBERSEERERA R R
acquisition of the entire equity interest in and debts owed by Juron BRATRBERARZ EMBEERAER ZEHZ
Simaite Intelligent Science and Technology Co., Ltd.* (’@@%%%%ﬁﬂg BOKME - A BOARAN—F—NFEA—

ABRAF]) and Jiangsu Xietong Solar Technology Co., Ltd.* (L& %@ BArAfh W EED R A RA]Z 5
REHE AR A F]). However, as announced by the Company on 1 April 2019, EMSRBEREEELRE  MARAC SR
the above mentioned acquisition has lapsed, therefore the Company'’s ARRESAERAENEARAEBRNYEER
intended use of proceeds has changed and the Company has announced BB RERIESETRARTRELIEXBER
its change in the application of the proceeds from this convertible bonds ZIEREENE  BRURmERRaREER
for the Group's investment in and acquisition of assets in the property M(TEEEM ] 2 MEER -
development and investments and printing sectors that are complementary
to the Company’s existing principal activities which is the property
development for setting up of high-end printing and packaging production
base (“Production Base”).

3. HK$68.4 million will be applied for the acquisition of assets in the 3. BWARRR_TE—NFRA+THERB ZZT—1LF
Production Base in Liuhe Economic Development Zone, Nanjing NARNARZZ-NFLA=ZHAZRERAMH
City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, as announced by the Company in its 684EE B L AERBHEIIGHERA R T RAK
announcements dated 15 May 2019, 6 June 2019 and 3 July 2019, tKe said ERBREEREMZEE - RAFEE - Lil684H
HK$68.4 million has been fully utilized during Current Year. Approximately BEBTEORBER - A308BBBLE BIEHRR
HK$30.8 million had been applied for bidding of the land for the SEREMZ T WA RAR_T_TF=H
Production Base. Approximately HK$175.8 million will be applied for the Zt+AAHEZBREER-_ZE-NAFREA=-TNHE
acquisition of 30% equity interest in and debts due by Wuxi Huize Real H ZZE-hAEXA=-TH —E_THFNMA
Estate Co., Ltd., as announced by the Company in its circular dated 26 —+BTBEZRAERAMH - H17588 BETiEH
March 2020 and announcements dated 24 May 2019, 25 June 2019 and 20 EWEESFZEXARA Bt I KA R (E
April 2020. Out of the HK$175.8 million, HK$52.4 million had been utilized 8 o 175.8B BB TLE T52. TTEEHA - M
and the remaining HK$123.4 million is expected to be utilized on or before Fp123 48 BB THEEN T _TFNA=1H
30 September 2020. The remaining HK$24 million was reallocated to be SZAIEA c ARNKESEHE MBI NRERER
used as general working capital of the Group from the original intended D Fp4BEBTEHRAARANEEN YL
use for the Group's investment in and acquisition of assets in the property BREEREREGETEARNBRETIEEHE
development and investments and printing sectors that are complementary MRBARAENBREMEEN DR AREE —
to the Company's existing principar)activities because the consideration to REBES - NAFE - MBMEREUEEET
be paid for the acquisitions are less than the estimated amount. During the ERE—REEES -

Current Year, the remaining proceeds of HK$24 million have been used as
general working capital.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 44
to the consolidated financial statements.

STAFF

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total staff of 3,541
(31 December 2018: 3,164).

The Group provides employee benefits such as staff insurance,
retirement schemes and discretionary bonus and also provides in-
house training programmes and external training sponsorship.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During the Current Year, the Company acquired the interest in
each of Huaren Real Estate and Dalian Hydraulic Machinery Co.,
Limited. After completion, each of Huaren Real Estate and Dalian
Hydraulic Machinery Co., Limited has become an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and their financial results have
been consolidated into the financial statements of the Group. For
details of the acquisitions, please refer to the disclosure under
“Huai’ An Project” and ” Dalian Hydraulic Project” in the section of
"CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS".

Save for those disclosed in this report, there were no other material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries completed during the
Current Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued share capital as required under the Listing
Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The former auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
retired as the auditor of the Company at the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2019.
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the
Company on 27 August 2019 to fill the causal vacancy following the
retirement of former auditor.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year

ended 31 December 2019 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited.

By Order of the Board
Meng Guang Bao
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 April 2020

—B-NER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRES

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F,, Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

ferkdFe
Shine‘ZOin?'

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HUAJUN INTERNATIONAL GROUP
LIMITED £ZEBREBEERA A
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Huajun
International Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 291,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

s {77 )
-
{ a?]& ﬁa B
FEAAE

7 [FE 335 el 1431
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BRRR  ZFRAMBBREREEZ LG
ARE([FAGFMAE EMN(EBMBRE
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HhE -
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that as of 31 December 2019, the
Group had capital and other commitments of RMB2,419,671,000
as disclosed in note 51 to the consolidated financial statements
and incurred a net loss of RMB633,755,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019. The Group's ability to continue as a going concern
is dependent on a number of assumptions, including:

(i)  the continuous financial support from the immediate holding
company;

(i) the successful issuance of a convertible bond at an aggregate
sum of HK$1,000,000,000 (equivalent to RMB892,857,000) to
the immediate holding company.

(i) the Group obtained facilities and written intention letter from
Yingkou Coastal Bank that borrowings of RMB800,000,000 that
are due in 2020 will be able to be renewed upon maturity;

(iv) Successful negotiation with banks and other financial
institutions to extend overdue borrowings; and

(v) the forecasted operating cash flows for the year ending 31
December 2020.

However if the funding from immediate holding company and
Yingkou Coastal Bank are not forthcoming or if the Group is not
able to generate the expected cash inflows from its operations and
to refinance its borrowings, the Group would be unable to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due. These events
and conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

—B-NER

BRKEEENERTHRERE

BMEBE T EIERAMEHRERME2 - BT
BEZZT—NF+ZA=1+—8 ' #WEeEH%
WRMFS1ER EEENERAAEAARE
2,419,671,0007C - R-E—hE+-_A=+—H
I FEEEFEB AREK633,755,0007T - E5%
EFECE 7 WBURRZTERKR - B1F ¢

() REERZERAFNRENE R

(i HRHmEEZKREARQA EIT
1,000,000,000 7 7t ( #8 & © A
892,857,0007t) Al A (E % ¢

(i) EEERSLO0EERTHRERER
BEHE R-E-_EFEINHNDARK
800,000,000 T K f& BB A B HART =45

(iv)  ARINEIRTT R E M B E M TE A S B
ERRIEH : R

v) HEZZE-ZF+_A=1+—HLEFEH

TEHIKERER -

AT MRBEEUS R B BEERA R RE QNS
RITOMELN BEXKEREEHLERBRE

ERELERRESRA - 8 BEEEEEEET
AMPBEME - ZFFHRIMAB TR FEEAT
HEE 8% BEREIBELZEIARET
5t o RAILERULFEMETER -
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B XEEN R E S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going

BRETSR

MREFEERRBERMOERHE - BAYHA
PG AR BRRNEFTRAEENEIR - LR
ARERMEFTBBFAMBBREAAELAE
REETREN - RUITSHELEHRERES
MER - KRt [FREFECENERTHEER
= |-#FRERENEEN  RARRTIERR
WETHOMREETEE -

Concern section, we have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter
HEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEPRETRONATEEBRETEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYEZI41E

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the quantitative significance
of the balance to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, combined with the management
estimations required in determining the fair values.
B REMEZ HES REREFZTEHANEER
HERGOMBEREANELCEZN  MEEREAME
RIAFEFEHGE -

As disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the investment properties of the Group
comprised of completed investment properties of
RMB397,000,000 and investment properties under
construction of RMB4,466,150,000, which are all
located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and represented 27.5% of the Group’s total assets.
WA E M BMERMF17AEE  EEBREMES
FERTRE Y AR 397,000,0007T R EZZED
EANR¥4,466,150,0007T - 2EIGEL AP EAREANE
(ThE]) - WEEEELEE27.5% °

All of the Group's investment properties are stated
at fair value based on valuations performed by
independent qualified professional valuers (“Valuers”).
The management of the Group works with the Valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model.
EHEEECREMEDENBLIAEREXMER
([MEER D ETZHEERATERZY - EEEEEER
HER & ER R PR &8 2 [MERM M AR -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

B ERIREME 2 A ERRNIEF B

o Evaluating the Valuers' competence, capabilities
and objectivity and obtaining an understanding
of the Valuers' scope of work;

o HMEEEMZERE g8 REFEBWL THEEMZ
TiE&E

] Discussing with the Valuers and the management
to understand their valuation techniques, the
performance of the property markets, significant
assumptions adopted, key inputs and data used
in the valuations to assess if they were consistent
with the requirements of HKFRSs and the industry
norms;

o HEEMLREEE BN TEEGERN  FHE
MEMREA -~ AEANEKRRE - AEMERE
ERABEBLEE  AMBEEISEFETENG
WEERIERE RITEED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BERESSE(E)

Key audit matter
HEETTER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMRERNIEERRETSR

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REYEZH1E(E)

Fair value gain on investments properties of
approximately RMB237,945,000 were recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2019.

REMEN D FERZOARKE237,945000LEREE
—E-NFTZA=ZT-BLEFENGEERKEME
s R A RER o

As further disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the completed investment
properties at a fair value of RMB25,800,000 were
measured using the fair value model based on the market
comparison method and the significant unobservable
input was adjusted market unit sale rate while the
remaining completed investment properties at fair value
of RMB371,200,000 were arrived at based on income
approach, where the unobservable inputs are adjusted
monthly rent and the market yield. The investment
properties under construction were valued either using
the residual approach or market approach and the
significant unobservable inputs were adjusted market
unit sales rate, expected developer’s profit margin and
estimated total construction cost to complete.
HNFEMBRRMENTE-—FPRE  CRIREME
ZAFEBARK?25800,0007T * THRAHSLEOEAR
FERWGE  HEATABERABBRAKHETS
BAHEER - MR FERARK371,200,0007T 2 &8 T
ERTIREMETRRANEMER - AT @ ABIER
KARGAESETHEORE - £RREYERBFER
ERTHAME  REARTAHEHABRBAKLHAET
SEMHEER  ERAEHAMNR MR TARE
B

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the key inputs
and source data used in the valuations by
comparing them, on a sample basis, to existing
tenancy profiles, publicly available information
of similar comparable properties and our
knowledge of the real estate industry in the PRC;
and

o  HHBEIA - BANGENTEHABERNRIRE
RERBEEHMN - BUAELBYENRFAIF
BERARBEPYEPEEHETEN TRLE - AT
HEEEM K

° Assessing the appropriateness of estimated cost
to complete for investment properties under
construction by comparing the costs incurred to
date against the budgets provided by the Group
and evaluating whether the expected property
developer’s profit margins are comparable to the
market and the Group's specific information.

e BEACELNKAEESERHNTBEETLR
VAHIET SER FE AR B W) VR ET AU AN E 1 - I
M EEREBCRRANEESRTSERESE
ZEEERHEL -

—B-NER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BERESSE(E)

Key audit matter
HEETTER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMRERNIEERRETSR

Valuation of properties held for sale

FELENYEZ 1418

We identified the valuation of properties held for sale
as a key audit matter due to its quantitative significant
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with significant estimations involved in
determining the net realisable value of properties held
for sale.

BB RELENYEZAETRBEREAFTEDHRN
HUBERBGSVBRENELCEEN  MEEEHED
YR AR IFER S RERHME

As disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had properties held for sale with
carrying amount of approximately RMB7,440,044,000,
which included completed properties held for sale
of approximately RMB1,826,555,000 and properties
under development for sale of approximately
RMB5,613,489,000, which are all located in the PRC and
in aggregate represented 42.1% of the Group's total
assets. These properties held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value (the “NRV") on an
individual basis.

MR E MR 24PTIREE - EREHER 2 FHED
ENYERTER/LNARKT,440,044,0007T © EHBIE
BT HAEH SR XL AKRE1,826,5550007T K 3%
BPFEMEDHARYES613,489,0007T © 2EBH LA H
CEREEEERBEEI2A% c ZER/FELHENYERE
PIABCAS e AT B3R B ([ AT BFE | ) BUREFIBR -

Our procedures in relation to valuation of properties
held for sale included:

B AR ELENYEZ AERINEF R

] Obtaining an understanding on the management'’s
process of estimating the construction costs
to complete for properties held for sale and
estimating the NRV of properties held for sales;

o THREBEMITEBEMNUTHIFELEMENE
R FHEHEMEN AT ZIRFE

] Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated
selling price used by the management with
reference to the selling prices in the presale
agreement and market prices achieved for
comparable properties, including an evaluation
of the appropriateness of the comparable
properties used by the management of the Group
based on our knowledge of the Group's business
and the property markets in the relevant locations
on a sample basis, if applicable; and

e RERMUEEEEBLRBEMEZMETS LT
RIERmMEEE(ER)FLERELEREHZ
MEBRIELBYMEZTEMEAZENEE
AEMN  BREAGEEEEEEEAZAELEY
E2EEN R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BARETEE(E)

Key audit matter
HEETTER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMRERNIEERRETSR

Valuation of properties held for sale (Continued)

FELENYEZ 1518 ()

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, NRV is estimated by reference to the
actual or estimated selling price less estimated costs
to complete the development based on existing asset
structure and material price lists and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sales. If the actual NRV
on properties held for sale is less than expected as a
result of change in market condition and/or significant
variation in the budgeted development cost, material
allowances for impairment losses may result if the NRV
is less than the carrying amount on each individual
property held for sale.

HMINGRE M B RMRMESHARE - ATZRFEDERR
BEEERBEMHERREHETHEN S BLENMG
AR 2 EZEBRSAF SEREMA R IR -
MEFEHENYE 2 ERAZR FERATSRAES
R/ SBEERKALRENEEMERTES - MEE
IR ELENMEN AR FEENKREE - BIFTes
BB ANREBERE

] Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated
costs to completion of properties under
development for sale on a sample basis by
comparing the budgeted construction costs to
actual development costs incurred, and signed
construction contracts with sub-contractors
committed and relevant market information
showing the latest cost trend.

e KBREREXNAEEREELNBERKALER I
HEE AR D BRARBENRESH KRB EIKA
BENHEBETSEN  RMEEEFGRERTEE
PERNGTR TRANSIENE -

—B-NER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BERESSE(E)

Key audit matter
HAREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EARBARNTREFARETEE

Related party transactions and disclosure

BB T YR 5 K K BE

The Group had significant amount of transactions
with related parties and certain transactions were of
complex nature.

EEEREBABMABEEAR SR  BETRGAEM
HE -

We have identified this as a key audit matter because
it requires careful consideration to account for and
disclose these transactions. It is also essential to
disclose all these transactions properly in accordance
with the requirements of HKFRS and The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
BB ERARETFE  RESHEFEFAAE
NHZERFETARREE - RESBEMBHRELD
NEBBMERSGMBRARNES EHARR ( [ LR
] )  FRXRBREMEZRETRS °

Our procedures in relation to related party transactions
and disclosure included:

B BEAB TR S REENETFEE

] Identifying and verifying related party relationship
through enquiry and searches.

s FREAREITHRINRZEBBITHRMEK

o Scrutinising the accounting ledgers and bank
ledgers to ensure material transactions with
related parties are properly reflected in the
Group's accounting records.

s (FHREGARPRBRITRFARREMABINE
ARGEZRREE BRENSCHE-

] Carrying out various analysis and market comparisons
to assess the reasonableness of these transactions.

o ETRENMETBULBUTEZERZINARE
I o

] Performing review over the internal control to
identify and monitor related party transactions.

o  YAMEITETEMABNREREBR RS °
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BERESSE(E)

Key audit matter
HAREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EARBARNTREFARETEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

Y - BB KRR RE S

We have identified the impairment assessment of the
property, plant and equipment as a key audit matter
since the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is significant to the consolidated financial
statements and significant judgements and estimates
have been used by the management and independent
valuer in determining the recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment.

HAEHEME - BEEREREN G REREF=
B RARYE  WELREZERIESRSMBRE
MEBEKXN BEEBELBUGEMERETYE K
5 B 3% 4 2 PT UK [0 <& HE A8 PR BE K M S Ak Et o

When an objective evidence of impairment exists, the
Group estimated the recoverable amount based on the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use.

BHBRENEREES  BEENATELLERK
HERBENRSEMFTIREESE -

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, property, plant and equipment of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB2,027,984,000
and represented 11.5% of the Group's total assets. No
impairment has been made in the financial year ended
31 December 2019.

WMANAR S B MA W 15FTIKRE - EXB2YE - K&
RBERHOARKE2,027,984,0007T - hEEBMBEE
11.5% - BERBZE_Z-NF+-_A=+—HIEMEF
EVELRIE -

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment included:
HAAEEDE - BEEREZBEFERINERFE
S

] Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
assessment process in selecting the valuation
methodologies and adopting key assumptions and
input data;

s THWERBEERMGLENERFKAIERRALBA
G A Y A O

o For impairment assessment where external
valuation is performed, evaluating the valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity,
obtaining an understanding of the valuer’s scope
of work;

o  BETHIMBEEIRENENE - FAAREMZE
B~ g REBMEY T RREERM TIEHE

o Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies, evaluating the reasonableness
of assumptions and key input data applied in
determining the recoverable amounts of the
assets;

o FHMAMETENEEMN  FFAREROSEENRR
BEEENRRESEMRANEEEARE

. For value in use calculation, comparing the future
cash flow forecast with the budget approved by
the board of directors of the Company, as well as
the actual results available up to the date of these
consolidated financial statements; and

e BMEAEEHEMS  BHARAXRRGREVUEER
AEFEHANTBEURBEZE RV BKREXE
HWAERREETHE &

] Assessing the discount rate employed in the
calculation of value in use by reviewing its basis
of calculation and comparing its input data to
market sources.

o FHMEEEAEBEFETREANTINE  TEREN
AAEEET S ERARIBRENSRFETHER -

—B-NER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRES

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the period
from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements
on 14 May 2019.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
and our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

—B-NER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

BB MBS P BRRAEN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Pang Wai Hang.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: P05044

Hong Kong
29 April 2020

—B-NER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HmeBERAMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hF e ANS
—HA—H MmA—A
BEE-REFE ZEZT)N\HF
+t=A=+—H t-A=t+—H
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
ihFsa AR¥ETF T ARBTT
Revenue U = 6
Goods and services o Rk 3,675,741 2,609,167
Finance lease income EERERA 127 953
Interest income from provision of finance RERE 27 BUWA 2,064 6,590
Rental income from property investments  #)3%& 2 S WA 9,615 22,139
Dividend from securities investments BRREZRE 5,374 5,081
Others Hith 6,685 5,555
Total revenue P E 3,699,606 2,649,485
Cost of sales and services $HE R AR TSR A (3,395,404) (2,565,567)
Gross profit ER 304,202 83,918
Other gains and losses HAb W R EE 8 8,049 (37,152
Other income EHablg A 9 16,577 23,294
Change in fair value of investment properties &Y% 2 A EE 17 237,945 192,015
Selling and distribution expenses PHE RO EHT (151,999) (93,215)
Administrative expenses 1TEE (380,157) (333,637)
Impairment of goodwill EEEAE 18 - (5,846)
(Impairment loss) reversal of impairment NTEBEREBEZ
loss of BRI CREEE)
— trade receivables — B S EWIE 47 (27,042) (19,372)
— other receivables — H fh pE i KIE 47 (11,712) (9,750
—financial guarantee contracts — B ERED 37 - 261,713
Impairment loss in respect of property, BREME  BEAREZ
plant and equipment BIEEE 15 S (68,699)
Finance costs B 7% & FH 10 (572,252) (444,252)
Share of profit (loss) from associates DIGEE A BRI (EE) 813 (8,371)
Share of loss from joint venture DMEEEEEEE (216) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHTB A TR F 48 11 20
Loss on disposal of associates HE =N FIBE 20 - (8,637)
Change in fair value of convertible bonds  A[#f% &% 2 A FEZ S
— derivative component —PTHEE D 36 12,498 118,374
Loss before tax B B A1 &S 18 (563,283) (349,597)
Income tax expense FiS i 2 11 (70,472) (46,514)
Loss for the year/period FE HREEE 12 (633,755) (396,111)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

%Ij_/\ |=|\/

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

Ht 2w ER

1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hF — N\
—HA—H MmA—A
—E-hE =EZT-N\F
t=ZRA=+—-H +t=—A=+—H~
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hi2E (BIxX) WA
Items that may be reclassified ARRNEAZEN S EEER
subsequently to profit or loss: HIER :
Exchange differences on translating of BREBINEGE BN ZRE
foreign operations (8,694) 26,496
Change in fair value of debt instruments  ZAFEFT AEME2E R
at fair value through other ([BRAFEFAREMEE
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") WDz BBITAEZ AT
B % 939 (3,880)
Reclassification adjustment relating to HERIES ARRAFES
loss on disposal of debt instruments AEMEEY a2 EBHBLT
at FVTOCI included in profit or loss B BB 2B ERAE 1,814 2,560
(5,941) 25,176
Item that will not be reclassified to BrEEMIEERREN
profit or loss: HE
Exchange differences on translation to BHMARIER  ELER
presentation currency 12,850 (100,642)
Other comprehensive income FE/HEEMGEZERA
(expense) for the year/period (X)) 6,909 (75,466)
Total comprehensive expense for EE/HEEEAXAE
the year/period (626,846) (471,577)
(Loss) profit for the year/period FE/HE (518 ) B F gL
attributable to: LU
— Shareholders of the Company o VN33 (644,710) (388,926)
— Non-controlling interests — IEERR AR R e 10,955 (7,185)
Loss for the year/period FE HEEE (633,755) (396,111)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HmeBERAMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hE —E2-N\F

—A—H mA—H

E-F-NF EZT)N\F
t=RA=+—-B t=A=+—A

Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
HteF ARET T ARET T
Total comprehensive (expense) income 2E(FAXZ)W=aEEn
attributable to: AR
— Shareholders of the Company PiN/NEETL 3 (637,811) (463,301)
— Non-controlling interests JEPEAR IR R A 25 10,965 (8,276)
(626,846) (471,577)
RMB RMB
AR#TT AR
Loss per share BREE 14
Basic R (10.59) (6.41)
Diluted g (10.59) (6.41)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR AR

As at 31 December 2019
RZF-NF+ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
HfaE AR¥ETF T ARETTT
(Restated)
(&E5))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MRE 15 2,027,984 1,308,271
Prepaid lease payments B ERIE 16 - 302,247
Investment properties LB 17 4,863,150 5,814,375
Goodwill kS 18 8,087 8,087
Interests in an associate R—REBE AR R 20 29,213 28,400
Interests in joint ventures AEEDE TR 21 - 6,100
Deposits for property, plant and BEWE  BEREZE -
equipment, right-of-use assets and FRAEEERIREMSE
investment properties ZiRE 22 649,887 100,020
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFABR(RAF
profit or loss (“FVTPL") Bt ABRzEemEE 23 35,815 44,688
Other receivables and deposits HEmEWsIaRES 27 83,892 32,686
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAFEF AEMEERE
ZEBITA 23 26,762 49,031
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 40 17,221 10,957
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 26 620,685 -
8,362,696 7,704,862
CURRENT ASSETS hRBEE
Properties held for sale BIEREYE 24 7.440,044 5,736,201
Inventories FE 25 233,948 261,118
Deposits for leasehold land for BERBIEHEZ
development for sale HETH RS 22 - 50,000
Prepaid lease payments B EFIE 16 - 8,106
Trade and other receivables, B 5 I H th FEYRIE &
and prepayments TR IR 27 935,351 827,860
Loan receivables and interest receivables [ E 7 K FEIF] & 28 15,004 12,187
Tax recoverable AT UL E IR 1,354 1,041
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFTABRZZ
SREE 23 13,888 173,580
Restricted bank balance 2R B ERIT LR 29 69,109 =
Pledged bank deposits RITEIRTER 29 313,265 285,634
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIRS 29 270,836 701,946
9,292,799 8,057,673
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMBARIE

As at 31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
HfaE AR¥T R ARETIT
(Restated)
(&&&E7))
CURRENT LIABILITIES nRBEE
Trade and other payables, B 5 R E b FE T I R E A
and other liabilities =R 30 1,148,011 1,298,398
Bill payables AN 31 729,969 576,664
Tax payable JEAT B TE 105,816 104,221
Borrowings & 32 4,266,637 3,619,333
Obligations under finance leases BhE T EAYE 33 = 6,847
Obligations under financing arrangements gl & %22 BE#IE 42 - 2,693,469
Contract liabilities A8 E 34 1,513,556 973,061
Corporate bonds NRIEH 35 3,612 214,840
Lease liabilities HEEE 26 30,570 =
Financial guarantee contracts B EIR A 4 37 = 228,382
7,798,171 9,715,215
NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) FRBEE(ER) 1,494,628 (1,657,542
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBEME
LIABILITIES 9,857,324 6,047,320
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred consideration RIERE 38 95,000 95,000
Deferred income IEEW A 39 103,491 21,660
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE 40 141,415 76,524
Amount due to immediate holding R EBEER AT Z K8
company 41 16,655 1,706,956
Borrowings B 32 5,905,780 1,178,000
Obligations under finance leases BhETH & AE 33 = 17,719
Corporate bonds NRIEH 35 76,921 76,109
Convertible bonds - liability component  AJ#f%EFH — B EZLH 36 776,973 227,498
Convertible bonds — derivative component AJ3#R% (&% — T4 2850 36 4,942 17,134
Lease liabilities HEEE 26 14,923 =
7,136,100 3,416,600
NET ASSETS FEE 2,721,224 2,630,720
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR AR

As at 31 December 2019
RZF-NF+ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
et ARBTT ARBTT
(Restated)
(re&51)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRI

Share capital N 43 55,983 55,203
Reserves EE 2,597,448 2,513,008

Equity attributable to shareholders of AR BIRERFEIS e o
the Company 2,653,431 2,568,211
Non-controlling interests S X 67,793 62,509
TOTAL EQUITY ERERE 2,721,224 2,630,720

The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 291 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 April 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Meng Guang Bao
ZRELE

Director

EF

—B-NER

HRBMABR2MNBE AN BRRIDESTEN
E_FFNA T ABRELFFAIEDL - WA
TEERREE:

Ms. Zhang Ye
Rzt

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GARERDE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BT NF+-A=+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Statutory  Exchange  Share-based Deemed  Investment Other Non-
Share Share surplus— translation payment  contrbution  revaluation resenve  Accumulated controlling
capital premium resene resene esene reserve reserve (Note) losses Subtotal interests Total
| L A C am
B BORE RRRARE  EMRE  JNABE BEIEER  REINRE 2t N BRER o
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RVB' OOO RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RUB0
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETm  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 April 2018 HZE-NERA-RzE% B3 2551848 3124 99,34 50969 180,970 - 5033 {79 253802 1wy 268152
Loss for the period iAEE - - - - - - - N 1 I € ) pgs o)
Other comprehensive expense for the period  EA{2ERT - - - (73,059) - - (1,320) - - (14379 (1.09) (75,466)
Total comprehensive expense for the period A2 - - - (73,059) - - (1,320) - 388,926) 483,307) 8.276) nsm
Lapsed of share options (note 46) gL - - - - (8.38) - - - 8386 - - -
Acquisiton of subsiciary with non-controlling B3R ﬁ%%ﬁnﬁ“[ﬁ% \7l
interest (note 46(3)) (fritagp) - - - - - - - - - - (111,150 (111,150)
Deemed contribution from the controlling ﬁﬂﬁf “” RAZEE (W)
company (note 41) - - - - - 186,346 - - - 186,346 - 186,346
Deemed contrbution from reversal of RTaRESRERAN TR
financial quarantee contracts (note 37) (H#37) - - - - = m905 - - - m905 - 123905
Deemed contribution relating to an
unlisted investments in China Huacai
(defined n note 23() - - - - - 154470 - - - 154470 - 154470
Reversalof deemed contrbution fomthe BB FHERAE ZEE (1)
controlling company (note 41) - - - - - (32.795) - - - (32,795) - (32.795)
Acquisiton of addtional interest from BRNRRERINEE R
non-controlling interests S S S S S S S S [31.218) [31.218) 36 S
Balance at 31 December 2018 AB-NETZA=T-BEH 503 2551848 3124 28,269 4403 7128% (130) 5033 859555 2,568,211 0509 283070
Atributable to shareholders of the Company
KAARREL
Convertible
Share- bonds -
Statutory  Exchange based equty  Deemed Investment Other Non-
Share Share surplus  translation ~ payment  conversion  contribution  revaluation reserve  Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve (Note] losses  Subtotal interests Total
HRARER TRRES- 2Rk Fik
BE  REEE iEBNEE  EXBE  26ABE RRHANE GEIERE REEMRE () ZitEg M BRER ag
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTZ  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTRL  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARMTR ARBTR  ARMTR
Balance at! January 2019 RoF-nE-A-AzER 55203 2551848 3B 20269 42403 - T (1320 503 (899555) 2568211 62509 2630720
Lossfor the year FRER S S 0 g S S S S - (o700 (644T10) 10955 (633,755)
Other comprehensive expense for the year EERUAEET 5 8 & 4146 8 & 5 2753 8 5 6,899 10 6,909
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year  FE 2 EME( - - - 4148 - - - 2,153 - (644710)  (637,811) 10,965 (626,846)
Lapsed of share options (note 46) Méx - - - - (4,740) - - - - 4,740 - - -
Deemed contribution relating to disposal of AHENBATRE TR
subsidiaries note 48 b)) - - - - - - 231 - - - 231 - 231
Issue of convertible bonds (note 38) - - - - - 541,618 - - - - 541,618 - 541,618
Acauisition of a wholly owned subsidiary
[note 48(a)) 780 5,618 - - - - 19913 - - - 26,311 - 2,311
Deemed contribution from the controlling company
(note 41) - - - - - - 33m - - - 33n - 33m
Deemed contribution from reversal of
financial quaranteg contracts (note 37) - - - - - - 340 - - - 3140 - 231404
Reversal of deemed contribution from
the controling company (note 41) - - - - - - (78,735) - - - (78,735) - (78,735)
Deemed acquisition of additional interests BlEaFIRRR RS NBEE)
from non-controlling nterests (note 49) (z49) - - - - - - - - - (3,265) (3,265) (5,681) (8,946)
Balance t 31 December 2019 METZA=T-R2E4 55,983 2557466 35,234 30,415 37,863 541,618 891,176 1433 5033 (1,502,790 2653431 61,793 2,701,204
Note: Kt -
Other reserves were set up by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries in accordance with AABTRBBEGKHEBA ‘]*E}aﬂ)}zﬁzg;}gza} B3R T H b i

their articles of association. The amounts to be transferred to these reserves are
determined by the respective board of directors. They can be used to convert into

paid-up capital, and are not distributable to shareholders.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN vl =1
:%v‘ﬁ =] Iﬁﬁ/ﬁié\%
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
—RA—HZE MA—AZE
—E-NF —E-N\F
t+=AR=+t—-B +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRI A5 1R (563,283) (349,597)
Adjustments for: HE
Change in fair value of convertible bonds AR ES A THEZE
— derivative component —PTHEED (12,498) (118,374)
Change in fair value of investment properties ~ REW¥EZ AFEE (237,945) (192,015)
Change in fair value of financial assets BATEFABRZ EREEZ A TE
at FVTPL 23 (8,619) 9,476
Loss on disposal of debt instruments HERATFEFAEMEZERE 2 BB
at FVTOCI TAZER 1,814 2,560
Depreciation and amortisation of ERBEEZINEREH
non-current assets 131,633 91,894
Dividend income from securities investments  &51%& Z B UMA (5,374) (5,081)
Finance costs B E R 572,252 444,252
Loss on disposal of associates HEBENAZER = 8,637
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME ARz s (11) (20)
Impairment loss on T EEZREERE
— trade receivables - B SRR 27,042 19,372
— other receivables —H R IE 11,712 9,750
Written off of other receivables H b U FRH 8,394 -
Impairment of goodwill R E S 5,846
Write-down of inventories FEMR 9,004 7,528
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ¥ - W5 K& 2 BE - 68,699
Interest income on bank deposits and RITHE R IRITHIPFRZ
pledged bank deposits FEWA (5,647) (5,339)
Impairment of properties held for sales FIELEMERE - 29,050
Impairment of deposits for machineries HERUE RIRF 2 R RE
modification and enhancement - 25,000
Interest income on finance lease receivables  RERERUFIAE 2 F| S U A (127) (953)
Interest income on loan receivables EWE T2 FBWA (2,064) (6,590)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BEMREzEER(R)
plant and equipment 1,753 (244)
Gain on disposal of a right-of-use asset HE—BFERAEEEZ KHE (127) -
Loss on disposal of club membership HESMeEzEBR - 63
Net foreign exchange loss SN 1R H R 2,794 297
Reversal of financial guarantee contracts B OB IS ERE 4 - (261,713)
Share of (profits) loss from associates DEEE A B O F)) BB (813) 8,371
Share of loss from joint venture DMEEEREEE 216 -
Gain on bargain purchase HEEE Rz (5,791) -
—T-NEFR 71



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-1F —Z-N\F
—A—HE MA—RB=%
—E-NF —E-N\F
+=ZA=t—-H +ZA=+—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
et AR¥F R AREF T
Operating cash flows before movements in LEECHYRNELERER
working capital (75,685) (209,131)
Decrease (increase) in properties held for sale  ##{EHEWER D (380) 66,178 (240,105)
Decrease in inventories FERY 43,806 86,077
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 M E A W FRIERm 280,014 101,963
(Increase) decrease in loan receivables FEUEZ ()R> (2,817) 95,106
Decrease in finance lease receivables AN S RN IER D = 12,020
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at FVTPL 2 A EH ABEZNEREE
A GEm) 10,063 (8,765)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 REMBENFIENLR
and deferred income A ON (488,355) (720,133)
Decrease in bill payables ENEERD (154,295) (145,206)
Increase in contract liabilities AXBEEMN 449,642 293,608
Increase in restricted bank balance SR HISR 1T S BRIE 0 (69,109) -
Cash from (used in) operations mEmE (A Re 59,442 (734,566)
Income tax (paid) refunded (fiﬁ)f_}aﬁﬁﬁﬁ (18,633) 52,175
Interest received on loan receivables BUER FE U E A F 8 2,064 6,590
Interest received on finance lease receivables EH&ZHWEWF&???E% E"Jﬂ% 127 953
Dividend received from securities investments & WEE A K B B IS 5,374 5,081
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RETDHRE IR R FR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 48,374 (669,767)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BENMERE (381,581) (109,319)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment HEWE - BE MR EFRS
| 3,061 3,123
Payment for purchase of investment properties &8 & oV ESVE (416,051) (5,980)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at £ &R AFEH AB%Y S5
FVTPL BEMMGHA 169,484 55,224
Proceeds from disposal of debts instruments at H&ERAFEFAEMEEK
FVTOCI a2 B T AR 0R 23,208 17,830
Proceeds from disposal of club membership  HEESE L TEEUAE - 1,638
Payment for right-of-use assets ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ% BENE (44,400) (88,205)
Proceeds from disposal of a right of use asset & HEE ERFTSFHIEA 2,203 -
Interest received on bank deposits BUERIT KA FE 5,647 5,339
Investments in joint ventures AEREMNKRE = (6,100)
Release of pledged bank deposits BREEMBITER 359,844 144,880
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABBIFERITER (382,374) (130,978)
Deposits paid for purchases of property plant X fTEEEYE  BE K&E -
and equipment, right-of-use assets and TRAREEREREME
investment properties iofen (626,994) (293,860)
Net cash outflow for acquisition of subsidiaries UREEHT B A A1RIIE & 7% 1 P58 48 (9,626) (49,774)
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries H &} B A RIE € R FE 48 (19) (695)
Net cash inflow from disposal of investment HERBEMENRSRAFE
properties 119,350 =
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—FEE ARNMERIEA - 465
Repayment from a former associate —RIRE & A RER 14,400 6,484
Advance to a former associate BRT R E AR HFHIE S (16,400)
Advance to a related company PR T —HEEARREIE - (9.413)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES R&ZEFfARESFE (1,163,848) (475,741)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN vl =1
:%v‘ﬁ =] Iﬁﬁ/ﬁié\%
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
—RA—HZE MA—BZ
—E-NF —E-N\F
t+=AR=+t—-B +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Proceeds from borrowings fERETE A 7,812,648 2,136,256
Repayment of borrowings BEEXR (2,094,425) (2,282,020)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEEEE (32,708) (2,226)
Advance received from bill payables BRENER 2 BNHRIE = 721,870
Repayment of bill payables EEENRE S (523,552)
Interest paid ERFLE (441,196) (481,150)
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BATRRIRES P15 5B 877,192 -
Redemption of corporate bonds BRI A AES (216,830) =
Payment of transaction costs for issue of BITARRES 2 RHEARNTK
convertible bonds (536) =
Redemption of convertible bonds R AR E S (26,814) (550,923)
Acquisition of additional interest from a M— 2 IR R RN BT IME
non-controlling shareholder (8,946) =
Deposits paid for acquisition of additional Mt — 2 FEFZE AR AR 3R Ui i — I Bt /8 2 =)
interest of a subsidiary from BIMERNE NS
a non-controlling shareholder (46,000) =
Advance from immediate holding company REEEERAR 2 BNRIEA 3,559,347 2,559,718
Repayment to immediate holding company BEREZERARZ A (8,701,454) (1,180,812)
Proceeds from financing arrangements BELZYTSH0E - 1,183,417
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEZBHELEZBEFE 680,278 1,580,578
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND R&RBESZEYMCRL)EMFHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (435,196) 435,070
AT THE BEGINNING OF YEAR/PERIOD E/HORERASSEN 701,946 255,113
Effect of exchange rate changes on the EXEBUMFINER S ERITE
balance of cash held in foreign currencies 4,086 11,763
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRBEZEEY 270,836 701,946
—T-NEFR 73



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

74

GENERAL

Huajun International Group Limited (the “"Company”) is a
limited company incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of its business is 36/F,
Champion Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong. As
at 31 December 2019, the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) consider that immediate holding company of the
Company to be China Huajun Group Limited (“CHG") which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and ultimate holding
company of the Company is Huajun Group Limited, which is
incorporated in Hong Kong. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr.
Meng Guang Bao (“Mr. Meng”), who is the chairman of the
Board of Directors and an executive director of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 55. The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
"Group”.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") while the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") to enable the
shareholders of the Company to have a more accurate picture
of the Group's financial position and performance.

Change of financial year end date

During the nine-month period ended 31 December 2018, the
reporting period end date of the Group was changed from
31 March to 31 December because the Directors determined
to align the financial year end date of the Group with that of
its principal subsidiaries in the PRC. The Directors consider
such change will facilitate the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements for the prior period covered
the nine month period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December
2018. The amounts shown for the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of
cash flows and related notes cover a twelve month period from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 and therefore may not be
comparable with amounts shown for the comparative period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.,
mEMBREME ’

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GANBRENERELE

MFA MR RMESIARE - EREE
—E-AF+-A=+—8 A&EEEA
B E A EIE AREE2,419,671,0007T -
UEBEZTE-—NF+ZA=+T—LFE
B R EE A RM633,755,0007T © A iRE

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that as of 31
December 2019 the Group has capital and other commitments
of RMB2,419,671,000 as disclosed in note 51 to the

consolidated financial statements and incurred a net loss of RAPBHRRE  EFCEEEZEELAER
RMB633,755,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019. ZARIRBIE -

EEZRR KARUATEERMER B
BREELERUGESUBRRBIE -

The Directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis
taking into account the following facts and assumptions:

(i) Continuous financial support from the () REEEZRARAZEEMKX
immediate holding company =
The immediate holding company has agreed to continue BEEERAFRECREEEZEZRE
to provide financial support to the Group when in need. BRAEBRRBHERVBE IR KT
As at 31 December 2019, approximately RMB16,962,000 —NF+ZA=+—H BRIY
of advances has been drawn in which the immediate AR16,962,0007T © MEEZERA
holding company agreed not to demand for the RERER T -_—FHEA=+—
repayment of the amount due to immediate holding HAANEZREEERNEEZERAT
company until 31 May 2021. FA ©

(ii) lssue of convertible bonds to (i) DEEERATRRTIUTERES

the immediate holding company

On 22 January 2020, the Company entered into
convertible bond subscription agreement with the
immediate holding company in which the Company
agreed to issue and the immediate holding company
agreed to subscribe a zero coupon 5 years convertible
bond at an aggregate sum of HK$1,000,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB892,857,000) which is
expected to be paid by 30 June 2020. Up to the date of
these consolidated financial statements, the immediate
holding company has advanced approximately
RMB267,400,000 to the Group as part of the convertible
bond subscription. The Directors expect that the
remaining RMB625,457,000 will be received from the
immediate holding company by 30 June 2020.

—B-NER

RZEZEF—A=+=H AR
RIEEELERARTZABRRE
FAREHEZ  BEARAREZR
T MEEERARRENEARE
1,000,000,000/ 7T (FHE R H AR
892,857,0007T) REBEF| B 2 AFEA
BRES AR T -TE XA
Z+AHYN  c EEAREAP BT
XEH EEERARCHAEER
Y& 15 49 A R #267,400,0007C © 1EB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2. HMEUBBRRNVERELEE)
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(iii) REEDWBRTROBRAF

(iii) Renewal of bank borrowings and unused

facilities from Yingkou Coastal Bank Company
Limited

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had borrowings
of approximately RMB10,172,417,000, of which
RMB4,266,637,000 was current in nature and
RMB1,841,850,000 was provided by Yingkou Coastal
Bank Company Limited ("Yingkou Coastal Bank”),
which is a related party of the Group as disclosed in
note 53(c). Subsequently after the year end and before
the date of these consolidated financial statements,
Yingkou Coastal Bank had renewed bank borrowings to
the Group of RMB1,026,330,000 and Yingkou Coastal
Bank has provided its intention to renew borrowings
of RMB800,000,000 which will be matured in July 2020
and September 2020. Given the historical experience of
borrowings renewal, the relationship of Yingkou Coastal
Bank with the Group and considering the availability of
assets to be pledged upon maturity of the borrowings,
the Directors expect that the above borrowings will
be able to be renewed by Yingkou Coastal Bank upon
maturity in July 2020 and September 2020 for extension
of at least one year. The Group also has unused facilities
from Yingkou Coastal Bank available for drawdown
anytime when the need arises.

ZRATER B K R E) A Aol
&

WMEHFSCBEER =T —NF+=
A=+—H AXEEBFERXRHAR
#10,172,417,0000T © Hif AR
4,266,637,000t B RBMEE RAR
5 1,841,850,000 7T F A~ & %] 7 B
EOHERITROABRAR(NE A
WEIRIT]) RBME c REIRE RRA
RAMEHRE B AT A0 R
TEEERTAEBEZRITERA
R #1,026,330,0007C © &% O34 8
ROTEREHEEEERNRN =S =
TFLARZZTEZTEFNLARSZ
& 7 A R #800,000,0007T » ZERE
HEBEEMATLR 200 8RT
BAEENEERLEEIBRER
BETHERNEE  EFHEE &
R BRITHEIR_ZE-_FF+A
RZZ-FTFhAEREEZ LT
BRERZEL—F - ARETBR
BRAMNEORESRITENUERE
= ERRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(iv) Negotiation with banks on overdue borrowings

(v)

As disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had breached the repayment
terms of two borrowings during the year ended 31
December 2019 and further breached the repayment
terms of another borrowing subsequently in March 2020.
The Group has successfully reached an agreement to
reschedule the repayment terms of one of the overdue
borrowings. The Group is currently in the process of
negotiation with other counterparties for the extension
of the repayment of aggregate principal amounts of
RMB1,597,000,000 that remained outstanding as at the
date of these consolidated financial statements. Among
the aggregate principal amounting RMB1,597,000,000
as disclosed in note 32(e), the lender of a borrowing
of RMB1,440,000,000 has agreed to extend the
repayment date of the principals of RMB240,000,000,
RMB240,000,000 and RMB960,000,000 from March 2020,
June 2020 and September 2020 respectively to March
2022, June 2022 and September 2022 respectively.
Supplemental agreement to such loan is to be arranged
between the Group and the lender in due course.

Cash inflow from operations

The Group is expected to generate adequate cash flows
to maintain its operations.

The Directors believe that, taking into account the above
factors, the Group will have sufficient working capital
to satisfy its present requirements for at least the next
twelve months from the date of these consolidated
financial statements. However, should the above
financing be unavailable (in particular the continuous
financial support from the immediate holding company,
banking facilities from Yingkou Coastal Bank as well
as the renewal of borrowings from Yingkou Coastal
Bank) if the Group is not able to generate the expected
cash inflows from its operations and to refinance its
borrowings, the Group may be unable to operate as a
going concern, in which case adjustments might have to
be made to the carrying values of the Group’s assets to
state them at their realisable values, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify its
non-current assets and non-current liabilities to current
assets and current liabilities, respectively.

—B-NER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") for the first time in the current
year:

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

The adoption of HKFRS 16 resulted in the changes in the
Group's accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements as
summarised below.

Except as described below, the application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current year and prior period and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.1

Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements
with respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant
changes to the lessee accounting by removing the
distinction between operating lease and finance lease
and requiring the recognition of right-of-use asset and a
lease liability for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets. In contrast to lessee
accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting
have remained largely unchanged. Details of these new
accounting policies are described in note 4. The Group
has applied HKFRS 16 Leases retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity, where appropriate, at
1 January 2019, and has not been restated comparatives
for the 2018 reporting period as permitted under
the specific transitional provisions in the standard.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 17 Leases.

On transition to HKFRS 16, the Group elected to apply
the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment
of which arrangements are, or contain, leases. It
applied HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified
as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 were not
reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.

—B-NER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.1

Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as “operating leases” under the principles of
HKAS 17 Leases (except for lease of low value assets
and lease with remaining lease term of twelve months or
less). These liabilities were measured at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019.
The lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the
lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 were 2.9%-15.0%.

The Group recognises right-of-use assets and measures
them at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments.

The Group as lessor

The Group leases some of the properties. The
accounting policies applicable to the Group as lessor
remain substantially unchanged from those under HKAS
17.

B F0 37 5T B AS45 3T B 08 01 3 3R
SR (=8 RS )
=]
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.1 Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The following table summarises the impact of transition

to HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not

affected by the adjustments have not been included.

REEBHAMERZHITREBTE
BUBREER(F)

31 RABBHBHREEREI6HEEE
HIRE (%)

TREBAR -—_F-NAF—-—HA—HB
BEFBVHREEMF16RNF
- - TRIBIKARBEMARY
Z2mIEA -

Carrying
amount Carrying
previously amount as
reported at Impacton  restated at
31 December  adoption of 1 January
2018 HKFRS 16 2019
SRR "
—B-N\F BB i
+=A wEER  —T-NF
=+—H F165% —A—H
2RHREE HEE BIINEREE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FtaE ARBTT AR®TT ARETT
Property, plant and equipment  ¥)% % MR E 1,308,271 (31,143) 1,277,128
Right-of-use assets FRERE (a)—(c) = 388,630 388,630
Prepaid lease payments BREERE 310,353 (310,353) =
Lease liabilities HEBE (a), (b) = (71,700) (71,700)
Obligations under finance lease  §i& & & (24,566) 24,566 -
Notes: Hiat -

(a)

—B-NER

The obligations under finance leases of approximately
RMB24,566,000 previously separately presented as
obligations under finance leases at 31 December 2018 are
now included within lease liabilities under HKFRS 16. The
carrying amount of the related assets under finance leases
amounting to approximately RMB31,143,000 is reclassified to
right-of-use assets;

As at 1 January 2019, right-of-use assets in respect of lease
arrangement for buildings were measured at an amount equal
to the lease liability of approximately RMB47,134,000; and

Prepaid lease payments of approximately RMB310,353,000
which represent the prepayment of rentals for land use rights
in the PRC were adjusted to right-of-use assets.

(a) RN -_E—N\F+_A=+—HE
BRI AMERERENREREA
B ANR¥24,566,000 TR IBEE B
MRS ERE 165 T AAERE -
MEBEETHBEENREEOA
R#31,143,000c EEF N AEHA
EE

b) RZTE—AF—F—RB HEFHAE
ZHABNERREEELKEERRS
HEHAREEL7 134000712 &

(c) TET &R IE L A R ¥ 310,353,000

T B AN RS E
HEEERELE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.1 Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Differences between operating lease commitments as
at 31 December 2018, the date immediately preceding
the date of initial application, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate, and the lease liabilities

e 1 37 5T I B 5] B8 IS R
HEA([EBMBREEL )
(%)
AEERHNERIHITREBTE
BEBREER(E)

3.1 BB BUBREEAE16EHE

& (E)

REZRBRERBHAER_F
—NFt+tZA=t—HRBEER
ENXRPERENEEHEAERR -
E-NE-A-HEINEEEE

recognised as at 1 January 2019 are as follow: ZHEEEREWT
RMB'000
AREFT
Operating lease commitment disclosed RZB-N\FE+_A=+—HH®
as at 31 December 2018 IRETHE A 56,354
Less: Short-term leases and other leases B R EARE S KR T AEHA
with remaining lease term ended RZE-—NFF+ZA=+—A%
on or before 31 December 2019 ZBlE M EMmEE (4,650)
51,704
Less: Discounted using the incremental W R_E-NF-HA—BERALE
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 fE R EALIR (4,570)
Add: Finance lease liabilities recognised m:R=Z2-N\F+_A=+—BFE
under HKAS 17 as at 31 December 2018 G EANTRET 2 RERSERE 24,566
71,700
Analysed as DR
— Non-current portion — JERNEAER 41,046
— Current portion —BNERER 30,654
71,700
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. BRI REEE BV KR
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING %ﬁt—,g\'](r%:\/%,ﬁ B EZA )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) (#4&)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are AEEBFAMERZHITRREITE

mandatorily effective for the current year R REER(E)

(Continued)

3.1 Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 31 ERMBBUBHREREAE16HEHE

M (&)

On the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group REREREBVBRMSENE16

has used the following practical expedients permitted by 2B REBEERENFRART

the standard: BATRI{TREE A

e the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of o RABAEMBLUSENEE
leases with reasonably similar characteristics; HERAE—TINX

e reliance on assessments on whether leases are e ([RBEEEXERAMAER
onerous by applying HKAS 37 immediately before ARG ERFEIREREE
the date of initial application as an alternative to R EEN T EIEREITRE
performing an impairment review; A B RAE

e the accounting for operating leases with a s ¥HR-T-NF-—A—HBHH#H
remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 HEDR12EANZEEHEDN
January 2019 as short-term leases; GitREREHEE

e the exclusion of initial direct costs for the o WMBREXRERRHELS
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date EEENVREERE &
of initial application; and

e the use of hindsight in determining the lease term e EFAKNBBSERIKILHER
where the contract contains options to extend or RER  FREROWERSE
terminate the lease. ETHEA -

3.2 Impacts and changes in accounting policies of 3.2 FERAMMEREIZZTE B BR

application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs HREAME TR EREE
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in BB ERIE 285 (85T ) BB
Associates and Joint Ventures ERNAIRAEDEZ R R
The amendments clarify that the entity applies HKFRS RECIEFEREEEMBRE
9, including the impairment requirements, to long-term EREH (BIEERERE)EAE
interests in an associate or joint venture to which the BREREFTNFREPERED
equity method is not applied that form part of the net R E ARG ERE IR
investment in the investee. Furthermore, in applying o AN - BB E LR
HKFRS 9 to long-term interests, the entity does not FOREANRRPERR  BREEA
take into account adjustments to their carrying amount ZREBBGTENFE2FENBLER
required by HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint AREECEIRE(TEBGFE
Ventures (“HKAS 28”) (i.e. adjustments to the carrying BIZE285% )R E 2 BREEFAE (AR
amount of long-term interests arising from the allocation BEASGHENFE8RHIRERE
of losses of the investee or assessment of impairment in B8 9 Be 3R E 5T ™ ol Buay K B
accordance with HKAS 28). EERREEAE)
As at 31 December 2019, no amounts due from RZZ2-—AF+ZRAR=+—0 " #
associates are considered as long-term interests that, BRI D R RIERBIEER
in substance form part of the Group’s net investments BRAEBERERABERRIFRE
in the relevant associates. The application has had no — Mo RAER - ERAEER
impact as the Group’s existing accounting policies RITEAREREEBIAEENE
are consistent with the requirements clarified by the ko ERABBEI AT EKTE -
amendments.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

Insurance Contracts?

Definition of a Business*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?®

Definition of Material’

Interest rate Benchmark Reform’

Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

Effective for business combinations and assets acquisitions for which

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except as described below, the Directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

EHEMEERERNHTREETE
B E 2R
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BHFR] RGBT EAM RS LA
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BB BEHRELER EBAER!
EREACCHPAN)

BB HmEER IR EEEEBE
FI0RLBEAEGT HEEDEZ
AERI| 528557 FHEELS
(BETR) A

EBSHEREIHSE EANTE
BEAGTERIFESHE
CHEN

EEPHMEER  FIREERE
EoSE - HEEE
AERIZB395% &

FEMGHREER
EVEASCHENS)

—T-N\F RIEFTH RS
A HRE 2 ZRESER
PSR

L RIZEZTF-—A A2 BHEZFE
HAR AR -

: RZZEZ—F—A B 2BHBIFE
BA AR o

E RETERBR BB FEERMENR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify that while businesses usually have
outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set of
activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be considered
a business an acquired set of activities and assets must
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

Additional guidance is provided that helps to determine
whether a substantive process has been acquired.

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is
not a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar assets.

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business
combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition
date is on or after the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020, with early application permitted.

—B-NER

EHEMEERERNHTREETE
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BB EEREI N (IR ¥ B EE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group's
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the reporting
period are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the shareholders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group's interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group's and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to shareholders of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the shareholders of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that.

o deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the business
combination are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;

° assets or liabilities related to the acquiree’s employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the replacement
of the acquiree’s share-based payment transactions with
the share-based payment transactions of the Group
are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting
policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments as if the acquired lease was
a new lease at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are measured at an
amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at the acquisition date. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase, or recognised as a contribution from
shareholder and included in deemed contribution reserve in
equity if it is transacted with the shareholder of the Company.

—B-NER
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are recognised on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had disposed directly of the previously held equity
interest.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to the
financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

EREHBERE)

RERBEEE)

BEREMEEEZANEERETESSA
ARUEGIDIEBRANBRRIFEENIE
BB R - VT RS R SR
WU T A BRI EEFENCHRASHEL
IR A FEFE - FFEEERFEHRR
HMIEHIEE o

REBAHTIDEERTKE - AEB LA
FA 2B IE T s Ty Ui B B (B0
AEBERFESNEZBH) ZATFEENR
A8 MAEL 2 RaEmBER(ImE) IR
BasEMma2mis(En) AR - ®
Y s B iR 2 R B At 2 RS T R 2 AR
WD ESEMEEZ SR (HAKECE
BEHEBRERANBE) T ERAREERE

7
N

W B R 2B AR

EAEERBITEREBNEERAR
AR RIS SR 58 R Ko e R P W M 1 AT
BRBERMAERE  TAREEKE
EERSANATFEI RESREERS
BAE - BEESFTEMOEEZHMBAH
MEERAE HERREXEBEERHY
BHAFE - ZRZFTEELAEXEE
BB -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



!

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

NTS....

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets on a pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.
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BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial information of associates or joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate or joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

NTS....

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be
required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal of the relevant
associate or joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS....
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Group
uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

] the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or
] the Group's performance does not create an asset

with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources:

° Assembling and sales of solar photovoltaic products;

° Provision of processing services for solar photovoltaic
products;

° Manufacturing and sales of printing products;

° Sales of petrochemical and other related products;

o Manufacturing and sales of hydraulic machinery;

o Department store business;

. Hotel business;

o Sales of properties;
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Assembling and sales of solar photovoltaic products, and
sales of petrochemical and other related products

The Group assemblies and sells solar photovoltaic products,
and trades petrochemical and other related products mainly to
customers in the PRC.

Revenue from sales of solar photovoltaic products is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
the time when the goods have been shipped/delivered to the
customer’s specific location (“Delivery”).

Revenue from sales of petrochemical and other related
products is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being the time when the customer draws out the
petrochemical and other related products from the Group's
warehouse or storage location (“Draw Out”).

Following Delivery or Draw Out, the customer has full
discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods and has the full responsibility on selling the goods
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 60 days upon Delivery
or Draw Out.

For the trading of petrochemical and other related products
business, the Group requires certain customers to provide
upfront deposits range from 10% to 20% of total contract sum.
When the Group receives a deposit before the petrochemical
and other related products are delivered to the customer, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract and
setoff with the total contract sum upon the sales transaction is
completed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Manufacturing and sales of printing products

The Group manufactures and sells printing products to
customers in the PRC, US, Hong Kong and other overseas
countries.

For contracts entered into with customers on sales of printing
products, the relevant printing products specified in the
contracts are based on customer’s specifications with no
alternative use. Taking into consideration of the relevant
contract terms, the Group concluded that the Group does not
have an enforceable right to payment prior to transfer of the
relevant printing products to customers.

Revenue from sales of printing products is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the completed printing
products is shipped/delivered to customers, being at the point
that the customer obtains the control of the printing products
and the Group has present right to payment and collection of
the consideration is probable.

The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days in accordance with the
invoice date.

The Group requires certain customers to provide upfront
deposits ranging from 10% to 20% of total contract sum.
When the Group receives a deposit before the manufacturing
process commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract and setoff with the total contract sum
upon the sales transaction is completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Provision of processing services for solar photovoltaic
products

These contracts entered into with customers for assembling
solar photovoltaic products, raw materials are provided
directly by the customers to carry out assembling services
by Group (i.e. processing services) for completion of the
productions. The relevant photovoltaic products specified
in the contracts are based on customer’s specifications with
no alternative use. Taking into consideration of the relevant
contract terms, the Group concluded that the Group does not
have an enforceable right to payment prior to the completion
of assembling services and delivered to customers. The normal
credit term is 30 days in accordance with the invoice date.

Revenue from the provision of processing services for solar
photovoltaic products is therefore recognised at a point
in time when the completed solar photovoltaic products is
delivered to customers, being at the point that the customer
obtains the control of the solar photovoltaic products and
the Group has present right to payment and collection of the
consideration is probable.

Manufacturing and sales of hydraulic machinery

The Group manufactures and sells hydraulic machinery to
customers in the PRC.

Revenue from sales of hydraulic machinery is recognised at
a point in time when the completed hydraulic machinery is
shipped/delivered to customers, being at the point that the
customer obtains the control of the hydraulic machinery and
the Group has present right to payment and collection of the
consideration is probable.

The normal credit term is 90 days in accordance with the
invoice date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Hotel business

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised when the
accommodation and related services are provided and is
usually settled in cash, by credit cards or other means of
electronic payment.

Department store business

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at point of sale
when the customer takes possession of and accepts the
product and is usually settled in cash, by credit cards or other
means of electronic payment.

Property management services

For property management services contracts, the Group
recognises revenue equal to the right to invoice amount
when it corresponds directly with the value to the customer
of the Group's performance to date, on a monthly basis. The
Group has elected the practical expedient for not to disclose
the remaining performance obligations for these types of
contracts. The majority of the property management service
contracts do not have a fixed term. Customers usually prepay
the property management fee at the beginning of each month.

Sales of properties

For contracts entered into with customers on sales of
properties, the relevant properties specified in the contracts
are based on customer’s specifications with no alternative use.

Taking into consideration of the relevant contract terms, the
legal environment and relevant legal precedent, the Group
concluded that the Group does not have an enforceable
right to payment prior to transfer of the relevant properties
to customers. Revenue from sales of residential properties is
therefore recognised at a point in time when the completed
property is delivered to customers, being at the point that the
customer obtains the control of the completed property and
the Group has present right to payment and collection of the
consideration is probable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sales of properties (Continued)

The Group receives 30% to 50% of the contract value from
customers when they sign the sales and purchase agreement.
For the customers who use mortgage loans provided by the
banks, the remaining portion of the total contract value will be
paid to the Group from the banks once the customers meet
the requirements of the banks. The payment is generally made
by the bank before the delivery of property to the buyer. Such
advance payment schemes result in contract liabilities being
recognised throughout the property construction period while
construction work of properties is still ongoing.

The Group considers the advance payment schemes contain
significant financing component and accordingly the amount
of consideration is adjusted for the effects of the time value of
money taking into consideration the credit characteristics of
the Group. As this accrual increases the amount of the contract
liabilities during the period of construction, it increases the
amount of revenue recognised when control of the completed
property is transferred to the customer.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year, the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
transaction price for any significant financing component.

—B-NER

EREHBERE)

AL )
HEWH(E)

REEERRE  AEBERFPKBA
AEER30%E50%  FhiE A RITIRE N
RIBEFNEFLME @  BANEENST
HHBREEFARITHERERIERA
@I - FEBERVEIN FERA
RIRITE T - BRATER TSI BB RYEN
BETRMDEETR  AHBERDER
SRR HATEIRERR o

AEERSBENFEESERREMAKED
DRBEEREENKREEYEFHERE
T BRI RAKRENEERS - AR
ZEFERENNEENEANANEAES
BOWEEMRNRIYERENREETE
FERERNKEEE -

FHEEABELAIN D

REEXSERE - W5 E N RERE (T
AR RHART ) REPRAEEER
EBEREMARBOENBEMNS - XL
EedeRRRENTZEMBBCARD
REZHE - ELZFBRT  AHEBRERK
BMEMEKID - BERBEAFEREROT
PRARERE - BRA WA 15 E NG
AR - WA REFEERREAKED

MAAEERARBONREAEREHR IR
—FENEAME  AEBEEATHBEM
ERMEEAKBONRZERNAITEE
JE e

101




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Existence of significant financing component (Continued)

For advance payments received from customers before the
transfer of the associated goods or services in which the
Group adjusts for the promised amount of consideration for a
significant financing component, the Group applies a discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
The relevant interest expenses during the period between
the advance payments were received and the transfer of the
associated goods and services are accounted for on the same
basis as other borrowing costs.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (e.g. sales commissions)
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently charged to profit or loss that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Accounting Policy applicable on or after 1 January 2019

Definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,
at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-
term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted by using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Accounting Policy applicable on or after 1 January 2019
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using revised discount rate.

° the lease payments change due to changes in an
index or rate or a change in expected payment under
a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease
payments change is due to a change in a floating interest
rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

o a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and any initial direct costs,
less lease incentives received. Whenever the Group incurs an
obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset,
restore the site on which it is located or restore the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, provision is recognised and measured under HKAS
37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless
those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Accounting Policy applicable on or after 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Except for the right-of-use assets classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model, right-
of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment property are
presented within “investment properties”.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Accounting Policy applicable on or after 1 January 2019
(Continued)

The Group as lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with
respect to some of its investment properties. Leases for which
the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Accounting policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Accounting policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019
(Continued)

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or losses on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than investment properties measured
under fair value model, such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Accounting policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as ‘prepaid lease payments’
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purposes).

Upon application of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, investment
properties include leased properties recognised by the Group
as right-of-use asset and leased out under operating lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Owned investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the year in which they arise.

Construction cost incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property held by the Group as a right-of-use
asset is measured initially at cost in accordance with HKFRS
16. Subsequent to initial recognition, it is measured at fair
value, which is the right-of-use asset, but not the underlying

property.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

The Group shall transfer a property from investment property
to property under development when it commences
related development with a view to sale. For a transfer from
investment property that is carried at fair value to property
under development, related property under development
shall be recognised at fair value at the transfer date.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction-in-
progress (as described below), are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings

For payments of ownership interest of properties which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is presented as property, plant and equipment of
the Group when the payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the leasehold land and building elements, except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

Construction-in-progress for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction-in-
progress less their residual values, over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 16, assets held under finance
leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on
the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is no
reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the
end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

If a property held for sale becomes an item of property, plant
and equipment when there is a change in use, the carrying
amount of the property at the date of transfer is the deemed
cost for subsequent accounting for that property as an item of
property, plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets and right-of-use assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and right-of-use assets
to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets and right-of-use
assets are estimated individually, or when it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash- generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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12

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties held for sale

Completed properties and properties under development for
sale in the ordinary course of business are included in current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs comprise the acquisition costs, the related land cost,
development expenditure incurred and where appropriate
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy and other direct costs attributable to such
properties and allocated to each unit in each phase based
on sellable floor area, using weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
properties held-for-sale less all estimated costs of completion
and the costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

From 1 January 2019, any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an
entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation
rate on general borrowings.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS....
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, (i) the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into HK$; and (ii) the assets and
liabilities of the Group denominated or translated in HK$ are
then translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. RMB), using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an interest in an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
shareholders of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of joint arrangements or associates that
do not result in the Group losing joint control or significant
influence), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS....
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets. Financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, FVTOCI, and
FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
(Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instruments and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are
credit-impaired on initial recognition), the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying
amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by
discounting the estimated future cash flows, including
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross
carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BEBREFTBEK(E)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EMIB(E)
Financial assets (Continued) TEEEE)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) HE R AT EZ eMEAE(BFTA)
(Continued) (%)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For financial assets other
than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting
periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Group recognises interest income by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial
recognition. The calculation does not revert to the
gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial asset
subsequently improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the “revenue” and “other income” line items
(notes 6 and 9).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEREFTHERE)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EMIB(E)
Financial assets (Continued) TEEEE)

118

Financial assets at FVTOCI (debt instruments)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The Group classifies and measures subsequently its debt
instruments at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions
are met:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets; and

J the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

The Group's debt instruments classified as at
FVTOCI includes investments in listed and unlisted
bond investments. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 23. Debt instruments are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, changes in the carrying amount of debt
instruments as a result of foreign exchange gains
and losses, impairment gains or losses, and interest
income calculated using the effective interest method
are recognised in profit or loss. The amounts that
are recognised in profit or loss are the same as the
amounts that would have been recognised in profit
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NTS....

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. Specifically:

o Investments in equity instruments are classified as
at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor a
contingent consideration arising from a business
combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

o Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either
the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The
Group has not designated any debt instruments as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part
of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains
and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 23.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term; or
° on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified

financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses on investments in debt instruments that are measured
at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as well as financial guarantee
contracts. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the

regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default, (ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term, and (iii) adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has
external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with
the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘low risk’. Low risk
means that the counterparty has a low risk of default and there
is no past due amounts.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of
assessing the financial instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition of a financial guarantee contract,
the Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

° information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
o the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over 2 years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information regarding specific exposures that is reasonable,
supportable and available without undue cost or effort. As for
the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date;
for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the
amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with
any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical trend,
the Group's understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses
(Continued)

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as
the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. For a lease receivable, the
cash flows used for determining the expected credit losses
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases (on or after 1
January 2019) or HKAS 17 Leases (prior to 1 January 2019).

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, the expected loss allowance is the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs
less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the
holder, the debtor or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of
an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset
does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing
involvement approach applies, and financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group, are measured in accordance
with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (1) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination, (2) held-for-trading,
or (3) designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period,
to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a group entity are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as
at FVTPL and do not arise from a transfer of a financial asset,
are subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that contain both the liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

Convertible bonds that contain both the liability and equity
components (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing
the conversion option for the holder to convert the bonds
into equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds equity
reserve). The value of any derivative features embedded in
the convertible bonds other than the equity component is
included in the liability component.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in convertible
bonds equity reserve until the conversion option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium. Where the option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated
in convertible bonds equity reserve will be released to the
retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds that contain both the liability component
and conversion option derivative

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
a conversion option derivative. At the date of issue, both the
liability and conversion option components are recognised at
fair value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

Convertible bonds that contain both the liability component
and conversion option derivative (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The conversion option derivative
together with other embedded derivatives is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. In
subsequent periods, the conversion option derivative together
with other embedded derivatives is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
loan notes are allocated to the liability and derivative
components in proportion to their relative fair values.
Transaction costs relating to the derivative components
are charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible loan notes using the effective interest
method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities of the Group are offset and
the net amount presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position when, and only when, there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting condition is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share-based payment
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to share capital and share premium. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits
(accumulated losses).

Equity instruments issued to purchase goods or services

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year/period. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either (i) the same
taxable entity; or (ii) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.
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NTS....

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the stated-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group's share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable
value of properties held for sale and inventories, and value
in use of property, plant and equipment for the purpose of
impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics
of inputs, as follow:

Level T — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATION

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATION (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

Going concern and liquidity

The assessment of the going concern assumptions
involves making judgement by the directors of the
Company, at a particular point of time, about the future
outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. Please refer to note 2 in relation to the going
concern assumptions adopted by the directors of the
Company.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the
Directors have reviewed the Group's investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group's investment
properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time. Therefore, in measuring the Group's deferred
taxation on investment properties, the Directors have
determined that the Group has a business model for its
investment properties whose objective is to hold all its
investment properties so as to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale.
Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to the Group's
investment properties have been measured based on the
tax consequences of recovering the carrying amounts
entirely through use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATION (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(a)

(b)

Investment properties

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of investment properties. Note 17 provides
detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination
of the fair value of investment properties. The carrying
amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2019 was RMB4,863,150,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB5,814,375,000) as set out in note 17.

Estimated net realisable value on properties held for
sale

In determining whether allowances should be made to
the Group's properties held for sale, the Group takes
into consideration the current market environment and
the estimated net realisable value (i.e. the actual or
estimated selling price less estimated costs to complete
the development based on existing asset structure and
material price lists and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sales). An allowance is made if the estimated
net realisable value is less than the carrying amount. If
the actual net realisable value on properties held for
sale is less than expected as a result of change in market
condition and/or significant variation in the budgeted
development cost, material allowances for impairment
losses may result if the net realisable value is less than
the carrying amount.

The carrying amount of properties held for sale as at 31
December 2019 was RMB7,440,044,000 (31 December
2018: RMB5,736,201,000) as set out in note 24.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATION (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the ageing of
the inventories at the end of the reporting period, and
makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer saleable in the market.
The identification of obsolete inventories requires the
use of estimation of the net realisable value of items of
inventories and judgements on the conditions of items
of inventories. Where the expected net realisable value
is lower than the cost of certain items, a write-down
of inventories may arise. As at 31 December 2019, the
carrying amounts of inventories were RMB233,948,000
(2018: RMB261,118,000) net of accumulated allowance
for inventories of approximately RMB9,517,000 (31
December 2018: RMB16,132,000). Write-down of
inventories of RMB9,004,000 (period from 1 April 2018 to
31 December 2018: RMB7,528,000) was recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Impairment of trade receivables

Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances
or credit-impaired which individually assessed for ECL,
the Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
trade receivables. The Group uses debtors’ ageing to
assess the impairment for its customers which grouped
by different segment in relation to its operations
because these customers consist of a large number of
small customers with common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The provision rates that applied are based on
historical default rates from respective segments taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable, supportable and available without undue
costs or effort.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATION (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. Different default rates are
applied to the customers in different businesses. In
addition, receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group's
trade receivables are disclosed in notes 47 and 27,
respectively.

Estimated useful lives and impairment assessment of
plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
determination of the useful lives involves management'’s
estimation based on historical experience. The Group
assesses annually the useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment and if the expectation differs from the
original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation in the year and the estimate will be changed
in the future period.

The Group determines whether the property, plant and
equipment are impaired whenever there is indication
of impairment presented. The impairment loss for
property, plant and equipment are recognised for the
amounts by which the carrying values exceed their
recoverable amounts, in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of property,
plant and equipment have been determined based on
higher of value-in-use calculations and fair value less
costs of disposal. These calculations require the use of
estimates such as future revenue and discount rates. As
at 31 December 2019, the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment were RMB2,027,984,000 (2018:
RMB1,308,271,000).
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6. REVENUE

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

!

6. W=

NTS....

(i) BFEHAWESR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BECR-NEtCA=T-ALER

Property
Trading  development
and and Solar Financial
Printing logistics  investments  photovoltaic services Other Total
g5  UxRE
5 B4R RRE ABEXR  SREH 2t szt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETn  ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Type of goods and services LU
Sales of: $E:
- solar photovoltaic products -KBERER - - - 92,243 - - 92,243
- printing products - RIG 670,189 - - - - - 670,189
- petrochemical and other related  —~Aft kEMEBER
products - 2,203,718 - - - - 2,203,718
- properties o - - 655966 - - - 655966
- hydraulic machinery YL - - - - - 20,933 20,933
Processing services MK
- solar photovoltaic products -ABERER - - - 420 - - 420
Property management services  MIEEERE - - 4,758 - - - 4,758
Others £t o o - - - 27,514 21,514
Total revenue from contracts Epafaieg
with customers 670,189 2,203,718 660,724 92,663 - 48,447 3,675,741
Finance lease income BEREWA - - - - 121 - 127
Interest income from provision RERE ZFI B
of finance - - - - 2,064 - 2,064
Rental income from property NEREZAERA
investments - - 9,615 - - - 9,615
Dividend from securities investments 554 28 S - - - 5,374 - 5,374
Others it - - 6,685 - - - 6,685
Total revenue e 670,189 2,203,718 677,024 92,663 7,565 48,447 3,699,606
Geographical markets BEDS
The PRC HE 196,613 2,198,836 660,724 92,663 - 48,447 3,197,283
The United States of America (“US") %E 277,831 - - - - - 277,831
Hong Kong B 50,054 515 - - - = 50,569
European countries BNER 79,498 224 - - - - 79,122
Other countries 28R 66,193 4,143 - - - - 70,336
Total &t 670,189 2,203,718 660,724 92,663 - 48,447 3,675,741
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6. REVENUE (Continued) 6. W= (&)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) BEFENWRBESE(E)
customers (Continued)

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
“E-\EMA-BE_E-\ET_A=T-HEE

Property
Trading ~ development
and and Solar Financial
Printing logistics ~ investments  photovoltaic services Total

g5  hxR%
il R LRR  ABEER  SREES )
RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTL  ARETL  ARRTL  ARRTL  ARETR

Type of goods and services EmREHEY
Sales of: HE
- solar photovoltaic products -AERARER - = = 51,548 S 51,548
- printing products —HRIG 551,540 = = = = 551,540
- petrochemical and other related  — At REMIEEER
products = 1,910,464 = = = 1,910,464
- properties - = = 71,222 = = 71,022
Processing services T B
- solar photovoltaic products - KB RER - - - 18,393 - 18,393
Total revenue from contracts RPALEYE
with customers 551,540 1,910,464 71222 69,941 - 2,609,167
Finance lease income BERERA - - - - 953 953
Interest income from provision REREZFIBRA
of finance = = = = 6,590 6,590
Rental income from property MERE 7B I
investments - - 22139 - - 22139
Dividend from securities investments  &#1% & 7 R & - - - = 5,081 5,081
Others Eth - - 5,955 - - 5,955
Total revenue alhs 551,540 1,910,464 104,916 69,941 12,624 2,649,485
Geographical markets HENS
The PRC HE 163,629 1,907,159 71222 69,941 - 2,217,951
The United States of America ("US")  %H 225,257 = = = = 225,257
Hong Kong Bk 42,336 1,558 - - - 43,894
European countries BUNER 71788 1424 = = = 73212
Other countries EfER 48,530 323 = = = 48,853
Total @t 551,540 1,910,464 71222 69,941 - 2,609,167
Revenue from property management services is Wy B AR R M Uk S B S ES RE SR -
recognised over time, and the progress measured YL E st eRE - S AMBEE
using the output method. The property management WE X SEBEER - N&EBF
service fees are billed to the tenants monthly. All other AEAME B S GRS 5 (E SRS
revenue of the Group from contracts with customers are BLEES o
recognised at point in time.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

6. REVENUE (Continued) 6. W (&)

(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) PREEFEANKBTEAER
performance obligation for contracts with X5 E®%
customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining RT-ZA=+—BoEEHEME
performance obligations for sales of properties HBRTIBHNEE(RBETHBIRE
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December TINR 5B KR s 1 78 B
and the expected timing of recognising revenue are as M :
follows:

Sales of properties

HEME
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —EF-N\F
t=A=t—-HB +t=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

Within one year —F R 1,312,897 138,985
More than one year but not more —F A EETBBME

than two years 130,098 833,341
More than two years ME A E S 1,784

1,442,995 974,110

Except for the above, all of the Group's other remaining BrEmEN  MBEAEBEFEAEH
performance obligations for contracts with customers WEMBRTEANEENREHHR
are for original expected duration of one year or less. B—FEHAA o MEBY I IREE
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price Al A  PEEZERE
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. TEHNRZSBIRILKRIRE
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OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by different business lines. Information reported
to the Group's executive directors, being the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment is prepared on this
basis. The Group has identified the following five reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments as follows:

° Printing: Sales and manufacturing of high quality multi-
colour packaging products, carton boxes, books,
brochures and other paper products

° Trading and logistics: Trading, logistics and supply chain

management

° Property development and investments: Property
development and investments, property management
services

o Solar photovoltaic: Sales and manufacturing of and
provision of processing services on solar photovoltaic
products

o Financial services: Comprised of provision of finance
through money lending services; provision of finance
through finance lease; provision of securities brokerage
services and investment activities in equity securities,
funds, bonds and asset management services and other
related services

In addition to the operating segments described above,
each of which constitutes a reportable segment, the Group
has other operating segments which include provision of
hotel services, department store business and sales and
manufacturing of hydraulic machinery in the PRC, which are
the new businesses for the year ended 31 December 2019.
None of these segments meets any of quantitative thresholds
for determining reportable segments. Accordingly, all of
the above operating segments are grouped as "All other
segments”.

7 RRE
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IREE fb S bR A EL 0 T AR 7%
o TRR  ABEBIRGEIRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results
by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

i
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS....

7. REDEME)

PG Y E S

AT RIRAHRED B2 2 ARE S R
KB

BE-_Z—NF+=-A=+—HILEE

Property
Trading  development Reportable
and and Solar  Financial ~ segments'  All other
Printing ~logistics investments photovoltaic ~ services total  segments Total
VELLS THEHE £
OB ERRUR FRE  ABEER  SREE g EfAR it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR  AR%TR
Segment revenue p:L
Revenue from extemal customers — RESMIEPHNE 670,189 2203718 677004 92,663 7565 3651159 48447 3,699,606
Segment profit (loss) PHERI(EE) 6,492 (32,370) 154,309 (44,006) 1,701 86,126 (25,263) 60,863

Unallocated amounts
Change in fair value of
convertible bonds
- derivative component
Corporate adminisirative expense
Corporate other income
Finance costs
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Qther gains and losses
Share of profit from an associates
Share of loss from joint venture

Group's loss before tax

—B-NER

*ELE
TERERL
DYEEY
k%)
LRORER
LEEBIA
fHER
HEMRAANE
EhERER
MEBEATEN
MRELERR

REEZBRABE

12,498
(65,785)
133
(572,252)
1"

652

813
(216)

(563,283)
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7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 7. REDI(E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DB BRES(E)
For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 —E-NFHNA-HE=ZE-NF+=A
=+—-H#HHE
Property
Trading  development Reportable
and and Solar  Financial  segments’ Al other
Printing logistics  investments  photovoltaic services total  segments Total
VEES TREHD 2

QR ERkAA  RRE ABEAR  REB B Ead it
WBODD  RVBODD  RVBUDD  RVBOID  RVBOID  RMBOID  RBOOD  RMBON
ARRTR ARMTTL ARMTL ARMTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR

Segment revenue PHbE
Revenue from extemal customers  RESMIBFAa 551540 1910464 104916 69,941 12624 2,649485 - 2409485
Segment profit (loss) AHEH(ER) 914 (12380) 102564 (187,358) (357 (96617) (32472 (129,289)
Unallocated amounts APEER
Change in fair value of THREHL
convertible bonds ATEED
- derivative component - 1TSS 118,374
Corporate administrative TETHER
expenses (142,582)
Corporate other income i 3.0 ON 3,457
Finance costs HHER (444.252)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMBAFNE 20
Loss on disposal of associates  (HEBEATER (8,637)
Other gains and losses HitHERER 24
Reversal of impairment for REFBERAOAE
financial quarantee contracts 261,713
Share of loss from associates  AREIEREER 8371)
Group's loss before tax REBZRIAEE (349,597)
The accounting policies of the operating segments and the KED Iz TR AR E B4R
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 4. ETHE B -
Segment results represent the profit or loss of each operating DEEBERERELEDB2ER - EFL
segment without allocation of gains or losses arising from ROMREUTBRES —TEHFHP 22 F
change in fair value of convertible bonds — derivative BEPHELE 2 BRIEE  CETHRE
component, corporate administrative expenses, corporate ﬁH EEMKRA - MBER  HEHE
other income, finance costs, loss on disposal of associates, NAEE  HEWB ARG - RORE
gain on disposal of subsidiaries, unallocated other gains ﬁﬁ”ﬂl SREE - IBERESOBERR
and losses, reversal of impairment for financial guarantee DB E QR 2 W (BB ) ko /:\u%ﬁ:\
contracts, share of profits (loss) from associates and share VB pMEEZHAETINEREE
of loss from joint venture. This is the measure reported IRERE ZWMARREBIRD L B RFTE -
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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i
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS....

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 7. REDRI(E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PEMBREE(E)
Other segment information Bt 5 HER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-ZE-NF+-A=+—HLEE
Property
Trading ~ development Reportable
and and Solar  Financial ~ segments’  All other
Printing ~ logistics investments photovoltaic  services total  segments Unallocated Total
NERE EECHE 28
A8 BRRUR RRE  ABEXR SREE B REAE REAR it
RMB‘000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00 RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Amounts included in the measure 23t AABERT
of segment profit or loss or ABEEZIE
segment assets: 288
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ £/#1% * BER
equipment for the year RENE 30,654 8,210 17,552 22,815 o 7973 5,208 201 87,010
Depreciation of right of use assets ~~ FAERELEL
for the year i 10,231 10,620 1,511 m - 23,073 3,280 18,210 44,623
Additions to non-current assets ERAELRYAE
during the year 143,661 320,09 742,984 37,624 472 1,244837 226,379 4311 1,475,527
Additions to non-current assets ERERKENELA
through acquisition of subsidiaries  FEFFHEE
during the year - - 65 - - 65 337,69 - 337,761
Impairment loss of WIEEZRERR
-~ trade receivables -25RY5E 9,350 - 2739 10,184 -1 4,769 - a0
- other receivables ~EHRMEE - - 11,112 - - 1M - - mm
Written off of other receivables HtElsaE - 530 7,859 - - 8,389 - 5 8,394
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BRREE
plant and equipment LE# 901 852 - - - 1,753 - - 1,753
Gain on disposal of aright of use asset (EFEFEEE 7 MG (127) - - s s (127) 5 s (127)
Change in fair value of investment R &#IE 2 A FES
properties - - (237,945) - - (237,945) - - (237,945
Change in fair value of financial BATETARSEY
assets at FVTPL SHAE/LTERY - 540 - - (159 (8819) - - (8619
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of debt HERATETA
instruments Eb2ERE
at FVTOC EBIA(LE)/BE - (1,499) - - 3,313 1814 - - 1,814
Interest income on bank depositsand - 7 H REFFTHR
pledged bank deposits Rz FIEMA (178) (595) (357) (24) 4172  (5.32) (17) (304) (5,647)
Interest income from finance lease ~ REBEREEUGE
receivables ZHSHA - - - - (127) (127) - - (127)
Interest income from loan receivables  RAENEZ ZFIZ WA 5 s 5 s (2,064) (2,064) 5 - (2,064)
Write-down of inventories REN 9,004 - - - - 9,004 - - 9,004
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7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

ﬁ«( EE g _LB (

= )

DR ERFEE(E)

Hifth7 SBE# ()
ZE-\ENA-HEZZE-NF+=A

=t+—BH>E
Property
Trading  development Reportable
and and Solar  Financial ~ segments'  All other
Pinting ~ logistics  investments  photovaltaic ~ senvices total  segments  Unallocated Total
HEEES EE 29
I8 BARAR RRE  AB#AR  SREE g ApAd  AESR a3
RMBOO0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB0O00  RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETT ARER
Amounts included in the measure  E3AABERT
of segment profit or loss or APEEHE
segment assets: 288!
Depreciation and amortisation BRREREE
for the period 26,940 1987 6,878 44 30 87,061 - 483 9,8%
Additions to non-current assets BRTEFRIEE
during the period 84,262 90,60 176,259 295,354 R 646,512 5 862 647 374
Additions to non-current assets HREBNENEAT
through acquisition of subsidiaries ~ FEFHEE
during the period 62,3% = 118911 199,128 S 380433 5 S 380,433
Impairment loss of NTIREZHEER
~trade receivables -E5ENEE 9,069 = = 10,303 = 19372 5 = 19372
- other receivables -EEREE S 917 7,468 S 126 8511 5 1239 9750
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,  HEWE - BERREZ
plant and equipment ()8 (541) = 21 = = (340) = % (244)
Change in fair value of investment k&M% ATEE
properties - - (192,015 - - (192,015 - - (192015
Change in fair value of financial RATHEF AR
assets at FVTPL SRAE/LVERY = - - -8 9 - -9
Loss on disposal of debt instruments ~ HERZAFEZFA
at FVToC E2EREL
ERIARR - - - - 2560 2560 - - 2540
Interest income on bank depositsand - #7775 R TR
pledged bank deposits FRZASRA (81) (705) (2.968) (1,337) (170) (5,261) = (78 5339)
Interest income from finance lease ~ REBEHEENFE
receivables ZHSHA S = = S (953) (953) 5 S (953)
Interest income from loan receivables  RAENE 2 FIZ WA - = = = (6,590) (6,590) 5 = (6,590)
Impairment loss in respect of property, BN « BERkRE
plant and equipment LRfEEE - = X - 66 s -8
Write-down of inventories &l S = = 7528 S 1528 5 S 1528
Impairment loss of properties heldfor  #{EX ENE 7 HEFE
sale (included incost of salesand ~ (REERRERA
services) PAK) - - B - - B0 - - B
Impairment loss of deposits for BEUERRA L
machineries modification and ReNESE
enhancement = = = 25,000 = 25,000 = = 25,000
Impairment loss of goodwil HERERR - - - 5,846 - 584 = s 5,84
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7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

e E(E)

Segment assets and liabilities ITHEERER
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —E2-N\F
+=ZA=+—8 +=—A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Segment assets PHEE
Printing 21 680,086 603,543
Trading and logistics B 5 KR 828,502 558,060
Property development and investments YERERIRE 13,555,014 12,361,690
Solar photovoltaic NGRS 653,298 1,182,627
Financial services 2 RARTE 176,196 390,673
15,893,096 15,096,593
All other segments 2 ERHE M 53 JP 1,405,320 9,431
Unallocated assets KOBCEE 357,079 656,511
Consolidated total assets HEEEE 17,655,495 15,762,535
149
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7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 7. BEFE(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THREERERE(E)
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—g-nE  —T)\F
+=A=+-8 t-A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Segment liabilities PEHEE
Printing 21 788,226 727,987
Trading and logistics B 5 kiR 708,751 631,828
Property development and investments YERERIRE 9,615,837 4,705,876
Solar photovoltaic YN GTPIAIN 211,724 944,393
Financial services & BARTE 67,486 136,294
11,392,024 7,146,378
All other segments 2 EHE b B 1,252,568 3,188
Unallocated liabilities KoicBE 2,289,679 5,982,249
Consolidated total liabilities ey N=Er 14,934,271 13,131,815
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and REESHMRBENSBZ2EIEEIR

allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than e BRAEEBELNEEAQAF 2N
corporate assets and interests in associates and interests EReagtEz I MBEEE
in joint ventures; and BEOERERENE K&

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other e HKROEEXBREI FMEARESEZRE
than corporate liabilities. BEDE
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Segment revenue and results
Geographical information

The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, the
PRC and the US.

Information about the Group's revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the location of the operations
of relevant group entities. The following table sets out
information about the geographical location of revenue from
external customers and non-current assets:

Revenue from
external customers

EEAE(E)

DEBNER EE
B EH

AEENREIROMHETE - PEMXE
o

AEERBIMNBEFP ZWHmERTIERE
FoE 25 - BRAKBEFRBEERN
BRNDERAREEEBNKEVES
5l o TREINRBINBE P 2 W kIR
BEEMMIBAEER

Non-current assets*

KBS
BEE 2zl FREBEE

1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

—E-hEF —N\F

—H—BH MA—H
—E-hAEF ET)N\HF —E-NF —E-)N\F
+=ZA=+—HB +=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—-H +t=-ZA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT AR¥ TR ARETT
The PRC A 3,213,710 2,246,246 8,248,263 7,584,309
The US EH 277,831 225,257 143 157
Hong Kong aE 58,007 50,833 34,492 15,720
European countries EOMIEIER 79,722 73,212 = =
Other countries HiHx 70,336 53,937 = =
3,699,606 2,649,485 8,282,898 7,600,186

Non-current assets exclude financial instruments and deferred tax
assets.

Information about major customers

The Group’s customer base is diversified and none of the
customers whom have transactions with the Group exceeded
10% of the Group's revenue during the current year and prior
period.

—B-NER

* FRBEETREEBMIAREEHBRE
o

BEEFTEEFHER
AEEREBZTICNEFLER  RAFE

FMOBEHAE  HMIEEFPEAEBNRI FHE
BAEEREE10%

151




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HftnhmKkEE
1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
—H—H MmA—A
E-E-NEFE ZFEZT)N\F
+=ZA=+—8 +ZHA=+—H
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Change in fair value of financial assets BRAFEFABRZ
at FVTPL ETREEZAVES 8,619 (9.476)
Exchange loss, net BE N B 1EH A (2,794) (297)
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BEX
plant and equipment Rz (B18) W (1,753) 244
Loss on disposal of debt instruments HEERAFEFTAEMZE
at FVTOCI Wz BB TR EE (1,814) (2,560)
Gain on bargain purchase (note 48(a)) =EBE W (Hit48(a)) 5,791 -
Impairment of deposits for machineries MR MR 2
modification and enhancement (note 22) & & ZB(E(Kf7F22) - (25,000)
Loss on disposal of club membership HEgmeEEE(HE19)
(note 19) - (63)
8,049 (37,152)
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HUA
1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —F-NF
—HA—H MA—H
EZE-NEFE ZEZT)N\F
+=A=+—8 +=—A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT
Interest income on bank deposits and IRITHERMIRITERBFRZ
pledged bank deposits MEKA 5,647 5,339
Gain on disposal of a right-of-use asset HEFREEE 2 WHE 127 -
Others Hi 10,803 17,955
16,577 23,294
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. % E A
1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
—HA—H MA—H
BE-E-hEF EZT)N\HF
+=ZA=+—8 +ZHAH=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
Interest on bank borrowings and RITER R
other borrowings E At & 5K A B 421,158 377,687
Interest on obligations under REREAEZFE
finance leases - 419
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBEMNE 6,160 -
Interest on significant financing REBEEMEZ
component arising from pre-sales BREEAKED 2 S
of properties 90,853 29,931
Imputed interest arising on interest-free  REBEIZERAFZ
borrowings from immediate holding R EERZHERNE
company 146,680 38,388
Imputed interest arising on obligations BT AIEEE Y
under financing arrangements HEREB 45,002 109,291
Effective interest expenses on MR ES CERMNE X
convertible bonds (note 36) (Ftat36) 66,844 95,379
Effective interest expenses on RElEHCEBRFE M
corporate bonds 16,590 23,590
Other finance charges Hin B % &R 401 23,427
793,688 698,112
Less: interest expenses capitalised into B BN RIERREME
investment properties under ERPEHFEVRZAE
construction/properties under F sz (KfaE)
development for sales (note) (221,436) (253,860)
572,252 444,252
Note: The borrowing costs of general borrowings have been capitalised K : —RERZEFRANIEFHNEI0%(=ZF

at a rate of 10% (31 December 2018: 10%) per annum to expenses

on the qualifying assets.

—B-NER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FrEHiAX

1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
—RA—H MA—H
E-E-NEFE ZFEZT)N\F
+=B=+—HB +t—H=+—8H
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Current tax: BREATR IR
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEFIEH 6,295 124
PRC enterprise income tax A B TSR 2,103 2,042
PRC land appreciation tax B £ M I E R 10,098 -
Other jurisdictions Hith e xR 1 -
18,497 2,166
(Over) under provision BT GBRERE)
in prior periods: BETRE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EENEHR (114) (323)
PRC enterprise income tax TSR 628 (2,118)
514 (2,441)
Deferred tax (note 40) EIERLIE (M 7F40) 51,461 46,789
70,472 46,514

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the "Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. For the year ended
31 December 2019, Hong Kong profits tax of the qualified
entity of the Group is calculated in accordance with the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime. The profits of other Group
entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at the flat rate of
16.5%. For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018,
Hong Kong profits tax was calculated at a flat rate of 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits.

g

R_E—NFZA-+—HB BBIEE
BBE(CZTE—EFHEUBE]) (B795) K
BIEZRY[EHIEZR]) - 5| AFSH MR
o EPIEER - NE=A -+ /\H
KEZBRAZRINBATE - REFIE
MRS - ABRARE2EEB T EF
151%8.25%H i - MiBB2E & LAY F
BIR16.5% T - BE-_ZE—hE+-A
T+—BLFE EEAEKEENES
FMERTIRBEFSHMRSTE - BFH
fib £ B 2 B2 A% BN T A FI 15 B w4
MESk - BIEERE — B E165%HF ©
R_E—NFNA—HBE-_ZT—N\F+=
A=+—H8H ' &EFSHIZHTER
Fiom A B — i K 16.5%:T & -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for the current year and
prior period.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Land appreciation tax in the PRC is levied on properties
developed by the Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, which
under the applicable regulations is calculated based on the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures

FrisHip s (&)

RIBHBEEERFBE([REMSHE])
REEMSBEBIED - B EHEARR
RAFERBERBOHEH25% °

Hofts AR B RR AR AR E 2 01T
CECE R

REMTHIZER R AEERAENFE
YR T M (EEIRE30% 2 60%H) R
FHUW - RIBERER - ZREZREY
SIHEWAR A A IR 2 th (B3 i E A
TR ~ ERAMAEMERE M)A

s

including cost of land use rights, borrowing costs and all Ho
property development expenditures.
1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
—HA—H MmA—A
B-E-NEFE ET-)N\HF
+=A=+—8 +ZH=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Loss before tax BRELATE B (563,283) (349,597)
Notional tax on profit before tax, BB RNz BEMHIE
calculated at the rates applicable to HERREB R AR
profits in the jurisdictions concerned M EREFE (108,409) (94,457)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for FLFHWBEHME -
tax purposes THHRAS 2 HAZE 40,225 88,905
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax FHMEMmMS
purposes BERBBAZHEBZE (6,530) (63,560)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERZAIMRERER Y
differences not recognised I & 10,241 103
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERZBRIEEE RIBEFE 126,673 119,504
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FAUERERZBIEEE
recognised (2,340) (1,540)
Under (over) provision in respect of BT R B R (GRRRE RS )
prior periods 514 (2,447)
PRC land appreciation tax A B+ i IE(E L 10,098 —
Income tax expense FriSHi i 2 70,472 46,514
155

—B-NER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD 12. EE HBREE
1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—B-hE T )\F
—H—H mAH—H

E=8-nE Z-2\F
+=A=+-8 t=A=t+—A8
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARNTR

Loss for the year/period is arrived after FIEHARE B 1R Th A kR

charging (crediting): (FFAVA T B IEBEE
Directors’ remuneration (note 13) EE=Me (MiE13) 14,680 11,037
Staff cost, excluding Directors’ BINA TEIEESHE -

remuneration:

Salaries, wages and other benefits e  TERHEHMER 257,364 203,858

Retirement benefit scheme contributions R R4EF 5T 2|50 36,072 24,460
Total staff costs B8 TR 308,116 239,355

Rental income from investment properties: &M HE 2L WA :

Gross rental income from investment BEYE 2 BHESHA
properties (9,615) (22,139)
Less: direct operating expenses incurred  J& : & HARNBEHE S WA
for investment properties that ZIREWELZ
generated rental income during BEELERY
the year/period 710 1,834
(8,905) (20,305)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments B 70 & 518 5 S 5,588
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN &
— Audit services — EBAZARTE 5,056 6,367
— Non-audit services —FEZERG 192 272
Cost of inventories recognised as an BRAERIMFEERA
expense 2,798,954 2,466,174
Cost of properties recognised as an ER AR KR
expenses 572,106 94,430
Impairment of properties held for sales BEREWEZRE
(included in cost of sales and services) (RIEE MARFEAE A ABR) - 29,050
Write-down of inventories FEMR
(included in cost of sales and services) (REEE MR AH ARR) 9,004 7,528
Written off of other receivables EL At JRE A R TR A 2
(included in administrative expenses) (RITER SR ARR) 8,394 =
Depreciation for property, M - BERERETE
plant and equipment 87,010 86,306
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FREEETE 44,623 -
Operating lease rental on land and T MEEY 2
buildings KEHEMES S 19,510
Research and development expenses HEEFRY 3,715 5,614
156 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13. E5 - T ETHABEREEZ

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors and Chief Executive

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors and

2 B
EERIETHASR

THRENKENSEERTEITRAR

the Chief Executive were as follows: 2
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-hE+-A=+—HLEFE
Retirement
Salary Discretionary benefit
and other bonus scheme
Fee  allowances (Note a) contributions Total
HER HETA BIRER
[k g4 (Hita) HE 1 @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%TrR
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Meng (Chairman) akE(FE) - 6,818 - - 6,818
Ms. Zhang Ye (Chief Executive) RELL (TR - 2,081 - 75 2,156
Mr. Guo Song (Deputy Chief Executive) S8 % 4 (Bl/TH##)

(Note b) (Hritb) - 1,815 321 - 2,136
Mr. He Shufen (Note ¢) % L (Hitc) - 747 - 68 815
Mr. Zeng Hongbo (Note d) BAREE (Hitd) - 1,776 - 16 1,792
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUHE{TEE
Mr. Zheng Bailin Ll vk 321 - - - 321
Mr. Shen Ruolei NEERA 321 - - - 321
Mr. Pun Chi Ping R ivtad 321 - - - 321

963 13,237 321 159 14,680
—T-NEFRW 157



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13. &5 ~§Eﬁﬂzk§a&ﬁ§lz
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) N (&)
Directors and Chief Executive (Continued) BEERFETHAE(E)
For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 ZE-N\FEA—-BE=ZE-N\F+=A
=+—HHHE
Retirement
Salary  Discretionary benefit
and other bonus scheme
Fee allowances (Note a) contributions Total
Hek BT RIRER
ik iz (Kiita) HESA b

RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTL AR®TR  ARETT  ARETR

Executive Directors HiTEE

Mr. Meng (Chairman) aRE(LE) - 5,618 = = 5,618
Ms. Zhang Ye (Chief Executive) RELL (TR - 1,406 - 12 1418
Mr. Guo Song (Deputy Chief Executive) — SVIE% 4 (Bl7TH %)

(Note b) (Hztb) - 1,325 - - 1,325
Mr. He Shufen (Note c) %5 (Hatc) - 1,100 - 98 1,198
Mr. Zeng Hongbo (Note d) AR (Mitd) - 77 = 8 785
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUHE{TEE
Mr. Zheng Bailin Pamts 231 - - - 231
Mr. Shen Ruolei REBEE 231 - = = 231
Mr. Pun Chi Ping i peR ke 231 = = = 21

693 10,226 - 118 11,037
Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the Directors waived RAFEERBESRE  UERFETHASR
any emoluments during the current year and prior period. M EFREEMEH -
During the current year and prior period, no emoluments were RAFERBAHRB  NEEMEINE
paid by the Group to any of the Directors as an inducement AIEHM T ERES  EAMAREE M
to join or upon joining the Group as compensation for loss of AREER RS S ERBERME -
office.
Notes: HitaE -
(a)  The discretionary bonus is determined by reference to the individual (a) MWBREANZEEFIESERASEBER
performance of the Directors and performance of the Group as a WIMETE °
whole.
(b)  Resigned on 27 February 2020. b) RZBE-ZF_A-+tHBE-
(c) Retired on 28 June 2019. (c) RZZE—hEA-+/N\BEMFE-
(d)  On 1 July 2018, Mr. Zeng Hongbo is appointed as an executive d) RZT—NFtA—H BAREERZE
director and chief risk officer of the Company and resigned on 14 ERNTESRARTHEERALEE - ¥R
April 2020. —ZEZFMATIHERHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS...
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13. E5 - T ETHAEBREEZ

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as Directors.

Employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, there were four (period from 1 April 2018 to
31 December 2018: five) directors whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the one
non-directors individual are disclosed for the current year. The
emoluments of Mr. Zeng Hongbo of RMB418,000 prior to his
appointment as director of the Company for the period from 1
April 2018 to 31 December 2018 were as follows:

A (48)
EEREETRAR(H)

ERRTEEZHFHERFEREEARA]
RASENEHEMER 2 REHRE -

EBYERTEFTZHFMERSIERE
ERHEZRBER -

(==

AEEBRERSFMALH  BENA(Z
T-NEFNA—HBHE-_ZTE—NEFE+=A8
=t+— BB BR)EE - HENFH
REERE - AFE—RBEESALTZH
E FUFE -  BAREEE T —N\F
MA—BE=FE—N\F+=ZA=1+—H0H
W EEZEERNAREZERINEHFHNAA
R#418,0007T * #F1BWT ¢

1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hEF —E2-N\F
—H—H mHA—H
ETE-RE =T )\F
+=ZA=+—8 +=—HA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Salaries and other allowances e M EAERL 1,631 414
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  RKEFIETEIHE R 16 4
1,647 418
159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RABRREEERERREEEE TR
attributable to shareholders of the Company is based on the B TR E RS

following data:

1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—g-nE —T-NF
—A—H MA—H

E-B-AE E-T)\F
t+=A=+-B t=A=t+—A8
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETE

Loss BE
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted FARFTESIREARL#EER
loss per share (loss for the year/period 2B (AR A i R (Y

attributable to shareholders of the FEHMER)
Company) (644,710) (388,926)
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
+=A=+-8 +-H=+—A
Number of shares RGOEE
Weighted average number of shares for ~ AR EFIER M EEIE 2
the purposes of basic and diluted A7 I T 15 88
loss per share 60,891,859 60,669,200
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume SRBEEE e AT ERRE A
the conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible NEEkEE Y ABRRES  BEEAEZE
bonds since their assumed conversion would have anti-dilutive BEHEZRREBLESAFERBTEHEAE
impact for the current year and prior period. REES o
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume SRBEER Y ETERRITEAR
the exercise of the Company’s share options because the NEIERE EEAZEHBEITEE
exercise price of those options was higher than the average RAEE REEBRESRRN 2 EEYTES -

market price for shares for the current year and prior period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BMERRE

Plant Furniture  Computer
and and  and office Motor Construction-
Buildings  machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles  in-progress Total
RAR )
BEY  ERERESE EE#E HAZRG HE ERIR &zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETR
cost 72
At 1 April 2018 RZB-\FHNA-A 756,862 738,283 37,660 63,409 35,998 43537 1,675,789
Additions NE 39,570 108,945 12 2192 7,113 210,454 368,395
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 48(a)) YR HIB A 7 (Hiz48(2) = = 175 29 108 185,197 185,509
Reclassification EFiar 21,785 = = = = (21,785) =
Disposals e - (7.915) (209 (244) (497) - (8,865)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 48(b))  HEMBRA(H:248b)) = = = 21 = = 21)
Exchange adjustment BriAE 1,843 11,907 635 1,942 51 - 16918
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+-A=+-H 820,060 851,220 38,382 67,307 43,313 417,403 2,231,685
Impact on initial adoption of MR E BB RE
HKFRS 16 (note 3.1) F16R 2 FB(31) - (32,379) - - - - (32,379
At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZE-NE-A—H(EE5) 820,060 818,841 38,382 67,307 43,313 417,403 2,205,306
Additions NE 162,696 19,699 7479 6,796 1,509 257,045 455,224
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 48(a) W(ERHIBA 7 (Hii48(2) 81,630 7,366 218 1,504 235 72,439 163,392
Reclassification from properties ER{ELENZENHE
held for sale - - - - - 220,500 220,500
Disposals e (1,745) (7,163) (291) (472) (4,880) - (14,551)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 48(b)) L EMBAR(H17#48(b)) - - - 0] - (1,189) (1,190)
Exchange adjustment R AR 4,317 7,567 267 1,001 225 1,328 14,705
At 31 December 2019 R=E-NE+-A=+-H 1,066,958 846,310 46,055 76,135 40,402 967,526 3,043,386
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ B3tERH(E
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\¥EA-A 186,101 477,862 27,644 50,739 14,381 7,866 764,593
Provided for the period HREE 36,791 36,852 3,168 4353 5142 - 86,306
Disposals LE - (5,606) (42 (98) (240) - (5,986)
Impairment loss recognised RERERZHESE
in profit or loss 17,285 51,414 = = = = 68,699
Derecognition upon disposals o~ PHEMBAFEA LB
subsidiaries (note 48(b)) (Kit48)) = = = (19) = = (19)
Exchange adjustment AR 1,822 11,457 576 1,375 591 - 15,821
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+-A=+-H 241,999 571,979 31,346 56,350 19,874 7,866 929,414
Impact on initial adoption of MR hEBoHHEER
HKFRS 16 (note 3.1) F16ncFE(31) - (1,236) S = S S (1,236)
At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZE-NE-A—-B(&E5)) 241,999 570,743 31,346 56,350 19,874 7,866 928,178
Provided for the year EREE 34,340 34,665 5177 5,304 7,524 - 87,010
Disposals e (1,745) (6,202) (101) (436) (1,253) - (9,737)
Exchange adjustment R 2,723 6,013 237 821 157 = 9,951
At 31 December 2019 W_E-NF+-A=1-H 277,317 605,219 36,659 62,039 26,302 7,866 1,015,402
CARRYING VALUES BHEE
At 31 December 2019 R-B-AE+-A=t-H 789,641 241,091 9,396 14,096 14,100 959,660 2,027,984
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\F+ZA=1-H 578,061 219,241 7,036 10957 23,439 409537 1,308,271
—E-NFR 161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

162

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, on a straight-
line basis, over the following period:

Buildings 20-50 years
Plant and machinery 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Computer and office equipment 5-6 years
Motor vehicles 5-6 years

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all of the buildings are
situated in the PRC and held under medium term leases.

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018,
the Directors conducted a review of the Group's property,
plant and equipment and determined that a number of
assets are impaired, due to the suspension of a solar product
manufacturing plant and the proposed relocation of certain
solar photovoltaic production facilities to other factories in
the PRC. The recoverable amount of the property is subject
to impairment as at 31 December 2018 and was based on a
valuation using the deprecated replacement cost approach
carried out by an independent qualified valuer, LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited (the “LCH"). The recoverable
amount of the machinery and equipment are expected
to be minimal with reference to the second-hand market
and residual value. Accordingly, impairment losses of
RMB68,699,000 had been recognised in profit or loss. At 31
December 2019 the directors reassessed the recoverable
amount of the property with reference to valuation carried
out neither additional impairment loss nor reversal of
impairment loss has been recognised for the year ended 31
December 2019. The recoverable amount of the machinery
and equipment remains minimal as at 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the directors of the
Company conducted a review of the Group’s other property,
plant and equipment based on the higher of their value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. No impairment loss was
recognised based on the results of the review.

15. 9% - BERKRE(E)

EWE - BERREEE S R
FIAE A E 5 T A SR ER
EIRA TR

D) 20Z 505
BB R 52 102154
RARBEERE SE10%
BRI AERME SE6F
_E 5E6%F

RZBE—NFER=ZFT-N\FF+_A=+—
A FrEREYHUNTREITAFHAE
#E -

RZEB-NFHA-RAE_ZE-N\F+=
A=+—BHRE EFEAEENYE
BEREREETERN YEETETEED
E - REAREE —EAGEEMBER
EREHEETAGRECREEREE
EHREAEMIHE - R_T—-N\F+-A
=t—R - WEZAREEEEETH
B RBL G BB G E AT E
BRAR(IMEITHERERANEER
RAEEITRE - BRE2EE_FmH LT
BREE BAMESRREBZATREEER
Ei e Bt - ERBERERBEBEA
R #68,699,0007T - R_ZE—NF+_H
=t—R EX2RMETHHREENFT
HZMENATREMEE  REE_Z—N
FT-A=T B ILFEAL BRI
EERXBEERRERD R_F—-hF
T-A=1+—8  #SIZEkRENTRES
BEREM -

BE_ZT-NF+-_A=+—HLFE -
ARAEEREEREERATFENRS
EROERAE - RAKRBEEMBYE - BE
NMBREEITER - REFMERALEER
BIEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain properties
classified as held for sale with a carrying amount of
RMB220,500,000 were reclassified to property, plant and
equipment as a result of finalisation of development plan
where these properties will become hotels and entertainment
park to be operated by the Group itself.

Property, plant and equipment with a total carrying amount
of RMB707,938,000 (31 December 2018: RMB452,237,000) has
been pledged to secure bill payables and borrowings of the
Group as at 31 December 2019 (note 52).

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying value of plant and
machinery includes an amount of RMB31,143,000 in respect of
assets held under finance leases (note 33).

15.

M~ MmN E(E)

BE-_T-hEF+-—A=1+—HALEFE"
ARTE(E /& A R #220,500,0007t )& FE 5
BERARFEHENENER IBEDE K
EE#E  REARBERISCRKEE
ZEVEREXRSBEHAEEEFEEN
IR R E R%EE o

ME - - BERKBZHAEMEEARE
707,938,000t (ZFE—NF+=ZA=+—
H : AR¥452,237,0007T) * RZE—H
F+-A=+—HEEALSEEREN
ERRER B (HIFE52) -

R-BE-NE+-A=1+—8 BEL#
BNEAECERERENESANEE
AER#31,143,0007T (FH5E33) ©

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FANHEERIE
31.12.2018
—E-N\F
+=-A=+—8
RMB'000
AREFIT

Analysed for reporting purpose: y=1eeka a= R0 rdoay ig

— Current assets —RENEE 8,106
— Non-current assets —JEmBEE 302,247
310,353

At 31 December 2018, prepaid lease payments amounting to
RMB224,965,000 had been pledged to secure bill payables
and borrowings of the Group (note 52).

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, the carrying
amount of prepaid lease payments of RMB310,353,000 was
reclassified to right-of-use assets.

—B-NER

R-ZE—-N\E+-_A=+—8 EFNEE
FIBS A ARME224,965,0007C © B 1EA
NEEEEENZERER 2R (M
52) °

RIE-NF— A —BRBETEVBRS
ERIF16571L - ANEERENREEA
R #310,353,000 L EF D A REREE
&= o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

164

17. REY

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
g2%T TE
REW* REMFE Y
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTFTT ARBETFT ARETTT
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—-NFMHA—H 402,320 5,022,460 5,424,780
Additions NE - 90,751 90,751
Disposals & (11,771 = (11,771)
Additions through acquisition of  FERWEWN B A GIRE
subsidiaries (note 48(a)) (Kf5E48(a)) 118,600 = 118,600
Change in fair value of investment & ¥ 2 AN F{EEE)
properties 7,651 184,364 192,015
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—N\F
+=ZA=+—~” 516,800 5,297,575 5,814,375
Additions NE - 523,614 523,614
Disposal e (119,350) - (119,350)
Change in fair value of investment &Y% 2 A FEEE)
properties (450) 238,395 237,945
Reclassification to properties BRHBEERIELEME
held for sale - (1,593,434) (1,593,434)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—N&F
+=A=t+—H 397,000 4,466,150 4,863,150

All of these investment properties are under medium-term
leases in the PRC.

The Group commenced the property development of a parcel
of land of which a portion of it is expected to be held for sale.
Accordingly, it results in a transfer from investment properties
to properties held for sale. On the date of reclassification,
the fair value of the investment properties of approximately
RMB1,593,434,000 (2018: nil) at the date of transfer becomes
the deemed cost for subsequent accounting of the properties
held for sale.

The fair values of the Group’'s investment properties as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018, and as at the date of
reclassification, have been arrived at on the basis of valuations
carried out on the date by LCH. The valuer is a firm of
independent qualified valuers not connected with the Group
and have the appropriate qualifications and recent experience
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

gl

FEZEREMETINTEIATHEER
5 o

ANEBFEB BN ERRE - Mt
W—HHEASFELE - A E s
BREMEERERELEYWE - REN
DEER  BREVMEZAFEHNARE
1,593,434,0007C( = F — )\ F © £ ) A8
EAHEABHEAIEBIELEMEARZK
z]go

AEEREMER-_Z-—NFR=ZF—N
FHt_A=T-BERREHFNRAHZL
FETDERMEITRZ A HETNHES
e ZAEMREASERERE BT
BERMGEN  XAFEERER  BHHE
B FAMESIRMHERLR -
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NTS....

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWE(E)

Investment properties are measured at fair values for
financial reporting purpose. In estimating the fair value of an
investment property, the Group uses market observable data
to the extent it is available. The Group engages independent
qualified professional valuers to perform the valuation. The
management of the Group works closely with the valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model. The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market data to
estimate the fair value of investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of these investment properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s completed investment
properties carried at fair value of RMB317,300,000 (31
December 2018: RMB398,200,000) and investment properties
under construction at fair value of RMB4,466,150,000 (31
December 2018: RMB5,297,575,000) have been pledged to
secure bill payables and borrowings of the Group (note 52).

As at 31 December 2019, completed investment properties
at fair value of RMB25,800,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB122,610,000) were arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in
the same locations and conditions. As at 31 December
2019, completed investment properties at fair value of
RMB371,200,000 (31 December 2018: RMB394,190,000) were
arrived at based on either the income approach or market
comparison approach, where for leased area the average
monthly rent of all lettable units of the properties are assessed
and discounted at the market yield expected by investors
for these type of properties. The average monthly rentals
are assessed by reference to a long term rental agreement
entered with a tenant for all lettable units of the properties.
The discount rate is determined by reference to the yields
derived from analysing the sales transactions of similar
commercial properties in a land and adjusted to take into
account the market expectation from property investors to
reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment properties.

For vacant area, the fair value were arrived at by reference to
mark as evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in
the same locations and conditions.

—B-NER

HRBMBHRER N REWER A FER
B BRI RENENQFER  AKH
RAMSABENREE - AREER
BYABEBREEMEMETHRE A&H
EEERMHEMEYAE  LAZRILEZE
VABNBEERBABE - ARERA
MEEEER Y IFERABREMZHEN
BABUE - WEFHREMERNAFE

FEfb R A ME D TEN - NENS
BREEARALREAE -

R-ZZE—hhE+-_A=+—H8  K&EH
ZERIKENMEDNRLAFEARYE
317,300,000 ( = E—N\F+-_A=+—
B : AR#398,200,0007T) %8R © MEiE
BEMENRFERARY4L,466,150,000
T(ZE—N\F+-_A=1+—H: AR¥
5,297,575,0007C) © B A {EA % EEEE
NEBERERZ R (H5E52)

W_ZE—h&E+-_A=+—HB B2%&T
ZIEWEZNFE AR 25800000
T(ZE—NFF+ZA=+—8: AR%
122,610,0007T ) T3 2 Z 1A [E — o B R AR
WEEYME IR SBERHOTSBZRME
HoRN-_E—AFE+-A=+—0 2%
T2 EMEZ A FEAR371,200,000
T(ZE—NFFTZA=+—8: AR%
394,190,0007T ) WA E S T IS L BUE (1R
THEME)ER - MZEMENA A
MABEGMFELZ ARSI REEEZ
SHE Y 2 T8 AR A0 T 5 U aR R VERT A TR B
e FHBARSIRZEDEMEAH
RSS2 EHAR AT YHERES
R ETE c MREDE2EGDT—IE
THREEREMENHEERIEENK
HERBET  WEARUGTRDELRESE
WMSHE - UREAREBNIEEYE
NS EER -

EREBRE  ATEDZ2EELRIER

WERRENEENE IR ZEREEM
EE -
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17.

166

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, investment properties under
construction with aggregate fair values of RMB2,076,000,000
(31 December 2018: RMB1,936,675,000) were arrived at based
on the residual approach, where the gross development values
are determined by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices for similar properties in the same locations and
conditions. The valuations have further taken into account the
accrued construction cost and professional fees relevant to the
stage of construction as at the valuation date, the remainder of
the cost and fees expected to be incurred for completing the
development and developer’s profit margin.

For the remaining investment properties under construction
with a fair value of RMB2,390,150,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB3,360,900,000) as at 31 December 2019, the management
reviewed the construction status of the buildings and
structures of the subject investment properties and considered
that no market sales comparable was readily available for such
preliminary stage of construction. Therefore, the fair value was
arrived at by reference to the market value for the existing
use of the land, plus the current costs of construction, less
deductions for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of
obsolescence and optimisation.

17. REWE(E)

RZZE—hE+_A=+—8 #QF
1B/ AR#2,076,000,0007T( =T — N\F
+=—A=+—8: AR%1,936,675,000
TL)MTERR B EETISRRER - MEARH
BEEIE2ERRE 2 BRI EE
MEZRHBEEROMEER - BEHER
A E R E B R E LR AR
T EERNAREXER - BHRTEAE
RIEBEBTEENEBRKARRE AU KRE
BEEFIR -

MN-ZE—-hAE+-_A=+—0 E#ER
wEMEZ A FERBARY2,390,150,000
T(ZFE—N\F+ZA=1+—H: AR¥
3,360,900,0007T) * BEEECEHEEY
WIETIBENREBMIEEMENLEE TR
ARV S IE TR EAZENTS
HERHLEREAR - At - Z2AFEHES
ELIRERBAOME  MERBREER
AR A E R R AT BT R A RE
MECTER -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. REWE(E)

Details of the Group's investment properties and information R NER_Z—N\F+_A=+—
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2019 and ANAEEIREYERAFERRERD
2018 are as follows: HIB0WT
Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 3 2019
R-E-IF
+=ZA=+—8
F=% ZAFE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARET
Commercial units located in the PRC MRz SN 4,785,350 4,785,350
Residential units located in the PRC NP Z (FF B 77,800 77,800
4,863,150 4,863,150
Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 3 2018
RZE—N\F
+=—A=1+—H
E=M /NS
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
Commercial units located in the PRC AR E 2 EEEN 5,736,575 5,736,575
Residential units located in the PRC RLFAFR R 2 1 iz 77,800 77,800
5,814,375 5,814,375
—E-NFR 167
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWE(E)

Recurring fair value measurement REMATVETE

The following tables give information about how the fair values TRARRINAEEZEREVENR_T
of these investment properties as at 31 December 2019 and —NERZZE-NF+A=+—HBHA
2018 are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques B (R R FTER AR EE B ASE)
and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which WER - URBRBRAFETEBAZIEDY
the fair value measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) ABEEEHATEFEETHENRT
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value BER(E—ZE=H) -

measurements is observable.

Relationship of
Fair value Significant significant unobservable
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
EXFTBE
A¥E AYEESR  fER EXTTERRARE BAHBEATECER
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ZE-nf ZE)\E
tZA=t-B TZA=1-E
RMB'000 RMB000
AEBTR  ARETR
Investment properties under 2,390,150 3,360,900 Level 3 Market approach Market unit sale rate per square  Assignificant increase in the
construction located at Minhang E i meter of the land, after taking ~ market unit sale rate would
District, Shanghai, the PRC into account usage life, the resultin a significant increase in
e HEHRTEL location and size factors, at fair value, and vice versa
EERENF RMB22,200 (31 December 2018:  TAENEEABENFEN

RMB21,400) per square meter  ATEAEEM - Rz %
SPAKZLHTRENER

BEERREY LEREER

% BBYREARER20T
(ZB-NE+zA=t-8:A

REN400T) -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurement (Continued)

17. REWE(E)

NTS....

REMDTPEFEE)

Relationship of
Fair value Significant significant unobservable
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
EXFTBE
A¥E AYEESR  fER EXTTERRALE BAHBEATECER
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
B0 CE)E
tZfA=t-R TZA=t-8
RMB'000 RMB000
AR¥TR  ARETR
Investment properties under 2,076,000 1936675 Level 3 Residual approach Market unit sale rate at Asignificant increase in the
construction located at the south- 228 R RMBI7,800-25,500 (31 market unit sale rate would
eastern side of the junction of December 2018: RMB16,400- result in a significant increase in
Titan Road and Zhongshan Road, 19,000) per square meter fair value, and vice versa

Shahekou District, Dalian City,
Liaoning Province, the PRC

RPEEEEAETYANR
BEREDLRRRREHL
ERRENZ

—B-NER

BYFATRENERARY
17800825507 (ZE-\&
A8 ARE16400
TE19,00072)

Estimated cost to complete
amounted to approximately
RMB681,711,000 (31 December
2018: RMB543,059,000)

[HRTRANA
ARE681,711,0007C
(ZE-NE+ZA=t-R:
AR¥543,09,0007)

Expected developer s profit
margin at 15% (31 December
2018: 20%)

FRERRATZA15%
(ZE-NE+ZA=t-R:
20%)

AN EEARRNAEN
APEAREN  RZITA

Asignificant increase in the cost
to complete would result in
a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa
RIRARBENREY
RFEARES - R2HR

Aslight increase in the expected
profit would result in a
significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa

BEENEN L REEATER
BT R
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurement (Continued)

17. REWE(E)

REMDTPEFEE)

Relationship of
Fair value Significant significant unobservable
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
EATTRE
ATE AVEER  fHER EAFTRERALE BABBRATEZBR
31 December 31 December
2019 218
ZE-nf ZE)\E
T2Azt-A tZA=1-H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARETR
Investment properties located at 239,500 250,100 Level3 Income approach Average monthly rent at RMBA6  Asignificant increase in the
No. 4, Sanba Square, =4 WA per square meter (31 December  monthly rent would result in a

Zhongshan District, Dalian City,

Liaoning Province, the PRC
i EEEL AETRLE

SN\BARRENE

170

2018: RMB4 per square value,
meter) based on existing rental
contract.

BERRRY SATOHLA
FYARARB6OT
(ZB-NFTZA=t-R:
SYAREEARRMT) -

Market yield at 3%-5%
(31 December 2018: 3%-6%).
TAEAEA%E
(ZB-N\Er2A=t-R:
3%Z6%) -

significant increase in fair value
and vice versa

SRREABEMAEHATE
AR RZFR

Aslight decrease in the market
yield would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa

TARRFEHTHREHATE
AEEN - R
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NTS....

17. REY=(A)
ERMATESR(E)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurement (Continued)

Relationship of
Fair value Significant significant unobservable
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
EATTRE
ATE AVEER  fhER EAFTRERALE BABBRAVEZBE
31 December 31 December
2019 218
ZE-nf ZE)\E
T2AZt-A tZA=1-H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARETR
Commercial units located at Jincan 9,000 8400 Level 3 Income approach/market Income approach: Average Asignificant increase in the
Garden, Xiong Yue Town, =B comparison approach monthly rent at RMBB monthly rent would result in a
Yingkou City, Liaoning province, WA/ TRLLEE (31 December 2018: RMB8) per  significant increase in fair value
the PRC square meter based in existing ~ and vice versa
HhEERAEITREEER rental contract SREEARENPEHATE
TEZBREN WAE: 8RTHES : AR RZFR

—B-NER

BERERNART A
ARMST(-F-NE
TZR=1-R: ARKST)

Market yield: 5.7%-6.7%
(31 December 2018: 6.5%-8.6%)
THERE : 5.7%26.7%
(ZF-N\F+zA=1-B:
6.5%28.6%)

Market comparison method:
Market unit sale rate:
RMBA,100-6,600 (31 December
2018: RMBA,500-5,840) per
square meter

TsabRE : MRENER
FYIRARBLI00TE
660T(—E-N\E+-A
=t-R: ABBS0RE
58407

Aslight decrease in the market
yield would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa

TARRFEHTHREHATE
AEEN - R

Asignificant increase in the
market unit sale rate would
result in a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa

ThELEBARENEEN
AFEAEEM - R MR
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurement (Continued)

17. REWE(E)

REMDTPEFEE)

Relationship of
Fair value Significant significant unobservable
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
EXTUEE
AVE AVEER bR EXTIEERARE BAMBRAYEBE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
M RN
tZB=t-B TZA=1-E
RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARETR
Commercial units located at the 44,900 45500 Level 3 Income approach/market Income approach: Average Asignificant increase in the
middle of Kunlun Street, =0 comparison approach monthly rent at RMB156 (31 monthly rent would result in a
Bayuguan District, WAL/ TR December 2018: RMB152) per  significant increase in fair value
Liaoning province, square meter based on existing  and vice versa
the PRC value, rental contract GRABSRBENEERATH
AR EEHABERAAGT WAL BTHREATHRER  ABEN RIAR
RZBREN ERRRNOERRARES6T

172

(Z5-N\Ft-A=+-B:
AE®1527)

Market yield rate at 5.7%- 8.2% (31
December 2018: 6.5%-8.6%)

TRERE : 5.7%28.2%
(ZE-N\E+zpzt-R:
6.5%28.6%)

Market comparison method:
Market unit sale rate at
RMB4,100- 6,600 (31 December
2018: RMB4,500-5,850) per
square meter

AlEE  MEENEES
SYARAREL100TE
66007 (ZE-NE+2A
=1—H - ARB4 507
35,8507)

Aslight decrease in the market
yield would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa

TEEREEH TR ERATE
KM - R 2T

Asignificant increase in the
market unit sale rate would
resultin a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa

mHENEEARENEEN
DFEAREN kAR
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurement (Continued)

17. REWE(E)

NTS....

REMDTPEFEE)

Relationship of
Fair value Significant significant unobservable
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
EXFUEE
AYE AYEER  fER EXTTBREARE BAMBRATEEE

31 December 31 December
2019 218
B0 ZE)E
tZAzt-8 tZA=t-H
RMB'000 RMB000
AR¥TR  ARETIL

Office units and commercial units 25,800 118,600 Level3 Market comparison approach ~ Market unit sale rate at Asignificant increase in the
located at Liangxi District, =4 LAV RMB24,300 (31 December 2018:  market unit sale rate would
Wauxi City, Jiangsu Province, RMB24,000) per square meter resultin a significant increase in
the PRC BEAATEENERA fair value, and vice versa

IENECES TR ARBUNT(ZE-NF  WAENERARENREY
BARENREEEL +ZA=1-R: RFEAREN R

ARE24,0007T)

Residential units located in Shenzhen 77,800 77800 Level3 Income approach/Market Income approach: Average Asignificant increase in the
City, Guangdong Province, E comparison approach (31 monthly rent at RMB103 per monthly rent would result in a
the PRC December 2018: Market square meter significant increase in fair value,

frAPEERE R (B comparison approach) (31 December 2018: N/A) and vice versa

WA/ TR R WAL BATHEEETAR  BAREABENAEHATE

—B-NER

(ZE-N\EtzA=t-R:
MEEE)

AREI03L( 25— N\&
t2A=1-B:7ER)

Market yield rate at 3.9%
(31 December 2018: N/A)
TAERER (25N
+tZAZ1-B: T#ER)

Market comparison approach:
Market unit sale rate from
RMBA44,400 to RMB 45,700
(31 December 2018: RMBA4,500)
per square meter

A E -

L
FYARARBMANTE
ARES, 7007
(ZF-N\E+zpzt-R:
ARE4,507)

AR RZFA

Aslight decrease in the market
yield would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa

TR T RERATE
KBS - R 2T

Asignificant increase in the
market unit sale rate would
resultin a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa

nEELEBARENFER
RFEAREN R
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REMR(E)
Recurring fair value measurement (Continued) BEMAFEFEE)
Relationship of
Fair value Significant significant unobservable
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
EXTTEE
ATE AVEER AR EAFTRERALE BABBRAVEZBE
31 December 31 December
2019 218
ZE-nf ZE)\E
T2Azt-A tZA=1-8
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR
Commercial units located at Jinfeng - 16400 (31 December (31 December 2018: Average monthly rent at Asignificant increase in the
Guesthouse, Sanjiazi Community, 2018: Level 3] Income approach) (31 December 2018: RMB67) per  monthly rent would result in a
Bayuguan District, (3-8 (23 )& square meter based on existing ~~ significant increase in fair value
Liaoning provinc, the PRC 2R TZAZT-RA:lAE)  value, rental contract and vice versa
RPERERGABE=FTHE =t BEARRNRE §RTOES SRRLARENFEHATE
SRR AREN #=8) ACE-NEtZA=t-R:  ABEN k2R
FYARARESIT)
Market yield at Aslight decrease in the market

(31 December 2018:6.5%-8.6%)  yield would resultin a
TRERER(ZE-N\ETZA significant increase in fair value,
ZT-H:65%286%) and vice versa
AR TR ERATE
AEEM - R2F%

4,863,150 5814375

All the market unit sale rate and rental adopted above have Pt AR E IS EMNEBLRESH
been determined after taking into account the location, size RN E BREAZE HERAEERE
factor, layout and floor. T o
There was no transfer among the three levels of the fair value RAEERBASRE  —@AAFEER Y
hierarchy during the current year and prior period. R fE IR o
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18. GOODWILL 18. &
RMB'000
ARET T
cosT A
At 1 April 2018, 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE—)\FWA—H -
and 31 December 2019 —E-N\F+ZA=+—H8HK
ZE-NAF—HA—BRk
—E-AF+-_A=+—H 13,933
IMPAIRMENT WE
At 1 April 2018 R_E—-N\FMA—H -
Impairment loss recognised during the period HARNIER Z R EEE 5,846
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 and RZE—N\F+ZA=+—A8XK
31 December 2019 —E-NF-HA-HBRK
—E-NF+ZA=+—H 5,846
CARRYING VALUE BRE{E
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-—HAE+=-A=+—H 8,087
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H 8,087

BBEARMNE - mEEOEEZMEER
ReEtEU([REELEM]) B
KGREAREFERERRBER - R=F
—hEFER-_F-N\F+-_A=+—80 &
BEEEMNRRFREBR) DEET

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill have been
allocated to two individual cash generating units ("CGUs"),
comprising solar photovoltaic business and financial
services business. The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of
accumulated impairment losses) as at 31 December 2019 and

2018 allocated to this unit are as follows: Bl BT -
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
t=A=+—-B +t=A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥E T ARBFIT
Financial services & B AR % 8,087 8,087
8,087 8,087
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18.

19.

176

GOODWILL (Continued)

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018,
the closure of a solar photovoltaic manufacturing factory
and proposed relocation of production facilities resulted
in a net loss for the operating segment. Accordingly, the
Directors have consequently determined impairment of
goodwill directly related to Solar photovoltaic amounting
to RMB5,846,000 and recognised in the profit or loss for the
period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors
determine that there is no impairment of its CGU of financial
services business.

18.

e (E)
R_E—N\FNA—HE-_ZT—N\F+=
A=+—HH/E - *ﬂﬁ% g IRELET
BEIEEERBEZEVEEREERLE
7 ﬁﬁléﬁé}%%‘ﬁ o At EEHUERE
EARGEAREEREOEEREARE

5,846,000t R —_E—\FMH/—HBHEZ
E-NF+ A=+ BHENESET®E

e

BE_Z-NFT_A=+—HLFE"
EEETHESRRBEBNRSELENM
BLERE ©

CLUB MEMBERSHIP 19. SFTE%
31.12.2018
—ET-N\#F
+=-—A=+—H
RMB'000
ARBT T
Balance at the beginning of year/period & “Hi# &4 1,701
Disposal e (1,701)
Balance at the end of year/period FHRE =

The club membership with indefinite useful lives is stated at
cost less impairment loss and is tested for impairment annually
whenever there is an indication of impairment.

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018, the
club membership had been disposed of at a consideration
of RMB1,638,000. The loss on disposal of club membership
amounting to RMB63,000 had been recognised in profit or
loss.

BEETEERFRZEMER/URANRE
BEBEZS - XN HIRETRERF
EITRERIR -

R-ZE—N\EFNA—HBHE-_Z—N\F+=
A=+—BHH ¢mgBoRREBEAR
#51,638,000T N E o HERFTEHEZEE
AR#63,00070 5 RIBZSHER ©
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20. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

20. R—EBE QR 2 ER

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

+=ZA=+—8 +ZHA=+—H

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥ETF T ARBTT

Cost of investment in an associate & — A E AR Z KA 18,000 18,000
Share of post-acquisition profits and AMEWEE & T &

other comprehensive income Hih 2EWA 11,213 10,400

Total B ET 29,213 28,400

Details of the Group's associate at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

AEBBERNRRNRERRARZFBOT ¢

Country of Principal place Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity establishment  of business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
EiRtR RIfERR  TEERUE AREFEAARRE 2 A AREFRGRAEZASY  IERR
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NF E-N\E ZE-0F I\
tZAZt-R TZA=t-B +ZB=t-R tIA=1-H
Liaoning BF Exchange Financial PRC PRC 20% 2% 20% 20% Transaction of wealth products,
Assets Exchange Co,, Limited # M bond products, entrustment

EELTEREERSTL
BRAR

Note:

On 30 November 2018, the Group had entered into a share repurchase
agreement with Candice Group Limited (“Candice Group”), pursuant
to the agreement, Candice Group had agreed to repurchase the
remaining equity interests held by the Group in full at a consideration of
HK$532,000 (equivalent to RMB465,000) and subject to the condition that
Candice Group settled the outstanding amount owing to the Group of
approximately HK$7,392,000 (equivalent to RMB 6,484,000).

Upon the completion of the above transaction on 7 December 2018,
loss on disposal of RMB8,637,000 had been recognised in profit or loss
and the corresponding interest in the associate of RMB9,102,000 was

derecognised.

—B-NER

credit right products and

logistics finance products
BifEn ErER ZRERE

ERRMReREERIRG

et

RZTE—N\FE+—A=+H "EFHEFERBK
SEAERAR([FEBRFEERDITURGEER
& BERE  ERNBEEREELEASEMR
FAENBT2IRE - KB /532,000% T(HER
AR¥465,0007T) « ARFFERREEBEESE RN
EEMNAREBRIELN7,392,0008 T (HERARE
6,484,0007T) £ AEE ©

RZB-N\F+-AtATERLERPE - HEE

BARKES,637,0007C B RIBRHER - WHUH RN
&N 8] 2 AEfE Rz A R #9,102,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

21.

178

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. RE8EER
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-nE —E—N\F
+=-A=+-8B +=-BA=+—A8
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Cost of investments in joint ventures KESELEZKAK - 6,100
Details of each of the Group's joint ventures at the end of the REBEASLDENBEIR K BN
reporting period are as follows: T
Country of Principal place Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity establishment  of business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
L1E1 RUFEER  TRERME  FREFRFRREEZEOL AREFSRABZAN  IEER
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
&0 CF\E ZE-AE SRR
tZA=t-B tZA=t-B +ZRA=t-B +ZA=t-H
Nanjing Bao Heng Real Estate ~ PRC PRC 51% 51% 50% 50% Inactive
Development Co, Ltd. (Notea) HF hE TREK
BRRERMERIBRAA L)
Huajun Automobile (Jiangsu) PRC PRC Note b 49% Note b 50% Inactive
Co, Ltd. (Note b E et Hib fitb EREH
R NE(IH) BRRAWED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 26 April 2018, Bao Hua Properties (China) Co., Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a strategic
cooperation framework agreement (the “Strategic Agreement”) with
Hengda Real Estate Group (Nanjing) Property Company Limited,
an independent third party, in relation to the formation and capital
contribution of Nanjing Bao Heng Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Nanjing Bao Heng"). Pursuant to certain terms and conditions
stated in the Strategic Agreement, the relevant activities of Nanjing
Bao Heng require unanimous approval from all joint venture
partners. Nanjing Bao Heng is jointly controlled by the Group and
another joint venture partner and, as such, it is accounted for as a
joint venture of the Group.

As the joint venture has not started business during the current year
and prior period, there is no share of profits/loss recognised to profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 (period from 1 April
2018 to 31 December 2018: Nil).

On 13 August 2018, Huajun Zhihui Energy Co., Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint venture
agreement (the “JV Agreement”) and contribution agreement with
an independent third party in relation to the formation and capital
contribution of Huajun Automobile (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as Hua Xin Development (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.) (“Huajun
Automobile”). Pursuant to certain terms and conditions stated in
the JV Agreement, the relevant activities of Huajun Automobile
require unanimous approval from all joint venture partners. Huajun
Automobile was jointly controlled by the Group and another joint
venture partner and, as such, it was accounted for as a joint venture
of the Group.

During the period from 1 January 2019 to 20 May 2019, share of loss
from joint venture of RMB216,000 (period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018: Nil) is recognised to profit or loss.

On 21 May 2019, the Group further acquired the remaining 51%
interest in Huajun Automobile and Huajun Automobile became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the group. Please refer to note 48(a) for
details.

—B-NER

21. REELEzER(E)

FifzE

(a)

(b)

RIB-NFHEA-+XE  ARANEE
MEARREBE(TE)BRARRBLSE
ZHEBARMEEE(BR)BEARAFFL
BRSAEIEZR Dok ([ BRE Hag ) - RB AR
MRREFHEREARAT(FHRRED
BRI BT E - RIBEBE B0 E T &
ARG ERRENERESAKLEBNRE
SECEBHN—BHE - MRRERAE
BRS—REbEBHLARES Bt B
ARIIEAREN A S -

MREERENAFERBESRIT RFHH
2% REBEE-Z-AF+-A=+—H
I FEI R B SRR REGEN,BE (R
—E-N\FHNA-RBRE-_ZE-N\F+_H
=t—HEE &) -

RZT—NENA+=8  AREHNZEHK
BAREEEERRERAREEIE=]
AVAZnEBA([6ERERR] kY
Bt NEBBERAECIFH)BERAT
(MERESCEXBEROIFARAR) ([F
BAREDORIRTE - REAELEDHH
FROIEE TR R - R UENRERE
PRAKBMAEAELEBHN AL - &
BAERAEERS AR LEBHEHER
o Bt EARIMEAKEN G ZDE -

RZE-—NE—A—BE=F—NEHA
—+EEE SHEECEBEAARY
216,000 (R=ZZT—NFMNA—BE=F
—NF+ZA=+—BHA  B)RNEFTP
TR °

RZBE-NFRAZ+—H  KEEE—F
WHEERTERT51%NEE - MERTE
KRAAEE2EWBAR - FEF2HME
48(a) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

22. DEPOSITS FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND 22. BEYXE BERRE £
EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS, HEE REVERBEREH
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND LEASEHOLD ExHEtThzizE
LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —E2-N\F
+=ZA=+—8 +=—A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Deposits for purchases or modification of: EESMENU NZIHAZ LS
— Plant and machineries — = K ikes 61,863 29,520
— Investment properties —REMHE 527,270 -
- Right-of-use assets/leasehold land — ([ FHERE, HE LT 60,754 120,500
Total 5t 649,887 150,020
Analysis as: DT -
Non-current JERNHEA 649,887 100,020
Current BN HA - 50,000
Total HET 649,887 150,020
As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of deposits RZE-NE+ZA=+—H BExN

180

for purchases or modification of plant and machineries, KWEkks REVERHEEL 2R
investment property and leasehold land includes: EHIREESE -

(a) Deposits totalling of RMB23,423,000 (31 December (a) BEBSHERERPEMEREED
2018: RMB7,630,000) for purchases of the machineries HWEREMIBEZZEEEARE
and other equipment, which will be used in its printing 23,423,000t (ZE—NE+ A
business in the PRC. =+—8 : AR#¥7,630,0007T) °

(b) Deposits totalling of RMB22,708,000 (31 December 2018: (b) BEENXNEFEHARERBG IR E
RMB21,890,000) for purchases or modification of several XN ETEESREBR 1%2?&
production lines and the relevant equipment, which &AL ARK2270800T (=T
will be used in its manufacturing of solar photovoltaic —NE+ZA=+—RH: AR¥
business. 21,890,0007T) °

(c) Deposits totalling of RMB 27,742,000 (31 December 2018: (00 —REELHWEERAREFREMNS
Nil) for a leasehold land and construction of plant, which HEKHBENEEZESAEEA
will be used in its automobile business in the PRC. R#27,742,000c( = —N\F+ =

B=1+—8:#)-
(d) Deposits totalling of RMB319,270,000 (31 December (d) FAR—EEZREVTHENEBER

2018: Nil) for a leasehold land which will be developed
into business services, commercial and logistic centre for
lease to generate rental income in the PRC.

i% Pﬁ%&%};MFIE\MEAEPIFE
HeW AMBEELwZIEEE LA
E#319,270,000(ZE—N\F+=
AR=+—8H:&)-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

22. DEPOSITS FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS,
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND LEASEHOLD
LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE
(Continued)

(e) Deposits totalling of RMB208,000,000 (31 December
2018: Nil) for the Dong Yin Building as an investment
property of the Group, details which are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 31 August 2018.

(f)  Deposits totalling of RMB48,744,000 (31 December 2018:
Nil) for purchases of a leasehold land, which will be used
in its manufacturing of solar photovoltaic business.

(90 As at 31 December 2018, deposits totalling of
RMB70,500,000 (31 December 2019: Nil) for purchases
of an hotel located at Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC.

(h) As at 31 December 2018, deposits totalling of
RMB50,000,000 (31 December 2019: Nil) for purchases
of a leasehold land located at Yingkou City, Liaoning
Province, the PRC, for development for sale.

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018, the
Group entered into machineries modification agreement with
a vendor, an independent third party residence in the PRC,
to enhance the productivity of certain machineries used in its
solar photovoltaic business. Deposits of RMB25,000,000 was
paid accordingly.

After the modification has been completed, the management
considered that the vendor fails to increase the productivity of
the machineries in accordance with the agreement.

Subsequent to the nine months period ended 31 December
2018, the vendor is found in severe financial difficulties.
Therefore, the Directors considered that such deposit is
not recoverable and an impairment of RMB25,000,000 was
recognised in profit or loss for the period from 1 April 2018 to
31 December 2018 (year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).

—B-NER

22.

() ARHERBAEXRSLAEE—
EREVMEZRZAHAARE
208,000,000t (=T = NF+ A
=t—R: &) FHFBEHERNE
ARBERR -_ZE-NFNANA=+—

Shp/N-C

H PIEBE—REELHITANER
EXGREAREREK 2REEH
AR ¥48,744,00070 ( =& — N\ 4F
+=ZA=+—8: &) -

(99 MNZTE-NF+-A=+—H B
BRI BT AN EEEZ
e a X ARY70,500,0007T( =&
—NF+ZA=1t—H:8\&) -

h RZTE-—NF+—A=+—H8 B
BN EEES SO MHAEER
EMHAELZREAHEARE
50,000,0007c (= ZE — A&+ = A
=t+—B:&)-

R_E—NFMA—BE-_ZT—\F+=
A=+—BH88  AEEHELAFTBENE
SE=ZHBERE M EERBURRE - AEoE
HABARREBFANSE THREBHEL -
Et B iEe AREE25,000,0007T ©

MBS - EEERBEN AR
BB HEE -

BBz —N\F+=ZA=+—8H1
NEAEE  BALBEREVBERE -
At - EERBEBEERSEZEKRE - I
RZE-—NFEA—BE_ZT—N\F
+_ A=+ —HHFEZBERREAR
# 25,000,000 (BRZE=—F—NLF+= A
=t+—HLtEFE: &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. RATFEFAEGZZ2EME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/DEBT E/RAFESTAHEMEZEK
INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH mZEKTE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
Listed equity securities, at fair value (note a) ~ tHRIEE % - WA F(EE
(Ffita) 10,024 13,509
Listed fund investments, at fair value (note b) FHHESHKRE - HAFEST
(Hfztb) 3,864 4,916
Unlisted fund investment, at fair value (note ¢) 3FLMESEKRE - WA FEST
(Hfzte) 35,815 45,373
Listed bond investments, at fair value ETEHFEE - BAFER
(note d) (Ktetd) 19,482 29,274
Unlisted bond investments, at fair value EFHMESRE  RATER
(note d) (Ktetd) 7,280 19,757
Unlisted investments in China Huacai, REBEEGFNIEETRE
at fair value (note e) BATER (Hate) S 154,470
Total et 76,465 267,299
Classified as: DR
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —E-N\EF
+=A=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREET T ARBFIT
Financial assets mandatorily measured at @& A FE ABETEZ
FVTPL SRAE 49,703 218,268
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BATESARMEAEKE Y
BEBITA 26,762 49,031
Total “a=t 76,465 267,299
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
e EIE:

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. AR EFAEGZEME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/DEBT E/IRAFEFAEMEZEK
INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH ROBKRIA(E)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Continued)
Analysed as: AIE
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF T )\F
+=-—B=+—-H8 +=—A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Financial assets mandatorily measured B#|IRAFEFABRFEZ

at FVTPL ctREE
Listed in Hong Kong REE LT 8,624 12,688
Listed in overseas SN TR 5,264 5,737
Unlisted in overseas RBINR LT 35,815 199,843
49,703 218,268
Current BNER 13,888 173,580
Non-current JERNER 35,815 44,688
Total 1Bzt 49,703 218,268
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
t=A=+—-B +t=A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥E T AREFIT

Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAFEFARMEEREZ

BEETAHE
Listed in overseas BN ETH 19,482 29,274
Unlisted in overseas BINK £ 7,280 19,757
26,762 49,031
Non-current JEENEA 26,762 49,031
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. &R
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/DEBT =/
INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH g
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Continued)

184

Notes: et

(a)  The basis of fair value measurement of listed equity securities (a) EHRENATEFEURERSE LTH
was quoted price of equity interest listed on the respective stock RERXGTISHRELER - RTEIIRE
exchange markets. The fair value was measured at Level 1 fair value —RATEFEFE(EERMTEA7(c)) 5t
measurement (as defined in note 47(c)). g -

(b)  The basis of fair value measurement of listed fund investments was (b) ITHESRENAFEAENEFH SR
based on the reference prices provided by counterparty financial BRUNSEBRAER - ATENKEZ
institutions. The fair value was measured at Level 2 fair value BAFEFEFTE(ERRMFA7()FE -
measurement (as defined in note 47(c)).

(c)  The basis of fair value measurement of unlisted fund investments (0) FEMESKRENATFEAEERBEE=
consisted of quotation provided by third parties which imply the use FIRHEHRE  HERERFAIBERTISHE
non-observable market information as significant inputs. The fair HESERBABE - XTFEDRE=ZARA
value was measured at Level 3 fair value measurement (as defined in FEEHE(EERMFA()TE °
note 47(c)).

(d)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has disposed (d) #HEZZ-AF+ZA=+—HLEEE &
bond investments at consideration of approximately RMB23,208,000 EEARELNARK?23,208,0007t(=ZF— N
(period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018: RMB17,830,000) FMA—BE-_ZE—N\FE+_A=+—HH
and the cumulative fair value loss of RMB1,814,000 (period from i AR#17,830,0007T) HEEHKRE -
1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018: RMB2,560,000) is reclassified from 25 RN EBEARKE1,814,000T(=F
investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss. —N\FHEA-BE-ZE-NE+=RA=+—

BHIM : AR%2,560,0007T) B 1% & EfE R
BEHHEEEH -
As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest rate of these R-ZZE—h&E+-_A=+—8 &%Ztm/
listed/unlisted bond investments is ranging from 6.6% to 9.2% (31 FETEERENEBREFNENF6.6%E
December 2018: 7.9% to 13.9%) per annum. The fair value of listed 92%(ZZFE—NF+=-A=+—H : 7.9%=
bond investments was measured at Level 1 fair value measurement 13.9%) o ETEHFRENRFEIRE—R
(as defined in note 47(c)). The basis of fair value measurement ANFEFEFE(EERNFA7(c)aTE 3
of unlisted bond is based on the reference prices provided by ETEFRRENATEUNEF S rmEER
counterparty financial institutions. The fair value was measured at HO2EERBER - RTFEDRE-RR
Level 2 fair value measurement (as defined in note 47(c)). FEFEHE(EERMFA ()2 °
(e) Prior to 1 April 2017, the Group subscribed for shares of China (e) R-ZE—tFWA—HA » XEEREP

Huacai Finance Equity Investment Fund SP (“China Huacai”), a
private investment fund incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
managed by a financial institution listed on the Stock Exchange
at total cost of HK$156,883,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB131,146,000). The investment objective of China Huacai was to
achieve capital appreciation through investing in funds, securities,
bonds, ownership interest and private equity investments offered
publicly or privately and in relation to energy and environmental
protection. At 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018, the major underlying
assets of China Huacai was a prepayment for acquisition of power
stations from Hareon Solar Technology Co., Limited (“Hareon
Solar”) amounted to US$58,051,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB401,692,000) (the “Prepayment”).

As at 31 March 2018, the net assets of China Huacai attributable to
the Group represented approximately 33% of the total net asset
value of China Huacai. Pursuant to the offering memorandum
of China Huacai, the Directors considered that the Group has
no significant influence over China Huacai because the shares
subscribed by the Group did not confer the right to the Group to
appoint either directors or investment manager of China Huacai.

HENCRBEREES([PRHEY]  —
B G2 BB A Ak 23 fR — R R B A B
IThZeREEEE ABREES) R
19+ KRR £156,883,0007 7T (HHE RO A
R#131,146,000) - PEER 2K EH
ERERFENRGERIBERELHRHEK
ABEES  FF5 - EFF fAeEEZLL
AREREEREAEE KT —LF
MA—BR=ZZ—N\E=A=+—H " #F
B 2 X EHREBEE ARG E KRB
BHOBRAR(MHEBEXR]) WEEEHZ
8 {4 518 58,051,000% T (HHE R H AR
401,692,0007T) ([FERFFRE]D) ©

RZE-NE=A=+—8  Kx&EBEEHL
TREMAEFEETEENEEERE
#133% - REBETEFEH  HETE > EFR
B BRAEERBZBROTETALEE
WESEFHAREGEIEN  RAKEE
MEERTEERTES o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/DEBT
INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(e) (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, Hareon Solar was unable
to transfer the power stations to China Huacai or refund the
Prepayment in accordance to the investment agreement. In view of
this, the Directors considered that the fair value of the available-for-
sale investments in the unlisted fund investment had significantly
decreased and the fair value loss of RMB133,877,000 was
recognised in investment revaluation reserve, subject to impairment
consideration.

As at 31 March 2018, the Directors reviewed the financial position
of Hareon Solar and determined to provide a full impairment of
RMB133,877,000 in respect of its investment in China Huacai. As a
result, the cumulative fair value loss previously recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve was reclassified to profit or loss.

Further on 28 April 2018, Hareon Solar published its annual report
for the year ended 31 December 2017, for which a disclaimer of
opinion was issued by the statutory auditor. As disclosed in the
annual report of Hareon Solar, Hareon Solar’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately RMB1,529,855,000 and
incurred a net loss of approximately RMB4,477,199,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2017. As at 31 December 2018, the listing status
of Hareon Solar had also been suspended by the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

In December 2018, China Huacai has entered into an agreement
to transfer the Prepayment to Mr. Meng, who is the controlling
shareholder of the Company and the limited partner of China
Huacai at the same date. This transaction is deemed as to be a
shareholder’s contribution to China Huacai because Mr. Meng is the
limited partner of China Huacai and there is no indicator as of 31
December 2018 that the recoverability of the Prepayment has been
improved. The Directors considered that the fair value changes of
the unlisted fund investment should also be recognised as an equity
transaction. For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018,
the change in fair value of RMB154,470,000 has been recognised
as a deemed contribution by controlling shareholder in deemed
contribution reserve.

On 7 March 2019, the Group has received a sum of RMB154,470,000
from the redemption of all the investments in China Hucai.

—B-NER

Fiet - (%)

(%)

=

REBEE-_T-—NF=ZA=1+—BLEE £
BRENZ  BEAREIERBRERTF
B S RIETBMNRIE - BENY - EER
B EEMESRERAEEEREZ AT
BEXE T - AFEEEARE133,877,000
TR BESHERBEARER - EEFEDR
BERE -

R-ZZB-N\F=ZA=1+—R EFBaEH
HRZFBHRR - WRERERFREER 2
REBBIRMUREAR%133,877,0007T °
It ZAIRBREEHREARR IR AT
BEEEESHOBERE -

o RZE—-N\FMOA=Z+NB B8k
RKamEBEE—_T—+tF+=-A=+—AH1t
FRZFR SR EEREAME LR
BER - WS HARZERAEE - =
—E—+HF+_A=t+—HILEE " BH
HRZRBDEEERBERBEENARYE
1,529,855,0007C + WEABIEFEHNAR
#4,477,199,0007C e R=ZZT— N\E+=A
=+—8 BEXRKZ LW g LEE
AR HEEE -

RZF—NFE+=A PREHREIIR
# o BEMNRESBETIRAE  RAERRA
BAERRRMZEBRERRARTRESGR
BBA MR ZWRARRM R BEENNE
B RARAALEATHENNEREE
A MBEZTE-N\F+ZA=+—H 1
EPRKXAEMRBOATRRIESFTEE -
EERAILMESRENATEZH A
WRAERERS RZZ—N\FNA—BZE
—T-N\F+ZA=+—BHM[ ' 2 FEZ
&) AR #154,470,0007CE R RIEE A FEfET
REAREERRRAEE -

RZF—hEFE=A+H XEBECEHEBERAHM
AR BEEN IR E RS AR 154,470,000
7T

o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

24. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

24. FFHERNYIZE

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

+=B=+—HB +-—H=+—8H

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT

Completed properties held for sale BIEREMBERTYE 1,826,555 1,381,870
Properties under development for sale KR FEYE 5,613,489 4,354,331
7,440,044 5,736,201

Properties to be realised after one year R —F 18R 2 Y 3,247,491 88,203

All of the above properties held for sale are to be sold as
part of the normal operating cycle of the Group thus they are
classified as current assets.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all of the above land and
properties are situated in the PRC under medium or long-term
leases.

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018, the
Group had written down the value of RMB29,050,000 (year
ended 31 December 2019: nil) in respect of certain properties
held for sales because the carrying amount of such properties
is lower than its net realisable value.

As at 31 December 2019, properties held for sale with a total
carrying amount of RMB5,507,010,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB2,056,694,000) have been pledged to secure bill payables
and borrowings of the Group (note 52).

B LI i 0 ) 16 20 RS — 2
EEBBALE - B KEHRARD
A% -

RIBE-NEFR-_F-NF+_HA=1+—
H - ALt R EL R B RARE
hEs REITH AR -

R-B—-N\FNA—HBH==_ZE—N\F+=A
=+—BHM AEESHETRIELE
B 9 2 OB A R 85 29,050,000 (B E -
—NE+_A=Z+—ALFE: 8)ER
ZEWEZ REERR A B FE -

R-E—hh&E+-_A=+—8 EE#HE
B A A R#5,507,010,0007L( —ZF— \4F
+=ZA=+—8: AR¥2,056,694,000
T ZEHELEMEDIER - UALAEEY
1 R4 R fE FRAE PR IR (B 5E52) ©

25. INVENTORIES 25. 78

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
+=A=+—-H +=-A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Raw materials R 53,687 42,567
Work in progress TS 13,927 15,127
Finished goods 2% oh 166,334 203,424
233,948 261,118
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

26. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 26. FRHEEERBEESE
LIABILITIES

(i) Right-of-use assets iy FREEE

31.12.2019 1.1.2019

—g8-AE —TNF

+=A=+—8 —HA—B

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Land + b 558,172 310,353

Buildings BF 26,927 47,134

Plant and machinery W= K2 35,586 31,143

620,685 388,630

At 31 December 2019, right-of-use assets of
RMB558,172,000 (1 January 2019: RMB310,353,000)
represents land use rights located in the PRC. At 31
December 2019, right-of-use assets in respect of land
use rights amounting to RMB254,455,000 (1 January
2019: RMB224,965,000) had been pledged to secure bill
payables and borrowings of the Group (note 52).

Apart from the land use rights located in the PRC, the
Group has lease arrangements for buildings and plant
and machinery. The lease terms generally range from one
to four years.

Additions to the right-of-use assets (other than those
arising from acquisition of subsidiaries) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 amounted to RMB90,326,000,
RMB6,501,000 and RMB7,558,000, represented new land,
new leases of buildings and new leases of plant and
machinery respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
has disposed a land use right at consideration of
RMB2,203,000 and recognised a gain on disposal of a
right-of-use asset of RMB127,000.

—B-NER

R-—_ZE—hE+=-A=+—8"
& A # & E AR ¥ 558,172,000 7T
(ZE—NAFE—A—HB: AR¥
310,353,0007T ) FE AL A A B ) L b {8
BA#E -RZFT—hFt+tZA=+—
B THEFERAESROERAEEE
AR#254,455,00000( ZF— L F—
A—H : AR¥224,965,0007T) BAZ
KB BN EEREREER K
52)

BREIN A By i RSN - A&
BT AREE kel L E
R HHBRENT—E=MF -

BEZZ—hF+=ZA=+—HL
FELE R ARE0,326,0007T © A
R #¥6,501,0007T & A R 7,558,000
TCEVETIE R A E E (BB QR
FrEE £ EBRIN) H RlIg 5 T3 - FTiE
FHERMKE L#EHE -

HE-_FT—NLF+=-A=+—8
LtEE AEEBLUREARE
2,203,000 7t i & 4= b {55 F3 #E I T
REEFTEREEN KT AR
127,0007C °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

26. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 26. FFEEEREESRE(E)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(i) Lease liabilities (iiy HEAE
31.12.2019 1.1.2019
—B-hE —E—hE
+=A=+-H —A—R
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBETT

Non-current JEBNHR 14,923 41,046
Current BNHEA 30,570 30,654
45,493 71,700
31.12.2019
—B-NF
+=A=+—H
RMB’000
AR¥®T T
Amounts payable under lease liabilities HEBBEETENHIEA
Within one year —FR 30,570
In more than one year but not more than two years —F LA LB BRI 10,230
In more than two years but not more than five years MELA LETBIRAF 4,693
45,493
Less: Amounts due for settlement within B RBBEE TR 2{E
12 months (shown under current liabilities) AREIHAEE A (30,570)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 1218 A 1% 2| AR (B B 5k I8 14,923
As at 31 December 2019, the lease liabilities in respect RZE—hhF+-_A=+—H8 'R
of leased plant and machinery under hire purchase BHEBHZEERE RSN
agreements amounted to RMB25,614,000 was secured HEABARK25,614,0007TE HiH
by the lessor’s title to the leased assets (1 January 2019: HAHHEEENMAER(ZZE—N
RMB31,143,000). F—HA—H: AE¥31,143,0007T)
TR o
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group HE_ZT-AF+-_A=+—HI
entered into a number of new lease agreements in FE  AEEREBYETLZ A
respect of renting properties and recognised lease MEERRTEREEAEARE
liability of RMB6,501,000. 6,501,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

26. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

=Y
=
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM

26. EMEEERBEREGE(HE)

(iii) RIBRERZFIE

1.1.2019 to
31.12.2019
ZE-hF
~A-BE
—E-NF
t=A=+-—H
RMB’'000
ARBT T
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets FRAEEENES D
- Land —+ i 14,800
— Buildings —1&F 26,709
— Plant and machinery — [ TR A 3,114
44,623
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBENEXH 6,160
Expense relating to short-term leases EEATE SRR 2,571
(iv) Others (iv) Hft

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the total cash
outflow for leases amount to RMB85,839,000.

“E-NER

BE-_ZT—h&F+-_A=+—81t
FE HEZREEREBREAAR

#:85,839,0007T ©
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BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND

190

27.

B2 K HMEWRFIERBANRK

PREPAYMENTS |
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hEF —E2-N\F
+=A=+—-H8H +=-A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Trade receivables (note a) B S rINEIE(Fa)
- goods and services — B R IR%E 292,288 224,967
Less: allowance for credit losses o EEEERE (49,589) (22,459)
242,699 202,508
Deposits and other receivables (note b) ®e NE MW IR (K Tb) 500,494 338,181
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (21,462) (9,750)
479,032 328,431
Prepayments (note c) FEfFE (M aEc) 297,512 329,607
Total #Et 1,019,243 860,546
Analysis as: DA
— Current — BN &R 935,351 827,860
— Non-current — JERNER 83,892 32,686
Total HBET 1,019,243 860,546

The Group allows credit term to selected customers on a case-
by-case basis depending on the business relationship with and
creditworthiness of the respective customers.

AEBERZERBERALRFBEREFHER
MEREEEE  MREEFPROEERES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND 27. EG REMEKRFTERFANLR
PREPAYMENTS (Continued) IE( E"

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of UTRERERR - RERAH(EZE?
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice %Eﬁﬁu HEAESE) 220 E 5 RWKIAR
date which approximates the respective revenue recognition CEEEEREBFED -

date, at the end of the reporting period.

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

—E-NF —E2-N\F

+=ZA=+—8 +=—A=+—H

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥ TR ARBTT

0 - 30 days 0&£30H 167,523 131,893
- 90 days 31290H 35,914 34,506

91 - 180 days 91£2180H 17,917 8,182
Over 180 days Hi#®180H 21,345 27,927
242,699 202,508

As at 31 December 2019, total bills received amounting to R-ZE—hAE+-B=+—8 EkK=iE
RMB22,322,000 (31 December 2018: RMB62,501,000) are held @zE A AR 22,322000T (=T — )\4F

by the Group for future settlement of trade receivables, of
which certain bills were further endorsed by the Group. The
Group continues to recognise their full carrying amounts at the
end of the reporting period and details are disclosed in note
a. All bills received by the Group are with a maturity period of
less than one year.

Other than the bills received, the Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
set out in note 47(b).

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out in
note 47.

—B-NER

+=—A=+—8: AR®62501,0007T)
MAEEEFE - AERRENESEIRK
B HEPETZEECHAEEE—$8
W/ BE - NEERREHEAEE
HIREAE  FHEERWTa - AE@AT
B 2 SR EE IR 2 HARR 19 DR — 4 -

BRIEWRIESN - R I RTE I B 48R
BEMERm

REEE SR TR E R - R&E
EZEREENEROBEHEEREHR
B REEE IE(Z??E\%ZEH“@U =E
SRR E NI4T (b

RZBE—NFR=ZF-N\FF+_A=+—
A 83 REMEKRKEZRETEZF
EEA LY
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND 27. ES RHMBBWRREBERBENK
PREPAYMENTS (Continued) H (%)
Notes: Biat -
(a) Transfers of financial assets (a) RO REE
As at 31 December 2019, the total bills receivables include RZE—AE+_A=+—08 BLEEE
discounted bills with full recourse amounting to nil (31 December HEEMNFIHEREZEMREEAR
2018: RMB349,000) and bills endorsed to suppliers and other BET(ZE—)\F+=ZA=1+—H0: AR
creditors on a full recourse basis that are not yet due amounting to #£349,0007C) KMH 2 EHEBERECESET
RMB12,292,000 (31 December 2018: RMB37,552,000). As the Group g B AR B B2 ZER AR 12,292,000
has not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these T(ZE-NFE+ZA=+—H: AR¥
bills, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the assets 37,552,0007T) - R AN B W AEB A W
in the consolidated financial statements. The associated borrowings ERBCERRABRROR - HEEBENGE
and trade and other payables are secured over the discounted bills MBBRRTPEREEZ 2 HETDE - BEE
and endorsed bills received which were not yet due at the end of HRE 5 REMEMNRIATAE R EER
the reporting period and are recognised as current liabilities in the HER  MRBREBBRHNRIPzZESE
consolidated statement of financial position. BREBERGEMBRARABRARE A
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-AFE+=A=+—H
Bills
received
Discounted endorsed
bills with with full
full recourse recourse Total
B % 2
M 7 2 BREZ
BREREZ [=E5-F -
ERRERE ELES et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T AR¥TT
Carrying amount of transferred assets #EE&ZE 7 BREE - 12,292 12,292
Carrying amount of associated HEAEZREE
liabilities - (12,292) (12,292)
Net position FEARR - - -
At 31 December 2018 R-B-N\E+=-A=+—8
Bills
received
Discounted endorsed
bills with with full
full recourse recourse Total
M 2mE
Mi#s 2| BREZ
BREZ BEEE
BERBRERE B ER #aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREBFT
Carrying amount of transferred assets %42 7 BRmEE 349 37,552 37,901
Carrying amount of associated HEaEEEE
liabilities (349) (37,552) (37,901)
Net position SFEAR = = =
192 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

g



e IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Detailed analysis for deposits and other receivables is as follows:

27.

B2 K HAMEWFIERBANRK

i

5(%&)
HE - ()
(b)  BEREMEKERZ BT

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—8H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBFIT
Deposits paid to BfRE -
— PRC real estate bureau for pre-sold — P 5 E = B BT
properties (P RIEEME) 4,625 14,227
— Rental deposits paid —-BNHERS 7,731 7,905
— Acquisition of additional interest of a — R BR B BB 1 R RESME =
subsidiary (note i) (Htati) 46,000 -
— Others —Hit 14,799 13,070
Other receivables from: Hofth e A
— Receivables from a former associate (note ii) — e U A & X B FOB (M atii) 2,000 16,400
— Receivables from a related company (note iii)  — UK RIS A 73038 (K Eiii) - 9,413
— Receivables from disposal of an — HEREWE 2 BRFIE
investment property 11,537 11,771
— Others (note iv) — H At (B ativ) 156,115 85,637
Other taxes receivables (note v) Hth U B R (HaEv) 236,225 170,008
479,032 328,431

Notes:

(i) On 23 May 2019, Baohua Properties (China) Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an acquisition agreement with the vendor, to acquire
30% equity interests in Wuxi Huize Real Estate Co., Ltd, a
70% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company, for the
consideration of approximately RMB154,191,000.

As at 31 December 2019, deposit amounting to
RMB46,000,000 was paid by the Group and will be applied to
satisfy part of the consideration. The amount is classified as a
non-current asset.

(i1) The amount was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed
term of repayment.

(iii)  The amount was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed
term of repayment. As the related company, Huaren Real
Estate, became a subsidiary of the Group during the year, the
amount was eliminated on consolidation as at 31 December
2019.

(iv)  The amount mainly represented receivables from other
debtors arising from daily operations.

(v) The amount mainly represented value-added tax arising from
the Group's property development and investment business.
As at 31 December 2019, other tax receivables amounting
to RMB37,892,000 (31 December 2018: RMB32,686,000) is
expected to realise after one year and accordingly classified
as non-current assets.

Details of impairment assessment of deposits and other receivables
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out in note 47(b).

—B-NER

et -

(i) R-B-AERA-+=0 " AQ7
MEE2EWBARREME(FE)A
RARIEEHILBE R - URE
# AN R 154,191,000 7T Y BE A 2 7
R A 70% SN E R RS M
BREEBRAT0%ME o

R-Z—hE+-A=+—R0 K&
B &% A ARKA46,000,0007TiE
& EAREMNSINRE ZEED
BE—BIERBEE -

(i) ReBEARER RBEYEETE
HKE o

(i)  ZEWAEEN RS AVEEFE
R - AR AR RECEENFR

KAREEHNBERR 22BN _F
—NE+ZA=1+—AKFEARRKE

vy FHLEIBRAEBHEENEK
HALERATR

v) EHCHITERALAEEMERRER
BEEBZHER - RZT—NF
TZA=1+—8 ' EtEKRBERAR
#37,892,000L (=T —NFE+=A
=+—H : ARM32,686,0007T) 78
TR —FREBEWAESEAIERS

RZBE-NFERZZE-N\F+ZA=+—

B Re REMRYGRIEZBER G ZF15
BRI EE47(b) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND 27. ES REMEBWREREMNRK

PREPAYMENTS (Continued) 5 (%)

i

Notes: (Continued) KiaF - ()

(c)  Detailed analysis for prepayments is as follow: (c) TARTRIEZ AT
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
+=A=+—H +ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Prepayments to suppliers, in respect of: FATIEE R ER N MBERFE
— solar photovoltaic business — KGR IRETS 358 13,569
— printing — ENfRl - 3,482
- petrochemical and other related products — Al R EA R E R 175,197 44,779
- property development L ES 23,670 18,829
— others —Hb - 13,863
Deemed prepayments to subcontractors for MEHEHEMEGRER
properties held for sale (note) D EEX OB KB ) 36,877 210,135
Other prepayments H B RIE 61,410 24,950
297,512 329,607
Note: On 29 March 2018, the Group has entered into an equity K RZFE-N\F=ZA=+NB x&E
transfer agreement with a third party (the “Purchaser”), BEE=F(TEFILREEZE
pursuant to which the Group has agreed to transfer Wik Bt AEBREEELEORE
the entire equity interest in Yingkou Kunlun Real Estate AREHMEERAR([EOR®EM
Company Limited (“Yingkou Kunlun Real Estate”) to the END2XBRETER  REAAR
Purchaser at a consideration of RMB240,000,000. The #240,000,0007C © HER =T —N
disposal was completed on 29 March 2018. As the Purchaser F=ZAZTNBZEK - AREF TR
is also a subcontractor of the Group, the consideration AEBZHEHE  ZREWKAER
is deemed as a prepayment to the Purchaser to set off B METERRIE - AR KA
against the equivalent value of future construction cost ZEEN—EYEEB EHNREX
payables on a property project. During the year ended 31 K-BE-ZT-AF+-_A=+—H
December 2019, approximately RMB173,258,000 (period IEEFE - HHARE173,258,0007T (=
from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018: RMB29,865,000) Z-NEFMA-HBEZE-Z-N\F+=
was set off against the construction cost payables to the A=+—HHMH : AR®29,865,000
subcontractors. TO RSB D BB R EER K -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

28. LOAN RECEIVABLES AND INTEREST

RECEIVABLES

28. EWEFRKEWFE

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

—E-hEF —E2-N\F

+=ZA=+—8 +=—A=+—H

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Loan receivables R E R 14,464 11,403
Interest receivables FE U I B 540 784
15,004 12,187

The Group's loan receivables, which arise from the money

BHRATIEZ

ZIKEIZJEHSZET%EEEA%}%&EP B 12 (1B

lending business of providing personal loans and corporate ANERRRARERZHEEBMESE - ¥

loans in Hong Kong and the PRC, are denominated in HK$ and

RMB.

Certain loan receivables are secured by collaterals provided

J«/{/%TE%D}\E’H%#TE

HETRUEFTATPRENERRERE

by customers, bearing interest ranging from 8% to 15% BN T8%EIS%R(ZTE—N\F+ A
(31 December 2018: 8% to 12%) per annum and repayable =+—H ‘8%¢12%)¢f']¥§‘|‘5ji2§\7\5§§53

with fixed terms agreed with the customers. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at each of the reporting dates is the

EPHEENBEEHRAEE - REHMER
Hﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁuuﬁﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁfﬂhﬁtiﬁﬁ L FE I

carrying value of the loan receivables and interest receivables BERMEWH S HEREmEE -

mentioned above.

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables and BN
interest receivables as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set

out in note 47(b).

—B-NER

EFFBERM 47 (b

—NER=ZZE—NF+=A
E+*EW%WEﬁ&%WﬂEmﬁ@¥
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

29.

30.

196

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK
BALANCE

As at 31 December 2019, bank balances comprised of time
deposits with maturity less than three months and carry
fixed interest rate of 2.6% (31 December 2018: 0.3% to 1.4%)
per annum. The remaining bank balances carry interest at
prevailing market rates which range from 0.3% to 2.5% (31
December 2018: 0% to 2.5%) per annum.

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure bill payables and borrowings to the Group. The
deposits are carrying fixed interest rate range from 0.35%
to 1.95% (31 December 2018: 1.9% to 2.2%) per annum. The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the repayment of
relevant bill payables and borrowings.

Restricted bank balances represented (i) bank balances that
are frozen due to ongoing court cases; and (ii) performance
deposits for construction projects. Out of the balances,
approximately RMB54,513,000 was frozen from the default of a
bank borrowing. Details of which are set out in note 32(d).

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances and
pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are

29.

REBEBE BOEAG
2 FREIRT e
RZB-NF+=ZA=+—8 RITEH

BER=ZEARIPHRIZ26%(ZZE—N
F+-—A=+—H : 03%E1.4%)ETEF
FIRFEZEBER - S TRITEHEN
F03%E25%(—ZE—NEFE+-_A=+—
A : 0%E2.5%)MIRITMHEEFEGTE ©

RITERTREEALAESEZENEER
EBRZEEMABRITERZER - Z5HF
TIRNF0.35% 2 1.95% ( —FE— \FE+=
B=+—H : 1.9%%2.2%) K & F F 5 &
FHE C BITEMEFENABEENEE K
ERERBERR -

ZRHIRITERIB() AR ETHRRER T
MR ERRITES - RNESEBEEN
BHORES - F8HP 4 ARES4,513,000
ﬁ—lﬁﬁi«ﬂ%?xiiﬁﬂﬁ%&;ﬁ% o B
IEE P HIEE32(d

R -_ZE—NFER_ZTZ—NFE+_A
=+—BMIRTTS %&ﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁ RN Al

set out in note 47(b). ERHEFBER 47 (b
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND OTHER 30. E HttEARIEREME
LIABILITIES 1E
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—8 +ZHA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMF T AREFTT
Trade payables B 5 ENFIE 287,232 184,806
Construction payables i_;{bfﬁw\ 99,284 447,268
386,516 632,074
Accrued construction cost FEETIBEER AR 403,623 213,658
Deposits received (note a) BUYES (Hita) 50,726 50,653
Other payables (note b) E{’@ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ(lﬁ(ﬁ/ﬁf‘b) 194,829 133,636
Other payables to non-controlling ERARBRIMNBA
shareholders of a former subsidiary JE¥E HxﬂxﬁZEﬁﬂ IE
of the Company (note c) (Ktzte) - 119,989
Other accruals EfbERE A 112,317 148,388
1,148,011 1,298,398
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND OTHER
LIABILITIES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables and
construction payables based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period.

!

NTS....

30. EZRHMENFIEREME

&(&)

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
=L B I
+=A=+-8 +=A=t—~
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFR ARETT

0 - 30 days 0% 30H 134,688 105,938
31 -90 days 31£90H 33,045 44,033
Over 90 days HB3E90H 218,783 482,103

386,516 632,074

The average credit period on purchase and construction
cost is arranging from 30 to 90 days. The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to monitor that all trade
payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

As at 31 December 2019, the bills amounted to RMB 12,292,000
(31 December 2018: RMB37,552,000) endorsed to the suppliers
for which the maturity dates have not yet been due continue to
be recognised as trade payables.

REMEERANFHEERN FI0E0
B AKERAEVERBRERZRR - UE
EMBESRNFREREEHANGS

RZE—-NANEF+ZA=+—8 " B
ETHEBENAIHBZEBEARE
12,292,000t ( ZE—NF+=_A=+—
B : AR¥37,552,00070) S #E-REZ
SERFOE -

Notes: BiteE -
(a)  Detailed analysis for deposits received is as follow: (@) BHWEUREZF@EAITHT :
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —E-NF
+=A=+—H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Rental deposit received BHBEERS 726 653
Deposit received for a joint property BEWEHERYEREIER 2
development project (Note) & (M) 50,000 50,000
50,726 50,653
—E-NFR 197
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND OTHER
LIABILITIES (Continued)

198

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

Detailed analysis for deposits received is as follow: (Continued)

Note:

On 20 June 2017, the Group has entered into a cooperation
agreement (the “"Cooperation Agreement”) with an
independent third party, a private company incorporated
in the PRC, to establish a joint venture company for
the purpose of developing a leasehold land currently
wholly owned by the Group, located in Dongguan City,
Guangdong, the PRC as residential properties (the
"Project”).

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018,
the Directors noticed that the Project shall be abandoned
because it is unlikely that the Cooperation Agreement
can be continued due to the failure to comply with certain
urban renewal policies in Guangdong, the PRC. However,
the proposed termination on the Cooperation Agreement
was rejected by the counterparty, which further raised a civil
prosecution against the Group for legal claim resulted from
termination.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the deposit represents
the first instalments received from the counterparty in
advance for the Project. In the meantime, the Directors
have also, based on legal advice, made a provision of
RMB80,000,000 (2018: RMB80,000,000) in respect of this
legal claim and included in other accruals.

Detailed analysis for other payables is as follow:

30.

i IR

\

3 (#4)

izt - (&)

SREMEBNRERAEME

(@) CWBRERESZF@IWOT : (&)

it -

RZTE—+FA-+H A5EH
—BBIE=T7 (—ARPEEMK
SRFLART)ETIL AR ([ & 1E
Wa&l)  MKIZAEZERERR - AR
REBAAARE2EREA 2N
BERREN 2 EE D EEEME
EREENE

RZE—NFHNA—BE=ZZT—N\F
TZA=+—HEME BEFIEIZ
BREENE  RAARGERRR 8
EAREETHFRERE THMEN
PR EAERE - AT - XHEFH
EREXSIEHRNERZL - A
ZR IS BRERRRUAEEE —
FREREFND ©

RZE-NFR=ZF-NF+=A
=+—H - ReERZEEARSH
FHRABEMZ G - R =
ENERNERBERRZERBRIED
{5 A R #80,000,000(=ZF— N\
&+ AR #80,000,0007T) I 7 H b
FEtERALR -

(b)  EACENFURZHADFTAOT

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

—B-NEF —TN\F

t=ZA=+—-8" +=ZA=t+—H

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TR AREBFT

Other tax payables H i e TiTE 14,137 17,856
Others Hity 180,692 115,780
194,829 133,636

On 30 March 2016, the Group disposed of its 80% equity interest
in Yingkou Wanhe Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Yingkou Wanhe”) and its
subsidiary at a cash consideration of RMB480,000,000 and received
RMB600,000,000 from the buyer. The payables of RMB119,989,000
represented cash consideration received on behalf of a 20% non-
controlling shareholder of Yingkou Wanhe, which are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The amount was
fully settled by the Group during the year.

(0 RZZE-—R"E=ZA=+H FXEELHE
EOBAEXARRAA(TEABEADR

I B A 71 80% #Y A 1

CReRERA

K ® 480,000,000 7T * I B B 77 Y B A
K % 600,000,000 C - B KB AR
119,989,0007C R KX FHA & O B & 20% &
Z IR R S RME - BEER
T B RAKRERER - XAEERFERAER
it ftazakE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

31. BILL PAYABLES 31. BNRE
Bills are issued to the creditors, either by the Group or by the EERAKESA BB RTEMNRITEITT
banks, in Hong Kong and the PRC with maturity up to one year. BRA - BR—FRIH-
An ageing analysis of the relevant bill payables based on the T AREBENZEERENREHRRER
issuance date of the bills at the end of the reporting period is N AR
as follows:
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
+=—A=+—H +=—HA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTFR ARETT

0 - 30 days 0£30H 376,612 565,091
31 - 60 days 31260H = -
61 - 90 days 61£290H 20,000 2,527
Over 90 days HRiE90H 333,357 9,046
729,969 576,664
All bill payables are secured by the assets as disclosed in note AE BRI PTE BN R M 524
52. B
As at 31 December 2018, bill payables include commercial RZZE-N\E+HA=+—8  BERIRE
bills issued by the Group totalling of RMB450,000,000 (31 @¢E$%W¢|£5‘E$T¥%UZ—F§M/\’§
December 2019: Nil) to a private company controlling by Mr. ﬁJ_?éiH:‘Z%@@%ﬁi}%/_\ﬁﬁg%0,000,000ﬁ
Meng (note 53) as a repayment of the amount due to the *92_31¢+*ﬂ;+_5 :%)Zﬁﬁ%
S (MIEES3) - MEERENEREZERAR

immediate holding company.
R o -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

32. BORROWINGS 32. B

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
+=B=+—HB +-—H=+—8H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Bank borrowings RITER 3,879,270 2,699,046
Other borrowings from financial institutions 2k B & B8 2 H {55 5,997,000 1,440,000
Other borrowings arising from HRLIR R RIRE £ 2
discounted bills receivables H gk - 362,140
Other borrowings from non-controlling REFFERIR R 2 EfhfE R
shareholders 296,147 296,147
10,172,417 4,797,333
Secured Popigiit 9,772,820 3,818,697
Unsecured Ei A 399,597 978,636
10,172,417 4,797,333
Carrying amount repayable based on RIRE R EAE R AR EE -
repayment schedule:
Within one year —FR 4,266,637 3,619,333
More than one year but not more —EA EETBBMRE
than two years 4,781,960 1,072,000
More than two years but not more MER EETBBRASF
than five years 1,123,820 106,000
10,172,417 4,797,333
Less: carrying amount repayable within B —ERERRILENE
one year and do not contain a REKERIGERZ
repayable on demand clause FRmEE (4,266,637) (3,571,255)
Less: carrying amount repayable within B —FERNERKEME
one year and contain a repayable RERERERZ
on demand clause FREE S (48,078)
Amounts shown under current liabilities mEBEEE TN REE (4,266,637) (3,619,333)
Amounts shown under non-current EMBBEE T REE
liabilities 5,905,780 1,178,000
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued) 32. BR(E)
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings and the contractual AEBERREHNIHE (KETREH) 2
maturity dates (or reset dates) are as follows: BT :
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
+=—A=+—H +=—HA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBETT

Variable-rate borrowings: SEENFRE D
Within one year —E R 328,147 50,426
In more than one year but not more —FLA EETBBRT
than two years - 32,000
328,147 82,426
Fixed-rate borrowings: &l E F B
Within one year —F R 3,938,490 3,568,907
In more than one year but not more —F A LETBAME
than two years 4,781,960 1,040,000
In more than two years but not more MENA LETBBRRS
than five years 1,123,820 106,000
9,844,270 4,714,907
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to REBERRAZERIE(TFERE QM X)
contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are as HENT :
follows:
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
+=A=+—H +tZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREFT
Effective interest rate: BEEFX :
— Fixed-rate borrowings —BEFEERK 4.4% -12.0% 3.3%-12.0%
- Variable-rate borrowings —FBFEER 1.5% - 3.0% 1.5% - 3.0%
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(a)

*

202

g

As at 31 December 2019, the weighted average effective
interest rate on the borrowings is 9.6% (31 December
2018: 7.7%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, certain banking
facilities and loans granted to the Group are secured
by the Group's assets. Details of the pledged assets are
disclosed in note 52. Details of the Group’s management
of liquidity risk are set out in note 47(b).

In respect of a bank borrowing with an outstanding
principal amount of RMB157,000,000 as at 31 December
2019, the Group breached the repayment terms of which
approximately RMB182,682,000 was in default since
November 2019. The relevant bank borrowing is an
entrusted loan entrusted by Shanghai LinYi Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (“Shanghai Linyi”)
made available to Bao Hua Properties (Jiangsu) Co.,
Ltd.* ("Baohua Jiangsu”), a 80% owned subsidiary
of the Group. On 25 December 2019, Shanghai Linyi
issued a legal letter to Baohua Jiangsu to demand for
the outstanding principal, interest and penalty interest
of approximately RMB182,682,000, RMB3,040,000 and
RMB9,317,000 respectively. On 31 December 2019,
Baohua Jiangsu made partial repayment of the principal
of approximately RMB25,682,000. On 7 January 2020,
Shanghai Linyi filed a claim to Shanghai Financial Court*
against Baohua Jiangsu, Huajun Properties (Yangzhou)
Co., Ltd.* (formerly known as Yangzhou Bao Hua
Properties Limited*) (Huajun Properties Yangzhou), the
Company and Mr. Meng for the outstanding principal of
RMB157,000,000 plus unpaid interest (including penalty
interest) of approximately RMB12,539,000 and additional
interest since 1 January 2020 at a daily rate of 0.1% of the
outstanding principal.

As at 31 December 2019, the entire outstanding bank
borrowing of RMB157,000,000 was classified as current
liabilities and outstanding interest and penalty interest of
approximately RMB12,539,000 was included under other
payables.

The hearing for the claim is scheduled to be held on
18 August 2020. The Directors of the Company had
commenced negotiation of the repayment terms of
the loan with Shanghai Linyi. Up to the date of these
consolidated financial statements, those negotiations are
still in progress and had not been concluded.

English name for reference only.

32. fEFRR(4E)

(a)

R-ZZE—hE+=-A=+—8 - &
RZINEFHEREFFNEE.6%(=
E-NEFE+-A=1t—8:77%) °

RZE—NER-_ZT—NEFE+_A8
=+—H AEBEEHE TR
FEERERDUAEERSEEER
o BT EE 2 FIBRMIEES2
FE - BEAEBEERSHELE
% 2 FFIBE R HITE47(b) ©

BRoE-AE+—_A=+—HHN
FEBASE A AR 157,000,000
TTHSRITIERME AEBEEXE
BIER BB _Z—-NEF+—A
B R4 AR 182,682,000 7T °
HARTERBHRLEEERRESR
BrE(HBREE)(TLEEERE])
ZATAEEEFS0%E = M B
NRREME T ) AR A A ([R
ETHIDNEAXER - R=_ZE—h
EF+-_A-+HB EEEHM
RETHRBZELEMEEREER
S FERIEDRHARE
182,682,0007T * A K #3,040,0007C
BRAR®9317,0007T - R=ZZT— A1
F+-_A=+—8H REIHEE
DA E#H N REE25,682,0007T ° A
—E-TFE—A+B - EBEHRR
RETEH EEMEGBGMN)BERA
A (AITEHGMNREEEFRAR) (F
EBHESMN) - RRARREE LD
KEEKRES AR%157,000,0007T
EMAMFE(BESE)HARE
12,539,000t kB —_E-ZFF— A
—BEZEAEERENTHEFX
0.1%5T B MREINF) B 1A 82 g%k
BT IR AEFRAA ©

RZB-AF+ZA=+—H #kK
812 Ay SR 77 18 X A R ¥ 157,000,000
TERELEERSDAE  MEKESR
K FE R E B4 AR12,539,0007T
BIFF AH A REZRE o

RERRIABEER_ZE=_FFNA
+NBEBH - ARAEEEHMKE
FEERERERNEEKER - &
ERERAUBRERBY  BEE
PRIITERETT » MARAER o
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(d)

In respect of a bank borrowing with an outstanding
principal amount of approximately RMB153,000,000 as at
31 December 2019, the Group breached the repayment
terms of which approximately RMB155,782,000 was in
default since May 2019. On 2 July 2019, Ningbo Bank
Company Limited Wuxi Branch* (“Ningbo Bank”) filed
a claim to Jiangsu Wuxi Intermediate People’s Court*
("Jiangsu Court”) against Wuxi Huize Real Estate
Co., Ltd.* ("Wuxi Huize") and another subsidiary of
the Company (the “Subsidiaries”) to demand for the
repayment of outstanding principal, accrued interest
and penalty interest of approximately RMB155,782,000,
RMB1,426,000 and RMB1,534,000 respectively. An
order was granted by the Jiangsu Court to freeze and
preserve certain bank balances or equivalents asset of
RMB190,000,000 owned by the Subsidiaries (released
on 17 July 2019 except for a restricted bank balance
of approximately RMB54,513,000). The hearing for the
claim was held on 20 August 2019 and a judgement
was handed down by Jiangsu Court on 30 August 2019
in favour of Ningbo Bank. Wuxi Huize had to repay the
outstanding principal and interest 10 days from the
judgement day and bear the legal fees of approximately
RMB833,000. Wuxi Huize then filed an appeal to Jiangsu
Court against the judgement.

On 21 July 2019, Wuxi Huize filed a claim to Jiangsu
Court against Ningbo Bank in which it was alleged that
the Ningbo Bank has made excessive preservation of
assets held by the Subsidiaries exceeded the court order
amount of RMB190,000,000, and causing economic
losses for Wuxi Huize. Wuxi Huize requested Ningbo
Bank for compensation of approximately RMB3,545,000.
The hearing for the claim was held on 5 November 2019
and a judgement was handed down by Jiangsu Court on
2 January 2020 to reject the claim by Wuyxi Huize and
Wuxi Huize had to bear the legal fee of approximately
RMB35,000. Wuxi Huize then filed an appeal against the
decision.

On 18 March 2020, a settlement agreement was
entered into among the Subsidiaries, Ningbo Bank,
shareholders of Wuxi Huize and another guarantor of the
bank borrowing regarding the subsequent settlement
arrangement of the bank borrowing. Pursuant to the
settlement agreement, Wuxi Huize shall repay the
outstanding principal and interest by 31 August 2020
with partial repayment of not less than RMB100 million
and RMB15 million by 31 May 2020 and 30 June 2020
respectively.

—B-NER

32. BR(#E)

(d)

- F+=-_BA=+—H
MEKREERSBBANOARE
153,000,000 T W SR 1T E XM &
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued)

204

(d)

(Continued)

In November 2019 and December 2019, the Group
partially settled principal and interest of approximately
RMB2,782,000 and RMB4,490,000 respectively. At 31
December 2019, the entire outstanding bank borrowing
of RMB153,000,000 was classified as current liabilities
and outstanding interest and penalty interest of
approximately RMB7,320,000 was included under other
payables.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in
respect of a borrowing with an outstanding principal of
RMB1,440,000,000 as at 31 December 2019, the Group
breached the repayment terms of which RMB240,000,000
was in default since 27 March 2020. Pursuant to the
terms of the loan agreement, the counterparty had a
discretionary right to demand immediate full repayment
of the outstanding principal of RMB1,440,000,000
together with any unpaid interest. The directors of the
Company had commenced negotiation of the repayment
terms of the loan with the counterparty since then. On
28 April 2020, the Group has obtained a written consent
from the counterparty to extend the repayment date
of the principals of RMB240,000,000, RMB240,000,000
and RMB960,000,000 from March 2020, June 2020 and
September 2020 respectively to March 2022, June
2022 and September 2022 respectively. Supplemental
agreement to such loan is to be arranged between the
Group and the lender in due course.

32. BR(#E)

(d)

(&)
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R ERERZE BT —NEF
TZA=ZT—BHEREELRER
A R ¥ 1,440,000,000 JT ) & 3 M
T OASEEREEGR  HAB
—E-TEFE=A-++tAEERA
R #5240,000,0007T ° 1R ¥ B 515 &%
2B HFAREERNEREEXRY
MEBEHEENREEZAEARKE
1,440,000,000 7T ( £ [&] £ AT 7K 1<
B) o ARrREFEZBRDHY
FARERNEEBGIETER -
R-ZE-ZEFMA_+/\B ' K&
EERSHEFAINEERERR
& A R # 240,000,000 7T + AR #
240,000,0007T M A R #960,000,000
THEEZEAH IR - _TF=
A ZZEZZEFRARZZE-ZF
NWNAEE=-ZZT=-_=-_F=/H - =%
TZFERNARZEZZFRA K
SEHEEFBTEE RS
ERAEFROER IR

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM

e IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

!

NTS....

33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 33. MEHERIE
31.12.2018
—E2-N\F
+-A=+—H
RMB’000
ARET T

Analysed for reporting purposes as: RERENDTA

— Current liabilities —REEE 6,847
— Non-current liabilities —JERBAaE 17,719
24,566

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to
leases which were previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17. These liabilities have been aggregated with
the brought forward balances relating to leases previously
classified as finance leases and disclosed in note 26.
Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has not
been restated and relates solely to leases previously classified
as finance leases. Further details on the impact of the
transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 3.1.

—B-NER

AEEDRAETEHEVZEAREY
EREEAFIGRIR —_FE—hLF—A—
AR YAL - DR AIRERS
S ENBEITRIERLEHENTHE
HENHEHERE ZFAECHBRABT
NEARMEHENHELEERANTE
W26 5T - RZZFT—/\F+=A
=+ AMLBRENTESY - EHAS
DEAMEMENTHESH - E@BER
EAVBREENF1RNTENE—F
B ERHIEES -
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33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 33. MEHEERE(E)
(Continued)
Minimum Present value
lease of minimum
payments lease payments
=K =EEE
HERK NHzHEE
31.12.2018 31.12.2018
ZZE-N\F —E-NF
+=ZA=+—8B +ZRA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Amounts payable under finance leases mEMERNFA
Within one year —FR 7,725 6,847
In more than one year but not more —FUEENEBRE
than two years 7,725 7,121
In more than two years but not more MEN FENBEBRS
than five years 10,990 10,598
26,440 24,566
Less: Future finance charges B RRBMESZ T (1,874) N/AE B
Present value of lease obligations HEAEZIRE 24,566 24,566
Less: Amounts due within one year D fﬁ;ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂt\
shown under current liabilities R—FRHH 2 (6,847)
Amounts due after one year shown as HRBIERBEEN—Fi&
non-current liabilities Rz &% 17,719

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had leased certain plant
and machinery under finance leases. The average lease term
was four years. The average effective borrowing rate for
current year was 2.26% per annum. Interest rate was fixed and
ranged from 1.84% to 2.50% per annum on the contract date.

As at 31 December 2018, all finance lease obligations were
denominated in HK$.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's obligations under

finance leases were secured by the lessors’ charge over the
leased assets.
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R_ZE—-NFE+-_A=+—0 A&£ERE
BREHERES THRERER - FHHE
EANTF - RAFE - THERERF
FIEE226% - REHAH  BEFHE
N F1.84%%E2.50% °

RZZE—N\F+ZRA=+—8 "  fiEME
HEFELETTEE -

RZZ-—N\F+ZR=+—8 "  xEEZ

MEREAERALAAHEEEENTT
R -
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34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 34. EHEE
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
+=—A=+—H8 +=—HA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETF T ARBTT
Sales of HE
— properties (note a) — W% (Kfita) 1,364,264 895,595
— petrochemical and other related — Al R EMEEER (M b)
products (note b) 148,871 67,478
— printing products (note c) — BNl &m (Fiate) = 2,999
— others —HAb 421 6,989
1,513,556 973,061
Notes: izt
(a)  All contract liabilities arise from the Group's property development (@) FEEHNABHELBAKBEZYERRE

business are within the Group’s normal operating cycle. During the
year, the Group has recognised revenue of RMB446,424,000 (period
from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018: RMB40,256,000) that was
included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the
period.

The Group receives 30% to 50% of the contract value as advances
from customers when they sign the sale and purchase agreement for
sale of properties, while the remaining portion of the total contract
value will be paid to the Group from the banks once the customers
meet the requirements of the banks for applying mortgage loans.
The amount is generally made by the bank before the delivery
of property to the buyer. The advance payment schemes result
in contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until the customer obtains control of the
completed property.

In addition, the Group considers the advance payment schemes
contain significant financing component and accordingly the amount
of consideration is adjusted for the effects of the time value of
money taking into consideration the credit characteristics of the
relevant group entities. As this accrual increases the amount of
the contract liability during the period of construction, it increases
the amount of revenue recognised when control of the completed
property is transferred to the customer.

—B-NER

% HDRASEZEEEERSR - REF
R AEBERIK AR 446,424,0007C
(ZE—N\FONA—RBE-_ZE—N\F+=A
=+—RAH/E : ARK40,256,0005T) * 5t A
WYz eanaERER -

RRHEMERETFPHITEE AR - A%
B &P A HEER30%E50%1ERTE
MR MARNBEENBRT B BREPW
RIRTTER BIRIB B R RS R SRTTENE )
AEEXN - REBERNMERN FEK
HIRITIAT o TREN G B G BN R
BREPHERESHNAE  EEFPERSYED
B TYREVIEHIE o

o ARERARNABEEERBEA
BE D MBS BENEREEYERHER
BB EPHRERSEEENERER
B ARZER EREMNRERRNA L0
BESE  AENRCRITYEEIEEE
FTEPHERNREEE -
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34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the expected timing of
recognising contract liabilities as revenue are as follows:

34. EHAEEBE(E)

izt - (&)

(a)

(#&)

RZB-NAFR-Z-NF+_A=+—
A - RRANAME AN ERHEOT -

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

—E-hEF —T-N\F

+=—A=+—H +=ZRA=+—H

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARBTFT

Within one year —FR 1,252,537 130,036
More than one year but not more than two years —# A HERBIBHRE 111,727 764,099
More than two years WA S 1,460
1,364,264 895,595

(b) When the Group receives a deposit before the customer draws out
the petrochemical and other related products from the Group's
warehouse or storage location, this will give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the
relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
typically receives a 10% to 20% deposit in advance for each sale
order. During the year, the Group has recognised revenue from
sales of petrochemical and other related products amounting to
RMB67,478,000 (period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018:
RMB144,099,000) that was included in the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the period. All contract liabilities attributable
to sales of petrochemical and other related products as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 are expected to be recognised as revenue
within one year.

(c) When the Group receives a deposit before the manufacturing
activity of printing products commences, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the
deposit. The Group typically receives a 10% to 20% deposit on
acceptance of manufacturing orders. During the year, the Group
has recognised revenue from sales of printing products amounting
to RMB2,999,000 (period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018:
RMB53,574,000) that was included in the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the period. All contract liabilities attributable to
the sales of printing products as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.
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NTS....

35. CORPORATE BONDS 35. AREESH
The corporate bonds are interest bearing at the rate of 6% to ARARBERNFMNERNELSH(—F
6.5% (2018: 6% to 6.5%) per annum, payable semi-annually or —N\F : 6%FE65%) » BFFXBFFN
annually in arrear and repayable as follow: —R - EEFRLOT
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—8 +ZHA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBT T
Within one year —&F R 3,612 214,840
More than one year but not more —F L\ BT BBRRF
than two years - 3,383
More than two years but not more MEL EETBIBAF
than five years 3,516 4,972
More than five years AFELAE 73,405 67,754
80,533 290,949
Analysed for reporting purpose: ESIERERE -
— Current liabilities —mBBaE 3,612 214,840
— Non-current liabilities —3EmBIAE 76,921 76,109
80,533 290,949

The effective interest rate of the corporate bonds for the
year ended 31 December 2019 is ranged from 9.1% to 12.6%
(period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018: 8.2% to 12.6%)

per annum.

—B-NER

BE-_ZT—NEF+-_A=1+—BLLEE -

REMEF N ERF R X

NF91%E12.6%

(BT N\FWA—RE-_ZT—N\F+=
A=+ — AR : 8.2%212.6%) °
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 36. ARRES
Details of the convertible bonds issued by the Group and REER_Z2-NEERZT-N\F+_H
outstanding as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: =+ —HEBTHEHNRITENATRRES
HIBWT
Maximum number
of shares of the
Principal Conversion ~ Company to be
Date of issue amount Bondholder Coupon rate  Maturity date price converted
ALRTER
B84 %3] EHEEA F5% HHA L0 RitEAHE
Blne 2019 ZE-AEAAZTABR  HK$205,200,000 (2018: nil)t China Huajun Group Limited 1.50% 27 June 2024 HK$38 5,400,000
205200000 7C FEEEREARLA SECEERACTER BER
(ZB-N§: &)
Wune 2019 ZF-AERAZFHA HK$1,000,000,000(2018: nil)t  China Huajun Group Limited 1.50% 26 June 2024 HK$38 26,315,789
1,000,000,0007%7C FEEEREARLA SECREERAZTAR  BER
(ZB-N§: &)
Wlanuary 018 ZF-N\E-AZTEE HK$76,000000 Pu Shi International Investment Limited 10.00% 23 January 2021 HKS34 1,941,176
(2018: HKS66,000,000¢ e EREREEERAR “EC-F-ACtZR MEn
760000008 (ZZ-/\%:
66,000 0007E7T) 2
AU Janvary 2018 ZF-\E-AZFMA Nil(2018: HK$10,000,000) Bz 10.00% 23 January 2021 HK§34 24117
B(Z3-N\E 1000000087 ) B2 TE-E-fITER O MER
A January 2018 ZE-\E-FAFMA HKE130,000,000 Wonderland Interational Financial ~ 10.00% 23 January 2021 HK§34 3823529
(2018: HK$130,000,000)% Holdings Limited ZEC-E-ACfER MERn
13000000EL(Z5-N\E:  ZEERSHERARAT
130,000,000 7
Ulanvary 2018 ZF-\E-AZFMA HK$12,000,000 Wisebrain Holdings Limited 10.00% 23 January 2021 HKS34 352,94
(2018: HK$12,000,000/* el Wisebrain Holdings Limited Z3--E-f2tZH MEn
120000007 (Z 5N\ -
12,000,00077 ) ¥
Ulanvary 2018 —F-\E-AZFMEA  Nil (2018: HK$30,000,000) Power Ace Investment Ltd 10.00% 23 January 2021 HK$34 882,353

B(ZF—)\F 1 30,000,000 7C)* Power Ace Investment Ltd

Note: Convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$10,000,000 held
by £2%£ was transferred to Pu Shi International Investment Limited
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

* Outstanding as at 31 December 2019.

‘ Qutstanding as at 31 December 2018.
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 36. AIRIRESR(E)

Convertible bonds issued on 24 January 2018 (“2018
Convertible Bonds”) entitle the holders to convert into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the date
of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the
relevant conversion price (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments).
The conversion shares will be allocated and issued upon
exercise of the conversion rights. If the convertible bonds
have not been converted during the conversion period up to
the maturity date, the convertible bonds will be redeemed on
the maturity date at par together with the accrued interest.
Interests are being paid every six calendar months until the
maturity date.

The 2018 Convertible Bonds contain two components, liability
component and conversion right with settlement option
accounted for as an embedded derivative. The effective
interest rate of the liability component of these convertible
bonds is approximate 13.17% per annum. The conversion
option derivative is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

On 27 and 28 June 2019, the Company completed the issue
of convertible bonds to CHG and Nanjing Huajun Real
Estate Co. Ltd. (“Nanjing Huajun"”) with aggregate principal
amounts of HK$1,000,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB877,192,000) and HK$205,200,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB180,000,000) respectively (“2019
Convertible Bonds”). On 28 June 2019, Nanjing Huajun has
transferred the convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$205,200,000 to CHG. The convertible bonds entitle the
holders to convert into ordinary shares of the Company at any
time between the date of issue of the convertible bonds and
the maturity date at the relevant conversion price (subject
to anti-dilutive adjustments). The conversion shares will be
allocated and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights.
If the convertible bonds have not been converted during the
conversion period up to the maturity date, the convertible
bonds will be redeemed on the maturity date at par together
with the accrued interest. Interests are being paid annually
until the maturity date. The Company also has the right, at its
option, to redeem the whole or any part of the outstanding
principal amount of the 2019 Convertible Bonds held by such
bondholder, as determined by the Company, by notice, at a
redemption price equal to the par value before the maturity
date.

—B-NER

R-ZE—NF—A - +HAETHAHRK
BRI ZFE-NFARRESFDETHE
AN RN AR ESFHETEEES
HBIENEMEEAGEERERESE
BRARRE B (X REERERS))
IR ) A E TS R W R A % & B
17 - AR EH EE RPN EERIH A
BARER - ARG S SR B R ER
AN B REERED - H]EE AN —
KRB BEFHBEIE-

“E-N\EFABRREFEEWED - B
BER D RERERLRARTETAA
FEAEEREE RETRREFAGR
DR BBRFRRBLN3.17% « MBENTE
TADRAFEFE  MAFEZDHARN
BREAER -

RZEBE—AFEXNA-t+tE=-_+/N\HB K
NEEKAPHREEEENEREEEE

BRAR([MRES])BEITAIBRRES
& #8585 Bl A1,000,000,0007 7T (A&
R AR #877,192,0007T ) 5 205,200,000
BT (FHE R4 AR 180,000,0007T) ([ =
T-NFAUBRBEES]) RZT—NF
ANAZHN\B BREERTHREEEE
a8 2% K $ % 5 205,200,000 7 7T 89 7] A%
&5 o IRRESFE FHAARMARA
B E AT R E B TR
A G BREREREFERNARAER
B(ZREERAERS) - FBRRHIEE
TEEREmMED B REEIT - Al RRE
SFHEEBHNEZIH AL RER - BlA
B EH SR B BB R ER T B R EE
Rl - ARRBFIMF—KFE EEE
HAIE - ARRNMAREZEE L BANELD
HEHFFEARBNZHNEABS =
—NFIERESFT HREENRSE(H
RARETE)  BERERSHRIEGBENZE
@o
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 36.

R ES(E)

Since the redemption amount is face value before or on
the maturity date, which is equal to the amortised cost
of the host debt instrument at the redemption date, the
Company considered that the economic characteristics
of the redemption features are closely related to the host
contract. The value of the redemption option embedded in
the 2019 Convertible Bonds other than the equity component
amounting to HK$23,876,000 is included in the liability
component. As at the dates of issue, the two tranches of
2019 Convertible Bonds were bifurcated into liability and
equity components amounting to RMB515,574,000 and
RMB541,618,000 respectively. The equity element is presented
in equity under “Convertible bonds equity reserve” at
initial recognition. The effective interest rate of the liability
components of the two tranches of convertible bonds are
16.42% and 17.30% per annum respectively.

The movements of the liability and derivative components of

MRERREASRKEHBEATNEE &
HERTEB T ANED B 2 A2 856K
AR AR R RBE D S A E S R
ERNEZYIRNBEER - £%//23,876,000%
TTHMAZT - NFE AR ES R E R E
BEEZIDBRINTABELS - B
BOAE Mt T -hFEUBaRES
2 RIHF A A R#515574,000 T R AR
541,618,000 B E R Em D o Hw= 0
DRVIBERER [ R EHFE RS
Eh bR Mt aRESZEETH
NEBRENES BN E16.42%%17.30% °

REELBEREATBRBRESRZ B BRI

the convertible bonds for the current year and prior period HER 2 HEEFIAT
were set out in below:
Liability Derivative
component component Total
=Rt fTHEE D st
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTT ARBTT
At 1 April 2018 RZE-—N\FHHA—H 721,580 127,628 849,208
Redemption of convertible bonds IO TR &5 (550,923) = (550,923)
Interest charged B HFILE 95,379 - 95,379
Interest paid BEAFE (70,899) - (70,899)
Change in fair value NEEEE) - (118,374) (118,374)
Exchange realignment [E & % 32,361 7,880 40,241
At 31 December 2018 and RIE-N\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+—-HEK
—E-hAF—-HA—H 227,498 17,134 244,632
Redemption of convertible bonds BETRRES (26,814) = (26,814)
Issued during the year RERBIT 515,574 - 515,574
Transaction costs incurred BEEZRBIBA (536) = (536)
Interest charged 1€ 15N 66,844 - 66,844
Interest paid BAFE (20,754) = (20,754)
Change in fair value DRERD - (12,498) (12,498)
Exchange realignment ERAR 15,161 306 15,467
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+=B=+-H 776,973 4,942 781,915
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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36.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, transactions costs
totalling RMB536,000 (period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018: Nil) has been incurred for the issuance of

convertible bonds.

36. ARES (&)

—hF+t-ZA=+—HLFE"

BEZ

E?JL%’MTT%HX{E%FEDAAE%
536,000L(BE=ZE—N\FMHA—HE=ZF
—N\FE+—A=Z+—BHBE  BIZXHK

N o
The fair value of conversion option derivatives are measured at BRETETAZ A FEDNERE=HALQ
Level 3 fair value measurement (as defined in note 47(c)). FEFEE(GERRMEE47( ))Eﬂ'%
Relationship
Significant of significant
Fair value unobservable unobservable inputs to
Fair value hierarchy ~ Valuation technique  inputs fair value
EZTUEEL
EEFUBE BABBEAY
A¥E NVEER  fRER ZHABE B2BE
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
ZE-NF 2N\
tZA=t-8  f-f=f-F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR N S
Conversion option 4,942 17,134 Level 3 Binomial model Volatility of 74% The higher the volatility,
derivatives E£=1 —IEL (2018: 73%) the higher the fair
BRENTAETAR K1E74% value
(ZB-N\%#: REES  ATEES
73%)

—B-NER
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37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 37. BBEREN
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—g-nf  —FN\F
+=A=+-A +=A=+-A
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

At beginning of the reporting year/period R¥REF,Ei¥] 228,382 496,793
Addition through acquisition of a FHiBUW RN B A RIRE (H3E48)

subsidiary (note 48) - 23,303
Financial guarantee provision recognised B2 B TEEREE 3,022 228,382
Reversal of impairment AR (231,404) (520,096)
At the end of the reporting year/period REFE HAK - 228,382
Reversal of (provision on) financial guarantee contracts BB TSR A 4B E (B ) B IE -

recognised comprised of:

1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —E-N\EF
—HA—H=Z mMA—RB=E
—g-RE T N\&F
+=—A=+—-8 +t=A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Reversal of impairment in relation to: BENATEIEZRERD
— Guarantee | (note (a)) —ER—(Ktit(a)) S 447,810
— Guarantee Il (note (a)) —VER = (M%) - 48,983
— Guarantees in favour of Yingkou — A OEERITATEA
Coastal Bank (note (b)) ZERKE D)) 231,404 -
— Guarantee from the newly acquired —REFWEBHBE AR Z
subsidiary (note (c)) ER(H L) = 23,303
231,404 520,096
Financial guarantee provision recognised  FATIE B MR IS IE(REE -
on:
— Guarantees in favour of —AE OB RITARRALZ
Yingkou Coastal Bank (note (b)) ER(KaTb) S (34,478)
231,404 485,618
Recognised in deemed contribution reserve BR 1T & fE &R (231,404) (223,905)
Recognised in profit or loss REBRER = 261,713
214 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Guarantee | and Guarantee I

On 19 October 2016, the Group entered into a financial guarantee
in favour of Jiangsu branch office of China Cinda Asset Management
Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda"), pursuant to which the Group agreed to
provide a financial guarantee in respect of obligations and liabilities
of Hareon Solar and Jiangyin Hareon Solar Energy Electrical
Power Co., Ltd. (collectively referring to as “Hareon Companies”)
under restructuring documents in the amount of approximately
RMB383,361,000 (the “Guarantee |”). On the same date, Mr. Meng
also entered into a personal guarantee in favour of China Cinda to
provide financial guarantee for the same obligations and liabilities.

In order to protect the interest of the Group against any loss which
might be suffered by the Group under the Guarantee |, Hareon Solar
entered into a counter indemnity in favour of the Group pursuant
to which Hareon Companies agreed to, among other matters,
indemnify the Group for its liabilities and loss which may arise from
the Guarantee I.

The Group had recognised a financial guarantee liability at fair value
of RMB44,281,000 at the date of providing the Guarantee |.

On 4 May 2016, the Group had provided a financial guarantee
in favour of a bank of RMB22,990,000 to secure a banking
facility granted to a subsidiary of Hareon Solar (“Guarantee I1").
Subsequently on 19 January 2017, the Group further increased the
maximum guaranteed amount to RMB77,000,000.

As at 31 March 2018, the Directors were of the opinion that the
financial condition of the Hareon Companies had significantly
deteriorated with certain of their debts are default in payment. The
Directors considered that it is probable the creditors will demand
the Group to settle the outstanding principal and interest of the
subject debts under the financial guarantees provided by the Group.

On 26 June 2018, three statutory demands were served on the
Company by China Cinda to demand the Company to settle the
outstanding debts totalling of RMB278,153,000 pursuant to the
Guarantee |.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had recognised financial guarantees
provision of RMB496,793,000 which was the Directors’ best
estimation on the probable cash outflow on the obligations of these
financial guarantee contracts.

On 23 July 2018, Hareon Companies announced that Huajun
Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. ("Huajun Commercial”), a company
directly controlled by Mr. Meng, has fully repaid the statutory
demands of RMB278,153,000 on behalf of Hareon Companies to
China Cinda.

—B-NER

37.

MBEREN(E)

i -

BER-EER=

RZZT—A"FE+A+IE  REBUPEE
FEEETERMAERAG(THERFE]IT
BOARAITA L —HREER &
b AEEREREEEHEUHARKE
383,361,0007C &8 B XK RIIREBELE
REENARAR(FEA NEEAR]DNEE
MaERHVBER(ER—D -RA &
FENRUPBEEERZHATTL —HEAE
R USROS TME EREMEER -

AREREENT G REER-MANE
EEZEMEL  BRARAAEE AR S
AR~ RABEE - &L BEARREE
(AR B REASERZER M EELE
BB ERIEX -

AEEBRREER - BHCKRATFEARY
44,281,000 LRI SR EE -

RZZE—AFRANB - AEERE—EMN
RIT AT AR AR 22,990,000 K B 15
BR - UAESBLRNOMBARERN—IE
BT ERMEER(TERZ]) -BEER=Z
—tF&—A+hB  AEEE—SREES
RELE ARK77,000,0007T °

R-ZB-NF=ZA=+—R EEZREH
RANPFBORABRERBL - THREREEET
B EERABERARBULGERAE
BEENASERENOTBERNEBELT
HAREEOA SRS

RZZF-N\FRAZ+ B FEEER
BER— MAXAREZREAEER
HEE BREAQFAEMRESEARE
278,153,0007C °

RZZE—-NF=ZA=+—0  KAEEDER
FIE R B AR %496,793,0007T © BES
RUBERENEAHBERSRLNRE
flst e
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37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
(Continued)

216

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

Guarantee | and Guarantee |l (Continued)

On 26 October 2018, Hareon Companies announced that Huajun
Commercial further paid RMB150,000,000 on behalf of Hareon
Companies to China Cinda for full settlement of the amounts due
by Hareon Companies to China Cinda. On the same date, China
Cinda provided a written confirmation to the Group agreed that the
liabilities under Guarantee | are discharged.

Consequently, the Directors considered that the financial guarantee
contracts liabilities to Guarantee | should be fully reversed on the
basis specified below:

According to the relevant laws specified in the financial guarantee
contracts, unless otherwise specified, joint guarantors to a financial
guarantee contract shall be jointly and severely liable to the
guaranteed amount, and if the debtor defaults on the payment,
each joint guarantor may request the other joint guarantor to
equally share the settlement of the guaranteed amount. A reversal
of impairment for financial guarantee contracts to profit or loss
amounting to RMB223,905,000 represents the provision of guarantee
liable by joint guarantor, Mr. Meng. For the portion that the Group
is liable, as the amount has been settled by an entity controlled
by Mr. Meng, settlement of the financial guarantee contract of
RMB223,905,000 is accounted for as an equity transaction with
shareholder as contribution.

In respect of Guarantee Il, the financial guarantee contract was
released upon the outstanding bank loan was settled by the
subsidiary of Hareon Solar in the form of auction of selling its land.
The auction was completed 5 December 2018, and the Group was
no longer liable of the Guarantee Il, consequently, the Directors
considered that the financial guarantee contracts liabilities relating
to Guarantee Il which amount to RMB48,983,000 should be fully
reversed to profit or loss.

MBEREN(E)

izt - (&)

(a)

BER-RER=(E)

RZE-NE+AZ+XB  BHAAE
i FERELE - SRKREBRATRFTRE
EXHNT ARM150,000,0007T + A2 EEE
BRRRENPEEZENKE - BH - 7E
EERMASERHERBERS  RBER—
HETHRED R -

Bt EFRA - BR-ZUBEREHE
B T B AERRED

RIEMISERES LTHZABRE - BR3ES
B - BBEREHZHEABRAZELR
RERNEERESE  RMEEAEKRK
1B SHABERATERE M ERERAR
R#DENRESE - RIBSBEMEE
RA 4B A R #223,905,0007¢ © 5 £ A
ERAREEREZERERE - AARKE A
EZHEAME  BREBRERHIZEEBELE
NZRE - #HUBEREOTREARE
223,905,000t E AER R 2 IRIERX H AR A
EE o

RER-ME - MBERAONEELRZ
M A BIAAE HE R a5 AN H R
RITERRER - HER-_FT—N\F+=A
hRAZEK  BASKETHEREER-_ZH
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37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Guarantees in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank

As at 31 December 2018, a bank loan drawn from the banking
facilities associated with the financial guarantees which is previously
provided by the Group in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank to secure
the facilities granted to an independent third party, is outstanding
and now past due, and accordingly being in default, pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, the Group is obligated to compensate the
holder for loss suffered when no repayment of the loan happens. As
a result, the Group reassessed the financial guarantee liabilities and
recognised the impairment loss in aggregate of RMB34,478,000 in
profit or loss.

The Group had provided guarantees to several related parties for
credit facilities in aggregate sum of RMB2,978 million in favour of
Yingkou Coastal Bank. Among the guaranteed facilities, aggregate
amount of RMB2,778 million are drawn by those related parties and
remitted to the Group, with details set out in note 42. The Directors
were of the opinion that the remaining guaranteed facilities
amounted to RMB199,996,000 drawn by those related parties are
virtually certain to default given the financial position of those
related parties. Accordingly, the remaining amounts which included
fair value adjustment amounted to RMB193,904,000 are recognised
as financial guarantee liabilities at 31 December 2018.

On 29 March 2019, Huajun Holdings Group Limited, a company
controlled by Mr. Meng and his spouse replaced the Group to be
the guarantor of these financial guarantees, therefore, all guarantees
in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank provided by the Group are
released, and the Group was no longer liable to the guarantee.
Consequently, the Directors considered that the financial guarantee
contracts liabilities in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank which amount
to RMB231,404,000 should be fully accounted for as deemed
contribution from shareholder.

Guarantees from the newly acquired subsidiary (note 48)

During the nine months period ended 31 December 2018, Yuzhu (as
defined in note 48), a newly acquired subsidiary with details set out
in note 48, has previously entered into a financial guarantee contract
with financial guarantee liabilities of RMB23,303,000 recognised at
date of acquisition. Subsequently, the financial guarantee contract
was released upon the outstanding bank loan being settled by the
borrower before 31 December 2018 and the Group was no longer
liable to the guarantee, consequently, the Directors considered that
the financial guarantee contracts liabilities relating to Guarantee |l
which amount to RMB23,303,000 should be fully reversed to profit or
loss in the nine months period ended 31 December 2018.

—B-NER
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38.

39.
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DEFERRED CONSIDERATION

On 16 July 2018, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
acquire the entire equity interest of Yingkou Economic
Technology Development Zone Shangfang Real Estate
Limited (“Shangfang”) at a consideration of RMB135,000,000,
comprised of cash consideration of RMB40,000,000 plus
non-cash consideration represented by certain specified
property units to be developed at an equivalent value of
RMB95,000,000 at the date of contract. As the property units
will be transferred to the vendor upon its completion, the
outstanding consideration has been recognised as a deferred
consideration and measured based on the Directors’ best
estimation of the consideration required with reference to
an independent professional valuation to settle the present
obligation as at 31 December 2019. Details of the acquisition
are disclosed in note 48.

DEFERRED INCOME

As at 31 December 2019, the Group received government
subsidy totalling RMB103,491,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB21,660,000) towards the cost of construction of its
automobile and solar photovoltaic production line. The
amount has been treated as deferred income and will be
recognised in profit or loss on the same basis as depreciation
for the related plant and equipment upon the construction
work has been completed.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, such government subsidy
is not amortised because the related plant and equipment are
still under construction.

38.

39.
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40. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

40.

IESER IR

AT RRIER IR SR 2 DT » AVERF T3
SRE

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

—E-hEF —E—N\F

+=A=+—-H8H +=-A=+—H

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Deferred tax assets FEEFIBEE (17,221) (10,957)
Deferred tax liabilities EER A B E 141,415 76,524
124,194 65,567

The following are the major components of deferred tax
liabilities (assets) recognised and movements thereon during
the current year and prior period:

Accelerated
(decelerated)

M T ABRRZEERBREEE) 2+
EARBONRERAFERBEREZ
21

tax  Revaluation  Impairment
depreciation of properties and others Total
R (HE)
BEHE WEXEHMEE  AERHM @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT ARETTT ARBTT
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-N\$MA—A (2,110) 24,089 (3,221) 18,758
Exchange adjustments B 5 B (12) - 32 20
(Credited) charged to profit or loss GTANRBEESR (2,161) 47,998 952 46,789
At 31 December 2018 and R-E-N\E
1 January 2019 +ZA=+-HEK
“E-n¥—-H—-H (4,283) 72,087 (2,237) 65,567
Exchange adjustments ERAZ (93) = 51 (42)
(Credited) charged to profit or loss GPNEI 3R E (3,648) 55,401 (292) 51,461
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 48(a)) s BE B B A 7 (if3E48(a)) 7,208 - - 7,208
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NE
+ZA=+-H (816) 127,488 (2,478) 124,194

—B-NER
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40. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

220

At 31 December 2019, the Group does not recognise
deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of approximately
RMB1,310,995,000 (31 December 2018: RMB794,813,000) as
it was uncertain that future taxable profits against which the
tax losses could be utilised would be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction. Tax losses of approximately RMB371,602,000
(31 December 2018: RMB315,198,000) do not expire under
current tax legislation and approximately RMB939,393,000 (31
December 2018: RMB479,615,000) would expire within five
years from the year of origination.

At 31 December 2019, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of RMB161,478,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB114,709,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

At 31 December 2019, temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounted
to approximately RMB556,488,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB495,058,000). Deferred tax liabilities of approximately
RMB27,825,000 (31 December 2018: RMB24,753,000)
representing the tax payable upon the distribution of such
retained profits have not been recognised as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

40.

IESERL A ()

RZZE—hhE+ZA=+—8 ART
T EBBEENBEET S AR
RBEBENRREZRHESN  NEHIW
KB IEE BN AR 1,310,995,000 T
- NF+-A=+—8: AR¥
794,813,00070 ) lERIEERIBEE  IRIE
WITHE - BIEBELHAR371,602,000
T(ZE—N\F+ZA=1+—H: ARK
315,198,0007T ) I K & - M A A R
939,393,000 (ZFE—NF+=ZA=+—
H : AR®479,615,00070) R NEFE
BZAFRER °

RZZE—-—hhF+ZA=+—H &x&£HE
AR EREE A AR 161,478,000
T(ZE—NE+-A=+—08: ARK
114,709,0007T ) o 4% i 33 B2 ] 3008 8 I
ERBEHANEEHBEE  RAATKA
BEVE A FERR DR A A EE S AT B AT H0R
=% o

MW-ZE—-HhE+_A=+—0 HEHHH
MBARZAN R EFNBR ERER
SR A AR MES556,488,0007C ( —ZF— )\
F+=ZA=+—H : AR¥495,058,000
TT) o AR RIEHIZEH B A AR RS
B REFHIBAEN AR 27,825,000
T(ZE—NE+-A=+—8: ARK
24,753,0007T ) 48 7 Ik B AR B8 Ja 1) F 18] R
HRZEMNRE  BDEBETEFRAUET
SR EREDIK ©
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41. AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING

COMPANY

The Group has the following balances with immediate holding
company:

The carrying amount of RMB16,655,000 (2018:
RMB1,706,956,000) as at 31 December 2019 represented
amount due to the immediate holding company, CHG,
with aggregate gross amount of RMB16,962,000 (2018:
RMB1,872,931,000). As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and agreed not
to be repayable until 31 May 2021. The Directors assessed
the fair value of the fund advances, taken into account an
effective interest rate of 9.6% (2018: 6.4%) per annum, and
recognised an initial fair value adjustment of RMB307,000
(2018: RMB186,346,000) to the outstanding amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the outstanding
amount has been early repaid and the Group has reversed
deemed contribution of RMB78,735,000 (1 April 2018 to
31 December 2018: RMB32,795,000) recognised in prior
years. In addition, a fair value adjustment at approximately
RMB3,070,000 has been made in connection with
the obligation under financing arrangement upon its
reclassification to amount due to immediate holding company.

—B-NER
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41.

NTS....

B ZER DR ZIE
AEBREEBRATEUTEH

MN-Z-hAE+-_A=+—BNEEMEA
R #16,655000 (ZZE—N\F | AR
1,706,956,0007T ) I FE R E R A R H
BlEZ LB 225 B ARE16,962,0007T
—FT—)N\F  AR¥1,872,931,0007T) &
B RZE-—NFERZZT-—N\F+=A
=+—H FEAEEKHE THEAWHT
MW-ZE-—FRA=+—HmMEAEE -
EZCREBREMNERIN(ZZTE—N
Fo4%) BT FHERESHATE I
MERSERRBARE307,0000(=ZF
— N\ 1 AE%186,346,0007T) Z WA R
FEFAE -

HE-ZT—hhF+-A=1+—RHLEFE "
REECHORIEERAEEEN AR
FRERO ARY78,735,0000( —E— N\F
MA—HBZEZ=ZZ—\F+=ZA=+—8":
AR ¥&32,795,0007T ) BUARAEIEE © BLHN
RAATERBELHAEEH D EAER
EEERARZFEREREZHAEED
RFEFHELHARES,070,0007T °
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41. AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING

222

COMPANY (Continued)

During the nine months period ended 31 December 2018, the
Group borrowed RMB2,559,718,000 from CHG, among which
RMB214,300,000 received from the designated third parties
and RMB2,345,418,000 received from CHG and its subsidiaries.
For the nine months period ended 31 December 2018, the
Group had already repaid RMB1,180,812,000, among which
RMB610,000,000 repaid to the designated third parties and
RMB570,812,000 repaid to CHG and its subsidiaries.

Besides, during the nine months period ended 31 December
2018, there are debts amounting to RMB76,787,000 transferred
to CHG by signing agreements on the restructure of debt.
No restructure of debt conducted during the year ended 31
December 2019.

41.

BNEZEEZERARZHIA(E)

HEZZ—-N\F+=ZA=+—HIEANE
AHE A5EEEPHEZEEEREA
A R #2559,718,000 7T @ Eth A R
214,300,000 HiEEHE = H KM R AR
2,345,418,0007T B F B EF £ B & H KB
AR - B EZE—ZE—-NFE+-_A=+—
At hBAHME  AEEEEEARE
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42. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCING 42.

ARRANGEMENTS

On 17 May 2018, Huajun Properties Yangzhou Limited
("Huajun Properties Yangzhou") (formerly known as Yangzhou
Bao Hua Properties Limited), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, provided guarantees of RMB778 million in favour
of Yingkou Coastal Bank Co., Ltd (“Yingkou Coastal Bank")
(as defined in note 53(c)) for credit facilities in aggregate
sum of RMB778,078,000 granted to two related companies
of the Group which Mr. Meng has significant influence
therein. Through utilising the credit facilities granted and
a series of bills financing arrangements, an aggregate sum
of RMB1,111,540,000 bills were issued by these related
companies and net cash proceeds of RMB700,000,000, after
deducting the discounting charge of RMB78,078,000 and
security deposits of RMB333,462,000 placed by these related
companies in Yingkou Coastal Bank, was generated by these
related parties by discounting the bills to unrelated parties
and the net cash proceeds was transferred back to the Group
to supplement the Group's working capital.

On 6 June 2018, Bao Hua Properties Management (Yingkou)
Limited ("B&H Properties Yingkou"”) (formerly known as
Bao Hua Properties Management (China) Limited), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, provided guarantees of
RMB2,200,000,000 in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank for credit
facilities in aggregate sum of RMB2,200,000,000 granted to
four related companies of the Group which Mr. Meng has
significant influence therein. Through utilising the credit
facilities granted and a series of bills financing arrangements,
an aggregate sum of RMB3,132,400,000 bills were issued by
these related companies (including three former subsidiaries
of the Group that the Group completed the disposal of
on 5 June 2018) (see note 48(b)) and net cash proceeds of
RMB2,000,004,000, after deducting the discounting charge
of RMB192,676,000 and security deposits of RMB%39,720,000
placed by these related companies in Yingkou Coastal Bank,
was generated by these related parties by discounting the
bills to unrelated parties, of which RMB1,594,665,000 were
transferred to the seller of Wuxi Project (as defined in note
48(a)) for settlement of acquisition consideration on behalf of
the Group and the remaining RMB405,339,000 was transferred
back to the Group to supplement the Group's working capital.

—B-NER

BE 2 PAE

RZFE—N\FRA+ERH  KRalzzE
WEARZEREMEGNGIINBR R R(ATTEES
MREEXBRAR([EFHEZMN])
(EZE RMIFES3() A EEMRERIE R A
(REEREBERFEN)ERZAEHEA
R¥778,078,000 L EE@ME L& O K
BIRTTRR D BR AR (& O HEIRITIE
AZHEANRBEARKIISEE TWER -
FERPARINEERER — R EZEH
B2 ZSHEAREBRITAEAAR
#51,111,540,000 T 2% - B S #E
ANEIEBAGEAE AR ERELR S
1S FUE R A R #700,000,0007T (& HER
BhIR B AR #78,078,0007T K % 5 a8
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42. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCING

224

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

The Directors considered that the arrangements are in
substance financing from the immediate holding company
under the loan facilities with the immediate holding company
and therefore recognised the advances through the above
financing arrangements (including the amount paid by related
parties to settle the consideration of Wuxi Project) as amount
due to immediate holding company.

The Group has agreed in writing with these related parties
and immediate holding company that in case these related
parties fail to settle their obligations with Yingkou Coastal
Bank and the Group needs to repay to the bank under these
financing arrangements, the Group's corresponding amount
due to immediate holding company will be reduced by the
amount of repayment made by the Group to the bank (if
any). During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December
2018, the aggregate gross proceeds received by the Group
under the financing arrangement is RMB2,778,082,000 (as at
31 December 2018, the net proceeds received is carried at
amortised cost of RMB2,693,469,000 at an effective interest
rate of 6.4% per annum). The financial liabilities are classified
as current as the corresponding bills issued through these
financial arrangements will be matured within one year at end
of the reporting period.

Details of the remaining financial guarantee obligations under
these financing arrangements are detailed in note 37(b).

On 29 March 2019, Huajun Holdings Group Limited, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Meng and his spouse, replaced
Huajun Properties Yangzhou and B&H Properties Yingkou
to be the guarantor of these financial guarantees and the
above-mentioned guarantee obligations of Huajun Properties
Yangzhou and B&H Properties Yingkou, as confirmed by
Yingkou Coastal Bank, were released. Upon the release of
these financial guarantees, the obligations under financing
arrangements were reclassified as amount due to immediate
holding company. In accordance with the loan facilities
between the Group and the immediate holding company, the
immediate holding company will not demand for repayment
of the amount due to immediate holding company before
May 2021. Therefore, the amount due to immediate holding
company under these financing arrangements was reclassified
as non-current liabilities on 29 March 2019.

g
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43. SHARE CAPITAL 43. R
Number of shares Share capital
R4 E R
31.12.2019 31.12.2018 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —EN\F —E-NF —EN\F
t+=A=+—-8A +ZA=+t—H +=ZA=+-B +=ZA=+—H
'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fik TER FET
Ordinary shares LZER
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SREE1008T Y
HK$1.00 each il
At the beginning and end of ~ RBEF /H
the reporting year/period IES 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000
'000 ‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T Tk ARBT R ARBTT
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At the beginning of the RBREF /B
reporting year/period 60,669 60,669 55,203 55,203
Issue of shares (note 48(a)) Wt 317 (Bi7%48(a)) 874 - 780 =
At the end of the reporting RI|EF /AR
year/period 61,543 60,669 55,983 55,203

On 30 September 2019, the Company issued and allotted a
total of 873,875 ordinary shares in the Company to the Vendor
A, which defined in note 48(a), for acquisition of subsidiaries.
Details of the acquisition are set in note 48(a). These shares
rank pari passu in all respects with other shares in issue.

—B-NER
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44. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

226

CONTRIBUTIONS
Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs (maximum of
RMB1,339 per month for each employee) to the MPF Scheme,
which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute specified percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
plan is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense of RMB36,231,000 (for the period from 1
April 2018 to 31 December 2018: RMB24,578,000) represents
contributions paid or payable to these plans by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the plans during the year ended
31 December 2019.

44.
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NTS....

45. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 45. EXREE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes bill payables, lease liabilities, bank borrowings, other
borrowings, amount due to immediate holding company,
corporate bonds, convertible bonds and equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company, comprising of share capital and
reserves.

Gearing ratio
The Directors actively and regularly reviews the capital
structure of the Group. The Directors consider the cost of

capital and the risk associated with each class of capital.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

AEBEEREERAUBERAEENSERE
AEERE  RRBRBBLERTEEBR
REFER zMBRAZRS - BBESR
i - NEBZ BERmERFTE -

AEBEZEARBREGE  EhEREE
NRE HEAE  RITENX - EME
B RNEEERQARZRE - AEME
% AMBRESRRA R R RREEES
BRI R -

BEERSBHLR
EXEBLEHRNAEEERRRE - &

EEZEERARARBRERBERDR -

RBEHRRcEERBBLXRNAT :

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

+=ZA=+—-H8H +=-A=+—H

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBTIT

Total assets 1R E 17,655,495 15,762,535
Total liabilities mak (14,934,271) (13,131,815)
Net assets FEE 2,721,224 2,630,720
Total liabilities to assets ratio MEEBAGLE 84.6% 83.3%
227
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46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

228

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 28 September 2007 and refreshed the Scheme mandate
limit to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at 3
November 2015. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to Executive or Non-Executive Directors including
Independent Non-Executive Directors or any employees
(whether full-time or part-time) of each member of the Group
and for such other purposes as the Board of Directors may
approve from time to time.

Upon expiry of the existing Scheme on 28 September 2017,
no further options will be granted thereunder, but in all other
respects, subject to the provisions under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, the existing Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect, and the options granted thereunder may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with the terms of issue thereof.

At 31 December 2019, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 2,421,906 (31 December 2018:
2,703,132) representing 3.9% (31 December 2018: 4.5%) of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date. The total number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of
shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company'’s shareholders.

Option granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$100 per option granted. There
is no minimum period for which a share option must be held
before the share option being exercised unless otherwise
determined by the Board of Directors. The exercise price is
determined by the Directors, and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

g

46.

Ui BERBNRR S

ARBR_ZBZLFAATNBERA—
AR B ([ %A E)) YR —F—F
F+—-AZHEMLTENRERBEER
NABEITRMENI0% - 25812 B WA
RARLBRE—EEENTE - LAER
WITHERTES(BREBUIFATES)
FAREBEERERRNEFEER (THE
BrakoRB) IR ALEER) - WM - NS - B
R/HER - AREBESRARLTER
BEZEEMBE A

REFER-_Z—tFNA-T/\BER
% B TEREBREFIRHESER
B ERARMIE X ETRAET
EMIEXAR - BEFEDAETREN
RAER - MEBREE T REWERE
BB TOBEITIRFADAIITE ©

RZF—NEF+=ZA=+—8  REZ
BIEE LN RITENBRE S &2’
DER 52,421,906 (—E—N\F+ A
=+—H8 :2,703,132/%) ' HERAR AR
ZADBEITRM3ON(—ZE—NFE+
A=+—8 :145%) - TEREARRFRESE
FHERIERT » ARRIEZTEI T A48
= 6 R BRAE P R 2 IR 1) 48 BRUTE (T ] B
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FEREARRRIRESZEMAENERT © 5
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46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The Company completed the Share Consolidation on 5 March
2018. The disclosure of the number of options outstanding
and exercise price of the options have been adjusted
retrospectively at the date of grant.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

46. LR BERNTRRS (&)

RARRR—E-N\FE=AARATKRHE
Bt e M R E - PIRER 2 W ARTTERB A
A RBREZITERECIFENRE -

FEREERERINFBILT

Number of Vesting Exercisable
Grantee option Date of grant conditions Exercisable period period
AERA BREZRE RHEAH BRI T 1@
Employees 1,096,200 7 February 2017 Nil 7 February 2017 to HK$78
== —E—+F i3 6 February 2027 788 7T
—AtHR —E—+F-RAtHZE
“E-EF-ARA
Directors 938,355 7 February 2017 NIl 7 February 2017 to HK$78
£ —E—+F = 6 February 2027 7887
—AtHR —E—+F-RAtHZE
“E-EF-ARXA
Executive* 387,351 16 March 2017 Nil 16 March 2017 to HK$78
TTIRAB* ZT—tF i 6 February 2027 7877
=A+7<A B S A=
“E-EF-ARXA
* The executive option was solely granted to Mr. Meng, * THANEBEREEEFAATIES

the chairman of the Board of Directors and an executive

director of the Company.

—B-NER
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46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 46. UG EAEBUAEHRS (&)

(Continued)
The movement of share options to the executive directors RAREE KB A BBRIE ZaT 8 THIT
and employees under the Scheme during the current year and EEREEBZEREZLFHZTIMT

prior period are presented as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hE+-A=+—HLEE

Number of share options

BREHE

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding at
at 1 January during during during 31 December
Grantee 2019 Reclassification the year the year the year 2019
R-%-1%F R-B-NE
-B-H £ £ tZA=+-H
ARA AT EfinE ERN B EREH BRATHE
Directors & Executive BERHAR 1,325,706 - - - - 1,325,706
Employees g8 1,377,426 - - - (281,226) 1,096,200
2,703,132 - - - (281,226) 2,421,906

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 R=Z2-NEFNA—-—HBE=ZE-—N\F+=

B=+—BHB

Number of share options

BREHA
Qutstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Qutstanding at
at 1 April  Reclassification during during during 31 December
Grantee 2018 (Note) the period the period the period 2018
RZE-N\% R_E-N\%
mA-E B il il tZR=1-H
ABA RATTE (W) BRH Bf7 BAXH RATTE
Directors & Executive EERTMAE 1,164,957 548,100 - - (387,351) 1,325,706
Employees €8 2,473,626 (548,100) - - (548,100) 1,377,426
3,638,583 - - - (935,451) 2,103,132
Note: Share options of 274,050 granted to each of Ms. Zhang Ye and B : Mo —tE - A+ A (REBLT R BT
Mr. Zeng Hongbo on 7 February 2017 (prior to their appointments WAL EETAAATIEEN)BYERL
as Directors of the Company) were reclassified for presentation + R AT S AR 8 2 274,050 B R RE A
[RElplettE 2IEHNEEHSE -
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NTS....

46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 46. UG EAEBUAEHRS (&)
(Continued)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share BARESE KT HITEENT
options are as follows:

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
~E-AETZA=t+-H —F-\FtZA=t+-H
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of

exercise price  share options  exercise price share options
MEFIITRE BRERR ETHTEE BREHE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TR ARETT ARBTT

Outstanding at the beginning of A& BRI K17

the reporting period 78 2,703,132 78 3,638,583
Lapsed during the year/period R /HIR KB (K1)
(note) 78 (281,226) 78 (935,451)
Outstanding at the end of RS BRARTE
the reporting period 78 2,421,906 78 2,703,132
Exercisable at the end of REEBRARITE
the reporting period 78 2,421,906 78 2,703,132
Note: The relevant grant date fair value of share options lapsed ffet - ERBBREZEBEREBHAZILAFER
amounting to approximately RMB4,740,000 (31 December 2018: HARM4740000L(ZFE—NEF+ZA
RMB8,386,000) have been transferred from share-based payment =+—H: AR¥8,386,0007T) * E B
reserve to accumulated losses upon the share options lapsed. BABEABRDABER A RFEERER
FTEHR -
The options outstanding at 31 December 2019 had an RZF-AFTZA=FT—HEKRITER
weighted average exercise price of HK$78 (31 December 2018: BRENITEERISET(ZF—N\F+=
HK$78) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of A=+—H:78875T) - mInE-FF ek
7.1 years (31 December 2018: 8.1 years). BHNFHARIAF(ZE-N\F+=A

=+—H:81%F)-
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 47. €RTH
a. Categories of financial instruments a. SEMIAZER
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
+=A=+—-H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZEREE 49,703 218,268
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAVESFAREMEEIKES Y
EFTA 26,762 49,031
Financial assets at amortised cost IR AT 22 &R T A 1,099,989 1,352,793
1,176,454 1,620,092
Financial liabilities ERMERS
Amortised cost RS AR AN 12,812,241 8,749,410
Lease liabilities/obligations HEAE RARESAE
under finance leases 45,493 24,566
Obligations under financing BE T AE
arrangements - 2,693,469
Financial guarantee contracts IS IERE 4 - 228,382
12,857,734 11,695,827
Derivatives fTETA
Convertible option derivatives BRIEESTAET A 4,942 17,134
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTPL, debt instruments at FVTOCI, loan
receivables and interest receivables, trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
balance, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bill payables, amount due to immediate
holding company, borrowings, obligations under
financing arrangements, financial guarantee contracts,
lease liabilities, corporate bonds and convertible bonds.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes in the consolidated financial
statements. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on loan
receivables, listed bond investment, held for trading
investments, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables and bill payables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currency giving rise
to this risk is primarily United States dollars ("USD" or
"US$"), Euros ("EUR") and RMB. The functional currency
of the group entities to which such risks relate is HK$.

—B-NER

NTS....
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

234

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate.

47. ERMIA(E)

b.

ERAREEBEREE(E)

FIEmBE ()
S U

TRFAHINAERBER REHREA
WINERREEB 2 IETE
BEZOHEREEXREMAEZE
KR -

Exposure to foreign currencies

REEKER
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
ZE-AEtZR=1-H “5-\5+-A=1-H
RMB EUR usD RMB EUR usb
AE# [ in ARE BT ESD
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR®Tn  ARETn  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR
Debt instruments at FVTOC| BATESF AR 2ANEY

EBIE - - 26,762 - - -
Financial assets at FVTPL BATE \BRE eRER - - 39,697 - 151 86,835
Bank balances and cash FkBRES 37,254 1,829 29,659 15,158 2228 44,756
Pledged bank deposits RTEARE - - 6,796 - - 18,249
Trade and other receivables B REMEYGE 10,320 324 22,225 9,484 497 47,026
Prepayment and deposits BAFERES 2 kY] 14,192 - 290 15,028
Trade and other payables B REMENTE (30) (16) (1131) (30) (65) (5,649)
Bill payables ERER - - - - - (17,618)

Sensitivity analysis BURZ DT

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general
appreciation/depreciation of 5% (31 December 2018:
5%) in the exchange rate of EUR and RMB against HK$,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group's loss for the
year of RMB2,293,000 for RMB and RMB106,000 for EUR
(31 December 2018: loss for the period of RMB1,027,000
for RMB and RMB129,000 for EUR). No sensitivity analysis
is presented for foreign currency fluctuation between
US$ against HK$ because Hong Kong dollars is pegged
to US$ and assumed that the rate would not be materially
affected by any changes in movement in value of the HK$
against other currencies.

RZFE—hh&F+=-A=+—H8 &
R EMERESHIFTE 4
ST TE A RE G TR IE R e
AEEESS(ZE—NE+=A
=+—H:5%) AREEHFAE
Big R, 18 A R 2,293,000
(BAREMmMES) &A5%Mm, 5w A
R#106,000T (B TMs)(=F
—N\E+=-A=+—8: BRERE
Hm D 18 AR #1,027,0007T (4
AREmE)REEM B ARE
129,000 c (HBILmE)) - BRE
TEETTEN  WRHRBTHEEAM

ERHEAEERDTEYERE
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to listed and unlisted bond investments, loan
receivables, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
balance, bank balances, corporate bonds, convertible
bonds (liability component), borrowings, lease liabilities
and obligations under finance leases. The Group
currently does not have any instruments to hedge against
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
arising primarily from interest bearing borrowings and
bank balances at variable rate at the end of the reporting
period. The Group's interest rate profile is monitored
by management. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
variable interest rate profile includes bank balances and
bank borrowings. The Group's cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest
rates on bank balances and Hong Kong Inter-Bank
Offered Rate arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar
denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 (31 December 2018: 100) basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s
loss for the year by approximately RMB1,080,000 (31
December 2018: loss for the period by approximately
RMB862,000).

—B-NER
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47. ERMIA(E)
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

236

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision

As at 31 December 2018, other than financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum
exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
arising from the amount of financial guarantees provided
by the Group as disclosed in note 37, with total carrying
amount of RMB228,382,000 (31 December 2019: Nil).
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets except that the credit risks associated
with loan receivables are mitigated because they are
secured over certain collaterals of the borrowers. There
is no significant change in the quality of that collateral
as a result of deterioration or changes in the collateral
policies of the entity during both reporting periods.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

The Group makes investment decision by balancing the
risk and return of the investment portfolio. The Directors
consider that the credit risk exposure to the Group is
limited as the gross investment amount in debt securities
is not significant.

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an
internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
large customer. Limits and scoring attributed to large
customers are reviewed once a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on trade receivable balances individually or based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the Directors consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

47. ERMIA(E)

b.

TREAREEBEREE(E)
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)
Other receivables

The Group has applied ECL model on other receivables
in which the impairment assessment for those receivables
with gross carrying amount of RMB143,531,000 (31
December 2018: RMB68,185,000) that are either listed
or multinational companies with good financial position
and without recent default history are based on 12m ECL
while the remaining balances with increase in credit risk
are assessed based on lifetime ECL (not credit impaired).

Loan receivables and interest receivables, pledged bank
deposits, restricted bank balance, and bank balances

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on loan receivables and interest receivables,
pledged bank deposits, restricted bank balance, and
bank balances based on 12m ECL as there has not been
significantly increase in credit risk.

The credit risk on loan receivables and interest
receivables are limited because all loan receivables are
secured over certain collaterals of the borrowers.

The credit risks on pledged bank deposits and bank
balances are limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
or national credit-rating agencies.

Based on the Group's internal credit rating, no material
impairment loss allowance is recognised for loan
receivables and interest receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances.

—B-NER
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

238

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

For financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount
that the Group has guaranteed a under the respective
contracts was RMB453,498,000 as at 31 December 2019
(31 December 2018: RMB234,473,000). The credit risks on
financial guarantee contracts is considered to be either
default or virtually certain to default given the financial
position of those counterparties. Accordingly, the loss
allowance is measured at lifetime ECL and details of the
financial guarantee contracts are set out in note 37.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk on:

o Loan receivables which are provided to individual
third parties with no history of default; and

J Ligquid funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit rating.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is in the PRC which accounted for 89% (31
December 2018: 85%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2019.

Other than above, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

b.

47. ERMIA(E)

TREAREEBEREE(E)
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)

The table below is the internal credit policy of the Group:

47. ERMIA(E)

b. EREREEZEERBE(E)

EEmERE R BERE(E)

TERAAEENAFEERER

Internal Trade Other financial
credit rating Description receivables assets/other items
HitemEE
REBEETR R B2 EWRE HitEH
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and  Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
iET S does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired 1218 ATEEAZ B &8
RHHFAFEENRRBY EERBHFR EHEREERE-
BEERE
High risk There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
= AR credit risk since initial recognition through not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
information developed internally or external ZHIBEMEEEIE- 2HEHEESE -
resources EEERE EBEERE
*B%‘Jmﬁﬂiﬂ\ﬁ(ﬁﬁ%@m =ERR B NiaHE
FRIATRA R IE
Doubtful There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
TF5E credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
RRBRREEREERNE FHRBEERE- 2HEHREEEE-
FERE EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtoris ~ Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
s in severe financial difficulty and the Group biEi=E 0] s FRIE
has no realistic prospect of recovery
EE TJ%@E«TJ S BARNBRENBRSE  MAKE
EFRUEI AT AY

—B-NER
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of

47. ERMIA(E)

b. EREREEZEERBE(E)

EEmERE R BERE(E)
SRBIRETRYER BTG

the Group's financial assets and financial guarantee NAEBESREERMBERELD
contracts which are subject to ECL assessment: MiEERR :
External Internal
credit ratin credit rating  12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amounts
RGEETL  ABEERS  1EPRRERBEAER 5
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
ZE-pE ZE3)\E
t2A=t-B +ZA=t-H
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
it ARET TR AREFT
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BATEG AR ARG ERIE
Listed bond investments 23 B2-B+ N/A 12-month ECL 19,482 29.274
ITHEFRE Sl PEARSBEEER
Unlisted bond investments 23 B2-B+ N/A 12-month ECL 7,280 19,757
REMEHRE il NEARBEEER
Financial assets at amortised cost
RERRATEZRER
Trade receivables 27 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 191,952 M,
TS R Fi) — 2SEEEAEAREEE)
Low risk Lifetime ECL (individually assessed, 38,948 99,894
ERR not credit- \mpalred)
e
(fERIsTE - BEEwE)
High risk Lifetime ECL (individually assessed, 48,092 -
Bl not credit |mpa|red)
LHEHEEEE
(It - BEEwE)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (credt impaired) 13,296 13,296
i3 2ERBEEFR(EERR)
Loan receivables and interest receivable 28 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 15,004 12,187
EREFREYFHE MNaf igel EREHEESR
Other receivables 2 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 143,531 68,185
Etb R MR igel ERRSEESR
High risk Lifetime ECL (not credit |mpa|red) 74,738 99,988
Bk 2EREEEFE(REERE)
Pledged bank deposits 29 Baa2-Al N/A 12-month ECL 313,265 285,634
SR TR nOTEEcEER
Restricted bank balance 29 AAA N/A 12-month ECL 69,109 -
SRAIBER @A EAESEESE
Bank balances and cash 29 Baa2 - Al N/A 12-month ECL 270,836 701,946
BEHRIAS TEH ERRHEESE
Other item
EthER
Financial guarantee contracts (Note 1) 37 N/A High risk Lifetime ECL 453,498 234,473
SBERAN (M) N BER *HBHEERE
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)

Notes:

m

—B-NER

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount
represents the maximum amount the Group has guaranteed
under the respective contracts.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances
or credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected credit
losses on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by
past due status.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ ageing to measure ECL allowance for its
customers which grouped by different segment in relation
to its operations because these customers consist of a large
number of small customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
following table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed based
on provision matrix as at 31 December 2019 within lifetime
ECL (not credit impaired). Trade receivables with significant
outstanding balances and with gross carrying amounts of
RMB87,040,000 (31 December 2018: RMB99,894,000) as at 31
December 2019 were assessed individually. As part of these
debtors with gross amounts of RMB38,948,000 (31 December
2018: RMB99,894,000) with significant balances are either
listed or multinational companies with good financial position
and without recent default history, they are all classified as
low risk and loss rate of 1% is applied. For the remaining
debtors with gross amounts of RMB48,092,000 with significant
balances are long outstanding balances and classified as high
risk, average loss rate of 48% is applies.

47. ERMIA(E)

b.

EREREECEERBE(E)

EEmERE R BERE(E)

BiaE:

m

RUBEREOMS - REEEAXR
SEBRBHESHEERZIES S
e

MBS EWRFIARN S - ARBEAE
B BWMERANESRB T ERE
MEREEBETEBERE - KA
BEARBREHBREERENREA
Sh - AEEEBEABEEFELAE
MBBEREEZEREMNEREE
&8 -

EAREEFERREEN R &
SEERARBEANKRTZEEE
BENRTRS MBI DNE P HTELH
FEBEEE  DHRZERFRE
REELARRBRBEGNNEETS
MmZERBFEREBEFRIEA LK
FEBI MR ERENEN - TR
RUERHEHEESB(EEER
BIZESERRBR=_Z—IEF
TZA=Zt+—RRBEHEREETG)E
BERBER - R _T—hF+=
A=t HBAEXREEEHEEERR
A R#87,040,000T( =T — N\FE
TZA=+—8: AR%99,894,000
TO) 2B B EMREEITE BT -
HREERELEB(BEAARYE
38,948,000 L (=T —NF+=A
=+—H : AR¥99,894,0007T)) &)
D REAN BITERRR T R
MEENREO ETMARRERR
Al REREAEESEARER
RER1%ZEEFIE - siea THAE
REEBONZERIWER(BREAA
R #48,092,0007T) W AR A »
BASER - ER48% 2 FEEF
z °
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. *RI A (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. E¢REAREEEERBE(E)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued) SRR R ERE(E)
Gross carrying amount of trade receivables assessed ERBEERT G2 E S RKIA
using provision matrix: ZBREAE
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZEB-hE+=ZA=+—H
Average Gross trade Net trade
loss rate  receivables ECL receivables
9 EZEWK T E5k

BRE MR FEER HEFE
RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARETR

Current (not past due) ENEA(KAH) 3% 71,940 2,158 69,782
1-30 days past due BHENE30KR 5% 71,150 3,203 67,947
31-90 days past due RN ESCIPN 8% 36,198 2,924 33,274
91-180 days past due BHI91E 180K 1% 12,664 1,431 11,233
More than 180 days past due  #EHiBiB180K N/ATER = - -
191,952 9,716 182,236

As at 31 December 2018 R=Z-NF+=A=+—H
Average  Gross trade Net trade
loss rate  receivables ECL  receivables
T BHREHK TR EokE
BEE HIEEE FEEE WREFE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Current (not past due) ENEA(R#EHA) 3% 34,966 975 33,991
1-30 days past due #EI1 230K 4% 39,218 1,680 37,538
31-90 days past due BHI3IEQOK 8% 25,286 2,069 23,217
91-180 days past due BHEI91 R 180K 12% 10,500 1,303 9,197
More than 180 days past due  #HIE 180K 15% 1,807 272 1,535

111,777 6,299 105,478
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific trade receivable is updated.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group provided
RMB3,417,000 (31 December 2018: RMB6,299,000)
impairment loss for trade receivables, based on the
provision matrix. Impairment loss of RMB23,625,000 (31
December 2018: RMB2,770,000) and nil (31 December
2018: RMB10,303,000) were recognised in profit or
loss on individually assessed and credit-impaired
respectively.

—B-NER

47. ERMIA(E)

b.

EREREECEERBE(E)

EEmERE R BERE(E)

HETBIEEDERNE 5 EEKRIEAER
R ERERABREMSIESLE
WE - WRBRBFNHBZ KA
2 BN RIS B0 AT 1 B RHE
BonHAEREEES R E
REMBERZRUWFIANEEE
HE E# -

RZE—hFE+ZA=+—8 " &«
SEREBEBEEERE S EKFIE
R AREE3,417,0000( ZF— N\
+ZA=+—8: AR¥6,299,000
TL)HREREE - 28I AAR
# 23,625,000 ( ZE—N\F+=A
=+—H : ARK#%2770,0007t) xZ
(ZZE—NE+ZA=Z+—8: AR
#10,303,0007T ) #Y8 (B E5 18 Th 1 (&
RIFFERBERER - o RIERE
BB -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. I A(E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. E¢REAREEEERBE(E)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued) EEER R ERE (&)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TRETRBEBEGEHEZEHE SR
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the WEREBREHBEHEE BB
simplified approach. E
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HEH 2HmEE
FEER FEEBR
(BEERE) (FERE) wat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFT AR®TTT

As at 1 April 2018 R-ZE-N\EWMA—A - 2,993 2,993
Impairment losses recognised ~ HARE R R EE B

during the period

- impairment losses recognised — B HERRIEEE 9,069 10,303 19,372
Exchange adjustments Rk 94 - 94

As at 31 December 2018 and R=-ZE—N\&E
1 January 2019 T=ZH=+-BK
—E_hE—F—§ 9,163 13,296 22,459

Impairment losses recognised — RAFEE D A6 E

during the current year BiE

— impairment losses recognised —BRERREEE 27,042 - 27,042
Exchange adjustments BE SR 88 - 88
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z-1&

+=A=+—H 36,293 13,296 49,589

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on HEBEERDERREABHAE
historical observed default rates over the expected life RAERRNBRMBZELENEX
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking Wiz BB H A LB E R AL Al
information that is available without undue cost or effort. ISR TEERMEL A -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. I A(E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. E¢REAREEEERBE(E)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued) =BERRAERE(E)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TRETABHEAMERFIAD ER
and 12-month ECL that have been recognised for other FHIBEMEEEFERI12EAERE
receivables. HEBEE o
Lifetime ECL
12-month (not credit-
ECL impaired) Total
128 AFEH 2HEHEE
FEER BR(EGEHE) wat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFT ARETT

As at 1 April 2018 R-ZE-N\EWMA—A - = -
Impairment losses recognised ~ BARE R R EE B

during the period

- impairment losses recognised —BERREE B 1,309 8,441 9,750

As at 31 December 2018 and R=-ZE—N\&E
1 January 2019 T=ZH=+-BK
—E-NFE—-HA—H 1,309 8,441 9,750

Impairment losses recognised  ANF[E B BRI ERE

during the current year

—impairment losses recognised —EERREEE 3,573 8,139 11,712
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-1F
+=ZA=+-~H 4,882 16,580 21,462
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

246

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities at FVTPL, listed
fund investments and listed bond investments. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. Majority of
the Group's equity investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices as
at the reporting date. Majority of the Group's bond
investments are listed on various bond markets and are
valued at quoted market prices as at the reporting date.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risks at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective equity and debt
instruments had been 1% (31 December 2018: 1%)
higher/lower:

J the Group's loss after tax for the year ended
31 December 2019 would have decreased/
increased by RMB497,000 (31 December 2018:
decreased/increased by RMB2,183,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of held for trading
investments; and

. investment valuation reserve would have increased/
decreased by RMB268,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB490,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed bond investments.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk primarily by obtaining
funding from immediate holding company and Yingkou
Coastal Bank and other measures as set out in note 2.

47. ERMIA(E)

b.

ERAREEBEREE(E)

HE%E R

AEBRERAFEFABGEZ £
TRERS - LHESRERED
BEHFRENKREMAZBAERE
B o AEBEAE D BRARE B R
P - WRHwE B MR RTE
HE - AEERBNEFRERZ
BEEFmH LW - XRHmE B
P EGE -

HRE DT

ATHERESTDRAEERHTS
BHAR 2 BRER T AEE -

EEBEBRARERITAZER L
T (ZE—NE+ = A
=+—8 :1%)8:

s AEFEHE-_ZT-HAFE+=
A=+—BILFENBRRHE
EEEABEEEZREL
RNFAE B MR 18 A
R #497,000 (ZZF — )\ F
+-A=+—8: BHEESE
B 18 A R ¥ 2,183,000
T R

o AEBWMREMHEMESBREL
MEHFREZ A FEES)mE
hn > AR #268,0007T (=
T-NF+-A=+—H: A
R #490,0007T) °

RBELEE

MBETRAREEKHEETAEE
BHOHRAKENES 8K
EHESEREUARABDESERER
EoEY-EARENRSESERE
ER - AEEXTBFEEMERER
RAEIRE O BRITAREMTTE
DEEe KMEBRDHESR
% - AP RE2FTE o
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial

liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2019

47. ERMIA(E)

b.

TS.

mBELEE(E)

MEE DA

TREAREEBEREE(E)

THBRFAHALREBEIFITES

BREBENRBANINHBER
RIGTHR R L E A e & K

B Paray
2%
yam Eh

& A

WEREAH  EXREWEEMNREY
RAESREMGRR - RIFITES
BEENIHETERLOENER

B -

o 0 3

SH

o

RBERMEMAER SR
ERERETIRTH A K
> BIRMRSBEHAREHRD
K HEMR o

R-B-NAF+=ZA=1+—H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

SHEREBRER

Carrying

On demand Total amount

or within undiscounted asat

Tyear 1-2year 2-5years  >5years  cashflow 31.12.2019

RZ2-1%

t2AR

REX 4FX8%  =t-H

g-FR  -EEME  WEZLE IEh BeNE Kaf

RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn  ARETR

Trade and others payables B REMERTE 1,035,694 - - - 1,035,694 1,035,694

Bill payables ERZE 729,969 - - - 729969 729,969

Amount due to immediate holding company R ERERAAFE 16,962 - - - 16,962 16,655

Corporate bonds NAES 8,495 11,228 13,030 83,438 116,191 80,533

Convertible bonds - liability component MERES-8ETH 35,605 252,323 1,099,539 - 1,387,467 776,973

Borrowings & 5,018,879 5,365,107 1,153,832 - 11,537,818 10,172,417

Lease liabilities fHEEf 34,747 10,798 4,857 - 50,402 45,493

Financial quarantee contracts BBERAY 453,498 - - - 453,498 -

Total Ait 7,333,849 5,639,456 2,271,258 83,438 15,328,001 12,857,734
247
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. €MI E(&)

EREREEZEERBE(E)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b.
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBELEE(E)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued) HEA DR ()
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-NF+=H=+—H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

248

BHERERART
Carrying
On demand Total amount
or within undiscounted as at
Tyear  1-2year  2-5Syears  >5years  cashflow  31.12.2018
RZF-N\E
e
BEX Bx¥E  =1-A
3—FN  —FEME WERLE BEE RenE SEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARETRL ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Trade and others payables EAREMEMNZE 1,150,010 - - - 1,150,010 1,150,010
Bill payables EfZE 576,664 - - - 576,664 576,664
Amount due to immediate holding company ~ EREZERAAFE - 1872931 - - 1872931 1,706,956
Corporate bonds LARS 234,665 11,366 13,343 89,559 348,933 290949
Convertible bonds - liability component MERES-aETH 21754 21,754 263,714 - 307,222 227,498
Borrowings B3 3636500 1482654 121,303 - 520457 4797333
Obligations under finance leases HEMEALE 7,725 7725 10,990 - 26,440 24,566
Obligations under financing arrangements BETHAE 2,778,082 - - - 2778082 2693469
Financial guarantee contracts IBEREY 234,473 - - - 234,473 208,382
Total aif 8639873 33%6430 409,35 89559 12535212 169580

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2018, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
borrowings amounted to RMB48,078,000 (31 December
2019: Nil). Taking into account the Group's financial
position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that these bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

B 5 1 2 SRR SRR RH SR 1T 18 SR
ALRBBAMTRD MHRERE—
FAI-W-RZB-NFE+_H
=t—B ZERTEFEEER
#83E AR ¥48,078,0007t (ZZE— N
FTZA=+—08:8) KEEX
SEZHBRR  EERRB|ITT
RABETTEEBIEET BRIZAE
K BEEHREUSFRTERHSGR
B2 st BIE R A HEE -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. €MI E(&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. E¢REAREEEERBE(E)
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBELEE(E)

Liquidity risk tables (Continued) TEVE SRR K ()

TRAMAHAAREREENESE
BERITEFNASLBELMNERS

The following table details the Group's aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows for bank borrowings
repayable on demand without taking into account the M - MERE R R 2 SRE G
repayment on demand clause. To the extent that interest HE - BEREREDIRZFHF E5T
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is - ARMEBESEIARSHEBER
derived from weighted average interest rate at the end of B INRE IR R H ARG -
reporting period.

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

SOREARERY
On demand Total
Weighted ~ or within undiscounted ~ Carrying
average Tyear 1-2years 2-5years  >5years  cashflow amount
it 387 REX BRER
ERAZE  d-%p -EEWE  WERLE if%  RERE R
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETT ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR
Secured bank borrowings with HERERERRTH
repayable on demand clause: BERRAER
As at 31 December 2019 RZ2-n5+2R
=t-H = = = - - - -
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E12H
=t+-A 36 48,101 - - - 48,101 48,078

The amounts above include certain variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
is subject to change if change in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

% By 7 R ZE) A I E S R
FREEMGEHE - Al EdeB(E
BRETREBHXRGFEMNETES
RAEBETA)KESEY -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47. €MI E(&)

250

Fair value measurements

Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

ATEIE

RFEFERBAFEFEZHA
BEABREERATVEFEZS
ABEHERBZERUNELRSE
— BOARE=H > FEWOT

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in s ERBWABEBEAERNE
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that AHRRGEZHREERE
the entity can access at the measurement date. BERER T 5 2 WEB (R H

) o

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

J Level 3 inputs are inputs that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Details of the recurring fair value measurement of
the relevant assets are set out in note 23 of these
consolidated financial statements. During the current
year and prior period, these were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2, nor transfers into Level 3.

Except for convertible bonds-liabilities component
which have a fair value of RMB766,390,000 (31 December
2018: RMB264,791,000), the Directors consider that
the carrying amounts of the other financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate
their respective fair values at the end of the reporting
period, determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash
flow analysis.

s BE_RBAREBAREENR
REZ(AER)LEE (A H
BRI TBREZBA
BR(E-—RARRzHRER
I

o B=RBAREAYIFERT
BIEmSEBRZHABE(T
ABRHABE)

FHREENREERATEFEFS
BN AP BRI E23 - RA
FEMBAEHE  E-—FME_R
ZHAYEER  TESAEZE=H
BB -

B A EAARET766,390,0007T( =
T-N\FE+_A=+—H: @ AR¥E
264,791,0007T) B AJ R (EH — BE
%ﬁ%'§$%%'%ﬁﬁﬁi'

B BARRRAREHEKAA
@Zimﬂﬁ%&imﬂﬁf E’JEEETE
HEZENATEMESE  REYL
TﬁZmE@ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
DITEE °
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48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF

SUBSIDIARIES

During the current year and prior period, the Group continued
to actively seek for investment opportunities through
acquisitions and has completed several acquisitions of
subsidiaries. Meanwhile, the Group also disposed of several
subsidiaries to concentrate on its core businesses and realise
the Group's property assets through disposal of subsidiaries.
The following tables summarised these transactions:

(a)

Acquisitions

For the year ended 31 December 2019

48.

W BB I i & K S A F

RAFERBESRE  AEREERBK
BEEREBSRKRERSE  YEEREE

EFHBAT - AK

AEBTFEEET

MEBARNEIRNZOER  WEBHE
MEBARBRARENNEEE - TRA

ZERGIHME
(a) WiE

BE—ZE-NF+-A=1+—-Hi

FE
Percentage
Name of of interest Fair value of purchase Date of Nature of
subsidiary acquired ~ Vendor acquired  Principal activity consideration completion acquisition
Wi e
WEZHBARER EF ARl FEER BEREAYE THAH WiRME
Huaren Real Estate An entity controlled 100%  Property development ~ RMB180,000,000 28 June 2019 Acquisition of
(Huai'an) Co., Ltd by Mr. Meng MERE AK180,0000000 ZE-NF assets through
(formerly known as EREAHzBE ~A-TAR acquisition of a
Baohua Properties subsidiary
(Huai'an) Limited) ERRENBLA
"Huaren Real Estate")* YR
FHEZ(ER)RRAA
(MBAREDE(ER)
BRAR([ELER))
Huajun Automobile*  An independent 51%  Inactive RMB1 21 May 2019 Acquisition of
¥E1E third party TELH AE®17T —ENF assets through
~%BUEZ] AA-1-H acquisition of a
subsidiary
FRNEHBAR
WiREE
Dalian Hydraulic An entity controlled 7147%  Manufacture and RMB36,000,000 30 September 2019 Acquisition of
Machinery Co., Limited by Mr. Meng maintenance of AREH000000  ZF-NF business
("Dalian Hydraulic”) ~ ZLAEH 2 &5 hydraulic machinery and hA=1H ES
RERNBRHARLR electrical engineering
(TA&HAN)) An independent 22.53%  construction
third party TEREERNIBEEE
~%BUE=] TIRER
—ZE-NFR 251
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48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF 48. WIER HEMB AR (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(a) Acquisitions (Continued) (a) WHE(#E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued) BE2_E-NF+_-_A=1+—HIF
E(#&)

E In view that the construction of the property development # ERZMTE A RN Y EMBEMHEED
of the subsidiary is substantially completed and it did not RHZK - EUWTBEAERALR
include all the inputs and associated processes necessary to ERRAEERHABNIF - #HZK
manage and produce outputs, the acquisition is accounted for BAWBEEADR -

as an acquisition of assets.

& The entity has not yet commenced any business activities and g ZEBEARBEMER - Bt F
therefore it does not constitute a business combination. B —IEEBE

Assets acquired and liabilities in acquisition of assets BBUIE I B 2 R B E R

through acquisition of subsidiaries assumed at the date HEW g BERAEZBE

of acquisition

Huaren Huajun
Real Estate Automobile Total
BECE¥ EERE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Property, plant and WE - BB REE
equipment 65 - 65
Properties held for sale BIERE 2 240,368 = 240,368
Deposits and other e Rk H A FE Y RIR
receivables 40,075 12,320 52,395
Bank balances and cash BITES MRS 8,789 64 8,853
Amounts due to fellow ANIEE NI AGIE e
subsidiaries (160,000) - (160,000)
Trade and other payables E 5 REMENTE (109,297) (6,500) (115,797)
20,000 5,884 25,884
Interests of joint venture BEDERR - (5,884) (5,884)
Assignment of debt EikeEE 160,000 - 160,000
180,000 - 180,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Acquisitions (Continued)

48. WER HEWB QR (&)

(a) WHE(#E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

Fair value of consideration transferred in acquisition of

assets through acquisition of subsidiaries

BE—ZF-NF+Z-A=+—HIF
E(#E)

EBRI B R TR WA E 2 W
fE2 AFME

Huaren Huajun
Real Estate Automobile Total
ECBE¥ EERE wmat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T AR¥TF T AR¥ET T
Issue of convertible bonds 277 A[# IR EFH 180,000 - 180,000

Net cash inflow on acquisition of assets through
acquisition of subsidiaries for the year ended 31

BE—_T—NF+-A=+—HIt
FEEBKENBAFKELEEZ

December 2019 HETAFE
Huaren Huajun
Real Estate Automobile Total
H-BHE EERE wst
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR AR¥T R AR¥T
Cash consideration paid EfRERE - - -
Less: Bank balances and B B 2 IRITE R
cash acquired NIR& 8,789 64 8,853
8,789 64 8,853
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

254

(a)

Acquisitions (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

Acquisition of Dalian Hydraulic

On 6 December 2018, Huajun Industrial Park
Management (China) Limited, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
subscription agreement with Liaoning Huajun Equipment
Manufacturing Co., Limited (the “Vendor A"), a company
ultimately wholly owned by Mr. Meng and his spouse,
and Mr. Cong Liming (the “Vendor B"”), an independent
third party, for acquisition of 77.47% and 22.53% of
the entire issued share capital respectively in Dalian
Hydraulic for a cash consideration of RMB27,889,000
to the vendor A and 873,875 new shares issued by the
Company to the Vendor B. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the acquisition method. Dalian
Hydraulic was acquired so as to develop the Group's
hydraulic business. The acquisition was completed on 30
September 2019.

48. WER HEWB QR ()

(a)

W kg (&)

BE_ZF-NF+ZA=+—HIF
E(#E)

WREXER S

RZE—-NE+ZANB EEE
¥BREE(FR)BRAR(RARZ
ME2EWNBAR) BEBEFER
SEARAFR([ERA]l —HER
EERERBREEZEREBENRT)
RERHLE(EAB]  —8BBEL
FE=F)FTURERE  UBEeNRE
AR#27,889,000cH BIMEHAR
M5 BUE KBR I 2 I E 31T
AR ANE77.47 % [222.53% A R AR
A)E1TH873,875M ¥ K10 o sZTE UK
BORAWEEAR - WEXER
NABERAEBRNDES - ZWHE
BER=ZE—NFNALA=Z+THZEK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

Acquisitions (Continued)

48. WER HEWB QR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

Acquisition of Dalian Hydraulic (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

Wi (48)

BE_F-NF1+Z-A=+—HILF
E(#E)

WEEARER ) ()

RERBEHHZOCUBEERDHER

acquisition are as follows: BEMT
Fair value
ATE
RMB’'000
AR¥F R
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR 163,327
Right-of-use assets FREEE 174,369
Inventories Ve 25,640
Deposits and other receivables e & H A EW A 398,979
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIRE 9,410
Trade and other payables B 5 K E b 5IE (286,522)
Bill payables [N RIE (307,600)
Tax payables FERT IR (904)
Borrowings EEN (109,500)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIEEE (7,208)
59,991
Cash consideration paid ERENRE 27,889
Issuance of shares 1T D 6,398
34,287
Consideration transferred EEENE 34,287
Less: net assets acquired W BWEFEE (59,991)
(25,704)
Deemed contribution from controlling REERRETE
shareholder 19,913
Gain on bargain purchase recognised REM I R EERREERE W
in other gain and losses (5,791)
255
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

256

Acquisitions (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

Acquisition of Dalian Hydraulic (Continued)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Dalian Hydraulic

48. WER HEWB QR ()

(a)

W kg (&)

BE_ZF-NF+ZA=+—HIF
E(#E)

WEEARE R ) ()

W A8 ) 2 3R & i R

RMB’'000

AR¥ETF T

Cash consideration paid ERBeNRE (27,889)
Add: Bank balances and cash acquired e BWEZRITESREES 9,410
(18,479)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB433,000 have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and
have been recognised as an expense in the current year,
within the administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date
of acquisition amounted to RMB398,979,000. The gross
contractual amounts of those trade and other receivables
acquired amounted to RMB398,979,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of
the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected
amounted to RMB nil.

Included in the loss for the year is RMB335,000
attributable to the additional business generated
by Dalian Hydraulic. Revenue for the year includes
RMB20,933,000 generated from Dalian Hydraulic.

W B A ARE433,000TE B
EEEAETNR  YEER/X
FEMMAX  DEAGRGBEERE
2 ERERAZITRAX

B MNHEMEKRERNKERR
NFEAB AR 398979,000 T °
RKEEE ZEESRHEME
WHREBZBEHNEBERARARE
398,979,000t ° F UK fE B HA % 78 &Y
EEWBZENREREZ REM
FTAAREET -

KBERNFAELNBEINEBE RGN
AR 335,000t AFAEHE © F
RNREBEARERNEEHAR
#20,933,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF 48. WER HEMB AT (£)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

Acquisitions (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

Acquisition of Dalian Hydraulic (Continued)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Dalian Hydraulic
(Continued)

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019,
total revenue of the Group for the year would have been
RMB3,759,283,000, and loss for the year would have
been RMB637,961,000. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the “pro-forma” revenue and profit
of the Group had Dalian Hydraulic been acquired at
the beginning of the current year, the directors of the
Company have:

J calculated depreciation of plant and equipment
acquired on the basis of the fair values arising in
the initial accounting for the business combination
rather than the carrying amounts recognised in the
pre-acquisition financial statements; and

o determined borrowing costs based on the funding
levels, credit ratings and debt/equity position of the
Group after the business combination.

—B-NER

(a)

Wi (48)

BE_F-NF1+Z-A=+—HILF
E(#E)

WEEARER ) ()

WIERBER N2 Re R FE(E)

HWUBER-_ZT—NALF—A—B%=
K AEBFEFAZRREEAAR
#%3,759,283,0007T © RF AEIE
B ANRB637,961,0007T - #HEE
FHEMHE YT —E R RKE WD
ERZTE-—NF—A—HBEKMmMA
SEBSERER R REEE
B OMERERRREREZTEA -

HWERAFEMRBOERS - R©
BEASEZ [HE ] W &g F
i ARAEERD

o ENREXBAGETIISER
BRIBRFTEL Z AFE (3
KRB AT SRR 2 BRE
B) SHEMBERER&E
ZHE R

o ERNAKEREHAMHERZE

BKF - EEFARKEY,
AR EETE B TR AN ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF 48. WK HEMB AR (A)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(a) Acquisitions (Continued) (a) WHE(#E)
For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 RZFBE-NFOAF-HE=F-N
F+ZA=1+—HEH
Percentage Fair value
Name of subsidiary of interest ~ Principal of purchase Date of Nature of
acquired Vendor acquired  activity consideration ~ completion acquisition
LEyd 5
Wi HBRRAR B BAlL  IERER BEREATE xAAH WELE
Huajun Wuxi® Two independent 100%  Property RMB1,354,645,000 6 July 2018 Acquisition of assets through
ZERG third parties development  ARH ZE-\ELARA  acquisition of a subsidiary
MEBIEZA UELES 1,354,645,0007C BRKBHBARIEEE
Wuxi Huiyuan Real Estate Anindependent 100%  Property RMB355,950,000 6 July 2018 Acquisition of assets through
Co, Ltd. ("Wuxi Huiyuan") third party development  ARH ZE-NELARA  acquisition of a subsidiary
EATREERERAN —RBUE=H VEGES 355,950,000 FRNENELNLELE
(rEssg])
Wuxi Huize* Two independent 55%  Property RMB448,070,000 6 July 2018 Acquisition of assets through
EREE third parties development  ARH ZE-\ELARA  acquisition of a subsidiary
MEBIE=H VEGES 1448,070,0007C FRNENELNLELE
Yingkou Yuzhu Science And Anindependent 100%  Production of RMB1 1 August 2018 Acquisition of assets through
Technology Development third party photovoltaic AREIT ZE-\ENA-B  acquisition of a subsidiary
Limited ("Yuzhu") —%BUE=F products FRNENBLAANEEE
ENIRMBER EERRER
ERAR(ER])
Huajun Power (Yingkou) Co., Ltd.  An independent 100%  Production of RMBB8,060,000 1 August 2018 Acquisition of assets through
("Huajun Power") third party photovoltaic ARE8060000T ZE-NENA—H  acquisition of a subsidiary
E2E/(20)8RAH —RBUE=H products BRNEHEBAAILEEE
([£2%N)) EERRER
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e IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Acquisitions (Continued)

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

48. WER HEWB QR (&)

(a)

Wi (48)

RZFBE-NFOA-HE=F-N

(Continued) FHZA=+—HHRE(E)
Percentage Fair value

Name of subsidiary of interest ~ Principal of purchase Date of Nature of

acquired Vendor acquired  activity consideration  completion acquisition
W 2B

SR MBRALE g BAl  IEER BEREATE xAAH WELE

Shangfang Two independent 100%  Property RMB135,000,000 10 August 2018 Acquisition of assets through

9] third parties development  AR® ZE-NENATH  acquisition of subsidiary

MEBUE=R VELES 135,000,007 BRUEHBARLESE

Liaoning Wanhua Property An entity controlled 100%  Property Nif* 12 September 2018 Acquisition of assets through
Senvice Co,, Ltd. ("Wanhua") by Mr. Meng management Eid E)\% acquisition of a subsidiary

REEENRRBERAT LEEEN ER VES AATZA FRNENEANLEEE
(&%)

Yingkou Yi Hua Green An entity controlled 100%  Printing RMB30,000,000 9 November 2018 Acquisition of assets through
Packaging Printing Co., Ltd. by Mr. Meng Il ARH30,000,0007 —5-/\F acquisition of a subsidiary
("Yi Hua") LR ER t=AAR FRNENEANLEEE

BNEEREARABARLT
(&%)

e These acquisitions have no purchase consideration because * HRERRINIBE BESRIAEZ

the assets acquired are equal to the liabilities assumed in the
respective companies.

i The operations of these subsidiaries, including the
development of properties, are in suspension phases
regardless of the pre-sales of properties and certain
development are conducted in earlier periods, there are no
such resources that enable these subsidiaries to continue
as business prior to the acquisitions. The management
considered that in view of that business can only be resumed
upon the fund injection and resources provided by the Group
subsequent to the acquisitions, accordingly, the acquisitions
do not constitute a business.

All the above acquisitions do not constitute a business
because they do not include an input and process
applied to those inputs, which together are or will be
used to create output.

—B-NER

BE ZFUBALEBERE -

" THEEMEERNRFHETNE
THE  ZEWBARNER(RRE
MERE)RNEFRE  TEAR
EVRE EEA YN
X% EEERR EREBEATR
REERWBIRTERRHERRK
B Bt - BB IR

I I T B 1 A BUE K FE A
Rz ABENERF(EARAR
HHAREIZE L) - WA R
BB —EER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

260

(a)

Acquisitions (Continued)

48. WER HEWB QR ()

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

(Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of

(a) WHE(#E)

RZB-NFOAA-BHE=Z-N
F+=A=1+—HHRE (&)

Rk R IE BERAEZAE

acquisition
Wuxi Huajun
Project Yuzhu Power  Shangfang Others Total
a5EE % EEE) tF it st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AREFn ARETR ARETT ARETR
Property, plant and equipment 1% - BE K& 306 132,108 1,084 5 52,006 185,509
Prepaid lease payment ENAETE = 45,708 20,228 = 10,388 76,324
Investment properties REME 118,600 - - - = 118,600
Properties held for sale BEHEZ ME 2,783,257 = = 147 400 - 2,930,657
Deposits and other receivables & & R H thfEMFIE 103,176 55,011 30,234 = 7452 195,873
Pledged bank deposits RITEERED - - 33,728 - = 33728
Bank balances and cash ROTEHRERSE 28,238 26 3 4 15 28,286
Construction and other payables B2 [ E BT 58 (499,359)  (103,550) (77,217) (12,409) (39.861)  (732,394)
Financial guarantee contracts BISERAD = (23,303) = = = (23,303)
Amounts due to fellow ERFAZHBRRFE
subsidiaries (1,512,900) = = = (20,000)  (1,532,900)
Contract liabilities Ahat (263,703) = = = = (263,703)
Bank borrowings SRITIEER (2230000  (106,000) = = = (329,000)
534,615 = 8,060 135,000 10,000 687,675
Non-controlling interests FERER(RER)
(net liabilities) 111,150 = = = = 111,150
Assignment of debt EEER 1,512,900 = = = 20,000 1,532,900
2,158,665 - 8,060 135,000 30,000 2,331,725
Note: Acquisitions of Huajun Wuxi, Wuxi Huiyuan and Wuxi WiaE . WEEEEES  EHEERESEE

Huize are collectively referred as “Wuxi Project” because
the subsidiaries are inter-linked with each other and the
acquisitions are completed on same date. Therefore, the
Directors considered that these acquisitions as a series of
transactions and the financial impacts on acquisitions should
be considered together.

miEA[ERAR | RESZSWE
AEEERRE B NERE A K o B
It BEERZERBER A FRIRS
REARAZEERBEORBGZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS...

e IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

48. WER HEWB QR (&)

(a) Acquisitions (Continued) (a) WiE(#&E)

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 RZZF-NFHA-—HZ=Z—N

(Continued) F+—A=+—HAHEE)

Fair value of consideration transferred D EEAE T N

Wuxi Huajun

Project Yuzhu Power  Shangfang Others Total

EHIER % ERES ] At a5t

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARBTRT ARBTT AR%ET:

Cash Be 564,000 - 8,060 40,000 30,000 642,060
Obligations under financing BETHRE(fHa)

arrangement (note a) 1,594,665 - - - - 1,594,665

Deferred consideration (note b)  IEIERB(H/zb) - - - 95,000 = 95,000

Total &t 2,158,665 - 8,060 135,000 30,000 2,331,725

Notes: et

(a) The amount represents the funds drawn from Yingkou Costal (a) SRELZAENE TEBKBHERRA
Bank by certain business partners of Mr. Meng on behalf of SEEALHSRITREINES M
the Group whereas the Group has entered into respective AEBEE HZEEBBET AR
financial guarantee contracts with these business partners and BREREARIEAZEFEROERA
acts as a guarantor over these borrowings (note 42). (HizE42) -

(b)  The deferred consideration represents certain specified (b) ELEREBEREGHVBHEBEEARE
property units at an equivalent value of RMB95,000,000 at the 95,000,000TTHVE T E W EEBAL -
date of contract. The property units will be transferred to the MEBUBENRETKEEETES
vendor upon its completion (note 38). (PF5E38) °

Net cash inflow (outflow) on acquisitions of subsidiaries R-FE-—NEWA—HZ—F— /1

for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 F+ZA=1+—HEHRKENE A

AlzBemA i) #88
Wuxi Huajun
Project Yuzhu Power  Shangfang Others Total
BHER % EREN ;] Hip &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT  ARBTR ARETR ARETR  AREBTR ARETR
Cash consideration paid at RZE-\FTZA
31 December 2018 “T-RZEMRE

RE (564,000) - (8,060) (40,000) (30,000) (642,060)

Less: Bank balances and cash acquired 5 : BB 2 R1TERR
b 28,238 26 3 4 15 28,286

Less: Deposits paid in prior period i : ERBESER 2
#e 564,000 - - - - 564,000
28,238 26 (8,057) (39,996) (29,985) (49,774)

—B-NER

261
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mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

48. WER HEWB QR ()

(b) Disposals (b) HE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE=F-NAF+=HA=t—-AL
FE
Percentage of

Name of subsidiary interest

disposed of Buyer disposed of  Principal activity Disposal proceeds Date of completion

HEZHBAR AR g5 HEZRERAL TEEER HEMERE EF A

Huajun Technology (Yingkou)  An entity controlled 100%  Inactive Nil 31 August 2019
Company Limited ("Huajun by Mr. Meng BELH & “E-NENA=T-H
Technology (Yingkou)) AR EE

EZRi(20)BRAR
(EEKMm(20)])

Huajun Real Estate (Dalian) ~ An entity controlled 100%  Inactive RMB1 31 August 2019
Company Limited ("Huajun by Mr. Meng e AR ZE-NENAZT-H
Real Estate (Dalian)") hEERH ER

EREX(RB)RRAT
([#ZEZ(XE)])

Huajun Hotel (Gaizhou) An independent 100%  Inactive Nil 4 September 2019
Company Limited third party TELH & “E-NENAWA
("Huajun Hotel (Gaizhou)") —&BUE=}

ZEREEM)BRAA
((ZFREEEM])

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was KEERIREZ BERBEST

lost

Huajun Huajun Huajun

Technology Real Estate Hotel
(Yingkou) (Dalian) (Gaizhou) Total

EEHM EREX EEEE
(n) (KE) (BN) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Property, plant and equipment nE  BERR 1,189 1 - 1,190

Deposits and other receivables B REMERIE 226 = = 226

Amount due from immediate holding  EWE B 2R A RIZUA(FiE)
company (Note) - 451,473 - 451,473

Bank balances and cash RITEAERS 3 12 4 19

Other payables Eth NI (1,727) S (19) (1,742)

Borrowings EES - (453,498) = (453,498)

(309) (2,012) (11) (2,332)

Note: The balance was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed
term of repayment.

Wi - BEBRAEER S8 AYEERE
2 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

!
NTS

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF 48. WER HEMB AT (£)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Disposals (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

(b)

HE (&)

BE_F-NF+Z-A=1+—-HI
FE (&)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & BB 2 Bl 2 Wam
Huajun Huajun Huajun
Technology Real Estate Hotel
(Yingkou) (Dalian) (Gaizhou) Total
EEZRM EREE EERE
(#n) (KE) (BM) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETRT AR¥ETR AR¥ETR
Consideration R S - - -
Net liabilities disposed of BLEREFR (309) (2,012) (11) (2,332)
(309) (2,012) (11) (2,332)
Deemed shareholder contribution RERRIE 309 2,012 = 2,321

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LERBAR WS -

= (1) (1)

Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2019

BE_FT-NF+_A=+—HI
FE - HEWBRRZFRL

Huajun Huajun Huajun

Technology Real Estate Hotel
(Yingkou) (Dalian) (Gaizhou) Total

EERH EREX ERERE
(#A) (KE) (BM) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Cash consideration received at BR-ZE-NE+-A=1t—-H
31 December 2019 WEBzBERE - - - -
Less: Bank balances and cash disposal of i : & 2 RITEHKE (3) (12) 4) (19)
(3) (12) (4) (19)
—T-NEFRW 263
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

264

Disposals (Continued)

48. WER HEWB QR ()

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

Percentage of

(b) HE(#E)

RZB-NFOAA-BHE=Z-N
Ft+ZA=+—HAH

Name of subsidiary interest
disposed of Buyer disposed of  Principal activity Disposal proceeds Date of completion
& 2 RE

HEZHBARSLHE &7 ol TERB hEMEHE Tehk A

Dalian Huashunjie Parties significantly 100%  Inactive Nil 5 June 2018
Logistics Co., Ltd. influenced by TEEK & —Z-\§5A1A
("Dalian Huashunjie") Mr Meng

REZERMRARAA(AZ RAXEEAYE
) Ry

Dalian Huataian Logistics Parties significantly 100%  Inactive Nil 5 June 2018
Co., Ltd. ("Dalian Huataian")  influenced by TEEK & —Z-\§5A1A

RELZRZMRARAR Mr Meng
(TREERZ)) RAREEATE

Ry

Dalian Huashunxin Parties significantly 100%  Inactive Nil 5 June 2018
Logistics Co., Ltd. influenced by TEEK & —Z-\§5A1A
("Dalian Huashunxin”) Mr Meng

REERENRARLA RAREBATEN
([REZES)) &R

Huajun Supply Chain Anindependent 100%  Inactive HK$22,000 30 June 2018
Management Limited third party TE5HK 22,000%7 “Z-\§XA=1H

EEHERERERLA —4BIE=)

Huajun Media Company Anindependent 100%  Inactive HK$100 31 July 2018
Limited third party EEXH 100587t ZE-\ftA=1-A

EEX(LBRARAT] —4BIE=)

Baohua Properties An entity controlled 100%  Inactive RMB1 6 August 2018
Shenyang Co., Ltd. by Mr. Meng TE5HK AR®1T —Z-\$\AE
("BH Property Shenyang”) ~ ZAERAINEE

REMEFGARAR
(R ERS )
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF 48. WIER HEMB AR (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Disposals (Continued) (b)y HEE
For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 REZFB-NFHA-HEZF-N
(Continued) F+_B=+—HEE(E)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was kLRSI BEREESN
lost

BH Property

Shenyang Others Total
REMERS Hitp #a st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBET T ARET T

Property, plant and WE -~ BB REE
equipment 2 - 2
Inventories FE 8 - 8
Deposits and other R K& E fth fE W FIE
receivables 4,876 = 4,876
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR KRS 715 = 715
Other payables H fth FE AT FRIE (5,601) = (5,601)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HER B Bz e
For the above transactions, the Group has received cash REMRFME - AEEDWEER
consideration of approximately HK$22,000 (equivalent S REL22,0008 T(HERHAR
to approximately RMB20,000) which also represents #20,0007T) * ZFRETH_ZE—N
the gain on disposal of subsidiaries for the period from FMA-—HE=ZZT—NF+=A
1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018. =T —HEREEMBRTRKE -
Net cash (outflow) inflow on disposal of subsidiaries for RZE—-NFHWA—HZ=-F—N
the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 F+—A=1—HHH HEWES
AELZFRE (R RA
BH Property
Shenyang Others Total
REMEERS HAtb mEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARBETT ARBTT

Cash consideration received R-Z—\F+_-HA

at 31 December 2018 =t+—HBEWHZIR
SRE = 20 20

Less: Bank balances and B HEZIRITEBRK
cash disposal of REe (715) = (715)

(715) 20 (695)

—E-NEFR 265
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

49. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A

266

SUBSIDIARY

For the year ended 31 December 2019

The Group was the major shareholder of an overseas fund.
On 2 May 2019, a third-party investor, being the non-
controlling shareholder of several series of a fund redeemed
his entire interests in the fund at the redemption amount of
approximately RMB8,946,000. As a result of the redemption,
the Group then become the sole shareholder of the fund and
RMB5,681,000 was adjusted out of non-controlling interests.

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December
2018

On 12 June 2018, Bao Hua Properties (China) Co., Ltd.
(“BH Properties China”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement (the
“Agreement”) with Yixing Zhongtang Real Estate Co., Ltd.
("Yixing Zhongtang”) to acquire its 15% of equity interest at
nil consideration and the debts due by Wuxi Huize to Yixing
Zhongtang at a consideration of RMB76,500,000.

The transaction contemplated under the Agreement
constituted a change in ownership interests in Wuxi Huize.

On 20 November 2018, the transfer of shares has been
completed and the equity interest of Wuxi Huize held by the
Group has been increased from 55% to 70%.

The change in ownership interest in Wuxi Huize as a result of
the transfer of equity interests has been accounted for as an
equity transaction. As the net liabilities assumed of Wuxi Huize
at the date of transaction is RMB248,108,000, the Group had
recognised a transfer of RMB37,216,000 from non-controlling
interests to accumulated losses during the current year.

Ll EEELELL L

BE-Z-NF+-A=t—-HLHF
E

AEEBBENIEEHEIERR - K _F
—NERA-R  F=HREE(AHIEXR
DESHIEERBER)BELERESHEY
fEzs - BRFIELH A RS 946,0007T ° A
RIER - REBEMKAESHE KR
B ARMES,681,0007T JE12E B3 I8 R ik 2 &

# o

R-ZB-NFNA-HEZZ2-N\F
+tZA=+—-HHHB

RZE—N\FARAA+ZH  AQazzE
MEBARMREME(PE)BRAA (MR
EWETH|)EFEPEEEFR QA
(ITEEFRE DI REEERR AT
REBUWEEHEIZ Z15% M E M IAARE
76,500,000 2 R EBREEHZELERNE
B 7 E o

ZHHEBATRET IR ZERESHBEZ
PrEHEEmES -

R=F—N\F+-A=+A  RHBHED
S TR B A 5% 2 B
55%IEZE70% °

EERECAREREDHHARES
BMEBE—BREZRS - ARRR S
HHESERZE BRFABAARE
248,108,0007T * MAEEENAFERER
FIEE R s B A R 37,216,000t &
2EHEIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

50. LEASE COMMITMENTS

!

NTS....

50. HHEHKIE

The Group as lessee AEEEREEA
31.12.2018
—E-N\EF
+ZA=+—H
RMB'000
AREFT
Within one year —F R 29,587
In the second to fifth year inclusive REZFEFERF
(BHREEMTF) 26,767
56,354

As at 31 December 2018, operating lease payments represent
rentals payable by the Group for certain of its premises. Leases
are negotiated for an average term between 1 to 5 years.

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of land use
rights, buildings and plant and machinery which the leases
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to these leases (see note 3.1). From 1
January 2019 onwards, future lease payments are recognised
as lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with the policies set out in note 4, and
the details regarding the Group’s future lease payments are
disclosed in note 26.

—B-NER

RIE—N\F+-_A=+—H8 KLHE
RIEEASEREETYERMNNES -
MENFHFHEER—ERF

AEBAEABBEEESFENE7HRS
BAKERENRZ TInERE - BFMU
MEEREENERA - NEBSIKAE
RIBWENI S EAE SRS ERIE16
5o RIBZFE  ARERABNRZ-ZE—N
F—A—HNENEH  UERBEEZSE
HEMHEaE(2EWNE3)  -BZZ
—hE—A—Af  RREEREIRE
M TR AFT S BUR AR & BT ISR L R N HE R
AHEAE MABASERKAERE
BIFHIBRIR I FE26 3 58 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

50. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Group as lessor

50. %

The Group leases out investment property under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 20
years. Lease payments are usually increased every one to five
years to reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes

variable lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

HE%F (/AE )
rEEEREEA

ZK%*ETJ%“‘%?ETME&Q%% ° %E
HEBENLRE—E=_1+F - HEKA
@ﬁ*ﬁﬁiim*u\ C AR TS
T - HEMTBEATEEENE -

A EEN KRR BN EE BHEED
B3040 A R M A R B T R
T

31.12.2019

—E-AEF

t=A=+—-H

RMB’000

AR¥®T R

Within 1 year —FR 16,539
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMEN 15,360
After 2 years but within 3 years MERBR=FN 14,819
After 3 years but within 4 years = FRERMOEAN 13,874
After 4 years but within 5 years MEREBERTEN 12,568
After 5 years hF1& 146,858
220,018

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had contracted with

RZZE-NF+-A=+—RH Kr&EEEZ
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: HHFRI M ARERHREHERIENE
ol
31.12.2018
—E-N\F
+=ZA=+—H
RMB’000
AREFT
Within one year —F R 20,101
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_FE2ERF
(BEERRE) 67,374
After five years HF% 151,927
239,402

As at 31 December 2018, all leased properties held have

committed tenants for the next 1 to 20 years.

268

g

K- N\F+-B=+—8 HARE
ZHREWERRK—EE =+ E AR
FF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

51. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 51. EXRRHEfMAE
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—8 +ZA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Capital expenditure in respect of the HEBRNERNGEEHBREA
property development projects STRBECYMERREAZ
contracted for but not provided in the AR
consolidated financial statements 1,969,075 1,775,568
Capital expenditure in respect of the S EBYE - BERRBEED
acquisition of property, plant and BRREGE T BHREA
equipment contracted for but not FHEREC BEARRX
provided for in the consolidated
financial statements 450,596 352,306
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of i& BULEE E 5T KB B A &)
subsidiaries contracted for (note (a)) W& E (ffat(a)) - 504,700
2,419,671 2,632,574
Notes: Wit
(a) Included in the amount of RMB504,700,000 were capital (a) AR #504,700,0007TaF AEANFAIE - FFIBW

commitments with following details:

On 5 December 2018, the Group entered into an agreement with the
independent third parties for the acquisitions of (i) the entire equity
interest in the Jurong Simaite Intelligent Science and Technology
Co., Ltd. ("Jurong Simaite”) and the aggregate loan owed by
Jurong Simaite at the consideration of RMB137,200,000 and (ii) the
entire equity interest in the Jiangsu Xietong Solar Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Jiangsu Xietong”) and the aggregate loan owed by Jiangsu
Xietong at the consideration of RMB367,500,000.

The completion of the above acquisitions was both subject to
various conditions to be fulfilled on or before 31 March 2019. As
at 31 March 2019, certain conditions for the completion of both
acquisitions have not been fully fulfilled, the agreements have been
lapsed on 1 April 2019. The Group has not paid any sum to the
vendors.

—B-NER

T

RZZE—NFE+-AFHA  AEEHEBT
FE=IRUBHORBEREEREERA
A([ORBEEE2BRERODTBEE
RS2 EFBBT L g REAARK
137,200,0007z R(i)VI&HBERBIEE

ARNIERBE]) 2HRE RIS
KHZ‘% RBREET L HaE  REAARK
367,500,0007T °

FREBERZ TRERRERAAN_E
—NFZRA=+—HRZAERZEN - 1
ZE-NF=ZA=1t—R > ERELAMREK
BEHZETHREMARZEENK - ARG
FER_T-NFOA-—BERR - XEEL
EAER XIS -
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52. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 52. HHEE
At the end of the reporting period, carrying values of Group's R|EHRR  TEERUREAEEZ ER
assets pledged to secure bill payables, borrowings, lease R -EBR HERGELAREHEREE
liabilities and obligations under finance leases of the Group RZEHEEZREMBENT ¢
are as follows:
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hEF —ET-)\F
+t=A=t—-H t=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Property, plant and equipment ME -« BB K ERE 707,938 452,237
Right-of-use asset/Prepaid lease payments {FHEELE FENHEFIE 254,455 224,965
Investment properties KEYE 4,783,450 5,695,775
Properties held for sale FHELHEME 5,507,010 2,056,694
Inventories FE 10,001 -
Pledged bank deposits RITHERE R 313,265 285,634
Restricted bank balances Z R HIERTTAEER 69,109 -
In addition to above pledged assets, the Group also pledged RZZBE-AFE+ZA=+—0  BREliE
certain subsidiaries’ equity interest to secure bank borrowings REEN  NEETERETFHBEAFZ
of RMB457,000,000 (31 December 2018: RMB584,000,000) and A& HE LA B A R #457,000,000( =ZF— N\
borrowings from a financial institution of RMB1,440,000,000 (31 F+=-—A=+—H : AR¥584,000,000
December 2018: RMB1,440,000,000) as at 31 December 2019. T ZBITEFI R E — e mEEERE A

R #1,440,000,000c(ZE—N\F+=A
=+—H : AR¥¥1,440,000,0007T) Z &

FIER -
53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 53. BEAR S
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FAREEAEME
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key F/AHNESREMARERAS
management personnel during the year/period were as ZBemT
follows:
1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—B-NF —E-N\EF
—HA—H MA—H
EZB-NAE ZE_T)\F
t=ZRA=+—-H +t=—A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFIT
Short-term benefits 2 HAtE A 16,152 12,202
Post-employment benefits BERL 12127 175 133

16,327 12,335
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with companies controlled/
significantly influenced by Mr. Meng

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the transactions with companies
controlled/significantly influenced by Mr. Meng for the
year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

M

—B-NER

On 18 September 2018, Baohua Properties (China)
Limited ((REMZE (F BE ) BR 2 7)), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
purchaser entered into the agreement with Nanjing
Huajun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (B R ZEE B X B R
2~ Al) (“Nanjing Huajun”) as vendor, pursuant to
which the Nanjing Huajun conditionally agreed
to sell, and the purchaser conditionally agreed to
purchase, the entire equity interest and the debt
in Huaren Real Estate (Huai'an) Co., Ltd (E {Z &
¥ (ELR) BMR A A (formerly known as Baohua
Properties (Huai'an) Limited (REHE CEZ)BR A
A])) (“Huaren Real Estate”) at the consideration of
RMB180.0 million, comprising of RMB20.00 million
being the consideration for the equity interest and
RMB160.0 million being the consideration for the
debt in Huaren Real Estate. The acquisition has
completed on 28 June 2019 and the convertible
bonds in the amount of HK$205,200,000 were
issued.

On 26 October 2018, the Company entered into
a conditional subscription agreement with CHG,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue
and CHG agreed to subscribe the convertible bond
in the principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000 at the
issue price of 100% of the principal amount of the
convertible bond. On 27 June 2019, all conditions
of the convertible bonds were fulfilled and the
convertible bonds were issued to CHG.

On 6 December 2018, Huajun Industrial Park
Management (China) Limited* (EZEEZXEEE(H
Bl) BPRAR]), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the agreement with
Liaoning Huajun Equipment Manufacturing Co.,
Limited* (R B EE R HEEFR QA F]), a company
indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Meng and his
spouse and Mr. Cong Liming to purchase the
entire equity interest in Dalian Hydraulic Machinery
Co., Limited* (K& & h # W B R 2 7)) at the
consideration of RMB36,000,000, to be settled by
cash and issue of 873,875 consideration shares of
the Company. The acquisition has completed on 30
September 2019 and 873,875 consideration shares
were issued to Mr. Cong Liming.

53. EaH

(b)

X5 (%)

REEERE BREEATED

NARZRS
BRAGAMBRREMM T A E

Gy BEZE-NEFE+_A=+—
BIFFEE  BHRie4LEH HEE

N
m

FENNRRZZHWT ¢

R-_ZT—NENLA+NA &
NAEEEENB QA ARE
wE(FE)BERAG(EAE
F)EFREEBEEXRFRAF
(IBREE])(EAEH)F]
S Bt mREZEIE
HREHEMEFEEKEERE
BEECEXCER)BRAF
(AIBREMECER)BRA
ANTECEZE])2TRER
B REAARK180.08
ET(BEARE20008E T
EBRERERARE160.0
BELEAELCLEXER 2R
B) WEEBEER-_Z—AN
FERNAZTNBRER W2
#7205,200,0003% 7T > Al # f% (&
3‘%0

R=ZE—N\F+A=1+<8"
ANAREPHEEEBII A
KRB DR - Bt A2A
RAERTRTREEZLERE
2 B8 K 4 %8 /A& 1,000,000,000
BTz AR ES - BB
BEHFERNEFE100% 2 BE1T18 %
T -R_ZE—AFE~A=-++t
A - ERFTATRRES 2K
oo WEEPBREREEET
ARRES -

W_EBE—-NEFE+=-AXH &
ARIBEL2ENBARESR
EXEERE(FE)BRAF
HEEERRBEEGR AR
(HRLTENEREREEZE
BEZ2RR)) RERBPILAER]
S AR E KER A
BERAR A REAA
R #36,000,0007C *© EJ5IAR
& K 3ITA RN F)873,8758% K
BRO&EN  WESHEER
—T-NAFAA=ZTHEK
873,875l ERHE T T
BRI -
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53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

272

(Continued)

(b) Transactions with companies controlled/
significantly influenced by Mr. Meng (Continued)

The transactions with companies controlled/significantly
influenced by Mr. Meng for the period from 1 April 2018
and 31 December 2018 are as follows:

(1) During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018, Dalian Huashunjie, Dalian
Huataian, Dalian Huashunxin, and BH Properties
Shenyang Co., Ltd. are disposed of to an entity
significantly influenced by Mr. Meng therein. As all
of these subsidiaries are dormant with no net assets
value, the Directors considered that these disposals
do not have material financial impacts to the Group
(note 48).

(20 In December 2018, a company controlled by
Mr. Meng has entered into an agreement with
China Huacai to take up a prepayment due from
Hareon Solar. As a result, carrying value of the
investment in China Huacai has been increased to
RMB154,470,000 and the change in fair value of
RMB154,470,000 has been recognised as a deemed
contribution by controlling shareholder in deemed
contribution reserve (note 23(e)).

(3) During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018, the Group has issued commercial
bills totalling of RMB450,000,000 to a private
company controlling by Mr. Meng (note 31).

Provision of credit facility

As at 31 December 2019, China Huajun Group
Limited has provided a interest-free credit
facility of RMB7,000,000,000 (31 December
2018: RMB7,000,000,000) to the Group, of
which RMB6,983,038,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB2,348,987,000) were unused by the Group.

53. EAE

(b)

X5 (%)

REEERS BEEAKESD
MARZRS (&)

RZZB-NFHA-RE_Z-N\
FH_A=+—BHMH  HAt4E
EH/ BEEATENNRAZR
ST

M RZIE—N\FWMA—HZ-ZT
—NE+-RA=+—BH/ "
FIBEERE - KIBERET - K
BEEE MREWEES AR
ARIBEHEF—BXHELEE
AFEZER mRE2BZE
MEARTELLEKAES
EFE EERARSHES
BHALEETESEATHELE
(Fff5E£48) -

2 RZZE—N\E+=-A  —HEfH
TR AEEH R A A B EE A
TSI o ARYEEWOE B
RZFBNFRIA - Fitt - AR E
ER7IREFRMEDEEAR
# 154,470,000 7C © T A R #
154,470,000 2 A FHEEZEE
PR L EFEERBEER
RE A% BRE & (FizE23(e)) ©

B H-ZZTE—NFWA—HEZ
E-NFE+-_A=+—80H
M AEBERTAEARKE
450,000,000 L Z EE R IE T
— M ARHLEES ZFLART]
(PfFE31) o

RBHEEERME

R—ZE—hF+=-_A=+—8"
FRFEEZEEEBERAAE ANE
H 12 it A K #7,000,000,0007T ( =
Z—NF+—_A=+—"8: AR
#7,000,000,000 7T ) K & B (= B &t
E ERAEEMEABAARKE
6,983,038,000C (=T — \F+ =
B=+—8 : AR#¥2,348,987,000
JL) e
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53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c)

Transactions with Yingkou Coastal Bank

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Meng owns 13.9% (31
December 2018: 13.9%) equity interest in Yingkou
Coastal Bank and has been a director of the Yingkou
Coastal Bank since 4 January 2018, bank balances
deposited in and borrowings obtained from Yingkou
Coastal Bank as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
constituted balances with related party.

Balances with Yingkou Coastal Bank

(c)

53. BEARS (&)

BHEONBRTZRS

R-B—-hh&E+-_A=+—B8B &
SHEEAREONERTI3.9% 2
BE(=_E—N\F+=-A=+—H:
139%) - W —_ZE—N\F—AMA
RAEORESRTZEE  R-F
—NErRZE-—N\F+A=+—
BREONERITHERZRITER
FEEERZEFEKEH TR S

RE O GIRIT R IRITAEBF

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

—E-h1EF —ET-N\F

+=ZA=+—-H +=-A=+—H

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Bank balances IR1TH R 28,862 330,581

Endorsed bills received EEEEWER = 7,900

Pledged bank deposits IRITIRIRTFE R 312,189 211,300

Bill payables N (729,969) (553,000)

Bank borrowings RITIE K (3,101,130) (1,903,620)
Transactions with Yingkou Coastal Bank BEHBIRITZX S

1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

—E-hE —E2-N\F

—HA—H mA—H

BTE-hAE EZET)\F

+=ZA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T AREFIT

Interest income FEWA 4,297 2,103

Interest expense MERS (259,738) (114,457)

Bank charges R1ITEBH (254) (331)

Banking facilities provided by Yingkou Coastal Bank

As at 31 December 2019, Yingkou Coastal Bank has
granted banking facilities of RMB4,301,230,000 (31
December 2018: RMB3,103,620,000) to the Group,
excluding bills payables of RMB729,969,000 (2018:
RMB553,000,000) utilised by the Group, RMB1,200,000,000
(31 December 2018: RMB1,200,000,000) is unused by the
Group.

—B-NER

ERBIRITRHEZIRITHE

R—_E—hh&FE+=-_A=+—8 " %
OWBRTEMAEBREHIR
mh & A K% 4,301,230,000 7T ( =
—NEFE+-A=+—80: ARH
3,103,620,0007L) * TEREAREE
D E A ARET729,969,0007T (=&
— \f :© AR #553,000,0007T ) fE
NEE  AEEHNAHHARE
1,200,000,000 (=T — \NF+ =
A=+—8 : AR%1,200,000,000
JC) °

il

F A
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53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 53. BB AR5 ()

(Continued)

(c) Transactions with Yingkou Coastal Bank () BEBEONBRITZXZ(E)
(Continued)

Financial guarantees contracts entered in favour of HUEOREGIRITRIRAGTLZE
Yingkou Coastal Bank BIERER

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has recognised RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H &
financial guarantee liabilities of RMB228,382,000 which SEHEBRAOMEAEEALONE
arisen from respective financial guarantee contracts RITR X m AR] S 2 0B 75 &
entered by the Group in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank RENEEZHBEREEAR
with details as set out in note 37(b). & 228,382,000 7T + FF 15 B A M

37(b) °
During the year ended 31 December 2019, all the above HE_Z-AF+_HA=+—HIt
guarantees in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank provided FE - MAEBRAEEREHE 2 AERN
by the Group are released. giuﬁﬁ)?%giﬁé/\ZJ:ﬁ%%E%
2R o

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group HE_Z-—NE+-_HA=+—8
provided corporate guarantees of approximately IEFEE  AEEE O NEERT
RMB453,498,000 in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank to BEXa AREBRAAERHARE
secure two bank loans granted to Huajun Real Estate 453,498,000 * X ZE— N F )\
(Dalian), a former subsidiary before it was disposed A=Z+—BHE—MAMEB AR Z=E
on 31 August 2019. The corporate guarantees were FEX(RE)BERETHOMIA
not released after the disposal. The two bank loans RITER - RAIERAREERIL R
under the banking facilities guaranteed by the Group fRlR - MASBEREBRITEEER
have been repaid on 27 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 WMIERITERED IR T =F
and accordingly, the guarantees have been released. FZ=A-+tBR-_Z_ZFIMA
The Group has not recognised any financial guarantee —BEE Bt ZEFEEREER
contract in respect of these guarantees as their fair Mo REBWEBZSERBERE
values are considered to be minimal by the directors of MPFBERELN  RERHEAFTE
the Company. WARDNPEERBEM -

(d) Transactions with a listed company in the PRC (d) E—RBRPEzLTATREAR
and companies controlled by business partners DNEERBR G EENEBRHF
of Mr. Meng, the controlling shareholder of the BHOARZRS
Company
On 6 April 2016, Mr. Meng became the chairman of T RNEWEANRA - mEEK
Hareon Solar, the shares of which was listed on the EEBENANER  ZRARIKRAG R
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Subsequently, Mr. Wu Jiwei FEBHERG LT - BEig - BN
("Mr. Wu"), the former director who resigned on 30 Z-—NEFE=ZA=1+BHIWAEE
March 2018, also became a director of Hareon Solar. REERLEAETREE K AESBEY
In the meantime, certain companies controlled by ReEE AR ETHRLERN
business partners of Mr. Meng have conducted sales and EBBHEEHNATE BAREER
purchase activities with the Group and Hareon Solar. BEARNETHERRBER - &
In the opinions of the Directors, all of these companies ERR - DWMREFRARRBEEEY
are considered to be related parties of the Group T R 5 22 B 40 AR 75 72N 5% [ 1) A
under HKFRSs. The transactions with these companies e BZE—RNEMANAREZ
from 6 April 2016 onwards constituted related party ERFNRGEKBE TS °
transactions.

On 19 July 2017 and 14 September 2017, Mr. Meng and RZZE—+F+A+NLBEZZT
Mr. Wu resigned as chairman and a director of Hareon —tFNATHB  ZEERR%
Solar, respectively. Therefore, Hareon Solar was no S RIBEERENRERE REER
longer considered as a related party from 14 September iz - Bt - BEXRE_Z—+F
2017 onwards. However, the Directors considered NA+THBRTBRER A — L@
that Mr. Meng still had significant influence over the 7oA BERRAKLEDHE
companies controlled by his business partners, which EBBEHEHNARAEEEATE
should be considered as related parties of the Company. 71 BAmERIR AR QB E R o
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53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 53. EEAL RS (&)

(Continued)

(d) Transactions with a listed company in the PRC (d) H—ERPBEZLTAARER
and companies controlled by business partners RAERBRREXENEBRHF
of Mr. Meng, the controlling shareholder of the BEHNATZRB (&)
Company (Continued)

The balances with these related companies as at 31 RZZE-NERZZ-N\E+A
December 2019 and 2018 are disclosed as follows: T+ —BHEZEZEBARNEHRE
[Z3 Ul
Nature of balance #£#ME  Name of related party B EHE 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
“E-hE —2-N\¥
+=ZA=+-A fTZA=1+—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ftat AR®TR ARETT
Prepayments JNFIE  Yingkou TianBao Newlife &AXEF4EHET
Supermarket Co., Ltd BRAR] - 50
Notes: B

(i) This balance represented advance payments for purchasing of
office supplies products as agreed by both parties.

Financial guarantees provided to Hareon Solar
Guarantee | and Guarantee Il of the Group were

provided to Hareon Companies and a subsidiary of
Hareon Solar, respectively. Details are disclosed in note

0] WHEBRRREDRBERIEZM A
FEHTRIS SRR

B RIEHBER
AEEEHHEERAR LSRN

R —HMBERAAIREER X
PR - FFIEWENMEEI7 -

37.

(e) During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December (e) RZE-—N\FHEA-—RAE=_ZF-N
2018, the Group had entered into certain financial F+-A=+_BHH  RAKEE
guarantee contracts in favour of some business partners NaAENETEBRHERTEA
of Mr. Meng with Yingkou Coastal Bank. For details, B OWERITEI LB T BER
please refer to note 42. BH - BRAFIE  B2RHNTE42 -

(f) During the the year ended 31 December 2019, several f) B8=2=FT-NAF+=-A=+—HL

business partners of Mr. Meng provided financing to
the Group through entrusted loan arrangement with a
financial institution. As at 31 December 2019, loans of
RMB4,247,000,000 were drawn down by the Group. The
loans were secured by the Company’s properties held
for sale with carrying value of RMB1,654,057,000 as at 31
December 2019.

—B-NER

FE CDZEENZEZEBEABASE
BHESAMEENZTERLHERAR
EEREERE - R _T—HNE+=
B=+—HB ' AEEERRDARYE
4,247,000,000 THIE R - ZEE R
AR —_E—h&+-_A=+—8”
2 BRE{E A AR1,654,057,000 7T
HIZAN A BB E W EIER -
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54. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

54.

MEETHELEZEBZHER

TRAARTASEREETDESE 2 EBE
2 BRERENIFReEE c BER
EFEZEE?B@E%EEN&*?UE
@/MLEH#E$E.#${:\ imb%?ﬁm

RUELTHREREZEE -

Amount
due to Obligations
immediate under
Lease holding ~ Corporate  Convertible Bill financing Interest
Borrowing liabilities company bonds bonds payables arrangements payable Total
BHERER
% HERE DAZE NAEE  TERES EfiZE RERHAE EfFE a3
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETr  ARMIR  ARETR  ARETR AR
At 1 January 2019, R-B-NE-F-R FiEl
as original stated 4,797,333 - 1,706,956 290,949 244,632 576,664 2,693,469 18,843 10,328,846
Adoption of HKFRS16 b e ]|
S0 - 71,700 - - - - - - 71,700
At 1 January 2019, restated NE-NE-B-R EE) 4,797,333 71,700 1,706,956 290,949 244,632 576,664 2,693,469 18,843 10,400,546
Cash inflow (outflow): E&HAGRE):
Proceeds from borrowings EHHETE 7,812,648 - - - - - - - 7812648
Repayment of borrowings EREH (2,094,425) e e 5 5 e e - (2,094,425
Interest paid Eﬁﬂ g (421,559) (6,160) - (12,583) (20,754) - - 19,860 (441,196)
Redemption of convertible bonds - - - - (26,814) - - - (26,814)
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds - - - - 877,192 - - - 877,192
Redemption of corporate bonds - - - (216,830) - - - - (216,830)
Payment of the cost of ssue of convertble
bonds - - - - (536) - - - (536)
Advance from immediate holding company - - 3,559,347 - - - - - 3,559,347
Repayment to immediate holding company ] - - (8,701,454) - - - - - (8,701,454)
Repayment of lease liablities E & *E ( - (32,708) - - - - - - (32,708)
Non-cash transactions: ¥BE%5
New lease liabilities ‘ﬁf“’%ﬁ*@f@ S 6,501 - - - - - - 6,501
Recognition of deemed contribution - - (3,31 - - - - - (3,377)
Reversal of deemed contribution - - 78,735 - - - - - 78,735
Net foreign exchange gain £ 859 - - 2407 15,467 - - - 18733
Finance costs iHER 421,559 6,160 146,680 16,590 06,844 - 41,980 - 699,813
Property held forsale transferred to the Group  ERFASE 7L ENE S S 42,846 5 S = - - 42,848
Reclassification ixﬁ ‘*E - - 2135489 - - - (2735,449) - -
Change in fair value of convertible bonds :
- derivative component - - - - (12,498) - - - (12,498)
Charged to convertiole bonds
equity resnve 5&% - - - - (541,618) - - - (541,618)
Decrease i bills payables ERZEED s : = 5 - [154.295) . - [154.299)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEBAT (453,498) e 451473 5 5 e e 5 (2,025)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHEANT 109,500 g = 5 180,000 307,600 = 5 597,100
At 31 December 2019 NE-NETZA=1-H 10172417 45,493 16,655 80,533 781,915 729,969 - 38,703 11,865,685
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54. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING  54. & EEEE 2 BEZHEE)
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)
Amount
due to Obligations
Obligations immediate under
under finance holding Corporate Convertible Bill financing
Borrowing leases company bonds bonds payables  arrangements Total
Eft
ERER
R WEREAR A MAfRE  TARES ARG RERHAR &t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETRr  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 April 2018 R=E-)\EMA-A 4,594,053 = 520,000 256,265 849,208 358,346 e 6577872
Cash inflow (outflow): BEHA(RE) -
Proceeds from borrowings BHEEHE 2,136,256 - - - - - = 2,136,25
Repayment of borrowings BEEZ (2,282,020) - - - - - - (2,282,020)
Proceeds from financing RERHAEIE
arrangements - - - - - - 1183417 1183417
Net cash inflow for acquisition of ~ WEMBAAZEEHA
subsidiaries 38 = = 8 = = = 1594,665 1,594,665
Advance from bill payables REENZEZER - - - = = 721,870 = 721870
Repayment of bill payables BEENZE = = = = = (523,552) - (523552)
Interest paid BR#HE (401,114) - - (9137) (70.899) - - (481,150)
Redemption of convertible bonds ~ BEA B ES = = S = (550923) = = (550923)
Repayment to immediate holding BT EERRAR
company - - (1,180,812) - - - - (1,180,812
Advance from immediate holding ~ REEZER AT 2B
company - - 2559718 - - - - 2559718
Repayment of obligations under ~ EEREHE&E
finance lease - (2,226) - - - - - (2.226)
Non-cash transactions: FRERA:
Recognised of deemed contrioution BEAARIEIEE 5 = (186,346) S = = 5 (186,346)
Reversal of deemed contribution BB {ETE = = 32,795 = = = = 32,795
Net foreign exchange gain SENRFE 20044 = s 031 40,241 = = 80516
New finance leases MREHE - 26,373 - - - - 26,373
Finance costs HBER 401,14 419 38,38 2590 95,379 - 109.29 668,181
Change in fair value of convertble TR E% ¢ A B
bonds - derivative component  BF T EH S = = g = (118,374) = = (118,374)
Acquisition of subsidiaries N 329,000 = = = = 20,000 = 349,000
Discounting effect on financing ~ HIBER K2 BT E
arrangements - - - - - - (193,904) (193,904)
Debt restructuring EREA S = (76,787) S S = S (76,781)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE
tZA=1-A 4,797,333 24,566 1,706,956 290,949 244,632 576,664 2,693,469 10,334,569
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55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 55. AA R T EMME QAT ZH1E
OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 ARAFEEWBRAAINZZE-—NER=E
December 2019 and 2018 are disclosed as follows: —\E+ZA=+—HZHBEENT :
Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place of paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  business registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HRAL/ BETRHR
HEARER Rt ITEEHE  RB/EMER RAREREERE TEEH
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ZE-hE “E-\&
t=A=+-8 tZA=+-H
Baohua Jiangsu (note b) PRC PRC RMB100,000,000 80% 80% Property development
RETE(Hitb) HE W AR 100,000,007 ELES
Bao Hua Properties Development ~ PRC PRC RMB200,000,000 100% 100% Property development and
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (note b) i i AR 200,000,000 investment
RERMERE(LF)BRATF NERERIRE
(Hiztb)
Bao Hua Properties (Dalian) PRC PRC RMB21,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (note b) HE HE AR%21,000,0007 RERR
REME(XE)BRAT (M)
Bao Hua Properties (Yingkou) PRC PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100% Property development
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (note b) # # AR 20,000,000 ELE
REME(ED)EXBBRARA ML)
B&H Properties Yingkou (note a) PRC PRC RMB 100,000,000 100% 100% Property investment and
REELZL0(Hia) HE e AR #100,000,0007 investment holding
NERARRERR
Chenzhou Sonic Manufacturing PRC PRC US$1,000,000 100% 100% Provision of subcontracting
Company Limited (note a) i i 1,000,000% T services to a fellow
BAENHRERAR (Hita) subsidiaryfor paper and
packaging products
B-RRZHBLARRMARR
BEERND BRE
Dalian Hydraulic (note b) PRC PRC RMB39,200,000 100% N/A" Manufacture and maintenance
RERN (WD) HE hE ARH39,200,0007 @R of hydraulic machinery
EEREBRNES
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55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

55. ARAEEMB AR 2B E)

Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place of paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  business registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
i/ BRTRAR
i Pk RIBE ITEEME  RO/EREL FRREREERE TERH
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
“B-NE —E0E
t=A=+-8 tZA=+-H
Dalian Taiyuan Properties PRC PRC RMB186,300,000 100% 100% Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. (note b) ~ # e AR 186,300,000 investment
REFTEHEREERAA (Kb MEFEREE
Dongguan New Island Printing PRC PRC HK$162,000,000 100% 100% Production and distribution of
Company Limited (note a) HE Gl 162,000,00057T paper products
REHMERIERAR (Hita) EERDH4ST
Huajun Automobile Group Limited. ~ PRC PRC RMBB9,778,441 100% 100% Manufacturing of automobile
(note b) HE e ARE89,778, 4417 and related product
FENEEEARDA(HED) HEREREBER
Huajun Capital Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% 100% Securities investments
FRARRRAT B4 BR 50,000,000 7 BRE
Huajun Credit Services Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Money lending
FEEERKARAR & Bt 10,0004 7 &
Huajun Energy Group Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$150,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding, trading
EZHFEERRAT Bl &5 150,000,000% 77 and logistics
RERR  BSRIR
Huajun Energy (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding, trading
(formerly known as Shanghai e Gl ARE100,000,0007 and logistics, new
Huajun Chemical Ltd.) (note b) energy development and
EZGROERAA AR LEEE consultation
{LTRRAR) (Hitb) RARR  EARMR - ke
GEEYEE
Huajun Equity Investment Fund PRC PRC RMB30,000,000 100% 100% Fund management
Management (Shenzhen) Limited i ARE30,000,0007 EeER
(note a)
FEREREERERRYIERLA
(Hita)
Huajun Financial Group Limited Cayman Islands  Hong Kong US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding and
EZEREBEARAT FEHS &t 10,000%7 securities investments

—B-NER

RABRREFRE
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55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 55. AATFEMB AT ZEE(4E)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place of paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  business registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
i/ BRTRAR
i Pk RIBE ITEEME  RO/EREL AAAERKERE TERH
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
= L L
t=A=+-8 tZA=+-H
Huajun Management Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100% Provision of management
EZERERAT Bl 2 10087 services to group
companies
RAEELAARKERRE
Huajun Power (Jiangsu) Limited PRC PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100% Production and sale of
(formerly known as Changzhou & i AK%100,000,0007T photovoltaics products,
Hongrun Solar Technology monocrystalline silicon,
Company Limited) solar stent and related
FEEN(IR)ERRAFREND products
REERERERAR) EERBELRER BRER
ABEZ RN REEER
Huajun Power Technology PRC PRC RMB200,000,000 100% 100%  Production and sale of
(Jiangsu) Limited i B AR 200,000,000 photovoltaics products,
EEENRA(IEH)ERAR monocrystalline silicon,
solar stent and related
products
Eéﬁﬁgtﬁém BRE-
iR R ERER
Huajun Properties (Changzhou) PRC PRC US§99,000,000 100% 100% Property development and
Company Limited (formerly known T 99,000,000% T investment
as Huajun Real Estate (Changzhou) MERLREE
Company Limited) (note b)
EEHE(RMBRAA (MREAE
S(BM)BRAR) (Hib)
Huajun Properties (Liaoning) Co., PRC PRC RMB8,000,000 100% 100% Property development
Ltd (formerly known as Yingkou " E B ARE8,000,0007 nERE

Economic Technology Development
Zone Shangfang Real Estate Limited)
(note b)

EEHERE)ERAA(NBENL
ERMRER L ERERRAR)
(Hitb)
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55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

55. ARAEEMB AR 2B E)

Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place of paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  business registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
i/ BRTRAR
i Pk RIBE ITEEME  RO/EREL FRREREERE TERH
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
= L L
t=A=+-8 tZA=+-H

Huajun Properties (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Property development
({formerly known as Bao Hua i e AK10,000,0007 MERS
Real Estate (Wuxi) Co., Ltd.)

("Huajun Wuxi") (note b)

FENE (RS ERLA(MEREY
E(ER)ERLR)(EEEH))

(Hrtb)

Huajun Real Estate (Dalian) Company PRC PRC RMB600,000,000 100% 100% Property development and
Limited (formerly known as Dalian i AR 600,000,007 investment
Haitong Properties Development NERERRE
Co., Ltd)) (note b)

FREX(RB)BRAA(AIMAESE
BEHERSARAR)(Hitb)

Huajun Real Estate (Yingkou) Co., Ltd. PRC PRC RMBS50,000,000 100% 100% Property development
(formerly known as Yingkou Xiang  HEl e AR#50,000,00070 MERS
Feng Properties Company Limited)

(note b)

FERE(ZD)BRAAFIRE DA
BEXERLA)(Hitb)

Huaren Real Estate (note b) PRC PRC RMB20,000,000 100% N/A " Property development

FEX(Mitd) EP f AK#20,000,0007T MER NxFE

Jiangsu Zhong Xiang Energy PRC PRC RMB150,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Co., Ltd. (note b) HE hE ARH150,000,0007 solar control equipment,

TETARRARAR (i)

—B-NER

monocrystalline silicon
wafers, polycrystalline
silicon, solar cells, coated
glass, rare metals, solar
modules and silicon
materials and related
products

BERBEAGRIIHRE B
iR ZRE - ABRE
b BERE - RELE-
ARG aEARER B R
BEM
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55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 55. AATFEMB AT ZEE(4E)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place of paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  business registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
i/ ERORAR
i Pk RIBE ITEEME  RO/EREL AAAERKERE TERH
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
“B-NE —E0E
t=A=t-A tZA=t-H
Liaoning Bao Hua Properties PRC PRC RMB42,000,000 100% 100% Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (noteb) & i AR42,000,0007 nER%E
REREEHEREERAA(Wb)
New Island Management Services  Hong Kong Hong Kong US$1,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited BA Bt 1,000,000%7 kALK
e RREARAR
New Island Packaging Technology ~ PRC PRC US$40,000,000 100% 100% Production and distribution of
(Jiangsu) Company Limited (note a) & i 40,000,000F7T paper products
TN RERE (TH) ARAR (Wita) EERD H4 ST
New Island Printing Company Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$200 ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding and
MR BR AR BA i and HK$1,000,000 distribution of paper
non-voting deferred products
shares REERR A HEHm
00 TR EBRR
1,000,000/ 72
ERZEET
TRin
New Island Printing (Liaoning) Limited PRC PRC RMB30,000,000 100% 100% Production and distribution of
(note a) i T AR30,000,0007 paper products
HNEDRI(RE)ERAR (Hita) EERD H4 ST
New Island (Shanghai) Paper Products PRC PRC US$2,500,000 100% 100% Production and distribution of
Co. Ltd (note a) i i 2,500,000% 7 paper products
(LB BRERAR(KZa) TERD HESE
NITNS LLC USA USA 100 ordinary shares of 51% 51% Provision of marketing services
EJE] 6 US$1 each RETBEERE
100RBRIXTH
LER
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55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

!

NTS....

55. ARAEEMB AR 2B E)

Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place of paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  business registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
i/ BRTRAR
(il PNEEL RIBE ITEENT  RO/ERES FRREREERE TERH
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
o
t=A=+-8 tZA=+-H
Shanghai Huajun Rubber Technology PRC PRC RMB30,000,000 60% 60% Trading of rubber and
Co., Ltd (note b) B E hE AK30,000,0007 products
LEERGBHRARAR (D) BBRIERES
Shanghai New Island Packaging PRC PRC US$5,700,000 100% 100% Production and distribution
Printing Co Ltd (note a) HE Gl 5,700,000% 7 of paper products
LEFANBEIRARAR (M) EERD H4%T
Shenzhen Huajun Financial Leasing ~ PRC PRC US§50,000,000 70% 70% Provision of financial leasing
Limited (“Huajun Leasing”) (note ¢) i 50,000,000 7T and associated services
AMmEERERERRAT REREHERRBRY
([£ZRE]) (M)
United Securities Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$29,500,000 100% 100%  Providing securities brokerage
BEEFERAR BA B 29,500,000/ 7C services
RUEEHEL RS
Wuxi Huiyuan (note b) PRC PRC RMB180,000,000 100% 100% Property development
EHEER(Hib) G f AKH180,000,0007C VESES
Wuxi Huize (note b) PRC PRC RMB100,000,000 70% 70%  Property development
EHRE(WHb) G P AR #100,000,00070 VESE
Yingkou Yi Hua Green Packaging PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Production and distribution of
Printing Company Limited mE hE AR %10,000,0007T paper products
(note b) FERD SR
ENRERERRIRERLA
(Hiztb)
Note: For those subsidiaries established in the PRC, their classification of

establishment is as follows:

(a) wholly foreign owned enterprise

(b) domestic invested company

(c) sino-foreign enterprise

—B-NER

fifet - ZEMBARRPRBERIL - EKIIA D RN
T

(@) SIEBELE

(b) WERH

@  FHIBERHE
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55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  55.
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year/period.

The table below shows details of Huajun Leasing and Wuxi
Huize, the non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group at 31
December 2019 and 2018 that have material non-controlling

AAREEMBAR 2B E)

ERAAIZAEERBATAEERAY
AEEY EEREEEEAYE Y HEA
T WERE - HEMKBA R B
HISBRILE -

BEMNBRARRE HRBETERERE
P

TRININR-ZE-NEFR_F-N\F+=
A=+—BAEEEEEFERBRRE
BZHEEMBARERHEREHTZ

interests: k= i
Proportion
of ownership
interests and
Place of voting rights (Loss) profit
incorporation held by allocated to Balance of
and principal non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business interests interests interests
FERRRES 2EF
a1 AR 37 3tk B BEZRER FERRR FERRR
HEAREE REREX B RREELS Rz (BE)EF ERER
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBETT
31 December 2019
—E2-NE+ZRA=t-H
Huajun Leasing PRC 30% (1,454) 108,739
FEHE i
Wuxi Huize PRC 30% 13,256 (61,617)
RBEE T
31 December 2018
ZF-\f+ZA=1—H
Huajun Leasing PRC 30% (1,276) 110,193
FEHE hE
Wuxi Huize PRC 30% (940) (74,873)
EHEE i
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55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 55. AATFEMB AT ZEE(4E)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Summarised consolidated financial information prepared in ERABBERFTERREED 2B QA
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards BEEEVNBRERERS 2 EEANIE
before intragroup eliminations in respect of the subsidiaries WA Z R E M BEHREMEHTIMOT -

that have material non-controlling interests are set out below.

Huajun Leasing

FEHE
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—g-nE T NF
+=A=+-8 T=A=t+—~
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Non-current assets IERBEE 20,979 21,050
Current assets TENEE 243,779 279,945
Current liabilities ViEII=RE (48,714) (80,1006)

Huajun Leasing

EEHE
1.1.2019 to 1.4.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
—H—H mA—A

E=®-hE E-F)\F
t=A=+-8 +=A=+—~
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR  ARETR

Revenue Was 127 953
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (BE)RANEEE
(expense) income () e (4,847) 373
Loss allocated to non-controlling interests 3Bt T IFIE AR MG SR i 25 2 JE5 18 (1,454) (1,276)
Cash flows (used in) from operating activities 4 & /HE) (F ) EL
ZEERE (35,930) 16,744
Cash flows used in investing activities KEGRHFERAZRERE (13) -
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities RE& /EFENELE(FEH)
ZHEEmE 34,802 (26,825)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 55. AATFEMB AT ZEE(4E)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Wuxi Huize
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+—~
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETF T ARETTT

Non-current assets ERBEE 54 121
Current assets TENEE 730,308 1,098,149
Current liabilities ViEII=RE (939,596) (1,347,691)

Wuxi Huize

EGEE
1.1.2019 to 6.7.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
—H—H tANHE

BER2-NE E-_T)N\F
t=A=+—-8 t=A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

Revenue Weas 403,858 17,592
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income & #|(E518 ) &2 2 B W26
(expense) (M) a8 44,187 (2,421)
Profit (loss) allocated to non-controlling DT IEIE AR AR SR A s 2 0
interests (E518) 13,256 (940)
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities & /FFELE(ER) 2
ReEmE 389,972 (79,715)
Cash flows used in investing activities KEGRHFERAZRERE (69,117) (17)
Cash flows (used in) from financing activities ~ BEE/EEN(ER)EL
WERE (333,733) 74,866
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM
mEMBREME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

NTS....

56. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 56. AN\ 2 B AR R I
THE COMPANY

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
t=A=t—-B +ZA=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT R ARETTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries GNP £ 1,730,394 1,589,550
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) FEWM B AT B (MfaE) 7,015,846 7,759,766
8,746,240 9,349,316
CURRENT ASSETS MBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) KB AR Z 7B\ (Hf:T) 2,019,822 1,165,082
Deposits and prepayments e NIERRIE 21,026 20,415
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 27,055 191,886
2,067,903 1,377,383
CURRENT LIABILITIES kA=A
Other payables H & 508 11,844 18,395
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHMB AR ZRIE 7,210,361 2,991,778
Obligations under financing arrangements A T HEAE - 2,693,469
Corporate bonds NAEES 3,612 214,840
7,225,817 5,918,482
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE (5,157,914) (4,541,099)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES AEERABEE 3,588,326 4,808,217
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Amount due to immediate holding company B EEIZER A 5] 2 78 16,655 1,706,956
Corporate bonds NAEMES 76,921 76,109
Convertible bonds - liability component Al E % — A ES 0 776,973 227,498
Convertible bonds - derivative component AR E 2% — ST A 2B 4,942 17,134
Financial guarantee contracts FHERELD - 193,904
875,491 2,221,601
NET ASSETS FEE 2,712,835 2,586,616
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital R% R 55,983 55,203
Reserves E 2,656,852 2,531,413
TOTAL EQUITY EREEHE 2,712,835 2,586,616
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

56. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

ECL for amounts due from subsidiaries and bank balances are
assessed and impairment loss of approximately RMB1,058,630,000
(2018: RMB700,000,000) is made on the amounts due from
subsidiaries based on the Company’s internal and/or external
credit rating.

Note:

56. RAT ZHBERRT(E)

Kzt : BB ARZE
BB FIE - WERARARZAEH R,
SNEME BT R M B QB 2 RIEEH A
AR #1,058,630,0007c (ZF—\F : AR
#700,000,0007T) 2 R B K518 °

RRERRITHEBRZBHER

Movement in reserves EEEE
Convertible
bonds-
Share-hased Deemed equity
Share  Contributed payment Exchange  contribution ~ conversion  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
WRiBEE B TRRER
RfRE BfiRe  2fiRGE EifE HERE -ERERRE ZitFR 4%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTm ARETR ARETT ARETx
At 1 April 2018 NE-\EmA-A 2551848 69,569 50,989 (153,940) 180970 e 9.628) 2689828
Loss for the period HhER = = 5 = 5 5 (499.61) 199612
Other comprehensive income. 202 EE - - - 187,646 - - - 187,646
Totel comprehensiveincome R ZERE(E )28

(expense) for the period - - - 187,646 - - (499.612) (311.966)
Expiry of share options ERERS - - (83%6) - - - 8,386 -
Deemed contribution from Wﬂ‘ HRBRAAZ

immediate holding company of &

the Company - - - - 186,346 - = 186,34
Reversal of deemed contribution  ABE{ERKAT /A

from the controlling company - - - - (32,799) - - (32,799)
At 31 December 2018 and RE-N\E+-fA=1-

1 January 2019 BR=E-nE-A-H 2,551,848 69,589 42,603 33,706 334,521 - (500,854) 2,531,413
Loss for the year ERNER e e 5 = 5 5 610,302) 610,302)
Other comprehensive income ~~ Eft2E%& - - - 32,459 5 5 = 32,459
Totel comprehensive income ~~ ERZENE (B%) 48

[expenses) for the year - - - 32,459 - - (610,302) (577,843)
Lapsed of share ptions 3 e e (3,842) e 5 3,802 5
Issue of convertible bonds BmhRER - - - - - 541,618 - 541,618
Acquisition of awholly owned 2 ENEBAA

subsidiary 5618 - - - - - - 5,618
Deemed contribution from RIERAAERARRAZ

immediate holding company of %

the Company - - - - 33 - - 33
Reversal of deemed contribution  EEE{ERRAZZTE

from the controling company - - - - (78,735) - - (78,735)
Deemed contribution from BIESRERRBRDY

reversal of provision of financiel %8

quarantee - - - - 231,404 - - 231,404
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE

t2A=1-A 2,557,466 69,589 38,761 66,165 490,567 541,618 (1,107,314) 2,656,852
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

NTS....

57. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has several outstanding
legal proceedings with construction contractors, customers,
suppliers and joint venture partner that against the Group in
the PRC in relation to the Group’s property development and
investment, printing and solar photovoltaic segment. Apart
from disclosed below, the directors consider that all other
legal proceedings would not have significant financial impact
to the Group as the corresponding claims against the Group
are either not significant or not probable to have a material
financial impact to the Group, based on the advice of the legal
counsel.

As disclosed in note 30(a), the Cooperation Agreement that
entered between the Group and the independent third party
is not likely to be proceeded due to the failure to comply with
certain urban renewal policies in Guangdong Province, the
PRC and the relating project shall be terminated. Accordingly,
the counterparty has raised a civil prosecution to Guangdong
High Court* against the Group regarding the breach of the
Cooperation Agreement. The hearing was held on 29 March
2019 and a judgement was handed down by Guangdong High
Court on 29 September 2019, requesting the Group to refund
the deposit received of RMB50,000,000 (note 30(a)) and pay for
damages of RMB80,000,000 to the counterparty. The Group
filed an appeal to the Guangdong High Court and the hearing
is scheduled on 8 May 2020. The Group has provided the
provision of RMB80,000,000 (note 30(a)) based on the initial
judgement handed down by Guangdong High Court.

—B-NER

57.

FAREE

R-ZE-NF+-A=+—H XEEY
REBEmRELARR TP HEARS
BOERBHRASEZMEREIRE
Vil B2 A P BE YE IR 20 BRI P B[R] AN SR (B 4
H 2 HARBOR ZOERFD o B T XAKEE
EIN BEERA - MBRMEEZFRAT
SHAKEEREAMBEE  RE/R
BERERER - AASEIRH 2 AR
RRIWFAEKR - JIAKA]REE A& BERK
EAUBRE -

BANKT FE30) AT E  NEBMEBYH
=R A ERERUGERAEREE
THEERAE TR M ERREmEEE
B mMEBEEAETRIE AL HFH
HERGIEHBHRAERESRARERY
AEFRIREFR - BRAR—_ZT—hF
“A-+NABEH MERESH/ARE
FER—ZE—HEAA-TALESHHRE
EXAEERHEFHFROERERZESE AR
#50,000,0007T (1 5E30(a) ) K& X I E 5
& AR #80,000,0007T - NEBHERE
BRARZERREL EFF - MEBAMBERZ
T_EFRANBBRA - ARBEEHRER
ARBANREROI L HRIREEAR
#80,000,0007T (i 5E30(a))
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58. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into new arrangements in respect of office
premises. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
RMB6,501,000 were recognised at the commencement of
the leases.

As disclosed in note 42, on 29 March 2019, Huajun
Holdings Group Limited, a company wholly owned by
Mr. Meng and his spouse, replaced Huajun Properties
Yangzhou and B&H Properties Yingkou to be the
guarantor of the financing arrangement and therefore
the entire outstanding balance of approximately
RMB2,735,448,000 were reclassified from obligations
under financing arrangement to amount due to
immediate holding company.

As disclosed in note 48(a), on 28 June 2019, the Group
acquired the entire capital interest of Huaren Real Estate
at a consideration of RMB190,000,000 settled by the issue
of a convertible bond to China Huajun Group Limited.

59. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

290

(a)

On 22 January 2020, the Company entered into a
conditional subscription agreement with CHG, the
substantial shareholder of the Company, pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to issue and
CHG conditionally agreed to subscribe the convertible
bond in the principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000 at the
issue price, which is 100% of the principal amount of the
convertible bond. The said subscription is subject to the
independent shareholders’ approval and the convertible
bond has not been issued as at the date of these
consolidated financial statements.

58. FEFRERS

59.

(a)

HE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HL
FE  RNEBERBRAEMEIT LT
B AR¥®6,501,0007T 2 it F #E
BERBEABENEERBRER -

I A2 RE R-F—NF
ZAZthB  EEZEREEAR
ARRA(—HAHEERELRB2EH
BORA)BREBMESG N RRE
BEXLZOEABRELHNERAR
Rt - REBERH - MEKREERE
K AR 2,735,448,000 7T B &
EEMSRERNEEZERARZ
A °

BANKI R4S FTIE  R-T— A
EXA-+NB AEBFBWKEE
CEX2HRE REAARE
190,000,0007T * BEi@AF HEE S
BERAREITUBRRESFLEE -

REHRER

(a)

RZFE-ZEF—A=-+=-H AR
REFHREZEER(AQRFEAR
RIFTNEGHERERE - Bt
AARBEGRERET  MARE
EEERBEUNBRTERBEAEEA
1,000,000,0007%8 jt Z Al A fg & % -
HEERAIRRESFARSTER100% ©
i R ERE B AR R A R
NGEAMBRRBE  AIBRRES
i AREET o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FT-NF+_A=+—HIFE

59. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(b)

On 30 March 2020, Baohua Properties (China) Limited*
("Baohua Properties China”) (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), and Changzhou Shiao
New Energy Co., Ltd* ("Changzhou Shiao”) (a limited
liability company established in the PRC and an
independent third party of the Company) entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
Baohua Properties China agreed to sell and Changzhou
Shiao agreed to acquire the sale shares and sale loan
owed by Huaren Real Estate (Huai'an) Co., Ltd. for a
total consideration of RMB252,110,000, comprising of
RMB20,000,000 being the consideration for the Sale
Shares and RMB232,110,000 being the consideration
for the Sale Loan. As certain conditions of the sale and
purchase agreement have not been fulfilled, the said
disposal has not been completed as at the date of these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has breached the repayment terms
of a borrowings with outstanding principal of
RMB1,440,000,000 of which RMB240,000,000 was in
default since 27 March 2020. Further details of the breach
is disclosed in note 32(e) to these consolidated financial
statement.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
outbreak of COVID-19 in January 2020 has caused
disruptions to many industries. These disruptions have
inevitably posed a significant threat to the global
economy in 2020. Despite the challenges, governments
and international organizations have implemented a
series of measures to contain the pandemic. The time
duration and scope of these disruptions cannot be
accurately assessed at this point in time. Given the
dynamic nature of these circumstances, the financial
impact will be reflected in the Group's subsequent
financial statements. The Group will closely monitor the
development of the pandemic and assess its impact on
its operations.

60. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year's presentation of the financial
statements.

Convertible bonds - liability component and convertible
bonds - derivative component of RMB227,498,000 and
RMB17,134,000 respectively which had previously been

recorded under “"Convertible bonds”

in the consolidated

statement of financial statements as at 31 December 2018, was
shown separately in the consolidated statement of financial
statements as at 31 December 2019.

—B-NER
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FEFBRE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS N

3h

Period ended Year ended

Year ended 31 March 31 December 31 December
HE+-A BZ+ZA

=f+-A8It =t+-Hit

HE=-RA=t-RHILFE A EE

2016 2017 2018 2018 2019
“ERE “E—+F —E-N\F “E-N\F —E-hE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR

Revenue e 1,374,919 3,313,992 3,921,601 2,649,485 3,699,606
Profit (loss) before tax BRHRAIERN (BE) 26,223 134,548 (925,030) (349,597) (563,283)
Income tax expense s (50,712) (91,147) (3,425) (46,514) (70,472)

Profit (loss) for the year/period ~ HERLEREE /]

from continuing operation B (ER) (24,489 43,401 (928,455) (396,111) (633,755)

Attributable to: FEfE
Shareholders of the Company ARAIRER 27,090 22,717 (931,079) (388,926) (644,710)
Non-controlling interests SRR R R (51,579) 20,684 2,624 (7,185) 10,955
(24,489) 43,401 (928,455) (396,111) (633,755)
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FEHEUE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL e BRI R
POSITION
As at 31 March As at 31 December
R=A=+—H Rt=A=+-H
2016 2017 2018 2018 2019
“ERE “E—+F —E-N\F “E-N\F “E-hE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETR
Total assets BEE 5,266,919 11,672,189 11,764,556 15,762,535 17,655,495
Total liabilities “waE (2,291,593) (8,146,342) (9,083,035 (13,131,815 (14,934,271)
2,975,326 3,525,847 2,681,521 2,630,720 2,721,224
Share capital R 51,787 55,203 55,203 55,203 55,983
Reserves B 2,812,443 3,336,717 2,481,599 2,513,008 2,597,448
Equity attributable to LYNG &V
shareholders of the Company 2,864,230 3,391,920 2,536,802 2,568,211 2,653,431
Non-controlling interests FERBFER 111,096 133,927 144,719 62,509 67,793
Total equity oS 2,975,326 3,525,847 2,681,521 2,630,720 2,721,224

—B-NER
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
YE S

Particulars of the Group’s major investment properties, properties AEBR-ZZT—NFF+-A=+—HZXEKRE
held for sale and properties under development as at 31 December %  FEHENYERERPYEZFBN

2019 are as follows: S s
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE
Approximate
gross floor Group's  Land lease
Location Purpose areas interest  duration
BOEE rEE L
o Eh Rz BEEE s HEHH
(sg.meter)
(FF7K)

1. Commercial Units at Jincan Garden, Commercial 2,072 100%  Medium
Xiong Yue Town, Yingkou City, [EES i
Liaoning Province, the PRC
FREEREOMAEESREE R ENL

2. Medical Building, the middle of Kunlun Street, Commercial 5,686 100%  Medium
Bayuquan District, Liaoning Province, the PRC [SES AR ER
THEEELHABRRRRAHTRBEAR

3. Commercial units at No. 4 Sanba Square, Commercial 41,945 100%  Medium
Zhongshan District, Dalian City, [EES f HA
Liaoning Province, the PRC
HREEERRETH LR = \BSAR  AEEM

4. Annexe to Shun Hing Square, Residential 1,759 100%  Medium
Shennan East Road,Luohu District, F=E i
Shenzhen City, the PRC
DR YT R R R IR (E RS T2

5. Commercial units located at Liangxi District, Commercial 1,061 100%  Medium
Wouxi City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC [EES f EA
FEIIEHE BT RERE C HE SN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
YE S

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

FFHERTE

Approximate

gross floor Group’s  Land lease
Location Purpose areas interest  duration
BgE A58 ti
e R REER bR HEHE
(sg.meter)
(F7K)
South-eastern side of Wang'ershan Avenue Bayuquan District, Residential 36,524 100%  Long
Yingkou City, Lianing Province, the PRC Fx =8
PEEEREOMRARRERILAHREE
Residential Units located at Liangxi District, Residential 8,334 100% Long
Wauxi City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC FE =8
IR EIIEE BHTHRER EEEN
The south of Moon Lake Park and the west of Liaodongwan Avenue, Residential/ 119,644 100%  Medium -
Bayuquan District, Yingkou City, Liaoning Province, the PRC Commercial Commercial
PEEEREOMRARRANEFEHTNEREAHER /% hH-Ex
Long -
Residential
RY-1=%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
YE S

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

BHEPEEWSR

Approximate
grossfloor  Stage of Expected Group's  Land lease
Location Purpose Site areas areas  completion completion Interest ~ duration
BagE
5 i3 HEER REMRE  7ARA R FEBfGRE  THEEHES
(sq.meter) (sq.meter)
(Fk) (Fk)
Intersection of Dongyuan Road and Jianmin Road, Gaoyou Cly,  Residential/ 180,16 507,172 Superstucture Phase IS (2020] 8%  Medium-
Jiangsu Province, the PRC . Commercil in progress Phase |-\ (2022) Commercia
PETHASETR R ERRYER fi/f% TEREDAET  Phase I (003 o-Hg
8-S Long-
£-8-NzEz Residenal
£oB(-3 - RE-1%
AParcel of Vacant Land located at the junction of Luma Road and ~ Residential 163232 36603 Phase|-Finalstage  Phase [ (2020) 100%  Medium-
Changle Road) Binhu District, Wusi City, Jiangsu Province, . Commercil Phase [I - Foundation ~ Phase 1 (2022) Commercial
thefRC o fz/B2 in progress F-4(-2-%F) nE-%%
R AT G2 BT RRRE SRR RERRRL R F-8-5ER  RCB(CTocf) Long-
£28- ﬁgﬁ Residentia
it 33 RE-H%
Residential units located at No. 99 Changshan Road, Jiangyin City, ~ Residential/ 109019 28120 Final stage Phase |1, Il {completed) 0% Medium-
Jiangsu Province, the PRC . Commercal RiER Phase V(202 Commerci
HAFETHATRRLENE 1280 /% g2 28R H-ER
FI8 (Z3-%F) Long -
Residential
K-t
A parcel of developmg lond located at the east of Pingan Avenve  Residential/ 38,120 15,9 Superstructure 00 100%  Medium-
and south of Haiyun Road, Bayuquan District, Yingkou City, . Commercil in progress “Ro%f Commercial
LlaomngProvmce the PRC 115007 fz/B% LERENEER h-%
PEREEEOTHABETRARR Long-
j WZ TR Residential
8 15007 RE-£=
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER BRPREYE
DEVELOPMENT
Approximate
gross floor  Stage of Expected Group's  Land lease
Location Purpose Site areas areas  completion completion Interest ~~ duration
\ BagE -
3 i3 HEmR REOR  xAER R KEEfEE  IHEEEE
(sq.meter) (sq.meter)
(Fk) (Fk)
Investment properties under construction at Xinzhuang Town, Office/Commercial 39825 185075 Superstructure 201 100%  Medium
Minhang District,Shangh, the PRC HAZ/mE i progress 2 e
oE LETRRERE RRRENE TEREDmER
Investment properties under construction located at Office/Commercial 10857 146,270 Main structure 2000 100%  Medium
the south-eastern side of the junction of Titan Road and BNE/BE completedand  ZE-TE i
Zhongshan Road, Shahekou District, Dalian Ciy, under interior
Lizoning Province, the PRC - ‘ decoration
AEREAAET) AIERARER IR RARER AR RS RETRTH
Rnige
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